
PLEASE NOTE: To access hyperlinks and bookmarks, the document must be downloaded to your computer. 

  HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
        “Inspiring and empowering every student to thrive every day.” 

 

We will Inspire our students to explore, dream big, and develop social and civic responsibility through a balanced learning program. 

They will Thrive as we foster perseverance and resiliency in a safe, culturally responsive, and inclusive community.  We will 

Empower our students by teaching them critical thinking skills through a rigorous academic experience in a digitally-rich environment. 

205 North Ventura Road Port Hueneme, California 93041  (805) 488-3588 
 

Regular Meeting                           Monday, March 27, 2023 
                                                         FY 2022-2023 
 

AGENDA OUTLINE 
CALL TO ORDER  
AND OPEN SESSION: 6:00 P.M. 
  
LOCATION: City of Port Hueneme Council Chambers 
 250 N. Ventura Road 
 Port Hueneme, CA 93041 
 

We welcome visitors to public meetings of the Governing Board and encourage suggestions and 
comments.  Any person who wants to address the Board may do so under section 5, below.  For our 
records and to aid in preparing minutes, speakers are asked, but not required, to fill out an oral 
communications form and give it to the recording secretary.  Forms will be on a table as you enter the 
room.  The presiding board member will call each speaker to the podium. 
 

Pursuant to Education Code 35145.5, the Board cannot enter into formal discussion or make a decision 
on any matter not on the agenda.  However, they may refer a topic to a later meeting or ask the 
Superintendent or staff to follow up.  
 
Pursuant to Government Code 54954.1, any person with a disability who needs reasonable 
accommodations to participate may request assistance in advance of the meeting. Contact the 
Superintendent’s secretary at the District Office, 205 North Ventura Road, Port Hueneme, California 
93041 / Telephone: 805-488-3588, Ext. 9100. 
 

Documents for regular meetings customarily are available no later than the Thursday preceding a 
regularly scheduled Monday meeting.  Meeting documents are also posted in the Board area of the 
District website.    
 
1. 6:00 P.M. CALL TO ORDER AND FLAG SALUTE 
 
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 (1) Spanish translation services are available. 
 
3. ADOPTION OF THE REGULAR AGENDA 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2, items may be added to the agenda if (1) an 
“emergency situation” exists as defined by Government Code 54956.5 (majority vote required); 
(2) the need to take action arose after posting of the agenda (two-thirds vote of the Board or a 
unanimous vote of those present if less than the full Board); or (3) an item from a posted meeting 
that occurred not more than five calendar days prior to the current meeting must be continued at 
this meeting in order for action to be taken. 
 

It is recommended that the Governing Board adopt the agenda, as submitted, or consider any 
request from an individual board member to revise the proposed agenda before adoption. 
 

Motion:   Second:    Vote:    

http://www.huensd.k12.ca.us/superintendent-de73a0a3/school-board-meetings-and-agendas-2015-2016-942f4f8e
http://www.huensd.k12.ca.us/superintendent-de73a0a3/school-board-meetings-and-agendas-2015-2016-942f4f8e


Agenda Outline, Page 2 of 5 Regular Meeting of the Governing Board 
March 27, 2023 (FY 2022-2023) Hueneme Elementary School District, Port Hueneme, CA 

4. PRESENTATIONS 
 
4.1 E.O. Green Junior High School 

 
5. COMMUNICATIONS 

Education Code 54954.3 requires that every agenda for a regular meeting provide an opportunity 
for the public to directly address the Governing Board on any item of interest to the public before 
the Governing Board’s consideration of the item.  

 

5.1 Oral Communications 
 

(1) General Speakers 

(2) Hueneme Education Association  

(3) California School Employees Association Chapter 273 
  

5.2 Written Communications 
 
6. APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES 
 If there is more than one set of minutes presented, the Board may approve multiple sets of 

minutes in a single motion or vote on each set of minutes in separate motions. 
 

6.1 It is recommended that the Governing Board approve the minutes of the regular meeting 
of February 27, 2023. 

 
Motion:    Second:    Vote:    

 
7. ADOPTION OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters on the Consent Agenda are considered by the Board to be routine and will be acted upon 
in a single motion. There will be no discussion of these items prior to the time the Board votes on 
the motion unless members of the Board, staff, or the public request that specific items be discussed 
and/or removed from the Consent Agenda. 

Consideration to remove an item or transfer it from the Consent Agenda to the Action Agenda: 
   

Item(s) Removed/Transferred:          
 
Except for any item(s) removed upon majority agreement, it is recommended that the Governing 
Board use a single motion and vote regarding the following items on the Consent Agenda: 

 
Motion:    Second:    Vote:    

 
7.1 Approval of Personnel Report 

7.2 Ratification of February 2023 Financial Reports: 

(1) Expenditures (Commercial Payments and Payroll) 

(2) Purchase Orders and Checks  

(3) Miscellaneous Income Report 

 7.3 Acceptance of Gifts to the District 

7.4 Ratify a Five-Year Contract with Crown Castle, Inc. for Fiber Optic, Wide Area Network 
Service that Qualifies Under the E-Rate Discount Program  

 



Agenda Outline, Page 3 of 5 Regular Meeting of the Governing Board 
March 27, 2023 (FY 2022-2023) Hueneme Elementary School District, Port Hueneme, CA 

7.5 Ratify a Three-Year Contract with Spectrum Enterprise for Fiber Optic Service to Ventura 
County Office of Education that Qualifies Under the E-Rate Discount Program 

 
8. BUSINESS SERVICES 
 

8.1 Resolution B22-23-14 of the Board of Trustees of the Hueneme Elementary School District 
Providing for the Issuance and Sale of Hueneme Elementary School District General 
Obligation Bonds, 2018 Election, Series C, in the Principal Amount of Not to Exceed Two 
Million Dollars ($2,000,000); Prescribing the Terms of the Bonds and Their Sale; Approving 
the Form of Bonds; Authorizing Execution and Delivery of a Bond Purchase Agreement; 
Authorizing Delivery of a Preliminary Official Statement and an Official Statement with 
Respect to Such Bonds; Authorizing Execution of Certain Documents and Agreements in 
Connection with the Issuance of Such Bonds; Making Certain Findings and Determinations 
and Taking Related Actions  

  

It is recommended that the Governing Board adopt Resolution B22-23-14. 
 

Motion:   Second:    Vote:    
 

9. HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

9.1 Public Hearing Regarding Initial (Sunshine) Bargaining Proposal for 2022-23 Successor 
Collective Bargaining Agreement Presented by the California School Employees Association 
(CSEA) and its Hueneme Chapter #273 to the Hueneme Elementary School District  

    
 Public Hearing 
 Pursuant to Government Code Section 3547(a), the Governing Board of the Hueneme 

Elementary School District will hold this public hearing to receive input from the 
community regarding the 2022-23 Successor Collective Bargaining Initial (Sunshine) 
Proposal submitted by the California School Employees Association (CSEA) and its 
Hueneme Chapter #273 to the Hueneme Elementary School District. 

 
Hearing Opened:   Hearing Closed:     

 
9.2 Acceptance of Initial (Sunshine) Bargaining Proposal for 2022-23 Successor Collective 

Bargaining Agreement Presented by the California School Employees Association (CSEA) 
and its Hueneme Chapter #273 to the Hueneme Elementary School District 

 
 It is recommended that the Governing Board accept the Initial Bargaining Proposal 

presented by the California School Employees Association (CSEA) and its Hueneme 
Chapter #273 to the Hueneme Elementary School District for the 2022-23 Successor 
Collective Bargaining Agreement. 

 
  Motion:   Second:    Vote:    
 

9.3 Approval of 2022/2023 and 2023/2024 Transportation Plan for Home-to-School (HTS) 
Transportation Reimbursement 

 
 It is recommended that the Governing Board approve the 2022/2023 Transportation 

Plan for Home-to-School (HTS) Transportation Reimbursement. 
 
  Motion:   Second:    Vote:    
 



Agenda Outline, Page 4 of 5 Regular Meeting of the Governing Board 
March 27, 2023 (FY 2022-2023) Hueneme Elementary School District, Port Hueneme, CA 

10. POLICIES 
 

10.1 Second Reading and Approval of Proposed Revisions to the District Policy Manual 
 

It is recommended that, after completing a second reading of the proposed policy 
revisions, the Governing Board approve all revisions as submitted and authorize 
immediate dissemination and implementation. 
 
Series 0000: Philosophy-Goals-Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 BP 0430, Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education 
 BP 0450, Comprehensive Safety Plan 

Series 3000: Business and Non-Instructional Operations 
 BP 3460, Financial Reports and Accountability 

Series 5000: Students 
 BP 5131.7, Weapons and Dangerous Instruments 

 
Motion:   Second:    Vote:    

 
10.2 Acceptance and First Reading of Proposed Revisions to the District Policy Manual 

   
It is recommended that the Governing Board and administrative staff: 
 
(1) accept for a first reading proposed revisions to various board policies; and 

(2) provide input for additional modifications that may be needed before a second 
reading and recommendation for approval at the next regular board meeting. 

 
Series 0000: Philosophy-Goals-Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 BP 0460, Local Control and Accountability Plan 

Series 3000: Business and Non-Instructional Operations 
 BP 3515, Campus Security 

Series 5000: Students 
 BP 5142, Safety 
 BP 5148.2, Before/After School Programs 

Series 9000: Bylaws of the Board 
 BB 9220, Governing Board Elections 
 BB 9223, Filling Vacancies 
 BB 9323, Meeting Conduct 

 
Motion:   Second:    Vote:    

 
11. OTHER BOARD BUSINESS 

 
11.1 District Organizational Structure  
 
 For information only. 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Outline, Page 5 of 5 Regular Meeting of the Governing Board 
March 27, 2023 (FY 2022-2023) Hueneme Elementary School District, Port Hueneme, CA 

12. MONTHLY REPORTS & ADVANCED PLANNING 
  

12.1 Trustees 

12.2 Superintendent 

12.3  Suggested Future Agenda Items 
 

13. CLOSED SESSION 
 
13.1 COLLECTIVE BARGAINING: LABOR NEGOTIATIONS 
 (Pursuant to Government Code 54957.6) 

o Dr. Carlos Dominguez, Deputy Superintendent  
 

13.2 CONFIDENTIAL STUDENT MATTER (Pursuant to Education Code Sections 35146,  
 48900, et seq. and 48912(b)) 

o Case No. 2022120705 
 
14. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 
 
 14.1 Ratification of a Confidential Compromise and Release Agreement  
 

It is recommended that the Governing Board ratify the confidential Compromise and 
Release Agreement for Case No. 2022120705 that was fully executed on March 9, 2023. 

 
Motion:   Second:    Vote:    

 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

● Regular Meeting at 6:00 P.M. on Monday, April 24, 2023.  Location to be advised. 
 

DISTRICT FRAUD HOTLINE 
Acts of fraud against the Hueneme Elementary School District are expensive. In addition, the actions of perpetrators of fraud 
often create a hostile and/or fearful environment for others. Anyone who witnesses a fraudulent act against the District is 
encouraged to report it, using the District’s Fraud Hotline. Reports may be called in to (805) 946-0171. All reports will be 
investigated. The reporter’s identity will be kept confidential and, in fact, any person who reports a fraudulent act may choose 
to remain anonymous. (Ref: Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3400, rev. 08/13) 



 

Hueneme Elementary School District                                                                Regular Meeting, February 27, 2023 
Port Hueneme, California                                                                                                    2022-2023 Minutes, Page 38 
 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD  

 

Monday, February 27, 2023, 6:00 P.M. 
  
 

 
 

INTRODUCTORY INFORMATION  

In accordance with Brown Act rules governing regulatory bodies, the Hueneme Elementary School 
District (HESD) posts agendas for regularly scheduled meetings of the Governing Board a minimum of 72 
hours in advance. Agendas for special meetings (i.e., meetings not on the regular schedule called for a 
specific purpose) are posted a minimum of 24 hours in advance. Agendas are available for the public to 
view at all hours of every day through glass at the front of the District Office or on the District website.  
 

This meeting was held in Council Chambers of the City of Port Hueneme at 250 North Ventura Road 
in Port Hueneme, California. The agenda and full meeting packet were posted and made available to the 
public on February 23rd.  The public was also able to view the meeting online at http://bit.ly/hesd_youtube.   

ATTENDANCE 

Trustees:  At the 6:00 P.M. Call to Order, all trustees were present: Board President, Charles Weis, 
Ph.D.; Board Clerk, Darlene Bruno; and Members Bexy Gomez, Siugen Constanza, and Daisy Sampablo.   

 

 Administrators and Others:  Dr. Christine Walker (Superintendent); Dr. Carlos Dominguez 
(Deputy Superintendent); Helen Cosgrove (Associate Superintendent – Educational Services); David 
Ragsdale (Associate Superintendent – Technology & Strategic Operations); Patricia Marshall (Chief 
Business Official); Melissa Rufai (Director – Personnel); and Cynthia Rojas, Executive Assistant to the 
Superintendent.  A number of staff were also present. 

CALL TO ORDER AND FLAG SALUTE – Item 1 

 Dr. Weis called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

ANNOUNCEMENTS – Item 2 

Ms. Gomez stated that a district translator was present for anyone who needed the service. 

ADOPTION OF THE REGULAR AGENDA – Item 3 

Motion 062: Trustee Bruno motioned to adopt the agenda, as submitted.  Trustee Gomez seconded and 
the motion passed upon a unanimous vote of 5 ayes and zero nays. 

PRESENTATION – Item 4 

Cara Comstock, Principal of Parkview Elementary School, talked about the school’s Multi-Tiered 
System of Supports and the use of Panorama survey to support students and teachers. 

 

http://bit.ly/hesd_youtube
crojas
Typewritten Text
Item 6.1



 

Hueneme Elementary School District                                                                Regular Meeting, February 27, 2023 
Port Hueneme, California                                                                                                    2022-2023 Minutes, Page 39 
 

COMMUNICATIONS – Item 5 

5.1 Oral Communications 
 

(1) General Speakers 
There were three general speakers who indicated that they would address the Board when 
item 9.3 was discussed. 

(2) California School Employees Association Chapter 273  
 Cinthya Fitzgerald, CSEA President, stood alongside a number of members from CSEA and 

addressed the Board regarding the cuts that will be made to the campus assistant and health 
clerk positions. 

(3) Hueneme Education Association  
Alice Ramirez, HEA president, shared that open houses are coming up in March and that 
Read Across America Day is this Thursday. 

 
5.2 Written Communications 
 

Dr. Walker stated that she received two written communications from Nigro & Nigro, the district 
auditors.  The first letter stated that the company had completed the Measure “B” performance audit.  The 
second was an engagement letter for the 2023 audit. 

APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES – Item 6 

6.1 It is recommended that the Governing Board approve the minutes of the regular meeting of January 
23, 2023. 
 
Motion 063: Trustee Gomez motioned to approve the minutes of the regular meeting of January 23, 2023.  

Trustee Bruno seconded and the motion passed upon a vote of 4 ayes and zero nays, with 
one member abstaining (Constanza). 

ADOPTION OF CONSENT AGENDA – Item 7 

Motion 064: Trustee Bruno motioned to adopt the Consent Agenda as submitted. Trustee Constanza 
seconded and the motion passed upon a unanimous vote of 5 ayes and zero nays. 

The following reports were accepted and approved: 
 

7.1 Approval of Personnel Report 
 
7.2 Ratification of January 2023 Financial Reports:  

 (1) Expenditures (Commercial Payments and Payroll) 

 (2) Purchase Orders and Checks 

 (3) Miscellaneous Income Report 

BUSINESS SERVICES – Item 8 

8.1 Approve Positive Certification Based on the Second Interim Financial Report for the Period Ended 
January 31, 2023, and; Resolution B22-23-11: Revision of the 2022-23 Board Approved Budgets for the 
General Fund, Cafeteria Fund, Building Fund, Capital Facilities, and Bond Interest and Redemption Fund 
(Presented by Ms. Marshall) 



 

Hueneme Elementary School District                                                                Regular Meeting, February 27, 2023 
Port Hueneme, California                                                                                                    2022-2023 Minutes, Page 40 
 

Motion 065: Trustee Constanza motioned to approve the positive certification of the District’s 2022-23 
Second Interim Report and Resolution B22-23-11.  Trustee Gomez seconded and the motion 
passed upon a unanimous vote of 5 ayes and zero nays. 

 
8.2 Recommendation to Award HVAC (Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning), Electrical, and Fire 
Alarm Upgrades at Hollywood Beach School (HESD #22-23-06) to RMS Life Safety (Presented by Mr. 
Ragsdale) 
  
Motion 066: Trustee Bruno motioned to award HVAC, electrical, and fire alarm upgrades at Hollywood 

Beach School (HESD #22-23-06) to RMS Life Safety.  Trustee Gomez seconded and the 
motion passed upon a unanimous vote of 5 ayes and zero nays. 

HUMAN RESOURCES – Item 9 

9.1 Proposed Adoption of the 2024-25 Teacher Work Year and Student Instructional Calendar 
(Presented by Dr. Dominguez) 
  
Motion 067: Trustee Constanza motioned to approve the 2024-25 Teacher Work Year and Student 

Instructional Calendar.  Trustee Bruno seconded and the motion passed upon a unanimous 
vote of 5 ayes and zero nays. 

 
9.2 Proposed Approval of Certificated, Administrative, and Confidential Employees Salary Schedules 
for the 2022-2023 School Year (Presented by Dr. Dominguez) 
 
Motion 068: Trustee Bruno motioned to approve the 2022-2023 Certificated, Administrative, and 

Confidential Employees Salary Schedules.  Trustee Gomez seconded and the motion passed 
upon a unanimous vote of 5 ayes and zero nays. 

 
9.3 Resolution B22-23-12: Resolution to Reduce the Hours of Classified Positions (Presented by Dr. 
Dominguez) 
 
 Three members of the public – Jennifer Zachary, Amber Chaparro, and Gabriela Flores – provided 
public comment on this agenda item. 
  
Motion 069: Trustee Bruno motioned to adopt Resolution B22-23-12 to reduce the hours of classified 

positions listed: fifty-five (55) positions - 5.4 FTE Campus Assistants and eleven (11) 
positions - 4.41 FTE Health Clerks; and resolution for reduction of a particular kind of 
service for the following positions: six (6) positions - 2.5 FTE Campus Assistants and three 
(3) positions - 2.93 FTE Health Clerks; and authorize the Superintendent or her designee to 
give appropriate notice to the persons employed in these positions.  Trustee Sampablo 
seconded and the motion passed upon a unanimous vote of 5 ayes and zero nays. 

 
9.4 Resolution B22-23-13: Resolution for Reduction of a Particular Kind of Service for Certificated Staff 
(Presented by Dr. Dominguez) 
  
Motion 070: Trustee Constanza motioned to adopt Resolution B22-23-13 for reduction of a particular 

kind of service for the following positions: 3.0 FTE Program Specialists and 2.0-FTE Social 
Science/History Teachers; and authorize the Superintendent or designee to give 
appropriate notice to the persons employed in these positions.  Trustee Bruno seconded 
and the motion passed upon a unanimous vote of 5 ayes and zero nays. 

 
 



 

Hueneme Elementary School District                                                                Regular Meeting, February 27, 2023 
Port Hueneme, California                                                                                                    2022-2023 Minutes, Page 41 
 

EDUCATIONAL SERVICES – Item 10 

10.1 Approval of the 2023-2024 District Comprehensive School Safety Plans (Presented by Ms. Guillen) 
  
Motion 071: Trustee Gomez motioned to approve the Comprehensive School Safety Plans, as submitted; 

and direct the Superintendent or designee to implement the approved plans.  Trustee Bruno 
seconded and the motion passed upon a unanimous vote of 5 ayes and zero nays. 

 
10.1 2022-2023 Panorama-HESD Family Engagement Survey (Presented by Ms. Guillen) 
 
 No action was required on this item. Ms. Guillen talked about the Panorama Family Engagement 
Survey that district families are currently completing.  She shared information about the survey, 
Panorama’s mission, and how the survey data is utilized. 

POLICIES – Item 11 

11.1 Acceptance and First Reading of Proposed Revisions to the District Policy Manual (Presented by Dr. 
Walker) 
  
Motion 072: Trustee Gomez motioned to accept for a first reading proposed revisions to various board 

policies; and provide input for additional modifications that may be needed before a second 
reading and recommendation for approval at the next regular board meeting.  Trustee 
Constanza seconded and the motion passed upon a unanimous vote of 5 ayes and zero nays. 

 
The following policies were accepted for a first reading: 

Series 0000: Philosophy-Goals-Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 BP 0430, Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education 
 BP 0450, Comprehensive Safety Plan 

Series 3000: Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 BP 3460, Financial Reports and Accountability 

 Series 5000: Students 
 BP 5131.7, Weapons and Dangerous Instruments 

OTHER BOARD BUSINESS – Item 12 

12.1 CSBA Delegate Assembly Election (Presented by Dr. Walker) 
  
Motion 073: Trustee Sampablo motioned to vote for Rebecca “Beckie” Cramer to fill one vacant seat in 

CSBA Subregion 11-B and authorize the Superintendent to sign and forward the official 

ballot to CSBA by Wednesday, March 15, 2023.  Trustee Bruno seconded and the motion 

passed upon a unanimous vote of 5 ayes and zero nays. 

MONTHLY REPORTS & ADVANCED PLANNING – Item 13 

13.1 Trustees 
 
 Ms. Bruno reported on GradNation. 

 Ms. Constanza reported on the VCSBA dinner. 

Ms. Gomez had nothing to report. 



 

Hueneme Elementary School District                                                                Regular Meeting, February 27, 2023 
Port Hueneme, California                                                                                                    2022-2023 Minutes, Page 42 
 

 Ms. Sampablo shared that she visited Larsen and Sunkist. 

Dr. Weis had nothing to report. 
 
13.2 Superintendent 
 
 Dr. Walker talked about the various schools she visited and shared that they will be holding open 
house throughout March. 
 
13.3 Suggested Future Agenda Items 
   
 Dr. Weis will facilitate the Governing Board orientation on March 25. 

CLOSED SESSION – Item 14 

 At 7:43 P.M., all members of the Board convened in closed session with the Superintendent, Deputy 
Superintendent and Associate Superintendents to discuss labor negotiations and a confidential student 
matter. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION – Item 15 

 At 8:22 P.M., all members of the Board reconvened in open session.   
 
15.1 Submission of the Report of the Administrative Panel for Expulsion Case 22-23-02 
 
Motion 074: Trustee Constanza motioned to expel the named student and direct the Superintendent or 

her designee to notify the parents of this decision and provide them with a copy of the 
rehabilitation plan.  Trustee Bruno seconded and the motion passed upon a unanimous vote 
of 5 ayes and zero nays. 

ADJOURNMENT – Item 15  

 There being no further regular business before the Governing Board, Dr. Weis adjourned the 
meeting at 8:23 P.M. 

 
 
      
Christine Walker, Ed.D. 
Secretary to the Governing Board 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board member signatures appear on the following page. 
 



 

Hueneme Elementary School District                                                                Regular Meeting, February 27, 2023 
Port Hueneme, California                                                                                                    2022-2023 Minutes, Page 43 
 

By our signatures given below on this 27th day of March, 2023, the Governing Board of the Hueneme 
Elementary School District approves the foregoing Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 27, 2023. 
 

 
 
 
      
Charles Weis, Ph.D. 
President, Board of Trustees 
 
 
         

       Darlene A. Bruno 
Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 
 
      
Siugen Constanza 
Member, Board of Trustees 
 
 
      
Bexy I. Gomez 
Member, Board of Trustees 
 
 
      
Daisy Sampablo 
Member, Board of Trustees 



Item 7.1 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM: APPROVAL OF PERSONNEL REPORT 

 

 

BOARD MEETING DATE: February 27, 2023 

 

 

FROM: Melissa Rufai, Director of Personnel Services  

 Dr. Carlos Dominguez, Deputy Superintendent 

Dr. Christine Walker, Superintendent 

 

STAFF COMMENT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

It is recommended that the Governing Board approve personnel actions in employee 

categories that are listed below. Identification of specific employees affected by the actions 

will be shared confidentially with the Governing Board and certain members of management 

in advance of the meeting. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

(1) Certificated Services 

Employment  

Retirement 

 

(2) Classified Services 

Employment 

Change of Classification/Location and/or Hours  

Request for Unpaid Personal Leave of Absence 

Resignation 

Retirement 

Termination – Medical Layoff 

Revised Job Description 



HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
205 North Ventura Road, Port Hueneme, CA 93041 PERSONNEL REPORT: February 27, 2023 
Employee’s Name Effective Date Personnel Action 
 

 
Report # 22-23-07  Page 1 of 4 
 
 

EMPLOYMENT: Certificated Services 

Ayala, Jasmine 02-09-23 Substitute Teacher 

Hortacher, Emily 02-10-23 Substitute Teacher 

Orpilla-Pasamonte, Maria Teresa 01-30-23 Substitute Teacher 

Perez, Itzel 02-03-23 Substitute Teacher 

Singhal, Rebecca 01-17-23 Substitute Teacher 

Valencia, Yocelin 01-30-23 Substitute Teacher 

Vieira, Lindsay 02-01-23 Substitute Teacher 

   

RETIREMENT:  Certificated Services 

Burke, Maria 07-01-23 Assistant Principal, Sunkist School, retiring 

Daley, Maureen 06-30-23 Speech and Language Teacher, Haycox School, retiring 

Dorsey-Jennings, Karen 06-16-23 Teacher, Larsen School, retiring 

Frank, Peter 06-16-23 Teacher, Hollywood Beach School, retiring 

Hoerer, Andy 06-16-23 Teacher, Hathaway School, retiring 

Romero, Martha 06-30-23 Teacher, EO Green Jr. High School, retiring 

Vasquez, Theresa 06-16-23 Teacher, Hathaway School, retiring 

Vizena, Aileen 06-16-23 Teacher, Haycox School, retiring 

Whitmer, Karen 06-16-12 Teacher, Larsen School, retiring 

   



HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
205 North Ventura Road, Port Hueneme, CA 93041 PERSONNEL REPORT: February 27, 2023 
Employee’s Name Effective Date Personnel Action 
 

 
Report # 22-23-07  Page 2 of 4 
 
 

EMPLOYMENT:  Classified Services 

Aarona, Raylin 01-27-23 Substitute Office Clerk, Districtwide 

Aguilar, Josue 01-23-23 Substitute Office Clerk, Districtwide 

Amezcua Manzo, Javier 01-12-23 Substitute Custodian, Districtwide 

Castellanos, Gia 02-01-23 3.0-hr. Bilingual Paraprofessional, Williams School, replacing Miguel 
Gomez who resigned 

DeLara, Angela 02-13-23 5.0-hr. Mini Bus Driver, F.O.T., replacing Jose Barragan who transferred 

Garcia, Luis 12-02-22 Substitute Custodian, Districtwide 

Hernandez, Roberto 01-17-23 Substitute Campus Assistant, Districtwide 

Pacheco-Cornejo, Olivia 02-01-23 3.25-hr. Paraprofessional/Physically Handicapped, Hueneme School, 
replacing Adriana Jimenez who transferred 

Sellers, Maria I 01-23-23 Substitute Food Service Worker, Districtwide 

Walthall, Jackson 02-01-23 3.50-hr. Paraprofessional/Special Education, EO Green Jr. High 
School, replacing Sabrina Ruiz who resigned 

   

CHANGE OF CLASSIFICATION, LOCATION AND/OR HOURS: Classified Services 
Dionicio, Maria 12-05-22 3.30-hr. Campus Assistant to 4.0-hr. Campus Assistant, EO Green Jr. 

High School, correction in hours 

Gonzalez, Iliana 01-23-23 5.70-hr. Paraprofessional/Special Education, Hathaway Preschool to 
5.70-hr. Paraprofessional/Special Education-RSP, Hathaway School, 
replacing Ivette Posada who retired 



HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
205 North Ventura Road, Port Hueneme, CA 93041 PERSONNEL REPORT: February 27, 2023 
Employee’s Name Effective Date Personnel Action 
 

 
Report # 22-23-07  Page 3 of 4 
 
 

Reynoso, Ursulo 02-02-23 8.0-hr. Custodian, EO Green Jr. High School to 8.0-hr. Groundskeeper, 
Blackstock Jr. High School, replacing Jose Perez who transferred 

Sanchez, Anastasdia 02-13-23 6.50-hr. Paraprofessional/Physically Handicapped-SDC, Blackstock Jr. 
High School to 6.0-hr. Paraprofessional/Special Education, Blackstock 
Jr. High School, replacing Raechel Santos who resigned 

   
REQUEST FOR UNPAID PERSONAL LEAVE OF ABSENCE:  Classified Services 

Gomez, Mayra 01-09-23 thru 04-30-23 3.75-hr. Paraprofessional, Williams School requesting unpaid personal  
leave of absence pursuant to C.S.E.A. Agreement 

Ochoa, Tonantzin 01-16-23 thru 06-02-23 4.25-hr. Paraprofessional, Larsen School, requesting unpaid personal 
leave of absence pursuant to C.S.E.A. Agreement 

Silva, Jennifer 01-18-23 thru 05-12-23 3.0-hr. Bilingual Paraprofessional, Parkview School, requesting unpaid 
personal leave of absence pursuant to C.S.E.A. Agreement 

  

RESIGNATION:  Classified Services  

Arellano, Jasmine 01-26-23 3.50-hr. Paraprofessional-SDC, Sunkist School, resigning 

Ceja, Daniel 12-09-23 3.50-hr. Bilingual Paraprofessional, Williams School, resigning 

Garcia, Carmen 01-27-23 5.70-hr. Paraprofessional/Physically Handicapped, Hathaway School, 
resigning 

Gonzalez, Anthony 01-31-23 3.75-hr. Paraprofessional, Hollywood Beach School, resigning 

Gonzalez, Jose 01-24-23 3.75-hr. Paraprofessional, Williams School, resigning 

Jauregui, Lesley 02-13-23 3.50-hr. Bilingual Paraprofessional, Sunkist School, resigning 



HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
205 North Ventura Road, Port Hueneme, CA 93041 PERSONNEL REPORT: February 27, 2023 
Employee’s Name Effective Date Personnel Action 
 

 
Report # 22-23-07  Page 4 of 4 
 
 

Lagunas, Daisy 02-14-23 3.50-hr. Campus Assistant, Sunkist School, resigning 

Recio, Miriam 06-23-23 8.0-hr. Health Clerk, Haycox School, resigning 

Vazquez, Liset 01-04-23 3.50-hr. Paraprofessional-Speech, Bard School, resigning 

Washington, Jeremy 01-12-23 3.75-hr. Paraprofessional/Physically Handicapped, Parkview School, 
resigning 

   

RETIREMENT:  Classified Services 

Bernardo, Rolando 03-31-23 8.0-hr. Custodian, Hathaway School, retiring 

   

TERMINATION:  Classified Services 

Reynoso, Jaci 01-17-23 6.0-hr. Food Service Worker I, Sunkist School, terminated for exhausting 
all available leave.  Placed on a 39-month medical leave list pursuant 
to Education Code 

REVISED JOB DESCRIPTION – Classified Services 

Job Description #2340.5 – Educational Services 
Technician 

Attached 

   

 



 
 

        
 

 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2340.5 –EDUCATIONAL SERVICES TECHNICIAN 

 
 

DEFINITION 
 

Under the general supervision of the Associate Superintendent, Educational Services, the Educational 
Services Technician performs tasks related to the coordination of instructional materials and 
resources. 
 

EXAMPLES OF DUTIES 
 

 Consults with the Associate Superintendent, Educational Services, to coordinate all 
instructional materials 

 Maintains databases, files and circulation records 
 Inspects returned material 
 Assists with district textbook inventory for all adopted and support materials 
 Coordinates and conducts textbook orders 
 Discards outdated material 
 Maintains instructional supplies  
 Maintains the Instructional Materials Depot 
 Coordinates and conducts instructional materials inspections 
 Performs other related duties as assigned 

 
REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS 
 

Knowledge of: 
 

 Organization and procedures at the Instructional Materials Depot 
 Basic computer skills – Google sheets 
 Establish and maintain productive working relations with all personnel 

 

Ability to: 
 

 Follow oral and written directions 
 Compile and maintain accurate and complete records and reports 
 Communicate clearly and effectively, verbally and in writing 
 Type accurately 50 words per minute 
 Establish and maintain cooperative working relationships with those contacted in the course 

of work. 
Experience: 
 

One year of clerical experience. 
 

Education: 
 

High school diploma or equivalent is required 
Rev. 01/2023 



Item 7.2 (1) 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM: RATIFICATION OF EXPENDITURE REPORTS FOR  

   JANUARY 2023  

 

BOARD MEETING DATE: February 27, 2023 

 

FROM: Patricia Marshall, Chief Business Official 

 Dr. Christine Walker, Superintendent 

 

STAFF COMMENT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
It is recommended that the Governing Board ratify the attached Expenditure Reports for 

January 2023 as follows: 

 

(1) Commercial Payments 

(2) Payroll 

 

 

  



 COMMERCIAL PAYMENT REGISTER

January 2023
Unrestricted Cafeteria Measure T Dev. Fees Bond Int. ASB/USB Accrued

ISSUE CHECK TOTAL 010 130 216 250 510 951-952-953 Sales

DATE NUMBERS AMOUNT FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND Taxes

January 3, 2023 5002054587-5002054599 582,858.55$      582,523.38$      335.17$             0.21$                                         

January 5, 2023 5002054600-5002054629 626,030.05$      612,430.05$      13,600.00$        0.25$                                         

January 9, 2023 5002054630-5002054666 148,111.57$      126,647.77$      250.00$             21,213.80$        56.54$                                       

January 10, 2023 5002054667-5002054691 238,031.55$      119,670.02$      117,979.03$      382.50$             11.57$                                       

January 12, 2023 5002054692-5002054743 1,481,686.90$   312,439.08$      38,103.78$        1,131,144.04$   1.47$                                         

January 13, 2023 5002054744-5002054744 18,461.28$        18,461.28$        

January 17, 2023 VCH020000005-VCH020000005 1,175,614.76$   1,175,614.76$   

January 18, 2023 5002054745-5002054747 684.00$             684.00$             

January 23, 2023 5002054748-5002054774 156,073.03$      103,053.29$      4,339.74$          48,680.00$        73.74$                                       

January 24, 2023 5002054775-5002054824 196,184.07$      150,599.04$      2,157.78$          43,427.25$        75.62$                                       

January 26, 2023 5002054825-5002054848 265,657.44$      253,249.52$      13,106.44$        (702.04)$            3.52$           0.80$                                         

January 30, 2023 5002054849-5002054879 303,698.70$      303,698.70$      

January 31, 2023 5002054880-5002054904 188,041.35$      187,821.35$      220.00$             

TOTAL PAYMENTS 5,381,133.25$   3,945,859.65$   176,491.94$      1,257,745.55$   3.52$           -$             -$             220.20$                                     

2/1/202310:54 AM2022-23 Commercial Register.xlsx



PAYROLL SUMMARY - JAN 2023
010 130

ISSUE DATE GROSS FRINGE TOTAL FUND FUND
EARNINGS BENEFITS PAYROLL General Cafeteria

Total $6,310,207.96 $2,876,680.12 $9,186,888.08 $8,867,366.88 $319,521.20

01/10/23 $5,035.53 $33.73 $5,069.26 $3,999.71 $1,069.55
01/31/23 $6,305,172.43 $2,876,646.39 $9,181,818.82 $8,863,367.17 $318,451.65
 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00



Item 7.2 (2) 

 

       HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
  
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:   RATIFICATION OF PURCHASE ORDERS AND   
 CHECKS FOR JANUARY 2023 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE: February 27, 2023 
 
FROM: Patricia Marshall, Chief Business Official  
  Dr. Christine Walker, Superintendent 
 

STAFF COMMENT  
 

RECOMMENDATION   
 

It is recommended that the Governing Board ratify purchase orders and checks generated 
in January 2023. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 

The monthly purchase order listing is a summary of all purchase orders issued in one 
calendar month. It is provided to the Governing Board for ratification of district purchases. 
The purchase order numbering system is described below: 

 
1. B23-0000……..“B” series purchase orders are for “blanket” orders issued to
 vendors used on a monthly basis. 
2. H23-0000……..“H” series purchase orders are for “Hueneme Elementary School 
 District” regularly issued orders. 

 
For the period of January 1-31, 2023, purchase orders totaled $8,286,689.34 and 
$307,389.08 in change notices. The attached report reflects January 2023 totals by site: 

 
00/01 District wide 18 Hathaway 
02 Educational Services  18N Neighborhood for Learning 
03 Pupil Support Services 20 Haycox 
04 Migrant Education 22 Hueneme 
05 Educational Media Center 24 Larsen 
08 Food Service 26 Parkview 
09  Summer School 28 Sunkist 
10 Bard 30 Williams 
12 Beach 34 Print Shop 
14 Blackstock 99 After School Program 
16 E.O. Green FOT Facilities, Operations and Transportation 

 
 
 



RATIFICATION OF PURCHASE ORDERS AND CHECKS FOR JANUARY 2023 
February 27, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

 

These numerical listings provide an internal system of checks and balances in the Business 
Office. 

 
Reimbursement/direct pay orders are listed in the second part of the attached reports.  
Checks issued between January 1 and January 31, 2023, totaled $5,381,133.25. 

 



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay211a

Includes 01/01/2023 - 01/31/2023

PO

Number
Vendor Name Description

Fund

Object

Account

Amount
Site

B23-00260 Ward Legal, Inc. DO/Service 010-581501 10,000.00 

B23-00261 Child Development Resources of  

Ventura County Inc

ELO/ CDR 010-510099 448,848.00 

010-5800 25,000.00 

B23-00262 Claremont Partners Inc DO/Services 010-580001 42,000.00 

B23-00263 Alpha Petroleum Transport, Inc  . FOT/Service 010-5800FOT 20,000.00 

B23-00264 BDJtech Tech/Chromebook repairs 010-580000 8,000.00 

B23-00265 PeeBee & Jay's Ed Services/LCFF/Open 

Purchase Order 2022-2023

010-430002 6,000.00 

H23-01409 MOXI, The Wolf Museum of Explo 

ration & Innovation

Bard/USB/Fieldtrip 010-580010 258.00 

H23-01445 Quality Bidders DO/Service 010-580001 7,500.00 

H23-01446 Independent Air Group, Inc. Larsen/ HVAC Consulting 010-580024 28,945.00 

H23-01447 Independent Air Group, Inc. Blackstock/ HVAC Consulting 010-580014 45,635.00 

H23-01448 Fence Factory Rentals Inv. # 614895 Fence Rental 

12/6/22-6/5/23

010-569922 2,082.00 

H23-01449 Fence Factory Rentals Inv. # 614894 Fence Rental 

12/6/22-6/5/23

010-569928 1,632.00 

H23-01450 Positive Promotions (Cust #001  

98198)

Parkview/LCFF/Student 

Council Shirts

010-430026 391.11 

H23-01451 Staple Technology Solution E.O Green/Printer/Room 

13/Mark Ramos

010-440016 616.57 

H23-01452 Staple Technology Solution Haycox/Printer/Room 38 010-440020 616.57 

H23-01453 Flyleaf Publishing, LLC Ed Services/Learning Loss 010-420002 5,519.05 

H23-01454 Amazon Capital Service LCFF/SUPPLIES 010-430030 1,297.91 

H23-01455 Amazon Capital Service Larsen/LCFF/Instructional 

Supplies

010-430024 571.60 

H23-01456 Amazon Capital Service LCFF/Supplies 010-430030 316.56 

H23-01457 Amazon Capital Service Hathaway/LCFF/Supplies 010-430018 196.56 

H23-01458 Amazon Capital Service Matls/Sup/ LCFF 010-430020 96.06 

H23-01459 Amazon Capital Service District/HR/Supplies 010-430001 65.99 

H23-01460 Amazon Capital Service ASES/DO/Supplies 010-430099 85.88 

H23-01461 Amazon Capital Service Blacktock/LCFF/Instructional 

Supplies-R. Ho

010-430014 45.86 

H23-01462 Amazon Capital Service En Comunidad 15 books Titlle 

III  Supplies

010-420002 530.16 

H23-01463 Amazon Capital Service Blackstock/LCFF/IEP Support 

-Friedman

010-430014 246.22 

H23-01464 Amazon Capital Service E.O Green/LCFF/supplies 010-430016 508.01 

H23-01465 Amazon Capital Service Bard/LCFF/Supplies 010-430010 339.96 

H23-01466 Amazon Capital Service Bard/GF/Supplies 010-440010 911.33 

H23-01467 Amazon Capital Service Blackstock/Classroom 

furniture-Nichols

010-430014 142.01 

H23-01468 Amazon Capital Service District/office supplies 010-430001 161.97 

H23-01469 Amazon Capital Service Hueneme/LCFF/Supply 010-430022 30.44 

H23-01470 Amazon Capital Service Larsen/LCFF/3rd Grade 

Integrated Units

010-430024 171.11 

Page 1 of 10

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

3:03PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing 

Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase 

Orders be approved and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items 

ordered.



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay211a

Includes 01/01/2023 - 01/31/2023

PO

Number
Vendor Name Description

Fund

Object

Account

Amount
Site

H23-01471 Amazon Capital Service Matr/Sup/Instruct/LCFF/Savala 010-420020 87.29 

H23-01472 Amazon Capital Service Matls/Sup//adm/LCFF/counsel

or

010-430020 50.26 

H23-01473 Amazon Capital Service Blackstock/LCFF/Student 

Engagement-Hunter

010-430014 87.09 

H23-01474 Amazon Capital Service LCFF/Supplies 010-430030 773.99 

H23-01475 Amazon Capital Service GF. Counselors 010-430016 316.18 

H23-01476 Amazon Capital Service ASES/DO Supplies 010-430099 32.60 

H23-01477 Amazon Capital Service LCFF. Harry Potter Club 010-420016 168.65 

H23-01478 Amazon Capital Service LCFF. PRISM Club 010-420016 143.42 

H23-01479 Amazon Capital Service Blackstock/WLR-Bautista 010-430014 275.50 

H23-01480 Amazon Capital Service ASES/Sewing/Supplies 010-430099 262.50 

H23-01481 Amazon Capital Service Matls/Sup/LCFF/ 010-430020 690.48 

H23-01482 Amazon Capital Service Office supplies 010-4300FOT 115.71 

H23-01483 Amazon Capital Service LCFF. Office 010-430016 376.91 

H23-01484 Amazon Capital Service Ed Services/ Office supplies 010-430002 49.35 

H23-01485 Amazon Capital Service GATE 010-430016 1,011.11 

H23-01486 Amazon Capital Service Office supplies 010-4300FOT 49.98 

H23-01487 Amazon Capital Service wrkload Reduction/Rm13 

Gomez

010-430030 487.26 

H23-01488 Amazon Capital Service ED Services/LCFF/Supplies 010-420002 907.62 

H23-01489 Amazon Capital Service Hueneme/Workload 

Reduction/Michelle Mora

010-430022 490.66 

H23-01491 Amazon Capital Service Hueneme/LCFF/Supply 010-430022 228.51 

H23-01492 Amazon Capital Service Parkview/LCFF/Classroom 

Supplies

010-430026 569.00 

H23-01493 Amazon Capital Service ASES/Sun/Supplies 010-430099 178.27 

H23-01494 Amazon Capital Service Hueneme/LCFF/Supply 010-430022 106.21 

H23-01495 Amazon Capital Service Parkview/WLR/Books 010-420026 85.93 

H23-01496 Amazon Capital Service Water dispenser/annex ELOP 010-430001 182.69 

H23-01497 Venco Electric Inc Invoice #42-22 switches and 

lighting at Blackstock

010-580014 3,275.00 

H23-01498 Hewlett Packard Corp. District / Technology / 

Professional Services

010-560001 210.53 

H23-01499 Advanced workplace Strategies District / H.R. / Prof. Services 010-580001 30.00 

H23-01500 Amazon Capital Service PSS/Services - Supplies 010-430003 1,964.69 

010-4400 619.68 

H23-01501 Santa Barbara Airbus Beach/Pali Institute Field Trip 

3/22/23

010-581212 1,950.00 

H23-01502 Staple Technology Solution Beach/Office color printer 010-440012 891.74 

H23-01503 Pearson Education PSS/Protocols 010-430003 841.75 

H23-01504 Multi Health Systems Inc PSS/Protocols 010-430003 256.65 

H23-01505 Lakeshore Store #038 PSS/SDC Supplies - Tomalyn 

Carey

010-430003 4,189.31 

H23-01506 Dell Computer Corp PSS/computer monitor 010-430003 623.64 

H23-01507 Speech Corner LLC PSS/Supplies for (SLP) 

Toscano - Williams

010-430003 110.08 

Page 2 of 10

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

3:03PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing 

Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase 

Orders be approved and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items 

ordered.



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay211a

Includes 01/01/2023 - 01/31/2023

PO

Number
Vendor Name Description

Fund

Object

Account

Amount
Site

H23-01508 Super Duper Publications PSS/SLP Supplies (Toscano - 

Williams)

010-430003 106.36 

H23-01509 Academic Communication Assoc P 

ublication Center Dept 917

PSS/SLP Supplies (Marsh - 

Bard)

010-430003 121.13 

H23-01510 BDJtech District / Technology /Supplies 010-440001 3,099.38 

010-5800 656.00 

H23-01511 VCOE Ed. Services/LCFF/NCPI 010-520002 50.00 

H23-01512 PeeBee & Jay's Beach/ GF/ Profesional Dev. 

Day-teachers 8/22/22

010-430012 627.75 

H23-01513 Ventura Cty Business Machines District Office/Typewriter 

service

010-580001 134.80 

H23-01514 Pearson Education PSS/Testing Material 010-430003 6,102.58 

H23-01515 Barnes Charter Transportation-field trip 

01/11/23

010-581214 960.78 

H23-01516 Amazon Capital Service Beach/ LCFF/ Supplies 010-430012 102.37 

H23-01517 Amazon Capital Service Beach/ LCFF/ Supplies 010-430012 592.58 

H23-01518 Amazon Capital Service Print Shop/Supplies 010-430016 174.80 

H23-01519 Amazon Capital Service PSS/Supplies (Lilian Lara 

(SLP) - Larsen

010-430003 199.99 

H23-01520 Amazon Capital Service PSS/SDC Toileting Supplies 010-430003 1,049.35 

H23-01521 Amazon Capital Service PSS/Supplies for Valentin 

Mendoza (SDC) - Blkstock

010-430003 438.00 

H23-01522 Amazon Capital Service PSS/Supplies for OT - Jamie 

McConnell - Beach

010-430003 992.90 

H23-01523 Amazon Capital Service PSS/SLP Supplies (Maureen 

Daley - Haycox)

010-430003 154.28 

H23-01524 Amazon Capital Service PSS/RSP Supplies/ Gilbert & 

Dalmatoff (Green)

010-430003 407.70 

H23-01525 Amazon Capital Service PSS/RSP Supplies (Salazar - 

Williams)

010-430003 225.46 

H23-01526 Amazon Capital Service PSS/SDC Supplies/Allison - 

Hathaway PreK

010-430003 390.39 

H23-01527 Amazon Capital Service PSS/RSP Supplies/Kubilos 

(Hueneme)

010-430003 342.26 

H23-01528 Amazon Capital Service PSS/Supplies for student 

IEP's/Leon,Dorsey,Mora

010-430003 520.88 

H23-01529 Amazon Capital Service PSS/SLP Supplies/Damianos 

(Blkstk)

010-430003 210.18 

H23-01530 Amazon Capital Service PSS/PSYCH supplies/Murphy 

(Sunkist)

010-430003 115.01 

H23-01531 Amazon Capital Service PSS/Office Supplies 010-430003 52.18 

H23-01532 Amazon Capital Service PSS/RSP Supplies/Garcia 

(Blkstk)

010-430003 128.61 

H23-01533 Staples Technology Solution Hathaway/printer/office 010-430018 471.64 

010-4400 945.13 

H23-01534 Andy Perez District/Enrollment 010-580001 500.00 

H23-01535 Mail Manager Inc Hueneme at home/postage 010-590001 332.61 

Page 3 of 10

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

3:03PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing 

Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase 

Orders be approved and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items 

ordered.



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay211a

Includes 01/01/2023 - 01/31/2023

PO

Number
Vendor Name Description

Fund

Object

Account

Amount
Site

H23-01536 Heinemann Library PSS/SDC Supplies (Prigge - 

Blackstock)

010-420003 505.69 

H23-01537 Castle Air Inc Food Service/ Professional 

Services

010-560008 31,152.00 

H23-01538 MARENEM INC PSS/SDC Supplies/Jaramillo 

(Bard)

010-430003 119.90 

H23-01539 Aramsco Inc. Sunkist Janitorial 010-430028 2,392.89 

H23-01540 Uline Hueneme/Supply 010-430022 1,088.59 

H23-01541 FillMyRecipe LLC Food Service/ Supplies 130-470008 101.99 

H23-01542 East Bay Restaurant Food Service/ Equipment 010-430008 238.16 

010-6400 14,304.39 

H23-01543 Ventura County OCC Med Ctr District / H.R., / Professional 

Services

010-580001 620.00 

H23-01544 Ground Penetrating Radar Syst. Beach/Service 216-620012 9,625.00 

H23-01545 Amazon Capital Service PSS/SDC supplies (Charan - 

Green)

010-420003 75.32 

010-4300 159.99 

H23-01546 Amazon Capital Service Hathaway/Wrkld Reduction/ 

Gen Fund/supplies

010-430018 75.81 

H23-01547 Amazon Capital Service LCFF. Health Office 010-430016 65.53 

H23-01548 Amazon Capital Service PSS/OT Supplies for student 

J.T. @ Green

010-430003 320.81 

H23-01549 KENCO Construction Services Beach/DSA Inspection 216-620012 32,340.00 

H23-01550 Monet Construction, Inc. Larsen & Parkview/HVAC 

Project

216-620001 7,170,310.00 

H23-01551 Jordano's Food Service/Equipment 010-640008 6,865.03 

H23-01552 America's Battle of the Book ELO/HME/S.Camarena 010-530099 97.88 

H23-01553 Aramsco Inc. Janitorial Supplies 010-430030 849.82 

H23-01554 Sinclair Sanitary Supply Inc Janitorial supplies 010-430030 872.46 

H23-01555 Aramsco Inc. Bard/Custodial/Supplies 010-430010 1,295.89 

H23-01556 Lakeshore Store #038 Hathaway P6 3rd order 010-440018 6,800.06 

H23-01557 Underwood Farm Market LLC DBA 

Tierra Rejada

GF 010-580016 825.00 

H23-01560 Amazon Capital Service Hathaway.Duplicate for 

H22-02956-item #16

010-430018 30.56 

H23-01561 Dell Computer Corp District / Technology / 

Professional Services

010-580001 127.00 

H23-01562 School Specialty, LLC Sunkist Teacher 

Supplies/LCFF

010-430028 450.62 

H23-01563 ARC Document Solutions LLC LCFF. Office 010-430016 2,419.76 

010-5800 925.00 

H23-01564 Pelican Wireless Ventures, LLC DO/Service 010-580001 330.45 

H23-01565 Aswell Trophy Hathaway/LCFF/trophies 010-430018 38.18 

H23-01566 Staple Technology Solution Bard/Printer/Ms. Garcia/Room 

05

010-440010 616.57 

H23-01567 California Lutheran University Ed Services/LCFF/Registration 010-520002 2,250.00 

Page 4 of 10

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

3:03PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing 

Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase 

Orders be approved and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items 

ordered.



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay211a

Includes 01/01/2023 - 01/31/2023

PO

Number
Vendor Name Description

Fund

Object

Account

Amount
Site

H23-01568 Atlantis Utility Hathaway/Safety cameras 010-430001 3,202.69 

010-4400 4,567.50 

010-5800 24,890.00 

H23-01569 Atlantis Utility Hathaway/security cameras 010-430001 3,842.85 

010-4400 50,190.30 

H23-01570 Staple Technology Solution Haycox/Printer/Room 42 010-440020 616.57 

H23-01571 A. Rifkin Company District/Courier bag 010-430001 238.22 

H23-01572 Kelly Spicers Inc. Year 22/23/(5th batch)/District 

paper/stores

010-932001 10,948.41 

H23-01573 Aramsco Inc. District Office Janitorial 

Supplies

010-430001 190.84 

H23-01574 Santa Barbara Zoo Hathaway/Gen 

Fund/Admission

010-580018 234.00 

H23-01575 Aramsco Inc. Warehouse. Antonio 010-430016 1,788.08 

H23-01576 Sinclair Sanitary Supply Inc Warehouse. Antonio 010-430016 255.32 

H23-01577 Amazon Capital Service District/Supplies 010-430001 901.28 

H23-01578 Amazon Capital Service Sunkist Office and Teacher 

Supplies

010-430028 233.07 

H23-01579 Amazon Capital Service Ed Services/LCFF/Supplies 010-420002 640.60 

H23-01580 Amazon Capital Service Matrl/Sup/Instruct/LCFF 010-430020 853.32 

H23-01581 Amazon Capital Service Matrl/Sup/ LCFF/Instruct/2nd 

grade level

010-420020 543.15 

010-4300 199.89 

H23-01582 Amazon Capital Service Ed Services/LCFF/Supplies 010-420002 309.65 

010-4300 19.10 

H23-01583 Amazon Capital Service Ed. 

Services/Counselor/Supplies

010-430002 183.09 

H23-01584 Amazon Capital Service Student services/color paper 010-430002 279.76 

H23-01585 CABE Matls/Sup/Instruct/Title1 010-430020 8,500.00 

H23-01586 Gus Sahagun ELO/EOG/BBall/J.mosby 010-430099 1,774.80 

H23-01587 LHP Music Inc. ELO/BLK/Mariachi 010-440099 3,900.23 

H23-01588 Sphero, Inc. STEM 010-440016 3,317.69 

H23-01589 Lego Education STEM 010-430016 6,554.18 

H23-01590 Squishy Circuits Store LLC STEM 010-430016 387.84 

H23-01591 OZO EDU, INC STEM 010-430016 3,266.58 

H23-01592 Ventura County Star Beach/Newpaper Ad 216-620012 1,550.84 

H23-01593 Grainger Industrial Supply Beach/ GF/ Traffic Cones 010-430012 545.16 

H23-01594 Amazon Capital Service Hueneme/LCFF/Supply/Sherle

en Valenzuela

010-430022 201.39 

H23-01595 Amazon Capital Service ASES/BLK/ Supplies 010-430099 143.03 

H23-01596 Amazon Capital Service ASES/DO/Supplies 010-430099 178.99 

H23-01597 Amazon Capital Service STEM 010-430016 172.79 

H23-01598 Amazon Capital Service LCFF. Office 010-430016 379.64 

H23-01599 Santa Barbara Airbus Field trip/5th grade students 

02-02-03

010-581220 4,470.00 

H23-01600 Coole School Beach/ LCFF/ Agendas Printed 

in Color

010-430012 95.59 

Page 5 of 10

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

3:03PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing 

Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase 

Orders be approved and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items 

ordered.



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay211a

Includes 01/01/2023 - 01/31/2023

PO

Number
Vendor Name Description

Fund

Object

Account

Amount
Site

H23-01601 Carnitas El Brother  Mexican G rill Mutilingual 

Programs/Prof.Dev/Food

010-430002 127.74 

H23-01602 MOXI, The Wolf Museum of Explo 

ration & Innovation

Hueneme/Ms Cox/Field Trip 

2/23/23

010-580022 396.00 

H23-01603 AEP Connections, LLC Ed. 

Services/SOEM/Registration

010-520002 175.00 

H23-01604 Urbane Cafe Ed. Services/Catering/Prof. 

Dev. Hatching Results

010-430002 478.30 

H23-01605 CJ's Barbecue Ed. Services/Catering/Prof. 

Dev. Hatching Results

010-430002 340.44 

H23-01606 Carnitas El Brother  Mexican G rill Ed. Services/Catering/Prof. 

Dev. Hatching Results

010-430002 125.68 

H23-01607 Carnitas El Brother  Mexican G rill Mutilingual 

Programs/Prof.Dev/Food 

10/4/22

010-430002 210.93 

H23-01608 Carnitas El Brother  Mexican G rill Ed. Servics/NCPI/Supplies 010-430002 87.01 

H23-01609 Jostens Inc Sunkist Yearbook/USB 010-430028 592.50 

H23-01610 Amazon Capital Service PSS/RSP 

Supplies/Silva(Haycox/For 

Students

010-430003 214.18 

H23-01611 Amazon Capital Service Hueneme/LCFF/Supply/Ashley 

Cox

010-420022 16.26 

010-4300 188.16 

H23-01612 Amazon Capital Service Beach/ LCFF/ Supplies 010-420012 63.03 

H23-01613 Amazon Capital Service Beach/ LCFF/ Supplies 010-430012 799.74 

H23-01614 Amazon Capital Service Sunkist/ Circle of Friends 010-430028 113.25 

H23-01615 Amazon Capital Service Ed. 

Services/Counselor/Supplies

010-430002 211.76 

H23-01616 Amazon Capital Service LCFF/School Supplies 010-430030 1,355.31 

H23-01617 Amazon Capital Service Matls/Sup/Instruct/lcff 010-430020 802.09 

H23-01618 Amazon Capital Service Ed Services/LCFF/Supplies 010-420002 1,031.72 

H23-01619 Amazon Capital Service Ed Services/LCFF/Supplies 010-420002 698.35 

H23-01620 Heinemann Library Parkview/LCFF/Teacher Book 010-420026 55.47 

H23-01621 Alpha Solutions Inc. Bard/Supplies 010-640010 5,629.50 

H23-01622 Scholastic Parkview/LCFF/Magazines 010-430026 5,127.19 

H23-01623 SmartSign Sunkist/Admin LCFF 010-430028 332.45 

H23-01624 Renaissance Learning Ed 

Services/LCFF/Subscription

010-580002 25,786.32 

H23-01625 Scholastic Hathaway/LCFF/Subscription 010-430018 94.19 

H23-01626 Aramsco Inc. Larsen/GF/Custodial Supplies 010-430024 2,439.37 

H23-01627 Uline ASES/ANNEX/ELO 010-430099 544.84 

H23-01628 Sinclair Sanitary Supply Inc Larsen/GF/Custodial Supplies 010-430024 40.47 

H23-01629 East Bay Restaurant Food Service/ Professional 

Service

010-580008 2,000.00 

H23-01630 Aramsco Inc. Hathaway/District/Custodial 

Supplies

010-430018 1,405.44 

Page 6 of 10

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

3:03PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing 

Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase 

Orders be approved and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items 

ordered.



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay211a

Includes 01/01/2023 - 01/31/2023

PO

Number
Vendor Name Description

Fund

Object

Account

Amount
Site

H23-01631 BDJtech ASES/ELO/Supplies 010-430099 549.76 

010-4400 2,555.62 

010-5800 650.00 

H23-01632 Lakeshore Store #038 ED Services/LCFF/Supplies 010-430002 1,843.88 

H23-01633 General Binding Corp Print Shop/Supplies 010-430034 479.73 

H23-01634 City of Oxnard ATTN City Corps ELO/Hathaway/Morimune/Bbal

l

010-580099 180.00 

H23-01635 Ventris Learning LLC Ed Services/LCFF/Teacher 

Books

010-420002 3,612.63 

010-4300 156.39 

H23-01637 Staples Technology Solution Sunkist/color printer/Mrs. 

Burke

010-430028 469.02 

010-4400 939.89 

H23-01638 BDJtech Sunkist/Earbuds/testing 010-430001 2,153.25 

H23-01639 Magnatag Inc. Hueneme/Room 27/white wall 

boards

010-440001 4,054.20 

H23-01640 Ventura County Star District/E-Rate Ad 010-580001 2,089.68 

H23-01641 Uline Sunkist/GF/Vest 010-430028 247.95 

H23-01642 Center for the Collaborative C 

lassroom

ED Services/LCFF/Supplies 010-430002 2,227.75 

H23-01643 Gus Sahagun ASES/ELO/Hath/Bball 010-430099 1,774.80 

H23-01644 BSN Sports LLC ASES/ELO/EOG/Redmond 010-430099 1,484.44 

H23-01645 Hodge Products LCFF. PE 010-430016 1,276.59 

H23-01646 Carnitas El Brother  Mexican G rill Ed Services/LCFF/Supplies 010-430002 87.01 

H23-01647 Ventura Co. Schools SFA C/O At  

hens Administrators

W/C overpayment Maria Ceja 130-220001 4,339.74 

H23-01648 BDJtech District / Technology /Supplies 

- Parkview

010-440001 6,470.63 

010-5800 1,056.00 

H23-01649 Amazon Capital Service E.O Green/Warehouse 010-430016 759.29 

H23-01650 Amazon Capital Service Ed. 

Services/Counselor/Supplies

010-420002 82.49 

H23-01651 Amazon Capital Service ASES/ELO/ANNEX 010-430099 207.10 

H23-01652 Amazon Capital Service LCFF. Health Office 010-430016 411.87 

H23-01653 Amazon Capital Service Parkview/WLR/SpEd Supplies 010-430026 217.48 

H23-01654 Amazon Capital Service ASES/ELO/Supplies 010-430099 212.85 

H23-01655 Amazon Capital Service ASES/Annex/Supplies 010-430099 3,027.93 

H23-01656 Amazon Capital Service Hathaway/Wrkld Rd/LCFF Gen 

Funds/Supplies

010-420018 80.67 

010-4300 112.65 

H23-01657 Amazon Capital Service Technology supplies 010-430001 89.66 

H23-01658 Amazon Capital Service Technology supplies-cables 010-430001 100.88 

H23-01659 Amazon Capital Service Parkview/LCFF/Supplies 010-430026 223.57 

H23-01660 Winsor Learning Inc PSS/SDC/Training & 

Curriculum

010-430003 1,549.14 

010-5800 650.00 

H23-01661 Super Duper Publications PSS/Protocols 010-430003 535.05 

Page 7 of 10

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

3:03PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing 

Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase 

Orders be approved and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items 

ordered.



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay211a

Includes 01/01/2023 - 01/31/2023

PO

Number
Vendor Name Description

Fund

Object

Account

Amount
Site

H23-01662 Psychological Corporation Orde r 

Service Center

PSS/Protocols 010-430003 2,925.65 

H23-01663 Center for the Collaborative C 

lassroom

Matls/Sup/Instruct/Title1/Rm19 010-430020 9,438.63 

H23-01664 Staples Technology Solution District/HR/BW printer-V. 

Gonzalez

010-440001 616.57 

H23-01665 Psychological Corporation Orde r 

Service Center

PSS/Protocols 010-430003 185.41 

H23-01666 Aramsco Inc. Blackstock/Custodial Order 010-430014 257.17 

H23-01667 Quill Corporation FOT/Supplies 010-4300FOT 293.12 

H23-01668 Ventura County OCC Med Ctr District / H.R., / Professional 

Services

010-580001 632.00 

H23-01669 Aswell Trophy LCFF/Spelling bee trophies 010-430030 152.40 

H23-01670 Barbara Michele Steinberg Hueneme/LCFF/Supply/Patty 

Garcy

010-430022 48.23 

H23-01671 Crisis Prevention Institute Ed. Services/NCPI 

Membership Fee

010-530002 200.00 

H23-01672 Aramsco Inc. Parkview/Custodial Supplies 010-430026 2,000.95 

H23-01673 Sinclair Sanitary Supply Inc Parkview/Custodian Supplies 010-430026 755.94 

H23-01674 1st Imprint, FERNANDO CARMONA Parkview/GF/Parking Labels 010-430026 179.17 

H23-01675 Swank Motion Pictures Inc DBA 

Movie Licensing USA

Hueneme/Licensing/GF 010-580022 550.00 

H23-01676 School Nurse Supply INC. Parkview/LCFF/Health Office 

Supplies

010-430026 82.65 

H23-01677 FCG Environmental Beach/HVAC Project 216-620012 6,200.00 

H23-01678 City of Oxnard ATTN City Corps ELO/EOG/Boys Basketball 010-580099 180.00 

H23-01680 Old Mission Santa Barbara Sunkist/GF Field trip 2/7 

Marston/Byers SB Mission

010-580028 142.00 

H23-01681 Underwood Farm Market LLC DBA 

Underwood Family Farms

Field Trip/2nd Rm 

2-4/Date:05-30-23/USB

010-580020 384.00 

H23-01682 Underwood Farm Market LLC DBA 

Underwood Family Farms

Fiel Trip/2nd Rm 

27-33/Date:03-06-23/USB

010-580020 352.00 

H23-01683 Aramsco Inc. District/ANNEX-Janitorial 

Supplies

010-430001 339.80 

H23-01684 Amazon Capital Service Blackstock/Ibarra-WLR 010-420014 147.21 

010-4300 328.13 

H23-01685 Amazon Capital Service LCFF. Office 010-430016 828.91 

H23-01686 Amazon Capital Service LCFF/Supplies 010-430030 970.63 

H23-01687 Amazon Capital Service Blackstock/LCFF/Library 

Supplies

010-430014 1,569.92 

H23-01688 Amazon Capital Service PSS/SDC/PreK (Hathaway) 010-430003 184.85 

H23-01689 Amazon Capital Service Matrls/Sup/Instruct/LCFF 010-430020 377.14 

H23-01690 Amazon Capital Service Hueneme/LCFF/Supply/ Patty 

Garcy

010-430022 166.90 

H23-01691 Amazon Capital Service ASES/WMS/Supplies 010-430099 305.54 

H23-01692 Amazon Capital Service Matls/Sup/Adm/GF 010-430020 120.58 

H23-01693 Amazon Capital Service Blackstock/LCFF/ELD Testing 

Materials

010-430014 315.70 

Page 8 of 10

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

3:03PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing 

Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase 

Orders be approved and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items 

ordered.



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay211a

Includes 01/01/2023 - 01/31/2023

PO

Number
Vendor Name Description

Fund

Object

Account

Amount
Site

H23-01694 Amazon Capital Service ASES/Larsen/Supplies 010-430099 1,758.24 

H23-01695 Amazon Capital Service ASES/ELO/Supplies 010-430099 2,352.57 

H23-01696 School Specialty, LLC Larsen/LCFF/Instructional 

Supplies

010-430024 967.17 

H23-01697 Office Depot School Division Larsen/LCFF/Admin Supplies 010-430024 124.28 

H23-01698 CSBA c/o West America Bank Board/Conference 010-521601 691.17 

H23-01699 Ventura County School Boards S 

helly Griffen , Treasurer

Board/Administrators Event 010-521101 25.00 

010-5216 25.00 

010-5217 25.00 

010-5218 25.00 

010-5220 25.00 

H23-01701 Art Trek Hueneme/LCFF/Service 010-580022 8,550.00 

H23-01702 Art Trek Hueneme/ART 1/LCFF/Service 010-580022 5,700.00 

H23-01703 Starfall Education Parkview/LCFF/Starfall 010-530026 178.00 

H23-01704 Moises Mendez haycox/kindness 

week/shirts/GF

010-430020 146.81 

H23-01705 Teachers Pay Teachers Matls/Sup/Instruct/Title1/Kinder

Level

010-430020 442.69 

H23-01706 Lakeshore Store #038 Hueneme/LCFF/Supply/Lena 

Osman

010-430022 238.10 

H23-01707 Scholastic Hueneme/LCFF/Supply/Heidi 

Childs

010-420022 233.13 

H23-01708 Staple Technology Solution William/Printer/Room 13/Mr. 

Gomez

010-440030 616.57 

H23-01709 Hoffman, Vance & Worthington DO/Prof. Services 010-580001 2,500.00 

H23-01710 Staples Advantage Food Service/ toner-J. Carino 

color toners

130-430008 479.89 

H23-01711 Camlox Industries DBA Western 

Graphix

Hueneme/Professional 

Service

010-560022 210.00 

H23-01712 Dual Language Education New Me 

xico

DLI/ Tittle III 010-430002 570.12 

H23-01713 Brookes Publishing Co. Supplies DLI /Tittle III 010-430002 619.06 

8,286,689.34 Total270 Total Number of  POs

PO Changes 

Description  Change Amount

Fund/

ObjectNew PO Amount

B23-00050 25,000.00 010-4300 General Fund/Materials and Supplies 10,000.00 

B23-00082 450,000.00 216-5800 Measure B Building Fund/Professnl/Consult Serv & Opera 200,000.00 

B23-00179 2,000.00 010-5600 General Fund/Repairs 600.00 

B23-00192 40,000.00 130-4300 Cafeteria Fund/Materials and Supplies 22,080.05 

B23-00245 482,679.00 010-5100 General Fund/Subagreements Contracts 73,955.00 

H23-01030 1,770.00 010-5200 General Fund/Travel and Conferences 295.00 

H23-01310 363.62 010-4300 General Fund/Materials and Supplies 269.70 

H23-01393 173.22 010-4300 General Fund/Materials and Supplies 14.83 

Page 9 of 10

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

3:03PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing 

Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase 

Orders be approved and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items 

ordered.



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay211a

Includes 01/01/2023 - 01/31/2023

PO Changes (continued)

PO Changes 

Description  Change Amount

Fund/

ObjectNew PO Amount

H23-01401 1,220.47 010-4300 General Fund/Materials and Supplies 174.50 

Total PO Changes 307,389.08 

Page 10 of 10

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

3:03PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing 

Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase 

Orders be approved and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items 

ordered.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 01/01/2023 through 01/31/2023

Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Expensed
Amount

Check
Amount

J De Arredondo, Lucia 010-869901/03/20235002054587 490.16 

All City Mgmt Services, Inc. 010-580001/03/20235002054588 5,529.60 

Amazon Capital Service 010-420001/03/20235002054589 47.14 

010-4300 5,438.79 

130-4300 335.17 

Unpaid Tax .21- 5,820.89 

Aramsco Inc. 010-430001/03/20235002054590 812.91 

Carrot-Top 010-430001/03/20235002054591 141.91 

Dex Imaging 010-430001/03/20235002054592 6,539.63 

Franklin Covey 010-430001/03/20235002054593 229.24 

Hensons Music Store 010-430001/03/20235002054594 977.66 

GoTo Communications, Inc. 010-590301/03/20235002054595 9,530.03 

Kagan Publishing & Professiona Attn: 

Accounts Receivable

010-430001/03/20235002054596 126.15 

Kelly Spicers Inc. 010-430001/03/20235002054597 839.64 

Mobile Mini Inc 010-569901/03/20235002054598 191.23 

Ventura County Schools Self-Funding 

Authority

010-540001/03/20235002054599 551,629.50 

Durazo, Etelina 010-430001/05/20235002054600 144.39 

Satterberg, David 010-430001/05/20235002054601 320.68 

010-5800 379.68 59.00 

Alcantar, Mirta 010-430001/05/20235002054602 194.13 

Magallon, Gabriela 010-430001/05/20235002054603 118.79 

McConnell, Jamie M 010-520001/05/20235002054604 31.25 

Amazon Capital Service 010-430001/05/20235002054605 8,359.77 

Unpaid Tax .25- 8,359.52 

Antonio Jose Rivera 010-580001/05/20235002054606 6,270.00 

Art Trek 010-510001/05/20235002054607 55,768.75 

Colbi Technologies 010-580001/05/20235002054608 7,500.00 

CyberCopy Inc. 010-430001/05/20235002054609 75.00 

Dance 4 Wellness 010-510001/05/20235002054610 415,277.00 

DreamBox Learning, Inc 010-580001/05/20235002054611 13,750.00 

Frontier Communications 010-590301/05/20235002054612 1,508.24 

William Venegas DBA Hip Hop 

Mindset

010-510001/05/20235002054613 50,850.00 

KENCO Construction Services 216-620001/05/20235002054614 13,600.00 

Live Scan Ventura 010-580001/05/20235002054615 240.00 

Maad Graphics 010-430001/05/20235002054616 144.21 

NV5 010-620001/05/20235002054617 1,225.00 

Panorama Education 010-510001/05/20235002054618 21,500.00 

PeeBee & Jay's 010-430001/05/20235002054619 757.16 

Pickleball Holdings LLC 010-430001/05/20235002054620 929.70 

ReadyRefresh by Nestle 010-430001/05/20235002054621 991.71 

Sinclair Sanitary Supply Inc 010-430001/05/20235002054622 306.68 

So Ca Edison Co 010-550601/05/20235002054623 196.44 

SOS Survival Products 010-430001/05/20235002054624 552.40 

VCOE 010-520001/05/20235002054625 260.00 

Page 1 of 9

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

2:37PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 01/01/2023 through 01/31/2023

Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Expensed
Amount

Check
Amount

VCOE 010-520001/05/20235002054626 60.00 

VCOE 010-520001/05/20235002054627 20.00 

VCOE 010-520001/05/20235002054628 20.00 

Ventura County Schools Self-Funding 

Authority

010-580001/05/20235002054629 25,000.00 

Morales-Apodaca, Angelita 010-520001/09/20235002054630 963.16 

Robertson, Jerilyn 010-520001/09/20235002054631 66.70 

Ontiveros, Audrey 010-430001/09/20235002054632 102.05 

Rodriguez-Kelly, Cristina 010-430001/09/20235002054633 22.75 

Hunter, Stacy M 010-430001/09/20235002054634 200.87 

Gardia, Nicole M 010-520001/09/20235002054635 35.00 

Rodriguez, Lizette 010-430001/09/20235002054636 305.62 

Sandoval, Araceli 010-430001/09/20235002054637 19.97 

A-Z Bus Sales 010-430001/09/20235002054638 71.20 

Daniel Fowler DBA Acorn Appliance 

Service

130-560001/09/20235002054639 250.00 

Airgas West 010-430001/09/20235002054640 631.03 

All Phase Electric 010-430001/09/20235002054641 77.17 

Aramsco Inc. 010-430001/09/20235002054642 2,243.45 

BDJtech 010-430001/09/20235002054643 1,848.75 

Cheerleading Company 010-430001/09/20235002054644 666.21 

Unpaid Tax 50.75- 615.46 

City of Oxnard Fire and Recovery USA, 

LLC

010-580001/09/20235002054645 467.00 

Crown Castle Fiber LLC 010-590301/09/20235002054646 1,113.06 

City Of Oxnard/Treasurer Del Norte 

Regional Recycling

010-550101/09/20235002054647 191.69 

Desoto Sales Inc 010-430001/09/20235002054648 73.12 

Diamond A Equipment 010-430001/09/20235002054649 2,170.20 

Dunn-Edwards Corp 010-430001/09/20235002054650 612.27 

Elemental Hardware Inc. 010-430001/09/20235002054651 87,800.00 

Elite Screen Printing & Embroidery 010-430001/09/20235002054652 421.54 

Unpaid Tax 5.79- 415.75 

Fence Factory Rentals 010-569901/09/20235002054653 3,714.00 

Newsem AG, Inc. DBA Greene Tree 

Care

010-580001/09/20235002054654 6,300.00 

Harbor Freight Tools 010-430001/09/20235002054655 37.16 

HopSkipDrive Inc. 010-580001/09/20235002054656 3,329.36 

Intermountain Lock & Security 010-430001/09/20235002054657 197.26 

KENCO Construction Services 216-620001/09/20235002054658 19,520.00 

King Consulting 010-580001/09/20235002054659 277.50 

Mobile Mini Inc 216-620001/09/20235002054660 1,693.80 

Paradise Chevrolet 010-430001/09/20235002054661 47.18 

*Pete's Road Service , Inc. Cancelled01/09/20235002054662 1,252.79 

Cancelled on 02/01/2023

Scholastic (book Club) 010-420001/09/20235002054663 5,376.58 

Sinclair Sanitary Supply Inc 010-430001/09/20235002054664 2,206.32 

Page 2 of 9

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

2:37PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 01/01/2023 through 01/31/2023

Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Expensed
Amount

Check
Amount

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment 

Systems

010-430001/09/20235002054665 2,354.67 

010-5200 306.56-

010-5800 2,245.11 197.00 

Uline 010-430001/09/20235002054666 1,618.24 

Wilivaldo Izazaga DBA ALWI Pest 

Control

010-550001/10/20235002054667 1,200.00 

Amazon Capital Service 010-430001/10/20235002054668 5,195.88 

American Express Attn Payment 

Processing

010-420001/10/20235002054669 1,119.39 

010-4300 2,476.94 

010-5200 1,886.33 

010-5211 2,027.95 

010-5217 330.75 

010-5218 1,777.00 

010-5800 9,667.36 49.00 

Apple Inc 010-430001/10/20235002054670 599.98 

Barnes Charter 010-581201/10/20235002054671 960.78 

CA Dept of Tax & Fee Admin 010-580001/10/20235002054672 391.00 

CMH Centers for Family Health 010-580001/10/20235002054673 860.00 

Commline Inc. 010-440001/10/20235002054674 34,668.13 

Demco Inc 010-430001/10/20235002054675 223.21 

DocuProducts 010-580001/10/20235002054676 1,173.42 

Driftwood Dairy Inc. 130-932101/10/20235002054677 32,239.63 

EdTheory 010-510001/10/20235002054678 19,691.25 

Gold Star Foods Inc 130-560001/10/20235002054679 552.90 

130-9321 65,373.32 64,820.42 

Heinemann Library 010-580001/10/20235002054680 1,512.38 

Mobile Mini Inc 010-569901/10/20235002054681 160.70 

P & R Paper Supply Inc. 130-932901/10/20235002054682 20,257.60 

Scholastic 010-420001/10/20235002054683 304.47 

Silvas Oil Company Inc 010-430001/10/20235002054684 5,163.99 

130-4300 5,272.47 108.48 

Sinclair Sanitary Supply Inc 010-430001/10/20235002054685 2,528.10 

Unpaid Tax 11.57- 2,516.53 

Soliant Health 010-580001/10/20235002054686 18,118.70 

Sunbelt Staffing LLC 010-580001/10/20235002054687 5,585.63 

TELENET VoIP, INC. 216-620001/10/20235002054688 382.50 

Therapy Travelers 010-510001/10/20235002054689 11,088.00 

Ventura County Auto Suppy 010-430001/10/20235002054690 501.46 

Western Exterminator 010-550001/10/20235002054691 87.15 

Mills, Michelle 010-430001/12/20235002054692 85.44 

Durazo, Etelina 010-430001/12/20235002054693 23.96 

Fullmer, Angie 010-430001/12/20235002054694 14.45 

Ontiveros, Audrey 010-430001/12/20235002054695 158.31 

Jimenez, Cesar 010-430001/12/20235002054696 33.80 

Perez, Felicitas 010-430001/12/20235002054697 2,333.00 

Page 3 of 9

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

2:37PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 01/01/2023 through 01/31/2023

Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Expensed
Amount

Check
Amount

Amazon Capital Service 010-420001/12/20235002054698 425.73 

010-4300 933.33 507.60 

Aramsco Inc. 010-430001/12/20235002054699 2,092.12 

Andy Perez 010-580001/12/20235002054700 500.00 

Advanced workplace Strategies 010-580001/12/20235002054701 30.00 

Blick Art Materials 010-430001/12/20235002054702 3,341.28 

Bridging Voices-Uniendo Voces 010-510001/12/20235002054703 696.61 

010-5800 5,503.55 4,806.94 

Carnitas El Brother  Mexican Grill 010-430001/12/20235002054704 106.35 

Castle Air Inc 010-560001/12/20235002054705 11,138.84 

CDE Press Accounting Office 010-420001/12/20235002054706 1,510.71 

Channel Isl Beach Community 

Services District

010-550201/12/20235002054707 1,106.77 

Charter Communications 010-590301/12/20235002054708 1,369.78 

CMH Centers for Family Health 010-580001/12/20235002054709 320.00 

Culligan of Ventura County 010-569901/12/20235002054710 46.00 

DocuProducts 010-430001/12/20235002054711 237.05 

Unpaid Tax 1.47- 235.58 

E.J.Harrison & Sons Inc. 010-550101/12/20235002054712 709.33 

Entrepreneur Pathways, Inc. 010-430001/12/20235002054713 7,500.00 

Federal Express 010-590001/12/20235002054714 42.09 

Frontier Communications 010-590301/12/20235002054715 91.56 

Heinemann Library 010-420001/12/20235002054716 9,614.00 

Happy Numbers Inc. 010-580001/12/20235002054717 26,100.00 

Hensons Music Store 010-430001/12/20235002054718 706.41 

Houghton Mifflin Co 010-430001/12/20235002054719 16,125.82 

Interpreters Unlimited 010-580001/12/20235002054720 157.50 

Jordano's 130-932101/12/20235002054721 38,103.78 

KENCO Construction Services 216-620001/12/20235002054722 19,095.00 

King Consulting 010-580001/12/20235002054723 925.00 

Laminator.com 010-430001/12/20235002054724 244.10 

Mail Manager Inc 010-590001/12/20235002054725 332.61 

Main Electric Supply Company 010-430001/12/20235002054726 12,083.22 

Monet Construction, Inc. 010-620001/12/20235002054727 102,737.73 

216-6200 1,214,786.77 1,112,049.04 

Office Depot 010-430001/12/20235002054728 4,255.93 

Oriental Trading Co Inc 010-430001/12/20235002054729 105.38 

Pacific Learning 010-430001/12/20235002054730 1,134.70 

PeeBee & Jay's 010-430001/12/20235002054731 627.75 

Pete's Road Service , Inc. 010-560001/12/20235002054732 1,252.79 

Jose A. Godinez 010-580001/12/20235002054733 4,410.00 

School Specialty, LLC 010-430001/12/20235002054734 648.87 

010-9510 5,689.56 5,040.69 

So Ca Edison Co 010-550601/12/20235002054735 68,860.22 

So Ca Gas Company 010-430001/12/20235002054736 13.00 

Social Spice Media, Inc 010-580001/12/20235002054737 12,333.75 

Page 4 of 9

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

2:37PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 01/01/2023 through 01/31/2023

Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Expensed
Amount

Check
Amount

Social Thinking 010-430001/12/20235002054738 36.06 

VCOE 010-520001/12/20235002054739 50.00 

Venco Electric Inc 010-580001/12/20235002054740 3,275.00 

Ventura Cty Business Machines 010-580001/12/20235002054741 134.80 

Ventura County OCC Med Ctr 010-580001/12/20235002054742 620.00 

Ward Legal, Inc. 010-581501/12/20235002054743 1,387.50 

Amazon Capital Service 010-420001/13/20235002054744 4,195.73 

010-4300 18,461.28 14,265.55 

SILVIA ASUCENA CASTRO 010-869901/18/20235002054745 225.00 

SILVIA ASUCENA CASTRO 010-869901/18/20235002054746 225.00 

Santa Barbara Zoo 010-580001/18/20235002054747 234.00 

Ana Gonzalez 010-869901/23/20235002054748 75.00 

Valerie M Dominguez 010-869901/23/20235002054749 50.00 

Shallenberger, Monica 010-430001/23/20235002054750 121.29 

Castellano, David 010-520001/23/20235002054751 1,106.05 

De Leon, Cristina 010-430001/23/20235002054752 56.20 

Arevalo, Nancy 010-430001/23/20235002054753 45.50 

Marshall, Patricia J 010-520001/23/20235002054754 95.76 

America's Battle of the Book 010-530001/23/20235002054755 97.88 

Unpaid Tax 7.88- 90.00 

Advantage Telecom 010-590301/23/20235002054756 156.50 

All City Mgmt Services, Inc. 010-580001/23/20235002054757 2,304.00 

Ashworth Leininger Group 010-580001/23/20235002054758 1,318.75 

AT&T Mobility 010-590901/23/20235002054759 600.09 

Balfour Beatty 216-580001/23/20235002054760 48,680.00 

BDJtech 010-430001/23/20235002054761 6,059.01 

Boys & Girls Clubs of Greater Oxnard 

and Port Hueneme

010-510001/23/20235002054762 39,283.68 

C & S RV 010-430001/23/20235002054763 103.24 

Carnitas El Brother  Mexican Grill 010-430001/23/20235002054764 551.36 

City Of Pt Hueneme Attn Finance 

Dept.

010-580001/23/20235002054765 5,979.60 

Claremont Partners Inc 010-580001/23/20235002054766 7,000.00 

Commline Inc. 010-430001/23/20235002054767 486.16 

E.J.Harrison & Sons Inc. 010-550101/23/20235002054768 10,043.56 

Frontier Communications 010-590301/23/20235002054769 1,006.32 

Literacy Resources, LLC 010-430001/23/20235002054770 834.82 

Unpaid Tax 65.86- 768.96 

Headset Advisor 010-430001/23/20235002054771 393.26 

IXL Learning 010-580001/23/20235002054772 359.00 

Ventura County Schools Self-Funding 

Authority

010-580001/23/20235002054773 25,000.00 

Ventura Co. Schools SFA C/O At hens 

Administrators

130-220001/23/20235002054774 4,339.74 

3D of Oxnard Supply inc 010-430001/24/20235002054775 55.68 

Pacific Northwest Publishing 010-420001/24/20235002054776 1,909.88 

Apple Inc 010-440001/24/20235002054777 2,010.79 

Page 5 of 9

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

2:37PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 01/01/2023 through 01/31/2023

Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Expensed
Amount

Check
Amount

Apple Inc 010-580001/24/20235002054777 2,213.79 203.00 

Aramsco Inc. 010-430001/24/20235002054778 1,200.78 

Aswell Trophy 010-430001/24/20235002054779 38.18 

AVID Center Dept 270 010-530001/24/20235002054780 22,068.00 

Carnitas El Brother  Mexican Grill 010-430001/24/20235002054781 87.01 

Castle Air Inc 010-560001/24/20235002054782 31,152.00 

Catalyst Family Inc. 010-510001/24/20235002054783 25,021.61 

010-5800 25,210.69 189.08 

City of Oxnard City Corp & Rec 010-580001/24/20235002054784 180.00 

City Of Pt Hueneme 010-550201/24/20235002054785 9,237.31 

CJ's Barbecue 010-430001/24/20235002054786 340.44 

Coole School 010-430001/24/20235002054787 95.59 

Unpaid Tax 8.09- 87.50 

Diamond A Equipment 010-430001/24/20235002054788 45.36 

Discount Two Way Radio 010-430001/24/20235002054789 1,047.49 

FillMyRecipe LLC 130-470001/24/20235002054790 101.99 

Heinemann Library 010-420001/24/20235002054791 249.02 

Ground Penetrating Radar Syst. 216-620001/24/20235002054792 8,300.00 

Home Depot 010-430001/24/20235002054793 13,108.48 

Houghton Mifflin Co 010-410001/24/20235002054794 709.13 

Jordano's 130-430001/24/20235002054795 1,885.51 

Jostens Inc 010-430001/24/20235002054796 592.50 

JW Pepper & Son Inc 010-430001/24/20235002054797 101.55 

Kapco Adhesive Products 010-430001/24/20235002054798 841.33 

Unpaid Tax 67.53- 773.80 

Lakeshore Learning Materials 010-430001/24/20235002054799 450.50 

010-4400 927.38 476.88 

Multi Health System Inc 010-430001/24/20235002054800 6,569.69 

Nasco Modesto 010-430001/24/20235002054801 851.56 

National Business Furniture 010-440001/24/20235002054802 1,090.02 

NV5 010-620001/24/20235002054803 2,595.00 

Oriental Trading Co Inc 010-430001/24/20235002054804 460.25 

Parent Project Inc 010-430001/24/20235002054805 1,376.55 

Pelican Wireless Ventures, LLC 010-580001/24/20235002054806 330.45 

19six Architects 216-620001/24/20235002054807 35,127.25 

Quill Corporation 010-430001/24/20235002054808 740.20 

ReadyRefresh by Nestle 010-430001/24/20235002054809 15.72 

130-4300 27.24 11.52 

Scholastic (book Club) 010-430001/24/20235002054810 2,108.48 

Scholastic 010-410001/24/20235002054811 3,687.70 

School Services of California 010-580001/24/20235002054812 4,260.00 

School's In, LLC 010-440001/24/20235002054813 5,468.04 

Shaw HR Consulting 010-580001/24/20235002054814 345.00 

Shred-It USA 010-580001/24/20235002054815 78.34 

Silvas Oil Company Inc 010-430001/24/20235002054816 1,527.88 

Sinclair Sanitary Supply Inc 010-430001/24/20235002054817 278.16 

Page 6 of 9

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

2:37PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 01/01/2023 through 01/31/2023

Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Expensed
Amount

Check
Amount

So Ca Edison Co 010-550601/24/20235002054818 203.46 

Staples Technology Solution 010-430001/24/20235002054819 477.53 

010-4400 3,267.13 2,789.60 

Staples Advantage 010-430001/24/20235002054820 608.47 

130-4300 767.23 158.76 

State Of California (DOJ) Dept of 

Justice Acctg Office

010-580001/24/20235002054821 433.00 

Underwood Farm Market LLC DBA 

Tierra Rejada

010-580001/24/20235002054822 825.00 

Uline 010-430001/24/20235002054823 105.46 

Virco Mfg Corp 010-440001/24/20235002054824 2,037.51 

Fernandez, Margarita 010-869901/26/20235002054825 1,349.61 

AEP Connections, LLC 010-520001/26/20235002054826 175.00 

Amazon Capital Service 010-430001/26/20235002054827 4,155.64 

Art Trek 010-510001/26/20235002054828 26,318.75 

BDJtech 010-430001/26/20235002054829 1,397.76 

010-4400 3,099.38 

010-5800 5,053.14 556.00 

CA Dept of Tax & Fee Admin 010-955201/26/20235002054830 11,448.07 

130-9552 744.45 

216-9552 702.04-

250-9552 11,494.00 3.52 

Castle Air Inc 010-560001/26/20235002054831 10,610.44 

City Of Oxnard 010-550201/26/20235002054832 9,008.97 

City of Oxnard ATTN City Corps 010-510001/26/20235002054833 43,632.00 

City Of Pt Hueneme Attn Finance 

Dept.

010-580001/26/20235002054834 2,604.00 

Dex Imaging 010-430001/26/20235002054835 4,661.15 

DocuProducts 010-430001/26/20235002054836 301.61 

Food Safety Systems 130-580001/26/20235002054837 3,435.00 

Houghton Mifflin Co 010-420001/26/20235002054838 8,095.25 

Kelly Spicers Inc. 010-932001/26/20235002054839 10,948.41 

Lakeshore Learning Materials 010-430001/26/20235002054840 19.38 

MCI Comm Service 010-590301/26/20235002054841 36.64 

MOXI, The Wolf Museum of 

Exploration & Innovation

010-580001/26/20235002054842 258.00 

So Ca Gas Company 010-550701/26/20235002054843 15,886.94 

Staples Technology Solution 010-440001/26/20235002054844 891.74 

Staples Advantage 130-430001/26/20235002054845 9.99 

Starfall Education 010-530001/26/20235002054846 355.00 

Telcom Communications 010-430001/26/20235002054847 299.58 

Unpaid Tax .80- 298.78 

VCOE 010-580001/26/20235002054848 97,141.00 

130-5800 106,058.00 8,917.00 

Casillas, Ortencia 010-430001/30/20235002054849 75.83 

Jimenez, Luis 010-430001/30/20235002054850 250.00 

Guerrero, Enrique 010-430001/30/20235002054851 193.94 

Page 7 of 9

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

2:37PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 01/01/2023 through 01/31/2023

Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Expensed
Amount

Check
Amount

Shallenberger, Monica 010-430001/30/20235002054852 70.16 

Castellano, David 010-430001/30/20235002054853 176.78 

Fullmer, Angie 010-430001/30/20235002054854 135.72 

Bowen, Kenneth 010-430001/30/20235002054855 186.60 

Beneke, Thomas 010-430001/30/20235002054856 94.21 

Pena, Julianne 010-420001/30/20235002054857 215.53 

010-4300 830.55 615.02 

Morales, Juan 010-430001/30/20235002054858 16.38 

Weis, Walter C 010-521601/30/20235002054859 90.00 

Rodriguez, Lizette 010-430001/30/20235002054860 98.63 

Cook, Renee 010-430001/30/20235002054861 20.73 

1st Imprint, FERNANDO CARMONA 010-430001/30/20235002054862 179.17 

Addison Behavioral Resources 010-510001/30/20235002054863 108.34 

010-5800 5,968.58 5,860.24 

Aramsco Inc. 010-430001/30/20235002054864 1,220.47 

939 S. Serrano Ave LLC/DBA Bea 

chport Center

010-569901/30/20235002054865 2,934.00 

City of Oxnard City Corp & Rec 010-580001/30/20235002054866 180.00 

EdTheory 010-510001/30/20235002054867 7,120.00 

Standard Plumbing Supply Co 010-430001/30/20235002054868 80.24 

Hatching Results 010-580001/30/20235002054869 20,750.00 

MARENEM INC 010-430001/30/20235002054870 119.90 

Really Good Stuff 010-430001/30/20235002054871 586.22 

Renaissance Learning Inc 010-580001/30/20235002054872 25,786.32 

School Nurse Supply INC. 010-430001/30/20235002054873 363.62 

STAR of CA,ERA Ed 010-510001/30/20235002054874 31,847.13 

Sunbelt Staffing LLC 010-580001/30/20235002054875 3,510.00 

Tax Deferred Solutions 010-953301/30/20235002054876 195,179.76 

010-9539 196,629.76 1,450.00 

VCOE 010-580001/30/20235002054877 1,818.56 

VCOE 010-580001/30/20235002054878 1,733.20 

Ventura County OCC Med Ctr 010-580001/30/20235002054879 632.00 

Gomez, Juliet S 010-430001/31/20235002054880 19.95 

Gardia, Nicole M 010-520001/31/20235002054881 47.16 

Gomez, Vincent 010-580001/31/20235002054882 80.12 

A. Rifkin Company 010-430001/31/20235002054883 238.22 

Daniel Fowler DBA Acorn Appliance 

Service

130-560001/31/20235002054884 220.00 

All City Mgmt Services, Inc. 010-580001/31/20235002054885 2,073.60 

Amazon Capital Service 010-420001/31/20235002054886 16.42 

010-4300 4,288.60 4,272.18 

Aramsco Inc. 010-430001/31/20235002054887 13,721.30 

Aspiranet 010-580001/31/20235002054888 16,690.14 

Atlantis Utility 010-430001/31/20235002054889 3,842.85 

010-4400 54,033.15 50,190.30 

BDJtech 010-440001/31/20235002054890 3,099.38 

010-5800 3,755.38 656.00 

Page 8 of 9

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

2:37PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 01/01/2023 through 01/31/2023

Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Expensed
Amount

Check
Amount

City Of Pt Hueneme Attn Finance 

Dept.

010-580001/31/20235002054891 2,223.60 

Dave Bang Associates Inc 010-430001/31/20235002054892 5,302.89 

East Bay Restaurant 010-430001/31/20235002054893 238.16 

010-5800 2,000.00 

010-6400 16,542.55 14,304.39 

Lakeshore Learning Materials 010-430001/31/20235002054894 4,208.69 

010-4400 11,008.75 6,800.06 

ReadyRefresh by Nestle 010-430001/31/20235002054895 17.02 

Jose A. Godinez 010-580001/31/20235002054896 2,520.00 

Old Mission Santa Barbara 010-580001/31/20235002054897 142.00 

So Ca Edison Co 010-550601/31/20235002054898 241.88 

Social Thinking 010-520001/31/20235002054899 407.96 

Soliant Health 010-580001/31/20235002054900 19,048.50 

Staples Technology Solution 010-430001/31/20235002054901 471.64 

010-4400 1,416.77 945.13 

Super Duper Publications 010-580001/31/20235002054902 797.00 

VCOE 010-510001/31/20235002054903 8,120.00 

010-5800 33,120.00 25,000.00 

Verizon California 010-430001/31/20235002054904 26.51 

010-5800 84.81 58.30 

Gold Coast Joint Benefits 010-953401/17/2023VCH020000005 1,056,724.82 

010-9537 1,175,614.76 118,889.94 

5,381,133.25 Total Number of Checks 319 

Cancel  1 1,252.79 
AmountCount

Net Issue 5,379,880.46 

Fund Recap

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

General Fund 299 3,945,859.65 010

Cafeteria Fund 17 176,491.94 130

Measure B Building Fund 10 1,257,745.55 216

Capital Facilities Fund 1 3.52 250

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 5,380,100.66 

220.20-

5,379,880.46 

318 

Page 9 of 9

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

2:37PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Item 7.2 (3) 

  HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  REPORT OF MISCELLANEOUS INCOME FOR  

JANUARY 2023 

 

BOARD MEETING DATE:  February 27, 2023 

 

FROM:    Patricia Marshall, Chief Business Official 

     Dr. Christine Walker, Superintendent 

 

STAFF COMMENT  
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

For information only 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The monthly miscellaneous income report is a summary of funds received in the district 

office and transmitted to the Ventura County Office of Education for deposit into the 

various funds of the district at the County Treasury. 

 

The January report reflects the receipt of $1,083,840.40 as follows: 

 

Fund Description Amount 

010 General Fund $156,421.17 

130 Cafeteria Fund $923,716.93 

215 Measure T Bldg. Fund $0 

250 Developer Fee Fund $3,702.30 

95X Student Funds  $0 

 Totals $1,083,840.40 

 

 
 

 

 



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

01/04/23 OCT - DEC 2022 MARSHA BRUMANADP23-0000816 CR193536(713338) Marsha Brumana Check 2327 AR23-003421518Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

01/04/23 OCT - DEC 2022 NANCY JO HENDRICKSONDP23-0000817 CR193536(000191) Nancy Jo Hendrickson Check 2953 AR23-003041518Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

01/04/23 JAN - MAR 2023 NANCY JO HENDRICKSONDP23-0000818 CR193536(000191) Nancy Jo Hendrickson Check 2953 AR23-004791518Posted 139.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 139.00 

01/04/23 01 OCT - DEC 2022 EVANGELINE URIASDP23-0000819 CR193536(700877) Evangeline Urias Check 395 AR23-004261518Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

01/04/23 01 PRE-K  Meals SEP 2022DP23-0000820 CR193536(711111) Child Development Resources ofVentura County IncCheck 694286 AR23-004381518Posted 10,421.34 

( 041744)  130- 8634- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 100- 000- 2500- 0 1,239.81 

( 041748)  130- 8634- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 180- 000- 2500- 0 3,260.94 

( 041751)  130- 8634- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 240- 000- 2500- 0 2,015.52 

( 041752)  130- 8634- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 260- 000- 2500- 0 1,889.55 

( 041753)  130- 8634- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 280- 000- 2500- 0 2,015.52 

01/04/23 01 PRE-K  Meals OCT 2022DP23-0000821 CR193536(711111) Child Development Resources ofVentura County IncCheck 694286 AR23-004521518Posted 10,461.12 

( 041744)  130- 8634- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 100- 000- 2500- 0 1,591.20 

( 041748)  130- 8634- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 180- 000- 2500- 0 3,260.94 

( 041751)  130- 8634- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 240- 000- 2500- 0 1,909.44 

( 041752)  130- 8634- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 260- 000- 2500- 0 1,790.10 

( 041753)  130- 8634- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 280- 000- 2500- 0 1,909.44 

01/04/23 01 PRE-K  Meals NOV 2022DP23-0000822 CR193536(711111) Child Development Resources ofVentura County IncCheck 694286 AR23-004731518Posted 10,032.97 

( 041744)  130- 8634- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 100- 000- 2500- 0 1,693.68 

( 041748)  130- 8634- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 180- 000- 2500- 0 3,260.94 

( 041751)  130- 8634- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 240- 000- 2500- 0 1,728.80 

( 041752)  130- 8634- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 260- 000- 2500- 0 1,620.75 

( 041753)  130- 8634- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 280- 000- 2500- 0 1,728.80 

01/04/23 W/C - GARIBAY, N. 12/09/22-12/21/22DP23-0000823 CR193536(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 628611518Posted 2,859.46 

( 045727)  010- 1100- 0709- 0- 1110- 1000- 280- 400- GSA0- 1 2,859.46 

01/04/23 W/C - REYNOSO, J. 12/07/22-12/20/22DP23-0000824 CR193536(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 627551518Posted 255.10 

( 041845)  130- 2200- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 280- 560- 0000- 6 255.10 

01/04/23 W/C - BALUYOT, M. 12/07/22-12/20/22DP23-0000825 CR193536(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 627611518Posted 597.84 

( 052325)  010- 2900- 0709- 0- 1110- 1000- 140- 511- SAF0- 6 597.84 

01/04/23 W/C - CEJA, M. 12/01/22-12/14/22DP23-0000826 CR193536(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 624491518Posted 1,400.18 

( 041855)  130- 2200- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 300- 560- 0000- 6 1,400.18 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 1/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 1/31/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

2:57PM

Page 1 of 9



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

01/04/23 W/C - AGUILAR, B. 10/05/22-10/06/22DP23-0000827 CR193536(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 626041518Posted 188.34 

( 063172)  010- 2200- 2600- 0- 0000- 8210- 000- 000- 0000- 6 188.34 

01/04/23 W/C - AGUILAR, B. 12/06/22-12/19/22DP23-0000828 CR193536(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 627481518Posted 1,318.40 

( 063172)  010- 2200- 2600- 0- 0000- 8210- 000- 000- 0000- 6 1,318.40 

01/04/23 W/C - HENSLEY, D. 12/02/22-12/15/22DP23-0000829 CR193536(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 624771518Posted 3,079.42 

( 045727)  010- 1100- 0709- 0- 1110- 1000- 280- 400- GSA0- 1 3,079.42 

01/04/23 DONATIONS - EDISON BLACKBAUD GIVINGDP23-0000830 CR193536(711330) Bard Elementary School Check 14200581591518Posted 60.00 

( 011141)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 100- 000- D000- 0 60.00 

01/04/23 DONATIONS - OUTDOOR SCHOOLDP23-0000831 CR193536(711333) E.O. Green Jr High School Mixed Cash & Check 12/20/221518Posted 2,868.00 

( 026523)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 160- 000- 9970- 0 2,868.00 

01/04/23 USB TSFR - DECEMBER 2022DP23-0000832 CR193536(711764) Hueneme School District USB Electronic Funds Xfer 12/28/221519Posted 5,853.07 

( 059571)  010- 8639- 8210- 0- 0000- 0000- 220- 000- 0000- 0 321.00 

( 059573)  010- 8639- 8210- 0- 0000- 0000- 240- 000- 0000- 0 66.00 

( 059577)  010- 8639- 8210- 0- 0000- 0000- 280- 000- 0000- 0 4,676.07 

( 059579)  010- 8639- 8210- 0- 0000- 0000- 300- 000- 0000- 0 580.00 

( 059569)  010- 8639- 8210- 0- 1110- 4000- 200- 000- 0000- 0 210.00 

01/04/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 SUSAN REVELESDP23-0000833 CR193536(001939) Susan Reveles Check 2820 AR23-004811518Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

01/04/23 OCT-DEC 2022 REGINO MEDINADP23-0000834 CR193536(712136) Regino Medina Check 4253 AR23-002911518Posted 171.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 171.00 

01/04/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 OLIVIA OWENSDP23-0000836 CR193536(712642) Olivia Owens Check 2576 AR23-002791518Posted 375.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 375.00 

01/04/23 01 APR-JUN 2023 OLIVIA OWENSDP23-0000837 CR193536(712642) Olivia Owens Check 2576 AR23-004871518Posted 24.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 24.00 

01/04/23 JAN-MAR 2023 LINDA GONZALESDP23-0000838 CR193536(710412) Linda Gonzales Check 2808 AR23-004651518Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

01/04/23 JAN-MAR 2023 SHIRLEY BROWNDP23-0000839 CR193536(005349) Shirley Brown Check 0044480878 AR23-004701518Posted 69.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 69.00 

01/04/23 JAN-MAR 2023 HILDA VALENZUELADP23-0000840 CR193536(710570) Hilda Valenzuela Check 0044536200 AR23-004711518Posted 113.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 113.00 

01/04/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 SANDRA SCHIFFNERDP23-0000841 CR193536(700520) Sandra Schiffner Check 0044203952 AR23-004821518Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 1/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 1/31/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

2:57PM

Page 2 of 9



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

01/04/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 RUBEN ROSARIODP23-0000842 CR193536(702406) Ruben Rosario Check 790169657 AR23-004831518Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

01/04/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 SUZETTE PRIVITELLIDP23-0000843 CR193536(000186) Suzette Privitelli Check 0000886881 AR23-004841518Posted 54.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 54.00 

01/04/23 JAN-MAR 2023 CHRISTINA MOTTARDP23-0000844 CR193536(000181) Christina Mottar Check 0000997235 AR23-002321518Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

01/04/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 LINDA ROSARIODP23-0000845 CR193536(003674) Linda Rosario Check 790169658 AR23-004851518Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

01/04/23 01 OCT-DEC 2022 RUTH AYALADP23-0000846 CR193536(000093) Ruth Ayala Check 789789493 AR23-001511518Posted 702.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 702.00 

01/04/23 JAN-MAR 2023 PATRICK NEWTONDP23-0000847 CR193536(004899) Patrick Newton Check 0043405624 AR23-004861518Posted 1,026.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 1,026.00 

01/04/23 01 OCT - DEC 2022 GLORIA FROYENDP23-0000848 CR193536(004488) Gloria Froyen Check 0043876916 AR23-003581518Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

01/04/23 01 OCT - DEC 2022 RICHARD FROYENDP23-0000849 CR193536(711604) Richard Froyen Check 0043876917 AR23-004311518Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

01/04/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 VIOLET ESCOBEDODP23-0000850 CR193536(711597) Vi Escobedo Check 0044052653 AR23-004501518Posted 883.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 883.00 

01/04/23 W/C - HENSLEY, D. 12/16/22-12/21/22DP23-0000851 CR193536(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 630591518Posted 1,319.75 

( 045727)  010- 1100- 0709- 0- 1110- 1000- 280- 400- GSA0- 1 1,319.75 

01/04/23 W/C - VERAY-HOUSTON, F. 12/14/22-12/27/22DP23-0000852 CR193536(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 629201518Posted 2,046.92 

( 007373)  010- 2400- 0000- 0- 0000- 3600- 000- 550- 7230- 6 2,046.92 

01/04/23 W/C - CEJA, M. 12/15/22-12/21/22DP23-0000853 CR193536(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 629981518Posted 700.09 

( 041855)  130- 2200- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 300- 560- 0000- 6 700.09 

01/04/23 DONATION - T.O. ALLIANCE FOR ARTSDP23-0000854 CR193536(713281) Alliance for the Arts Check 34631518Posted 5,000.00 

( 011147)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 220- 000- D000- 0 5,000.00 

01/12/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 SUSAN BURRESDP23-0000855 CR194017(712518) Susan Burres Check 1090 AR23-001401520Posted 141.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 141.00 

01/12/23 01 JAN-MAR 2022 DENNIS RECKERDP23-0000856 CR194017(711524) Dennis Recker Check 1135 AR23-002671520Posted 399.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 399.00 

01/12/23 01 APR-JUN 2023 DENNIS RECKERDP23-0000857 CR194017(711524) Dennis Recker Check 1135 AR23-004881520Posted 12.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 12.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 1/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 1/31/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

2:57PM

Page 3 of 9



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

01/12/23 00 JAN - MAR 2023 DENNIS HELDDP23-0000858 CR194017(713339) Dennis Held Check 5142 AR23-004641520Posted 420.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 420.00 

01/12/23 JAN-MAR 2023 BETTY ANGULODP23-0000859 CR194017(000159) Betty Angulo Check 458 AR23-004891520Posted 69.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 69.00 

01/12/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 CLAUDINE MEDINADP23-0000860 CR194017(711130) Claudine Medina Check 4256 AR23-004941520Posted 240.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 240.00 

01/12/23 JAN-MAR 2023 EUGENE WILLIAMSDP23-0000861 CR194017(000124) Eugene Williams Check 1035 AR23-002201520Posted 666.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 666.00 

01/12/23 JAN-MAR 2023 REGINO MEDINADP23-0000862 CR194017(712136) Regino Medina Check 4255 AR23-004931520Posted 240.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 240.00 

01/12/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 BERNABE SIMONDP23-0000863 CR194017(710606) Bernabe Simon Check 0009410047 AR23-004661520Posted 167.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 167.00 

01/12/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 VICTORIA MARTINEZDP23-0000864 CR194017(713059) Victoria Martinez Check 2118 AR23-004721520Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

01/12/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 SALLY KEEVYDP23-0000865 CR194017(711776) Sally Keevy Check 2992686829 AR23-004951520Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

01/12/23 CPI TRAINING FOR STAFF 12/17/22DP23-0000866 CR194017(000249) Fillmore Unified School Dist. Check 5019851220 AR23-004781520Posted 800.00 

( 011136)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 800.00 

01/12/23 HEALTH CARE DEPOSIT 01/06/23DP23-0000867 CR194017(701503) State Of California Check 30-9709791520Posted 3,180.84 

( 064125)  010- 8699- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 5640- 0 3,180.84 

01/12/23 W/C - GARIBAY, N. 01/05/23-01/05/23DP23-0000868 CR194017(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 632711520Posted 219.96 

( 045727)  010- 1100- 0709- 0- 1110- 1000- 280- 400- GSA0- 1 219.96 

01/12/23 W/C - COLVIN, J 01/18/23-01/18/23DP23-0000869 CR194017(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 633211520Posted 134.07 

( 007293)  010- 2200- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 000- 530- 0000- 6 134.07 

01/12/23 W/C - REYNOSO, J. 12/21/22-12/21/22DP23-0000870 CR194017(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 632151520Posted 18.22 

( 041845)  130- 2200- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 280- 560- 0000- 6 18.22 

01/12/23 W/C - AGUILAR, B. 12/20/22-01/02/23DP23-0000871 CR194017(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 632361520Posted 1,318.40 

( 063172)  010- 2200- 2600- 0- 0000- 8210- 000- 000- 0000- 6 1,318.40 

01/12/23 W/C - BALUYOT, M. 12/21/22-12/21/22DP23-0000872 CR194017(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 632141520Posted 42.70 

( 052325)  010- 2900- 0709- 0- 1110- 1000- 140- 511- SAF0- 6 42.70 

01/12/23 JAN-MAR 2023 PATRICIA GRIFFINDP23-0000873 CR194017(000151) Patricia Griffin Check 1137 AR23-004901520Posted 187.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 187.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 1/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 1/31/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

2:57PM

Page 4 of 9



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

01/12/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 PATRICIA HUMPHRIESDP23-0000874 CR194017(005585) Patricia Humphries Check 0104 AR23-004911520Posted 456.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 456.00 

01/12/23 01 JAN Pre-School Classroom Leases 2022-23DP23-0000875 CR194017(712362) Catalyst Family Inc. Check 1140108 AR23-000121520Posted 300.00 

( 011131)  010- 8650- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 300.00 

01/12/23 QUARTERLY RENT OCT-DEC 2022DP23-0000876 CR194017(713146) CAP of San Luis Obispo Co. Check 366285 AR23-004481520Posted 630.00 

( 011131)  010- 8650- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 630.00 

01/12/23 Donations 01/10/23DP23-0000877 CR194017(711333) E.O. Green Jr High School Check 01/10/231520Posted 96.00 

( 011144)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 160- 000- D000- 0 96.00 

01/12/23 FED MEAL REIMB OCT 2022DP23-0000878 CR193536(701503) State Of California Check 63311329 AR23-004981521Posted 617,229.65 

( 011594)  130- 8220- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 617,229.65 

( 041700)  130- 8220- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 100- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 041701)  130- 8220- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 120- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 041702)  130- 8220- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 140- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 041703)  130- 8220- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 160- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 041704)  130- 8220- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 180- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 041705)  130- 8220- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 200- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 041706)  130- 8220- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 220- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 041707)  130- 8220- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 240- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 041708)  130- 8220- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 260- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 041709)  130- 8220- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 280- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 041710)  130- 8220- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 300- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

01/12/23 STATE MEAL REIMB OCT 2022DP23-0000879 CR193536(701503) State Of California Check 63-283798 AR23-004991521Posted 272,948.42 

( 011595)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 272,948.42 

( 041711)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 100- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 041712)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 120- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 041713)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 140- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 041714)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 160- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 041715)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 180- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 041716)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 200- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 041717)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 220- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 041718)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 240- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 041719)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 260- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 041720)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 280- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 041721)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 300- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

01/18/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 OLGA LENDODP23-0000880 CR194518(000178) Olga Lendo Check 19-101062755 AR23-004401522Posted 195.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 195.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 1/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 1/31/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

2:57PM

Page 5 of 9



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

01/18/23 OCT - DEC 2022 CARMEN SALCEDODP23-0000881 CR194518(000142) Carmen Salcedo Check 253 AR23-003281522Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

01/18/23 DEV FEES - 4140 OCEAN DRDP23-0000882 CR194518INTEGRAL DESIGN Check 225541522Posted 3,702.30 

( 011703)  250- 8681- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 3,702.30 

01/18/23 Bus Grant - Parkview Elem 10/06/22DP23-0000883 CR194518(000023) National Park Service Check 5455 AR23-004581522Posted 250.00 

( 011150)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 260- 000- D000- 0 250.00 

01/18/23 REFUND 8054881303DP23-0000884 CR194518FRONTIER Check 70034619681522Posted 7.37 

( 011136)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 7.37 

01/18/23 W/C - CEJA, M. 01/05/23-01/11/23DP23-0000885 CR194518(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 635721522Posted 249.84 

( 041855)  130- 2200- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 300- 560- 0000- 6 249.84 

01/18/23 W/C - AGUILAR, B. 01/03/23-01/16/23DP23-0000886 CR194518(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 637531522Posted 1,318.40 

( 063172)  010- 2200- 2600- 0- 0000- 8210- 000- 000- 0000- 6 1,318.40 

01/18/23 W/C - HENSLEY, D. 01/05/23-01/12/23DP23-0000887 CR194518(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 636001522Posted 1,759.67 

( 045727)  010- 1100- 0709- 0- 1110- 1000- 280- 400- GSA0- 1 1,759.67 

01/18/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 SHARON MEYERDP23-0000888 CR194518(711613) Sharon Meyer Check 1388 AR23-005011522Posted 69.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 69.00 

01/18/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 DELORES WALKERDP23-0000889 CR194518(002603) Delores Walker Check 0036815029 AR23-005021522Posted 1,806.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 1,806.00 

01/18/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 KAYE ZEITZMANNDP23-0000890 CR194518(700861) Kaye Zeitzmann Check 6291 AR23-002951522Posted 168.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 168.00 

01/18/23 01 50% MTSS MHSP ServicesDP23-0000891 CR194518(701575) VCOE Check 5071927044 AR23-002401522Posted 44,714.95 

( 011136)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 .00 

( 053029)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 210- MHSP- 0 44,714.95 

01/18/23 W/C - VERAY-HOUSTON, F. 12/28/22-01/05/23DP23-0000892 CR194518(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 634661522Posted 1,315.88 

( 007373)  010- 2400- 0000- 0- 0000- 3600- 000- 550- 7230- 6 1,315.88 

01/18/23 W/C - ORTIZ, L. 01/05/23-01/10/23DP23-0000893 CR194518(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 634651522Posted 1,162.55 

( 027018)  010- 1100- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 180- 100- 0000- 1 1,162.55 

01/18/23 DONATION - KROGERDP23-0000894 CR194518(711331) Beach Elementary School Check 5018776451522Posted 44.33 

( 011142)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 120- 000- D000- 0 44.33 

01/18/23 DONATION - KROGERDP23-0000895 CR194518(711339) Sunkist Elementary School Check 5018794621522Posted 80.90 

( 011151)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 280- 000- D000- 0 80.90 

01/18/23 DONATIONS - MOXI FIELD TRIPDP23-0000896 CR194518(711339) Sunkist Elementary School Cash 01/12/231522Posted 108.00 

( 011151)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 280- 000- D000- 0 108.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 1/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 1/31/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

2:57PM

Page 6 of 9



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

01/18/23 DONATIONS - OUTDOOR SCHOOL 01/13/23DP23-0000897 194518(711333) E.O. Green Jr High School Cash 06402788671523Posted 2,400.00 

( 026523)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 160- 000- 9970- 0 2,400.00 

01/26/23 01 JAN -MAR 2023 SUSAN BURRESDP23-0000898 CR194784(712518) Susan Burres Check 1098 AR23-001401524Posted 42.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 42.00 

01/26/23 MAA REIMBURSEMENT 20/21 Q4DP23-0000899 CR194784(700326) Kern Co Supt of Schools Check 44879689 AR23-005651524Posted 52,263.62 

( 030359)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0200- 0 52,263.62 

01/26/23 PALI CAMP ODS 01/19/23DP23-0000900 CR194784(711331) Beach Elementary School Cash 01/19/231524Posted 400.00 

( 036296)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 120- 000- 9970- 0 400.00 

01/26/23 W/C - GARIBAY, N. 01/06/23-01/19/23DP23-0000901 CR194784(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 640241524Posted 3,079.42 

( 045727)  010- 1100- 0709- 0- 1110- 1000- 280- 400- GSA0- 1 3,079.42 

01/26/23 TSHIRT SALES 01/23/23DP23-0000902 CR194784(711334) Hathaway Elementary School Cash 01/23/231524Posted 30.00 

( 011145)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 180- 000- D000- 0 30.00 

01/26/23 BEANIE SALES 01/20/23DP23-0000903 CR194784(711331) Beach Elementary School Cash 01/20/231524Posted 65.00 

( 011142)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 120- 000- D000- 0 65.00 

01/26/23 PALI CAMP ODS 01/20/23DP23-0000904 CR194784(711331) Beach Elementary School Cash 01/20/231524Posted 400.00 

( 036296)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 120- 000- 9970- 0 400.00 

01/26/23 01 OCT - DEC 2022 DEBORAH DESMETHDP23-0000905 CR194784(004061) Deborah DeSmeth Check 8736 AR23-004301524Posted 357.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 357.00 

01/26/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 DEBORAH DI PASQUALEDP23-0000906 CR194784(000237) Deborah Di Pasquale Check 218 AR23-005581524Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

01/26/23 JAN - MAR 2023 DIANE MORTIMERDP23-0000907 CR194784(000180) Diane Mortimer Check 5136 AR23-005161524Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

01/26/23 JAN - MAR 2023 LORI HENSONDP23-0000908 CR194784(000232) Lori Henson Check 1754 AR23-005131524Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

01/26/23 01 OCT - DEC 2022 ROSIE GARCIADP23-0000909 CR194784(711605) Rosie Garcia Check 10050 AR23-004111524Posted 3.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 3.00 

01/26/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 ROSIE GARCIADP23-0000910 CR194784(711605) Rosie Garcia Check 10051 AR23-004971524Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

01/26/23 Bus Grant - Hueneme Elem 11/18/22DP23-0000911 CR194784(000023) National Park Service Check 5465 AR23-004961524Posted 250.00 

( 011150)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 260- 000- D000- 0 250.00 

01/26/23 REFUND - HELEN COSGROVE 01/18/23DP23-0000912 CR194784(711409) American Express TRS Company Check 748283641524Posted 496.91 

( 050554)  010- 4200- 0709- 0- 1110- 1000- 000- 210- PD01- 0 496.91 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 1/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 1/31/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

2:57PM

Page 7 of 9



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

01/26/23 01 FACILITY USE - EO GREEN FIELDSDP23-0000913 CR194784(711904) Mermaid Girls Softball League Check 2403 AR23-005721524Posted 1,600.00 

( 011131)  010- 8650- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 1,600.00 

1,083,840.40 Total for Hueneme Elementary School District  

Fund-Object Recap

010-1100 13,480.23 Teachers' Salaries

010-2200 4,277.61 Classified Support Salaries

010-2400 3,362.80 Clerical and Office Salaries

010-2900 640.54 Other Classified Salaries

010-4200 496.91 Books Other Than Textbooks

010-8639 5,853.07 All Other Sales

010-8650 2,530.00 Leases and Rentals

010-8699 113,019.01 All Other Local Revenue

010-9537 12,761.00 Retiree Benefits Liability

156,421.17 Fund 010 - General Fund   

130-2200 2,623.43 Classified Support Salaries

130-8220 617,229.65 Child Nutrition Programs

130-8520 272,948.42 Child Nutrition Programs

130-8634 30,915.43 Food Services Sales

923,716.93 Fund 130 - Cafeteria Fund   

250-8681 3,702.30 Mitigation/Developer Fees

3,702.30 Fund 250 - Capital Facilities Fund   

Total for Hueneme Elementary School District  1,083,840.40 

Org Recap

Hueneme Elementary School District

3,403.00 $ - Cash

1,071,716.33 C - Check

5,853.07 E - Electronic Funds Xfer

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 1/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 1/31/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

2:57PM

Page 8 of 9



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

Org Recap

Hueneme Elementary School District (continued)

2,868.00 M - Mixed Cash & Check

Total Receipts 1,083,840.40 

Report Total 1,083,840.40 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 1/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 1/31/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Feb  6 2023  

2:57PM

Page 9 of 9



Item 7.1 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM: APPROVAL OF PERSONNEL REPORT 

 

 

BOARD MEETING DATE: March 27, 2023 

 

 

FROM: Melissa Rufai, Director of Personnel Services  

 Dr. Carlos Dominguez, Deputy Superintendent 

Dr. Christine Walker, Superintendent 

 

STAFF COMMENT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

It is recommended that the Governing Board approve personnel actions in employee 

categories that are listed below. Identification of specific employees affected by the actions 

will be shared confidentially with the Governing Board and certain members of management 

in advance of the meeting. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

(1) Certificated Management Services 

Revised Job Description 

 

(2) Certificated Services 

Employment  

Recommendation for Permanent Status 

Retirement 

Unpaid Child Rearing Leave of Absence 

 

(3) Classified Services 

Employment 

Change of Classification/Location and/or Hours  

Request Unpaid Personal Leave of Absence 

Resignation 

Retirement 



HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
205 North Ventura Road, Port Hueneme, CA 93041 PERSONNEL REPORT: March 27, 2023 
Employee’s Name Effective Date Personnel Action 
 

 
Report # 22-23-08  Page 1 of 5 
 
 

 

REVISED JOB DESCRIPTION:  Certificated Management Services 

2137 – Program Specialist for Special Education Attached 
   

EMPLOYMENT:  Certificated Services 

Davis, Thomas 02-13-23 Substitute Teacher 

Fitzgerald, Jennifer 08-21-23 Teacher, Special Education, Probationary 1 

Gamba, Marisa 03-13-23 Teacher, Special Education, Temporary 

Garcia Christina 03-09-23 Substitute Teacher 

Perez, Fatima 02-15-23 Substitute Teacher 

Siddens, Sara 02-27-23 Substitute Teacher 

Swenson, Kay 02-16-12 Substitute Teacher 

Transue, Lucia 03-09-23 Substitute Teacher 
   

RECOMMENDATION FOR PERMANENT STATUS:  Certificated Services 

Aguilera, Christian 2023-24 Counselor, Blackstock Jr. High School 

Banuelos, Johanna 2023-24 Counselor, EO Green Jr. High School 

Cachola, Jasel 2023-24 Special Education Teacher, Sunkist School 

Comstock, Leslie 2023-24 Speech and Language Pathologist, Bard School 

Damianos, Shelbee 2023-24 Speech and Language Pathologist, Blackstock Jr. High School 

Dudley, Alyxandra 2023-24 Resource Specialist, EO Green Jr. High School 



HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
205 North Ventura Road, Port Hueneme, CA 93041 PERSONNEL REPORT: March 27, 2023 
Employee’s Name Effective Date Personnel Action 
 

 
Report # 22-23-08  Page 2 of 5 
 
 

Garcia, William 2023-24 Music Teacher, Districtwide 

Gonzalez, Jose 2023-24 Teacher, Bard School 

Gonzalez, Samantha 2023-24 Resource Specialist, Sunkist School 

Hernandez, Blanca 2023-24 Teacher, Williams School 

Honaker, Christopher 2023-24 Teacher, EO Green Jr. High School 

Ibarra, Evelyn 2023-24 Teacher, Blackstock Jr. High School 

Lopez, Ximena 2023-24 Teacher, Parkview School 

Macias, Jazmin 2023-24 Teacher, Sunkist School 

Mann, Robin 2023-24 Psychologist, Pupil Support Services 

McLaughlin, Stacy 2023-24 Special Education Teacher, Blackstock Jr. High School 

Melgoza, Marissa 2023-24 Teacher, Hollywood Beach School 

Murphy, Erin 2023-24 Psychologist, Pupil Support Services 

Ocasio, Ada 2023-24 Psychologist, Pupil Support Services 

Perham, Kaitlyn 2023-24 Teacher, Williams School 

Ramos, Lizbeth 2023-24 School Nurse, Districtwide 

Robinson, Kendra 2023-24 Teacher, Blackstock Jr. High School 

Sanchez, Monica 2023-24 Teacher, Blackstock Jr. High School 

Soria, Carmen 2023-24 Teacher, Parkview School 

Sutherland, Shannon 2023-24 Speech and Language Pathologist, Parkview School 

Toscano, Teresa 2023-24 Speech and Language Pathologist, Williams School 

Villa, Carolina 2023-24 Counselor, Bard School 



HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
205 North Ventura Road, Port Hueneme, CA 93041 PERSONNEL REPORT: March 27, 2023 
Employee’s Name Effective Date Personnel Action 
 

 
Report # 22-23-08  Page 3 of 5 
 
 

Willson, Rebecca 2023-24 Teacher, Blackstock Jr. High School 

Zane, Julie 2023-24 Teacher, Hueneme School 

 

RETIREMENT:  Certificated Services 

Daley, Maureen 03-20-23 Speech and Language Pathologist, Haycox School, changed 
retirement date 

   

UNPAID CHILD REARING LEAVE OF ABSENCE:  Certificated Services 

Arevalo, Nancy 03-15-23 - 04-14-23 Counselor, Haycox School, requesting unpaid child rearing leave of 
absence pursuant to H.E.A. Agreement 

   

EMPLOYMENT:  Classified Services 

Aguilar, Joshua 03-06-23 3.75-hr. Paraprofessional, Williams School, replacing Jose Gonzalez wo 
resigned 

Avila Solorio, Tiffanie 02-03-23 Substitute Campus Assistant, Districtwide 

Dimas, Stephanie 03-17-23 3.50-hr. Paraprofessional/Special Education, Sunkist School, replacing 
Jasmine Arellano who resigned 

Gallegos, Angie 03-15-23 Substitute Paraprofessional/Physically Handicapped, Districtwide 

Gutierrez, Andres 03-15-23 3.50-hr. Paraprofessional/Special Education-RSP, Blackstock Jr. High 
School, replacing Barbara Weir who resigned 

Hunt, Sarah 02-09-23 Substitute Office Clerk, Districtwide 

Santoyo, Jazmin 03-06-23 6.0-hr. School Office Clerk, Hueneme School, replacing Grisell 
Guerrero who transferred 



HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
205 North Ventura Road, Port Hueneme, CA 93041 PERSONNEL REPORT: March 27, 2023 
Employee’s Name Effective Date Personnel Action 
 

 
Report # 22-23-08  Page 4 of 5 
 
 

Torres, Brenda 03-8-23 3.75-hr. Paraprofessional/Special Education, Hueneme School, 
replacing Brenda Morales who transferred 

 

CHANGE OF CLASSIFICATION, LOCATION AND/OR HOURS:  Classified Services 
Abundis, Candy 03-08-23 3.50-hr. Paraprofessional-SDC, Parkview School to 5.70-hr. 

Paraprofessional-SDC, Hathaway School, replacing Carmen Garcia 
who resigned 

Contreras Ruiz, Janet 03-16-23 3.50-hr. Paraprofessional/Physically Handicapped-SDC to 5.70-hr. 
Paraprofessional/Special Education, Parkview School, replacing 
Natalie Cadena Solorzano who resigned 

Dionicio, Maria 03-08-23 4.0-hr. Campus Assistant, EO Green Jr. High School to 3.50-hr. 
Paraprofessional/Special Education, Sunkist School, replacing Eileen 
Trinidad who resigned 

Lopez Soloria, Mayra 03-06-23 3.0-hr. Bilingual Paraprofessional to 3.50-hr. Bilingual Paraprofessional, 
Sunkist School, replacing Lesley Jauregui who resigned 

Mathis, Elizabeth 03-06-23 4.25-hr. Paraprofessional, Haycox School to 3.75-hr. Paraprofessional, 
Hollywood Beach School, replacing Anthony Gonzalez who resigned 

Ortiz, Lisette 03-13-23 3.75-hr. Paraprofessional/Physically Handicapped to 6.50-hr. 
Paraprofessional/Physically Handicapped-SDC, replacing Anastasia 
Sanchez who transferred 

Perez, Maria Celesthe 03-07-23 3.50-hr. Paraprofessional/Special Education, Hueneme School to 6.0-hr. 
Paraprofessional/Special Education, Hathaway School, new position 

Sandoval Amaro, Oscar 03-01-23 4.0-hr. Custodian, Hueneme School to 8.0-hr. Custodian, EO Green Jr. 
High School, replacing Ursulo Reynoso who transferred 



HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
205 North Ventura Road, Port Hueneme, CA 93041 PERSONNEL REPORT: March 27, 2023 
Employee’s Name Effective Date Personnel Action 
 

 
Report # 22-23-08  Page 5 of 5 
 
 

Sandoval Amaro, Oscar 04-03-23 8.0-hr. Custodian, EO Green Jr. High School to 8.0-hr. Custodian, 
Hathaway School, replacing Rolando Bernardo who retired 

   

REQUEST UNPAID PERSONAL LEAVE OF ABSENCE:  Classified Services 

Barragan, Stephanie 2-21-23 to 6-30-23 4.75-hr. Paraprofessional, Hathaway School, requesting an unpaid 
personal leave of absence pursuant to C.S.E.A. Agreement 

   

RESIGNATION:  Classified Services 

Lopez, Eileene 03-14-23 2.50-hr. Campus Assistant, Hollywood Beach School, resigning 

Naing, That That 03-03-23 3.0-hr. Campus Assistant, Sunkist School, resigning 

Reynoso, Jaci 02-10-23 6.0-hr. Food Service Worker I, resigning 

Vazquez, Joanna 03-14-23 3.50-hr. Paraprofessional/Physically Handicapped, Hollywood Beach 
School, resigning 

Williams, Steven 03-21-23 4.0-hr. Custodian, Bard School, resigning 

   

RETIREMENT:  Classified Services 

Gonzalez, Raul 05-23-23 8.0-hr. Head Custodian, Blackstock Jr. High School, retiring 

Lopez, Donna 06-16-23 3.0-hr. Campus Assistant, Sunkist School, retiring 

   

   

   



 
HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

2137 – PROGRAM SPECIALIST FOR SPECIAL EDUCATION 
 

DEFINITION 
 

The Program Specialist is responsible to the Senior Director of Pupil Support Services in the 
coordination and implementation of special education programs; serves as liaison with other 
agencies, plans, conducts and evaluates inservice training; and performs related duties as assigned. 
 

EXAMPLES OF DUTIES 
 

 Direct teacher and staff in the delivery of studies and implementation of an IEP 
 Assure that all students with disabilities have full educational opportunity 
 Observe, consult with, and assist designated instructional services instructors, and 

specialized academic instructors 
 Plan programs, coordinate curricular resources, and evaluate effectiveness of programs for 

individuals with exceptional needs 
 Plan, develop and implement staff development and inservice training in cooperation with 

other program specialists within the Ventura County SELPA; provide teachers with support 
materials and resources 

 Assist professional and paraprofessional personnel in diagnostic and evaluative and 
instructional activities 

 Collaborate with administrators, psychologists, and regular and/or special class teachers in 
the development, design, revision and monitoring of individual instructional and/or 
educational plans for pupils referred for evaluation and/or enrolled in special education. 

 Work on a consultative basis and provide evaluative input with principals and administration 
at their school site 

 Serve as liaison with support personnel, parents, teachers, and other public and private 
agencies; assist in maintaining follow up and referral service 

 Participate in program review duties 
 Perform related duties as assigned. 

 

REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS 
 
 Valid Administrative Services Credential 

 

 Valid Special Education Credential 
 Clinical Services Credential 
 School Psychologist Authorization 

Experience: 
 

 Prior Program Specialist Experience Preferred 
 Five years of successful teaching experience in the field of Special Education.  
 Bilingual Preferred 

 

Education: 
 

 Advanced training and related experience in the education of students with disabilities  
 Specialized in depth knowledge in one or more areas of major disabling conditions 

 
Revised 02/2023 



Item 7.2 (1) 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM: RATIFICATION OF EXPENDITURE REPORTS FOR  

   FEBRUARY 2023  

 

BOARD MEETING DATE: March 27, 2023 

 

FROM: Patricia Marshall, Chief Business Official 

 Dr. Christine Walker, Superintendent 

 

STAFF COMMENT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
It is recommended that the Governing Board ratify the attached Expenditure Reports for 

February 2023 as follows: 

 

(1) Commercial Payments 

(2) Payroll 

 

 

  



 COMMERCIAL PAYMENT REGISTER

February 2023
Unrestricted Cafeteria Measure T Dev. Fees Bond Int. ASB/USB Accrued

ISSUE CHECK TOTAL 010 130 216 250 510 951-952-953 Sales

DATE NUMBERS AMOUNT FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND Taxes

February 2, 2023 5002054905-5002054929 203,880.08$      201,035.48$      2,844.60$          8.32$                                         

February 6, 2023 5002054930-5002054945 931,925.55$      60,055.95$        871,869.60$      3.88$                                         

February 7, 2023 5002054946-5002054978 523,903.59$      523,903.59$      2.47$                                         

February 9, 2023 5002054979-5002055001 51,267.75$        51,072.28$        195.47$             144.43$                                     

February 13, 2023 5002055002-5002055036 387,108.97$      141,814.48$      235,539.49$      9,755.00$          7.20$                                         

February 14, 2023 5002055037-5002055061 90,337.02$        79,037.02$        11,300.00$        145.46$                                     

February 15, 2023 5002055062-5002055090 38,758.40$        38,616.85$        141.55$             

February 21, 2023 5002055091-5002055135 177,111.51$      176,641.25$      470.26$             61.34$                                       

February 23, 2023 5002055136-5002055183 88,922.42$        88,535.42$        387.00$             

February 27, 2023 5002055184-5002055234 485,653.41$      485,653.41$      

February 28, 2023 5002055235-5002055251 427,019.98$      425,726.78$      1,293.20$          

TOTAL PAYMENTS 3,405,888.68$   2,272,092.51$   239,578.37$      894,217.80$      -$             -$             -$             373.10$                                     

3/2/202311:55 AM2022-23 Commercial Register.xlsx



PAYROLL SUMMARY - FEB 2023
010 130

ISSUE DATE GROSS FRINGE TOTAL FUND FUND
EARNINGS BENEFITS PAYROLL General Cafeteria

Total $9,515,532.92 $3,628,672.86 $13,144,205.78 $12,817,388.78 $326,817.00

02/10/23 $18,371.47 -$482.06 $17,889.41 $17,158.86 $730.55
02/23/23 $648,949.36 $3,372,906.81 $3,354,925.32 $17,981.49
02/28/23 $9,753,409.56 $9,445,304.60

$0.00
$0.00

$2,723,957.45
$6,773,204.00 $2,980,205.56 $308,104.96



Item 7.2 (2) 

 

       HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

  

BOARD AGENDA ITEM:   RATIFICATION OF PURCHASE ORDERS AND   

 CHECKS FOR FEBRUARY 2023 

 

BOARD MEETING DATE: March 27, 2023 

 

FROM: Patricia Marshall, Chief Business Official  

  Dr. Christine Walker, Superintendent 

 

STAFF COMMENT  

 

RECOMMENDATION   

 

It is recommended that the Governing Board ratify purchase orders and checks generated 

in February 2023. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The monthly purchase order listing is a summary of all purchase orders issued in one 

calendar month. It is provided to the Governing Board for ratification of district purchases. 

The purchase order numbering system is described below: 

 

1. B23-0000……..“B” series purchase orders are for “blanket” orders issued to

 vendors used on a monthly basis. 

2. H23-0000……..“H” series purchase orders are for “Hueneme Elementary School 

 District” regularly issued orders. 

 

For the period of February 1-28, 2023, purchase orders totaled $1,057,893.67 and                        

$-303,012.08 in change notices. The attached report reflects February 2023 totals by site: 

 

00/01 District wide 18 Hathaway 

02 Educational Services  18N Neighborhood for Learning 

03 Pupil Support Services 20 Haycox 

04 Migrant Education 22 Hueneme 

05 Educational Media Center 24 Larsen 

08 Food Service 26 Parkview 

09  Summer School 28 Sunkist 

10 Bard 30 Williams 

12 Beach 34 Print Shop 

14 Blackstock 99 After School Program 

16 E.O. Green FOT Facilities, Operations and Transportation 

 

 

 



RATIFICATION OF PURCHASE ORDERS AND CHECKS FOR FEBRUARY 2023 

March 27, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 

These numerical listings provide an internal system of checks and balances in the Business 

Office. 
 

Reimbursement/direct pay orders are listed in the second part of the attached reports.  

Checks issued between February 1 and February 28, 2023, totaled $3,406,561.68. 
 



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay211a

Includes 02/01/2023 - 02/28/2023

PO

Number
Vendor Name Description

Fund

Object

Account

Amount
Site

B23-00266 Capco Analytical Services, Inc  . FOT/Service 010-5800FOT 20,000.00 

B23-00267 Ventura County Arts Council Bard/LCFF/Arts 010-580010 3,200.00 

B23-00268 Ventura County Arts Council Bard/LCFF/Arts 010-580010 4,000.00 

B23-00269 VCOE Ed. Services/Power of 

You/LCFF/MHSP

010-580002 61,920.00 

B23-00270 Ventura County Arts Council Bard/LCFF/Arts 010-580010 3,200.00 

B23-00271 MIND Research Institute ASES/ELO/STMATH 010-510099 2,000.00 

010-5800 25,000.00 

B23-00272 California Hose, Inc FOT/supplies 010-4300FOT 7,500.00 

B23-00273 Williams Scotsman, Inc. Mobile  

Mini

District/Larsen/Container 

rental-M1432142

010-569924 583.92 

B23-00274 Williams Scotsman, Inc. Mobile  

Mini

District/Blackstock/Container 

Rental - M1682453

010-569914 563.46 

B23-00275 Williams Scotsman, Inc. Mobile  

Mini

District/Green/Container 

rental- M1297914

010-569916 964.20 

B23-00276 Williams Scotsman, Inc. Mobile  

Mini

District/Container Rental -- 

M1442285

010-569901 1,324.86 

B23-00277 Williams Scotsman, Inc. Mobile  

Mini

District/Pkvw/Container rental 

M1553159

010-569926 581.22 

B23-00278 Envision Ford Lincoln of Oxnar  d FOT/Service & Supplies 010-4300FOT 10,000.00 

010-5600 10,000.00 

H23-00048 Scholastic Larsen/Title1/ Scholastic 

Magazines

010-420024 1,449.58 

H23-00883 Ventura CABE Attn:Dr. Maria He 

rnandez

Ed. Projects/Title 

III/Registration

010-520002 1,950.00 

H23-01506 Dell Computer Corp PSS/computer monitor 010-430003 601.57 

H23-01636 Global Equipment Company Inc. Hueneme/Custodial/Supply 010-430022 202.07 

H23-01679 Scholastic haycox/duplicate for 

H22-02367

010-420020 2,154.41 

H23-01731 BDJtech District/Desktops replacing 

Carmen & Pebbles

010-440001 2,470.50 

H23-01732 BDJtech Martl/Sup/Instruct/GF 010-430020 147.49 

H23-01733 Psychological Corporation Orde r 

Service Center

PSS/Protocols 010-430003 1,283.51 

H23-01734 Elite Screen Printing & Embroi dery ASES/ELO/EOG/Musical 

Theater

010-430099 538.91 

H23-01735 Lakeshore Store #038 Bard/Workload Reduction/Mrs. 

Murillo TWI-K2

010-430010 412.13 

H23-01736 Free Spirit ASES/Supplies 010-430099 78.28 

H23-01737 Aramsco Inc. Sunkist/ Janitorial 010-430028 423.54 

H23-01738 Sinclair Sanitary Supply Inc Sunkist/ Janitorial 010-430028 201.04 

H23-01739 CSM Consulting Inc DO/E-rate Service 010-580001 5,000.00 

H23-01740 West Ed Ed Services/LCFF/Healthy 

Kids Survey

010-580002 1,727.20 

H23-01742 Amazon Capital Service ASES/ELO/Annex 010-430099 567.38 

H23-01743 Amazon Capital Service ASES/ELO/Annex 010-430099 213.05 

H23-01744 Amazon Capital Service Hathaway/Vandalism 010-430018 109.24 

Page 1 of 10

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:57PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing 

Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase 

Orders be approved and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items 

ordered.



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay211a

Includes 02/01/2023 - 02/28/2023

PO

Number
Vendor Name Description

Fund

Object

Account

Amount
Site

H23-01745 Amazon Capital Service ASES/Sunkist/Supplies 010-430099 918.11 

H23-01746 Amazon Capital Service ELO/BLK/ B.Xayaphone 010-430099 552.00 

H23-01747 Mixteco/Indigena Community Org 

anizing Project

INVOICE HSD11 SERVICES 

11/29/2022

010-580002 160.00 

H23-01748 Starfall Education Bard/LCFF/Membership 010-530010 355.00 

H23-01749 School Specialty, LLC Hathaway/LCFF/Supplies 010-430018 2,361.68 

H23-01750 Ventris Learning LLC LCFF/UFLI Norvell-Stella 010-430030 172.95 

H23-01751 Anthony W. Russo ELO/BRD/Battleof the 

books/C.Foley

010-420099 317.90 

H23-01752 Atlantis Utility Badge Printing System - 5 

sites

010-430001 1,694.25 

010-5800 50,895.00 

H23-01753 CyberCopy Inc. Beach/Service 216-620001 130.00 

H23-01754 Santa Barbara Zoo Sunkist/GF Escobar/ Alcaraz 

Field Trip 2/28/23

010-580028 355.00 

H23-01755 Amazon Capital Service Larsen/LCFF/Instructional 

Supplies

010-430024 237.23 

H23-01756 Amazon Capital Service LCFF/Sunkist Teacher 

Supplies

010-420028 76.18 

010-4300 505.57 

H23-01757 Amazon Capital Service Martl/Sup/Instruct/LCFF 010-430020 729.37 

H23-01758 Amazon Capital Service Larsen/LCFF/Instructional, 

Admin supplies

010-430024 348.69 

H23-01759 Amazon Capital Service Sunkist Office/LCFF 010-430028 184.42 

H23-01760 Amazon Capital Service LCFF/Supplies 010-430030 359.35 

H23-01761 Amazon Capital Service Hathaway/Wrkld 

Dinges/GATE/supplies

010-420018 182.01 

010-4300 466.09 

H23-01762 Amazon Capital Service Ed Services/ LCFF/H.Cosgrove 010-430002 409.41 

H23-01763 Amazon Capital Service ELO/HME/BattleofBooks/M.Ro

driguez

010-420099 548.62 

H23-01764 University of California Berke ley Ed 

Services/LCFF/Registrations

010-580002 4,200.00 

H23-01765 Aatish Gehani Beach/ GF/ Beanies 010-430012 413.30 

H23-01766 Carnitas El Brother  Mexican G rill Ed. Servics/Counselor's/Food 010-430002 250.59 

H23-01767 East Bay Restaurant Food Service/Supplies 010-430008 837.82 

130-4300 12,681.15 

H23-01768 Brookes Publishing Co. Material for DLI 010-430002 2,170.05 

H23-01769 Barnes & Noble Inc  #2054 Acco 

unt #6121495

Bard/Wkld Reduction/K. 

Martinez

010-420010 455.48 

H23-01770 Barnes & Noble Inc  #2054 Acco 

unt #6121495

Bard/Wkld Reduction/J. Galvan 010-420010 473.87 

H23-01771 Aswell Trophy District/Professional Services 010-430001 26.22 

H23-01772 School Nutrition Association Food Service/Membership 130-530008 146.00 

H23-01773 Amplified IT, LLC technology/services 010-580000 7,200.00 

H23-01774 Amazon Capital Service Business Membership 2023 010-530001 847.16 

Page 2 of 10

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:57PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing 

Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase 

Orders be approved and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items 

ordered.



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay211a

Includes 02/01/2023 - 02/28/2023

PO

Number
Vendor Name Description

Fund

Object

Account

Amount
Site

H23-01775 CustomInk.com Blackstock/ASB-Sweatshirt 

Sale

010-430014 927.40 

H23-01776 GHS Garcia Hernandez Sawhney District / H.R. / Professional 

Services

010-581501 3,977.50 

H23-01777 VCOE 2021/22 Special 

Ed./Transportation Excess 

Costs

010-714201 373,749.00 

H23-01778 Aramsco Inc. Janitorial/Sup 010-430020 509.46 

H23-01779 Northern Speech Services, Inc. PSS/Speech/Womack(Green)/

Comstock(Bard)

010-430003 281.06 

H23-01780 Lakeshore Store #038 PSS/OT/McConnell(Beach) 010-430003 152.23 

H23-01781 Oriental Trading Co Inc PSS/SLP/McCaffrey 

(Hueneme)

010-430003 71.76 

H23-01782 Champion Teamwear ELO/EOG/Cheer/D.Davis 010-430099 3,024.06 

H23-01783 Kagan Publishing & Pro Devel ( 

Training Events)

ASES/ELO/DO 010-430099 470.13 

H23-01784 Santa Barbara Zoo Bard/USB/Fieldtrip 3-14-23 010-580010 198.00 

H23-01785 Amazon Capital Service ASES/ELO/ANNEX 010-430099 931.02 

H23-01786 Amazon Capital Service ASES/ELO/DO 010-430099 358.53 

H23-01787 Amazon Capital Service Bard/Wkld Reduction/L. 

Walthall

010-430010 234.21 

H23-01788 Amazon Capital Service Bard/Wkld Reduction/L. 

Jaramillo

010-430010 184.60 

H23-01789 Amazon Capital Service Bard/Wkld Reduction/C. Foley 010-430010 159.37 

H23-01790 Amazon Capital Service Bard/Wkld Red./L. Garcia 

(SPED)

010-420010 50.10 

010-4300 115.77 

H23-01791 Amazon Capital Service Blackstock/Bautista-WLR 010-430014 280.56 

H23-01792 Amazon Capital Service ASES/BLK/Supplies 010-430099 112.33 

H23-01793 Amazon Capital Service ASES/EOG/Supplies 010-430099 234.06 

H23-01794 Arts Attack Bard/LCFF/Arts 010-530010 716.00 

H23-01795 Telcom Communications Sunkist/LCFF radios 010-430028 532.60 

H23-01796 Quill Corporation Bard/LCFF/Supplies 010-430010 620.78 

H23-01797 MARENEM INC Ed Services/LCFF/TST 

Supplies

010-430002 2,266.62 

H23-01798 Aramsco Inc. Hueneme/LCFF/Supply 010-430022 78.42 

H23-01799 Western Psychological Services PSS/Protocols 010-430003 1,770.46 

H23-01800 Polar 3D LLC Blackstock/LCFF/E. 

Johnson/STEM

010-580014 500.00 

H23-01801 CSF/CJSF Blackstock/LCFF/Tonya 

Leal-CJSF

010-530014 75.00 

H23-01802 Lakeshore Store #038 PSS/SDC/Nabors (Parkview) 010-430003 214.61 

H23-01803 Psychological Corporation Orde r 

Service Center

PSS/Protocols 010-430003 1,324.05 

H23-01804 Mark-It Place Blackstock/WEB/Ontiveros 010-430014 145.23 

H23-01805 Apple  Inc PSS/Tech for Student IEP 010-430003 1,749.94 

H23-01806 Staples Advantage Blackstock/LCFF/Instructional 

Supplies

010-430014 1,066.35 

Page 3 of 10

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:57PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing 

Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase 

Orders be approved and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items 

ordered.



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay211a

Includes 02/01/2023 - 02/28/2023

PO

Number
Vendor Name Description

Fund

Object

Account

Amount
Site

H23-01807 Commline Inc. Hueneme/safety/radios 010-440022 2,935.15 

H23-01808 OverDrive Inc. Ed Services/LCFF/Library 

Renew

010-580002 2,745.87 

H23-01809 Aramsco Inc. Hueneme/Custodial Supply 010-430022 1,870.72 

H23-01810 Aramsco Inc. Sunkist Janitorial Supplies 010-430028 184.82 

H23-01811 BDJtech District/Desktops replacement 010-440001 2,653.50 

H23-01812 American Food Company Hathaway/Gen Fund/fruit bars 010-430018 360.00 

H23-01813 MOXI, The Wolf Museum of Explo 

ration & Innovation

Haycox/Field Trip 

02-09-23/Elena Reyna

010-580020 202.00 

H23-01814 Chumash Indian Museum Larsen/museum field 

trip/02-14-23

010-580024 336.00 

H23-01815 Amazon Capital Service Green/ergonomics/Fabian/Bos

saletti

010-430001 256.65 

H23-01816 Amazon Capital Service Bard/LCFF/Supplies 010-430010 772.95 

H23-01817 Amazon Capital Service Hueneme/LCFF/Supply/Kathy 

Riley

010-430022 221.47 

H23-01818 Amazon Capital Service Ed Services/LCFF/TST 

Supplies

010-430002 2,091.03 

H23-01819 Amazon Capital Service Ed Services/ LCFF/AI Supplies 010-430002 684.90 

H23-01820 Amazon Capital Service Ed Services/LCFF/Supplies 010-430002 86.99 

H23-01821 Amazon Capital Service LCFF/TK Martinez 010-430030 118.25 

H23-01822 Amazon Capital Service Ed Services/LCFF/Supplies 010-420002 399.95 

H23-01823 Dance 4 Wellness ED Services/LCFF/Service 

Agreement

010-580002 39,600.00 

H23-01824 School Services of California DO/May Revised Registration 010-520001 1,180.00 

H23-01825 Dave Bang Associates Inc Beach/Playground-ES-5-12 

Area-Option 1

010-610012 95,961.09 

H23-01826 Dave Bang Associates Inc Beach/playground ES-Slide 

Parts-Revision 1

010-610012 12,004.29 

H23-01827 Liberty Printing GF. 010-430016 409.69 

H23-01828 Barnes & Noble Inc  #2054 Acco 

unt #6121495

Blackstock/Title 1/Student 

Engagement Resources

010-420014 163.60 

H23-01829 University of California Berke ley Parkview/Training 010-520026 600.00 

H23-01830 Barnes Charter Transportation-Field Trip 

03/17/2023

010-581214 1,738.35 

H23-01831 Kelly Spicers Inc. Year 22/23/(6th batch)/District 

paper/stores

010-932001 5,478.28 

H23-01832 Uline District wide/boxes 010-430001 930.62 

H23-01833 Aramsco Inc. District Office Janitorial 

Supplies

010-430001 425.75 

H23-01834 State Water Resources Control 

Board, Div of Water Quality

District/Permit Fee 2023 010-5800FOT 1,738.00 

H23-01835 California Dept of Education C 

ashier's Office

2023 Federal Interest Payback 

Q2

010-866001 1,735.17 

H23-01836 Amazon Capital Service WLR. Burubeltz 010-430016 432.19 

H23-01837 Amazon Capital Service WLR. Charan 010-420016 120.05 

010-4300 334.23 

Page 4 of 10

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:57PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing 

Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase 

Orders be approved and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items 

ordered.



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay211a

Includes 02/01/2023 - 02/28/2023

PO

Number
Vendor Name Description

Fund

Object

Account

Amount
Site

H23-01838 Amazon Capital Service WLR. Cheresnowsky 010-420016 9.82 

010-4300 464.12 

H23-01839 Amazon Capital Service WLR. Navarro 010-430016 455.07 

H23-01840 Amazon Capital Service blackstock/ergonomic/Nikki 

Gisonno-not duplicate

010-430001 128.43 

H23-01841 Two Trees Escape Inc. Patkview/GATE/Field Trip 

Admission

010-580026 160.00 

H23-01842 Camp Whittier Math Camp 2/13/23- 2/16/23 010-580016 24,200.00 

H23-01843 VCOE District / H.R./ Prof Services 010-580001 77,750.00 

H23-01844 Lakeshore Store #038 Bard/Wkld/L. Walthall K-1 010-430010 185.90 

H23-01845 Crisis Prevention Institute Ed. Services/LCFF/NCPI 

Training Course

010-430002 3,336.75 

H23-01846 Leonis Adobe Museum Bard/USB/Fieldtrip/3-02-23 010-580010 1,157.00 

H23-01847 Sams Club Dstrict/Membership 22-23 010-530001 120.18 

H23-01848 Satellite Sport Group  Perfect ion 

on Wheels

Bard/USB/Assembly-3/15/23 010-580010 1,997.00 

H23-01849 Amazon Capital Service ASES/ELO/BEACH Supplies 010-430099 165.70 

H23-01850 Amazon Capital Service ASES/DO/Supplies 010-430099 130.49 

H23-01851 Amazon Capital Service Bard/Wkld Deduction/L. Garcia 010-420010 11.32 

010-4300 300.64 

H23-01852 Amazon Capital Service ASES/PKV/Supplies 010-430099 773.17 

H23-01853 Amazon Capital Service ASES/HME/Supplies 010-430099 128.53 

H23-01854 Amazon Capital Service Bard/Wkld Reduction/C. Foley 010-420010 24.99 

010-4300 275.73 

H23-01855 Amazon Capital Service Bard/Wkld Reduction/G. Garcia 010-420010 8.69 

010-4300 185.62 

H23-01856 Amazon Capital Service Bard/Wkld Reduction/G. Garcia 010-420010 30.39 

010-4300 174.79 

H23-01857 Amazon Capital Service ASES/Beach/Supplies 010-430099 146.80 

H23-01858 Amazon Capital Service ELO/HME/S.Camarena/Yearbo

ok

010-430099 320.07 

H23-01859 Amazon Capital Service ASES/DO 010-430099 140.51 

H23-01860 Amazon Capital Service ELO/HME/Batteofthebooks/S.C

amarena

010-420099 406.81 

010-4300 20.61 

H23-01861 Amplified IT, LLC District / Technology / Training 010-520001 350.00 

H23-01862 Building Block Entertainment Parkview/LCFF/Assembly 010-580026 995.00 

H23-01863 America's Battle of the Book Hathaway/GATE/Registration 010-420018 50.00 

H23-01864 Breakout EDU Parkview/LCFF/Gate 010-430026 356.70 

H23-01865 Lakeshore Store #038 Parkview/LCFF/Classroom 

Materials

010-430026 152.19 

H23-01866 School Specialty, LLC Bard/LCFF/Supplies 010-430010 683.04 

H23-01867 Office Depot School Division Hueneme/LCFF/Supply 010-430022 160.24 

H23-01868 Staple Technology Solution E.O Green/Printer/Room 

20/Cesar Lopez

010-430016 417.19 

H23-01869 Staple Technology Solution William/Printer/Room 8/Mrs. 

Martinez

010-430030 417.19 

Page 5 of 10

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:57PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing 

Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase 

Orders be approved and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items 

ordered.



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay211a

Includes 02/01/2023 - 02/28/2023

PO

Number
Vendor Name Description

Fund

Object

Account

Amount
Site

H23-01870 Staple Technology Solution Beach/Printers/Room 9/Ms. Jill 

Ekman

010-430012 417.19 

H23-01871 Staple Technology Solution Hathaway/Printer/Room 

P5/Robin Mann

010-430018 417.19 

H23-01872 Staple Technology Solution Sunkist/Printer/Room 9/Estela 

Mendoza

010-430028 417.19 

H23-01873 Commline Inc. Blackstock/LCFF/Radio 

batteries

010-430014 437.04 

H23-01874 MARENEM INC Ed Services/LCFF/TST 

Supplies

010-430002 308.75 

H23-01875 School Specialty, LLC Sunkist Supplies/ LCFF 010-430028 767.33 

H23-01876 MARENEM INC Ed Services/LCFF/TST 

Supplies

010-430002 231.56 

H23-01877 MARENEM INC Ed Services/LCFF/TST 

Supplies

010-430002 2,581.63 

H23-01878 Dave Bang Associates Inc Beach/playground 

ES-Area2-Option 1

010-610012 19,114.89 

H23-01879 UltimateSLP.com PSS/SLP/Subscription 010-580003 139.92 

H23-01880 Ventris Learning LLC LCFF/UFLI Gonzalez-Uribe 010-430030 160.00 

H23-01881 National Business Furniture Green/Ergonomic/Sarah 

Bossaletti & Clara Fabian

010-440001 1,088.44 

H23-01882 AG Designs 805 Blackstock/ASB-Band 

T-shirt/Sweater order

010-430014 1,332.85 

H23-01883 Signarama Ventura ANNEX/Sign 010-430001 637.28 

010-5800 1,800.00 

H23-01884 Winsor Learning Inc PSS/Curriculum/Gilbert/Jarami

llo/Cachola (SDC)

010-430003 3,648.56 

H23-01885 Gold Coast CUE District/Technology/Conferenc

e- January 28, 2022

010-520001 75.00 

H23-01886 Dual Language Education New Me 

xico

DLI Exploration /Tittle III/ 

Guillen

010-420002 6,296.63 

H23-01887 Amazon Capital Service Parkview/LCFF/Literacy Night 010-420026 349.53 

010-4300 260.97 

H23-01888 Amazon Capital Service Parkview/GF 010-430026 174.57 

H23-01889 Amazon Capital Service LCFF. Office 010-430016 151.75 

H23-01890 Amazon Capital Service Beach/ LCFF/ Supplies 010-430012 521.53 

H23-01891 Amazon Capital Service LCFF/supplies 010-430016 382.53 

H23-01892 Amazon Capital Service Hueneme/LCFF/Supply 010-430022 532.14 

H23-01893 Amazon Capital Service Blackstock/LCFF/Instructional 

Supplies-Leal

010-430014 572.80 

H23-01894 Amazon Capital Service Hathaway/GATE/Wrkld 

R.Hathaway/LCFF

010-420018 39.27 

010-4300 124.15 

H23-01895 Amazon Capital Service Sunkist LCFF/Teacher 

supplies Naranjo

010-430028 190.65 

H23-01896 Amazon Capital Service District/Office Supplies/IT & 

Warehouse

010-430001 645.04 

H23-01897 Amazon Capital Service PSS/Office/Supplies 010-430003 216.41 

Page 6 of 10

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:57PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing 

Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase 

Orders be approved and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items 

ordered.



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay211a

Includes 02/01/2023 - 02/28/2023

PO

Number
Vendor Name Description

Fund

Object

Account

Amount
Site

H23-01898 Amazon Capital Service PSS/Supplies/Student 

Accomodations

010-430003 74.31 

H23-01899 Amazon Capital Service WLR. Nelson 010-430016 468.97 

H23-01900 Amazon Capital Service Technology 

supplies/tissues-district

010-430001 199.01 

H23-01901 Amazon Capital Service Wrkload 

Reduction/M.Hernandez

010-430030 348.66 

H23-01902 Amazon Capital Service WLR. Davis 010-430016 449.85 

H23-01903 Amazon Capital Service PSS/OT/RSP/Student 

Accomodations

010-430003 132.59 

H23-01904 Amazon Capital Service PSS/RSP/Cook (Haycox) 010-430003 116.34 

H23-01905 Amazon Capital Service Matls/Sup/E. McGratht/Rm 17 010-430020 358.61 

H23-01906 Mark Griffiths Assembly-01/30/2023 010-580020 950.00 

H23-01907 Staple Technology Solution Blackstock/Printers/Rafaela 

Cortes-Alvarez

010-430014 417.19 

H23-01908 Aramsco Inc. Blackstock/Aramsco-Custodial 

Order

010-430014 1,206.71 

H23-01909 VCOE-SELPA Ed. Services/LCFF/NCPI 010-520002 35.00 

H23-01910 Aramsco Inc. Beach/ GF/ Custodial Supplies 010-430012 1,129.92 

H23-01911 Lakeshore Store #038 Blackstock/LCFF/Instructional 

Supplies-R. Ho

010-430014 428.59 

H23-01912 Aramsco Inc. Blackstock/Custodial Supplies 010-430014 108.30 

H23-01913 Scholastic Blackstock/Title 1/Classroom 

Literature

010-420014 3,207.05 

H23-01914 CSEA Attn: Member Benefits District / HR / Prof Services 010-520001 149.00 

H23-01915 Lakeshore Store #038 Blackstock/LCFF/Instructional 

Supplies-Beatty

010-430014 428.59 

H23-01916 L & L Roofing FOT/Service 010-560001 2,598.00 

H23-01917 Sinclair Sanitary Supply Inc Janitorial Supplies 010-430016 425.53 

H23-01918 School Nurse Supply INC. Hathaway/Gen Fund/items 010-430018 106.64 

H23-01919 Scholastic Blackstock/Title 

1/Scholastic-Classroom 

Literature

010-420014 9,629.56 

H23-01920 Amazon Capital Service WLR. Ramos 010-430016 473.98 

H23-01921 Amazon Capital Service Matls/Sup/GF/ Rm26 010-430020 213.11 

H23-01922 Amazon Capital Service Larsen/LCFF/Instructional, 

Library supplies/books

010-420024 53.16 

010-4300 426.52 

H23-01923 Amazon Capital Service Larsen/WLR/Ms. Leon 010-430024 477.54 

H23-01924 Amazon Capital Service MatlS/Adm/LCFF/Reading 

Across America

010-430020 331.76 

H23-01925 Amazon Capital Service Beach/ LCFF/ Supplies 010-430012 311.32 

H23-01926 Amazon Capital Service LCFF/Uribe reading group 010-420030 92.81 

010-4300 106.52 

H23-01927 Amazon Capital Service LCFF/M.Hernandez 010-430030 250.08 

Page 7 of 10

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:57PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing 

Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase 

Orders be approved and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items 

ordered.



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay211a

Includes 02/01/2023 - 02/28/2023

PO

Number
Vendor Name Description

Fund

Object

Account

Amount
Site

H23-01928 Amazon Capital Service Ed. Services/Counselor/A. 

Cortez-PARKVIEW

010-420002 62.47 

010-4300 130.84 

H23-01929 Amazon Capital Service Title 1 and GF 010-420016 231.72 

010-4300 21.74 

H23-01930 Amazon Capital Service Bard/GF/Supplies 010-430010 123.44 

H23-01931 Amazon Capital Service Ed Services/LCFF/TST 

Supplies

010-420002 1,038.73 

H23-01932 Amazon Capital Service Ed Services/LCFF/TST 

Supplies

010-420002 646.68 

H23-01933 Amazon Capital Service Blackstock/LCFF/Instructional-

Health Supplies

010-430014 500.27 

H23-01934 Amazon Capital Service Hathaway/Wrkld/supplies/Rine

r

010-430018 470.67 

H23-01935 Amazon Capital Service Larsen/GF/Health Supplies 010-430024 152.79 

H23-01936 Amazon Capital Service PSS/new desk/Sandra 

Martinez

010-430003 159.98 

H23-01937 Barnes Charter Transportation- Field Trip - 

03/02/2023

010-581214 3,271.14 

H23-01938 FCG Environmental FOT/AQ Testing P43 010-560014 640.00 

H23-01939 Aramsco Inc. Blackstock/Janitorial Order 010-430014 1,198.69 

H23-01940 Aramsco Inc. Hathaway/ 010-430018 1,571.56 

H23-01941 Venco Electric Inc Service/D.O. Electrical 010-560001 705.00 

H23-01942 Williams Scotsman, Inc. Mobile  

Mini

Parkview/Container Rental -- 

1002126781

216-620026 1,605.50 

H23-01943 Williams Scotsman, Inc. Mobile  

Mini

Larsen/Container Rental -- 

1002126792

216-620024 1,660.67 

H23-01944 Williams Scotsman, Inc. Mobile  

Mini

Blackstock/Container Rental - 

1002126788

216-620014 1,660.67 

H23-01945 Aramsco Inc. Blackstock/Custodial Order 010-430014 100.29 

H23-01946 Lakeshore Store #038 Hueneme/LCFF/Supply/Earla 

Griggs

010-430022 202.27 

H23-01947 Lakeshore Store #038 Parkview/LCFF/SpEd Supplies 010-430026 258.54 

H23-01948 Staple Technology Solution Parkview/Printer/Room 9 010-430026 417.19 

H23-01949 Quill Corporation Parkview/GF/Supplies 010-430026 3,436.95 

H23-01950 Aramsco Inc. E.O Green/Janitorial supplies 010-430016 856.65 

H23-01951 West Coast Landyards, Inc. Beach/ GF/ Staff Appreciation 

Gift

010-430012 318.45 

H23-01952 VCOE Technology Services District / Technology / Prof 

Services

010-520001 1,050.00 

H23-01954 Adams Silva & Mcnally LLP PSS/Legal Services 010-581503 338.00 

H23-01955 Sinclair Sanitary Supply Inc E.O Green/janitorial supplies 010-430016 425.53 

H23-01956 Psychological Corporation Orde r 

Service Center

PSS/Protocols 010-430003 498.23 

H23-01957 Nasco Blackstock/WLR-Gonzalez, N. 010-430014 523.89 

H23-01958 Scholastic Blackstock/LCFF/Instructional 

Materials

010-420014 204.87 

Page 8 of 10

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:57PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing 

Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase 

Orders be approved and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items 

ordered.



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay211a

Includes 02/01/2023 - 02/28/2023

PO

Number
Vendor Name Description

Fund

Object

Account

Amount
Site

H23-01959 Staple Technology Solution Blackstock/Printers/Kim 

Nava-Lozano RM10

010-430014 417.19 

H23-01960 Amazon Capital Service Food Service/ Supplies 130-430008 228.45 

H23-01961 Amazon Capital Service PSS/Furniture for preschool 

assessment room

010-430003 2,666.96 

H23-01962 Amazon Capital Service E.O Green/Health Office 

supplies

010-430016 163.50 

H23-01963 Amazon Capital Service Blackstock/WLR- Lewis 010-430014 484.47 

H23-01964 Amazon Capital Service Hueneme/LCFF/Workload/Mor

a and Zane

010-430022 188.80 

H23-01965 Amazon Capital Service Blackstock/WLR-Ayala 010-430014 463.93 

H23-01966 Amazon Capital Service Parkview/GF/Heating Pad 010-430026 148.86 

H23-01967 Amazon Capital Service Sunkist LCFF/ Office Supplies 010-430028 250.90 

H23-01968 Amazon Capital Service Blackstock/LCFF/Art class 

supplies

010-430014 216.19 

H23-01969 Amazon Capital Service Ed Services/LCFF/Supplies 010-420002 1,029.58 

H23-01970 Amazon Capital Service Sunkist/Circle of Friends 010-430028 113.34 

H23-01971 Amazon Capital Service Ed. Services/Counselor/L. 

Benitez Hueneme School

010-420002 70.65 

010-4300 147.98 

H23-01972 Amazon Capital Service Ed. 

Services/Counselor/S.Hixon 

Beach School

010-420002 63.91 

010-4300 133.86 

H23-01973 Amazon Capital Service Blackstock.WLR-Underhill-Vod

on

010-430014 483.64 

H23-01974 Amazon Capital Service Technology & District Office 

supplies

010-430001 350.23 

H23-01975 Amazon Capital Service Blackstock/LCFF/Instructional 

Supplies

010-430014 331.17 

H23-01976 Amazon Capital Service Beach/Battleofthebooks/ 

S.LuzGarcia

010-420099 386.54 

H23-01977 Amazon Capital Service Haycox/Supplies 010-430099 177.43 

H23-01978 Amazon Capital Service Battleofthe 

books/Sunkist/Jayne Robles

010-420099 483.18 

1,057,893.67 Total264 Total Number of  POs

PO Changes 

Description  Change Amount

Fund/

ObjectNew PO Amount

B23-00003 150,450.00 010-4300 General Fund/Materials and Supplies 52,810.80 

B23-00096 5,000.00 010-4300 General Fund/Materials and Supplies 3,000.00 

B23-00111 20,000.00 010-4300 General Fund/Materials and Supplies 9,138.22 

Page 9 of 10

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:57PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing 

Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase 

Orders be approved and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items 

ordered.



Board Report with Fund/ObjectReqPay211a

Includes 02/01/2023 - 02/28/2023

PO Changes (continued)

PO Changes 

Description  Change Amount

Fund/

ObjectNew PO Amount

B23-00127 8,500.00 010-4300 General Fund/Materials and Supplies 1,411.89 

B23-00127 8,500.00 010-5600 General Fund/Repairs 447.20 

1,859.09 Total PO B23-00127 

B23-00138 91,700.00 010-4300 General Fund/Materials and Supplies 20,000.00 

B23-00143 11,579.10 010-4300 General Fund/Materials and Supplies 10,000.00 

B23-00152 9,000.00 010-5600 General Fund/Repairs 3,000.00 

B23-00220 4,200.00 010-4300 General Fund/Materials and Supplies 200.00 

H19-00585 178,400.00 216-6200 Measure B Building Fund/Buildings and Improvement of B 6,650.00 

H19-00586 181,050.00 216-6200 Measure B Building Fund/Buildings and Improvement of B 7,900.00 

H19-00591 179,550.00 216-6200 Measure B Building Fund/Buildings and Improvement of B 6,650.00 

H23-00004 2,515,374.00 010-7142 General Fund/Other Tuition/Excess Costs to 426,447.00-

H23-01439 356.92 010-4300 General Fund/Materials and Supplies 34.63 

H23-01459 73.58 010-4300 General Fund/Materials and Supplies 7.59 

H23-01501 3,900.00 010-5812 General Fund/Buses 1,950.00 

H23-01554 1,044.12 010-4300 General Fund/Materials and Supplies 171.66 

H23-01604 541.23 010-4300 General Fund/Materials and Supplies 62.93 

Total PO Changes 303,012.08-

Page 10 of 10

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:57PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing 

Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase 

Orders be approved and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items 

ordered.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 02/01/2023 through 02/28/2023

Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Expensed
Amount

Check
Amount

*John Colvin OR California State 

Disbursement

Cancelled02/10/20234002100409 673.00 

Cancelled on 02/15/2023

Haines, Heidi 010-430002/02/20235002054905 66.96 

Durazo, Etelina 010-430002/02/20235002054906 71.45 

Dominguez, Carlos 010-520002/02/20235002054907 315.80 

Guillen, Marisol 010-430002/02/20235002054908 187.99 

Gomez-Perez, Lucila F 010-430002/02/20235002054909 56.26 

Alvarez-Rice, Alma L 010-430002/02/20235002054910 65.44 

Contreras, Mauricia A 010-520002/02/20235002054911 19.91 

Perez, Maria C 010-520002/02/20235002054912 7.00 

Amazon Capital Service 010-420002/02/20235002054913 1,602.77 

010-4300 6,245.33 

Unpaid Tax .19- 7,847.91 

American Express Attn Payment 

Processing

010-430002/02/20235002054914 1,071.53 

010-5200 2,911.56 

010-5220 1,365.47 

010-5800 5,479.56 131.00 

Antonio Jose Rivera 010-430002/02/20235002054915 131.50 

010-5100 4,407.77 

010-5800 4,950.00 410.73 

Art Trek 010-510002/02/20235002054916 40,711.25 

Atkinson, Andelson, Loya  Ruud and 

Romo

010-581502/02/20235002054917 619.50 

Castle Air Inc 130-560002/02/20235002054918 1,811.00 

Crisis Prevention Institute 010-530002/02/20235002054919 200.00 

CSBA c/o West America Bank 010-521602/02/20235002054920 691.17 

Hoffman, Vance & Worthington 010-580002/02/20235002054921 2,500.00 

GoTo Communications, Inc. 010-590302/02/20235002054922 9,528.51 

PeeBee & Jay's 010-430002/02/20235002054923 742.72 

Speech Corner LLC 010-430002/02/20235002054924 110.08 

Unpaid Tax 8.13- 101.95 

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment 

Systems

010-430002/02/20235002054925 4,953.98 

010-5200 1,819.83 

010-5300 310.00 

130-4300 771.25 

130-4711 8,117.41 262.35 

Uline 010-430002/02/20235002054926 4,073.29 

VCOE 010-580002/02/20235002054927 115,380.00 

Ventura County School Boards Shelly 

Griffen , Treasurer

010-521102/02/20235002054928 25.00 

010-5216 25.00 

010-5217 25.00 

010-5218 25.00 

010-5220 125.00 25.00 

Page 1 of 11

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:54PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 02/01/2023 through 02/28/2023

Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Expensed
Amount

Check
Amount

Camlox Industries DBA Western 

Graphix

010-560002/02/20235002054929 210.00 

American Express Attn Payment 

Processing

010-111002/06/20235002054930 113.66 

010-4200 815.73 

010-4300 1,231.44 

010-5200 538.70 

010-5211 2,023.70 

010-5300 102.00 

010-5800 205.90 

010-5900 5,043.47 12.34 

Art Trek 010-580002/06/20235002054931 11,138.75 

Balfour Beatty 216-580002/06/20235002054932 44,160.00 

Channel Isl Beach Community 

Services District

010-550202/06/20235002054933 847.33 

Colbi Technologies 010-580002/06/20235002054934 345.00 

FCG Environmental 216-620002/06/20235002054935 4,435.00 

HopSkipDrive Inc. 010-580002/06/20235002054936 4,223.64 

Kelly Spicers Inc. 010-430002/06/20235002054937 818.17 

Unpaid Tax 3.74- 814.43 

Kelly Spicers Inc. 010-430002/06/20235002054938 31.66 

Unpaid Tax .14- 31.52 

KENCO Construction Services 216-620002/06/20235002054939 31,480.00 

Monet Construction, Inc. 010-620002/06/20235002054940 9,121.31 

216-6200 800,915.91 791,794.60 

Santa Barbara Airbus 010-581202/06/20235002054941 4,470.00 

Scholastic Inc. 010-420002/06/20235002054942 2,154.41 

Shred-It USA 010-580002/06/20235002054943 1,438.59 

Social Spice Media, Inc 010-580002/06/20235002054944 13,227.50 

Teachers Synergy LLC 010-430002/06/20235002054945 7,200.00 

*Aatish Gehani Cancelled02/07/20235002054946 413.30 

Unpaid Tax 7.20- *406.10 

Cancelled on 02/13/2023

Amazon Capital Service 010-420002/07/20235002054947 107.74 

010-4300 5,181.05 

Unpaid Tax .12- 5,288.67 

Aramsco Inc. 010-430002/07/20235002054948 4,920.41 

Art Trek 010-580002/07/20235002054949 1,425.00 

Aswell Trophy 010-430002/07/20235002054950 152.40 

Barco's Outdoor Products 010-430002/07/20235002054951 19,626.32 

010-4400 49,246.57 29,620.25 

BDJtech 010-430002/07/20235002054952 2,153.25 

Center for the Collaborative 

Classroom

010-430002/07/20235002054953 11,545.63 

California Lutheran University 010-520002/07/20235002054954 4,500.00 

Crown Castle Fiber LLC 010-590302/07/20235002054955 1,113.06 

CSM Consulting Inc 010-580002/07/20235002054956 5,000.00 

Page 2 of 11

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:54PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 02/01/2023 through 02/28/2023

Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Expensed
Amount

Check
Amount

Culligan of Ventura County 010-569902/07/20235002054957 46.00 

Elemental Hardware Inc. 010-430002/07/20235002054958 268,025.00 

Flyleaf Publishing, LLC 010-420002/07/20235002054959 5,519.59 

Frontier Communications 010-590302/07/20235002054960 153.44 

Hewlett Packard Corp. 010-560002/07/20235002054961 210.93 

William Venegas DBA Hip Hop 

Mindset

010-510002/07/20235002054962 58,500.00 

Lakeshore Learning Materials 010-430002/07/20235002054963 1,620.38 

Maad Graphics 010-430002/07/20235002054964 316.83 

Mixteco/Indigena Community 

Organizing Project

010-580002/07/20235002054965 160.00 

Swank Motion Pictures Inc 010-580002/07/20235002054966 550.00 

NCS Pearson, INC 010-430002/07/20235002054967 844.99 

NCS Pearson, Inc. 010-430002/07/20235002054968 3,097.07 

ReadyRefresh by Nestle 010-430002/07/20235002054969 419.93 

Securly Inc 010-580002/07/20235002054970 17,750.00 

Sinclair Sanitary Supply Inc 010-430002/07/20235002054971 255.82 

Unpaid Tax 1.67- 254.15 

So Ca Edison Co 010-550602/07/20235002054972 67,617.41 

Staples Technology Solution 010-430002/07/20235002054973 469.02 

010-4400 2,025.48 1,556.46 

Starfall Education 010-530002/07/20235002054974 355.00 

Teachers Synergy LLC 010-430002/07/20235002054975 442.69 

Moises Mendez 010-430002/07/20235002054976 147.49 

Unpaid Tax .68- 146.81 

VCOE 010-580002/07/20235002054977 9,360.00 

Camlox Industries DBA Western 

Graphix

010-430002/07/20235002054978 736.80 

A-Z Bus Sales 010-430002/09/20235002054979 409.36 

Airgas West 010-569902/09/20235002054980 66.85 

All Phase Electric 010-430002/09/20235002054981 217.90 

Alpha Solutions Inc. 010-430002/09/20235002054982 7,646.87 

010-4400 6,081.01 

010-5800 20,207.88 6,480.00 

Wilivaldo Izazaga DBA ALWI Pest 

Control

010-550002/09/20235002054983 1,200.00 

Amazon Capital Service 010-530002/09/20235002054984 847.16 

Aramsco Inc. 010-430002/09/20235002054985 4,181.32 

Aswell Trophy 010-430002/09/20235002054986 26.22 

Barnes Fleet Service Inc. 010-560002/09/20235002054987 240.00 

BDJtech 010-440002/09/20235002054988 3,099.38 

010-5800 3,655.38 556.00 

Carnitas El Brother  Mexican Grill 010-430002/09/20235002054989 250.59 

Chumash Indian Museum 010-580002/09/20235002054990 336.00 

King Consulting 010-580002/09/20235002054991 1,017.50 

Gus Sahagun 010-430002/09/20235002054992 1,774.80 

Unpaid Tax 142.80- 1,632.00 

Page 3 of 11

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:54PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 02/01/2023 through 02/28/2023

Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Expensed
Amount

Check
Amount

Marc Purchin DBA Purchin Consulting 010-580002/09/20235002054993 2,543.75 

MOXI, The Wolf Museum of 

Exploration & Innovation

010-580002/09/20235002054994 202.00 

Salinas and Sons Rooter Servi 010-560002/09/20235002054995 850.00 

School Nutrition Association 130-530002/09/20235002054996 146.00 

Silvas Oil Company Inc 010-430002/09/20235002054997 3,311.58 

130-4300 3,361.05 49.47 

Sinclair Sanitary Supply Inc 010-430002/09/20235002054998 356.92 

Unpaid Tax 1.63- 355.29 

Soliant Health 010-580002/09/20235002054999 8,831.50 

Starfall Education 010-530002/09/20235002055000 178.00 

State Of California (DOJ) Dept of 

Justice Acctg Office

010-580002/09/20235002055001 512.00 

*Padilla, Rossana Cancelled02/13/20235002055002 8,425.88 

Cancelled on 02/21/2023

AG Designs 805 010-430002/13/20235002055003 413.30 

Unpaid Tax 7.20- 406.10 

Amazon Capital Service 010-420002/13/20235002055004 87.30 

010-4300 3,303.30 3,216.00 

Antonio Jose Rivera 010-580002/13/20235002055005 3,600.00 

Aramsco Inc. 010-430002/13/20235002055006 423.54 

Ashworth Leininger Group 010-580002/13/20235002055007 97.50 

Aswell Trophy 010-430002/13/20235002055008 26.22 

Atlantis Utility 010-430002/13/20235002055009 1,694.25 

010-5800 52,589.25 50,895.00 

Castle Air Inc 010-560002/13/20235002055010 34,313.40 

CyberCopy Inc. 216-620002/13/20235002055011 130.00 

Desoto Sales Inc 010-430002/13/20235002055012 50.24 

Diamond A Equipment 010-430002/13/20235002055013 380.65 

Driftwood Dairy Inc. 130-932102/13/20235002055014 42,829.44 

Dugmore & Duncan Of California 010-430002/13/20235002055015 3,406.26 

FG Wilcox Inc 010-430002/13/20235002055016 120.37 

Flinn Scientific Inc 010-430002/13/20235002055017 2,554.21 

Foundation Building Materials 010-430002/13/20235002055018 694.30 

Franklin Truck Parts Inc 010-430002/13/20235002055019 279.97 

GHS Garcia Hernandez Sawhney 010-581502/13/20235002055020 3,977.50 

Global Equipment Company Inc. 010-430002/13/20235002055021 202.07 

Gold Coast Glass Inc 010-430002/13/20235002055022 339.80 

010-5600 596.74 256.94 

Gold Star Foods Inc 130-560002/13/20235002055023 467.40 

130-9321 94,339.79 93,872.39 

Ground Penetrating Radar Syst. 216-620002/13/20235002055024 9,625.00 

Harbor Freight Tools 010-430002/13/20235002055025 17.45 

Integrated Fire & Safety 010-560002/13/20235002055026 1,673.73 

Jordano's 130-932102/13/20235002055027 73,142.19 

Lakeshore Learning Materials 010-430002/13/20235002055028 173.22 

Page 4 of 11

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:54PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 02/01/2023 through 02/28/2023

Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Expensed
Amount

Check
Amount

MOXI, The Wolf Museum of 

Exploration & Innovation

010-580002/13/20235002055029 396.00 

MOXI, The Wolf Museum of 

Exploration & Innovation

010-580002/13/20235002055030 253.00 

P & R Paper Supply Inc. 130-932902/13/20235002055031 25,228.07 

Sunbelt Staffing LLC 010-580002/13/20235002055032 3,948.75 

Super Duper Publications 010-430002/13/20235002055033 535.05 

Therapy Travelers 010-510002/13/20235002055034 17,028.00 

Uline 010-430002/13/20235002055035 614.58 

West Ed Attn: WestEd Operating 

Account

010-580002/13/20235002055036 1,727.20 

Advantage Telecom 010-590302/14/20235002055037 118.58 

Amazon Capital Service 010-420002/14/20235002055038 134.59 

010-4300 850.41 715.82 

American Food Company 010-430002/14/20235002055039 360.00 

AT&T Mobility 010-590902/14/20235002055040 868.81 

BDJtech 010-440002/14/20235002055041 2,470.50 

California Dept of Education 

Accounting Office

010-866002/14/20235002055042 1,735.17 

David Sanchez 010-430002/14/20235002055043 1,210.56 

Dell Marketing LP 010-430002/14/20235002055044 130.01 

010-5800 29,214.66 29,084.65 

E.J.Harrison & Sons Inc. 010-550102/14/20235002055045 502.11 

Employment Development Dept 010-350102/14/20235002055046 474.00 

Federal Express 010-590002/14/20235002055047 46.26 

Frontier Communications 010-590302/14/20235002055048 2,078.13 

Ground Penetrating Radar Syst. 216-620002/14/20235002055049 11,300.00 

Houghton Mifflin Co 010-430002/14/20235002055050 3,565.11 

Hueneme School District 010-920102/14/20235002055051 8,425.88 

Kwang Sung Lee DBA K & S 

Lawnmower

010-430002/14/20235002055052 779.68 

010-5600 977.55 197.87 

Gus Sahagun 010-430002/14/20235002055053 1,774.80 

Unpaid Tax 142.80- 1,632.00 

Mark-It Place 010-430002/14/20235002055054 145.23 

Unpaid Tax 2.66- 142.57 

OverDrive Inc. 010-580002/14/20235002055055 2,745.87 

Polar 3D LLC 010-580002/14/20235002055056 500.00 

Quill Corporation 010-430002/14/20235002055057 293.12 

So Ca Gas Company 010-430002/14/20235002055058 13.00 

State Water Resources Control 010-580002/14/20235002055059 1,738.00 

Two Trees Escape Inc. 010-580002/14/20235002055060 160.00 

Winsor Learning Inc 010-430002/14/20235002055061 18,914.73 

Durazo, Etelina 010-430002/15/20235002055062 55.96 

Reed Sanchez, Anna 010-430002/15/20235002055063 109.01 

Walker, Christine 010-521102/15/20235002055064 482.60 

Seto, Ada 010-430002/15/20235002055065 29.40 

Page 5 of 11

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:54PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 02/01/2023 through 02/28/2023

Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Expensed
Amount

Check
Amount

Seto, Ada 010-520002/15/20235002055065 53.57 24.17 

Balasa, Aaren 010-430002/15/20235002055066 27.11 

Rodriguez, Lizette 010-430002/15/20235002055067 26.78 

Sandoval, Araceli 010-430002/15/20235002055068 356.39 

Cuevas, Giovanna I 010-430002/15/20235002055069 28.54 

Widick, Desiree M 010-430002/15/20235002055070 35.38 

Apple Inc 010-430002/15/20235002055071 1,749.94 

Castle Air Inc 010-560002/15/20235002055072 3,794.59 

Claremont Partners Inc 010-580002/15/20235002055073 7,000.00 

Standard Plumbing Supply Co 010-430002/15/20235002055074 26.35 

Infinity Communications & Con 010-580002/15/20235002055075 3,750.00 

Jordano's 010-640002/15/20235002055076 6,896.59 

130-4300 6,979.67 83.08 

Lito Galang DBA Lito's Auto Repair 010-560002/15/20235002055077 879.15 

McKinley Equipment Corporation 010-560002/15/20235002055078 875.00 

Oxnard Steel Ornamental & Tube  

Supply

010-430002/15/20235002055079 54.63 

Pete's Road Service , Inc. 010-560002/15/20235002055080 1,150.06 

Platinum Tow and Transport 010-580002/15/20235002055081 525.00 

Santa Barbara Zoo 010-580002/15/20235002055082 198.00 

Santa Barbara Zoo 010-580002/15/20235002055083 355.00 

Saviers Smog 010-560002/15/20235002055084 49.75 

Silvas Oil Company Inc 010-430002/15/20235002055085 5,474.99 

130-4300 5,533.46 58.47 

Superior Sanitary Supplies 010-430002/15/20235002055086 124.43 

Turf Star Inc 010-430002/15/20235002055087 2,071.19 

Underwood Farm Market LLC 010-580002/15/20235002055088 352.00 

Ventura County Auto Suppy 010-430002/15/20235002055089 547.74 

Ventura Steel Inc. 010-430002/15/20235002055090 1,567.10 

Airgas West 010-430002/21/20235002055091 192.16 

010-5699 259.01 66.85 

All City Mgmt Services, Inc. 010-580002/21/20235002055092 2,304.00 

Amazon Capital Service 010-420002/21/20235002055093 1,568.02 

010-4300 7,758.15 6,190.13 

Aramsco Inc. 010-430002/21/20235002055094 3,102.92 

Arts Attack 010-530002/21/20235002055095 716.00 

BDJtech 010-430002/21/20235002055096 1,532.32 

Brookes Publishing Co. 010-430002/21/20235002055097 632.57 

C & S RV 010-430002/21/20235002055098 98.60 

UBGC of SB 010-580002/21/20235002055099 24,200.00 

Capco Analytical Services, Inc . 010-580002/21/20235002055100 124.00 

Castle Air Inc 010-560002/21/20235002055101 7,425.30 

City Of Pt Hueneme Attn Finance 

Dept.

010-580002/21/20235002055102 2,454.00 

City Of Pt Hueneme 010-550202/21/20235002055103 4,469.78 

California Lutheran University 010-520002/21/20235002055104 2,250.00 

CMH Centers for Family Health 010-580002/21/20235002055105 660.00 

Page 6 of 11

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:54PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 02/01/2023 through 02/28/2023

Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Expensed
Amount

Check
Amount

Crisis Prevention Institute 010-430002/21/20235002055106 3,336.75 

*DocuProducts Cancelled02/21/20235002055107 124.87 

Cancelled on 03/06/2023

Dual Language Education New 

Mexico

010-430002/21/20235002055108 583.12 

Unpaid Tax 45.87- 537.25 

Foundation Building Materials 010-430002/21/20235002055109 469.74 

Newsem AG, Inc. DBA Greene Tree 

Care

010-560002/21/20235002055110 2,550.00 

010-5800 5,550.00 3,000.00 

Hensons Music Store 010-430002/21/20235002055111 955.50 

Intermountain Lock & Security 010-430002/21/20235002055112 104.26 

010-6400 2,877.53 2,773.27 

Kelly Spicers Inc. 010-430002/21/20235002055113 454.24 

010-9320 5,932.52 5,478.28 

Lakeshore Learning Materials 010-430002/21/20235002055114 648.06 

Laminator.com 010-430002/21/20235002055115 257.15 

Leonis Adobe Museum 010-580002/21/20235002055116 1,040.00 

Live Scan Ventura 010-580002/21/20235002055117 340.00 

O'Reilly Automotive Stores 010-430002/21/20235002055118 580.86 

Patriot Environmental Service 010-580002/21/20235002055119 493.92 

Barbara Michele Steinberg 010-430002/21/20235002055120 48.23 

Unpaid Tax 3.41- 44.82 

PeeBee & Jay's 010-430002/21/20235002055121 345.60 

Unpaid Tax 12.06- 333.54 

NCS Pearson, Inc. 010-430002/21/20235002055122 1,283.51 

Quinn Company 010-580002/21/20235002055123 283.64 

ReadyRefresh by Nestle 010-430002/21/20235002055124 178.59 

130-4300 214.08 35.49 

Sams Club Synchrony Bank 010-530002/21/20235002055125 120.18 

Scholastic (book Club) 010-430002/21/20235002055126 5,214.07 

Scholastic 010-420002/21/20235002055127 234.69 

School Specialty, LLC 010-430002/21/20235002055128 2,735.63 

Sinclair Sanitary Supply Inc 010-430002/21/20235002055129 593.39 

So Ca Edison Co 010-550602/21/20235002055130 205.21 

Staples Advantage 130-430002/21/20235002055131 434.77 

California Reading & Lit. Proj 

University of CA Berkleley

010-580002/21/20235002055132 4,200.00 

VCOE 010-580002/21/20235002055133 77,750.00 

Ventura County Star 010-580002/21/20235002055134 2,089.68 

Western Exterminator 010-550002/21/20235002055135 243.50 

Valdez, Jose 010-430002/23/20235002055136 52.96 

Guillen, Marisol 010-430002/23/20235002055137 45.40 

Bruno, Darlene 010-521802/23/20235002055138 62.88 

Hunter, Stacy M 010-430002/23/20235002055139 94.85 

Seto, Ada 010-430002/23/20235002055140 38.00 

Beneke, Thomas 010-430002/23/20235002055141 216.11 

Page 7 of 11

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:54PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 02/01/2023 through 02/28/2023

Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Expensed
Amount

Check
Amount

Ortega, Jose 010-520002/23/20235002055142 105.00 

Bernardo, Rolando 010-430002/23/20235002055143 134.65 

Perez, Felicitas 010-430002/23/20235002055144 586.53 

Orozco-Hernandez, Esther 010-430002/23/20235002055145 197.84 

Benitez, Atenea 010-580002/23/20235002055146 59.88 

Trout, Robert A 010-430002/23/20235002055147 172.39 

*AG Designs 805 Cancelled02/23/20235002055148 1,332.85 

Cancelled on 03/01/2023

America's Battle of the Book 010-420002/23/20235002055149 50.00 

Accurate Communication Inc 010-580002/23/20235002055150 208.13 

All Phase Electric 010-430002/23/20235002055151 177.67 

Alpha Solutions Inc. 010-640002/23/20235002055152 5,629.50 

Wilivaldo Izazaga DBA ALWI Pest 

Control

010-550002/23/20235002055153 1,200.00 

Amazon Capital Service 010-430002/23/20235002055154 73.58 

010-4400 984.91 911.33 

Amplified IT, LLC 010-520002/23/20235002055155 350.00 

Aramsco Inc. 010-430002/23/20235002055156 610.57 

939 S. Serrano Ave LLC/DBA Bea 

chport Center

010-569902/23/20235002055157 2,934.00 

Brookes Publishing Co. 010-430002/23/20235002055158 2,170.05 

Charter Communications 010-590302/23/20235002055159 119.98 

City Of Oxnard 010-550202/23/20235002055160 4,784.49 

CSEA Attn: Member Benefits 010-520002/23/20235002055161 149.00 

Dempsey Road Mutual Water Co 010-550202/23/20235002055162 2,320.00 

Double Tree by Hilton 010-520002/23/20235002055163 408.13 

E.J.Harrison & Sons Inc. 010-550102/23/20235002055164 10,043.56 

Frontier Communications 010-590302/23/20235002055165 316.97 

Gold Coast CUE 010-520002/23/20235002055166 75.00 

Home Depot 010-430002/23/20235002055167 19,306.15 

L & L Roofing 010-560002/23/20235002055168 2,598.00 

Leonis Adobe Museum 010-580002/23/20235002055169 117.00 

Mark Griffiths 010-580002/23/20235002055170 950.00 

Mia Clark 010-580002/23/20235002055171 880.00 

Nigro & Nigro 010-951002/23/20235002055172 4,000.00 

NV5 216-620002/23/20235002055173 387.00 

Office Depot 010-430002/23/20235002055174 64.54 

ReadyRefresh by Nestle 010-430002/23/20235002055175 42.63 

School Specialty, LLC 010-430002/23/20235002055176 62.73 

Shaw HR Consulting 010-580002/23/20235002055177 30.00 

Shred-It USA 010-580002/23/20235002055178 78.34 

Sinclair Sanitary Supply Inc 010-430002/23/20235002055179 1,237.65 

So Ca Gas Company 010-550702/23/20235002055180 17,960.93 

UltimateSLP.com 010-580002/23/20235002055181 139.92 

Urbane Cafe 010-430002/23/20235002055182 541.23 

VenTERRA Environment, Inc. 010-580002/23/20235002055183 4,895.00 

Burke, Maria 010-430002/27/20235002055184 94.03 

Page 8 of 11

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:54PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 02/01/2023 through 02/28/2023

Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Expensed
Amount

Check
Amount

Burke, Maria 010-590002/27/20235002055184 162.16 68.13 

Valdez, Jose 010-430002/27/20235002055185 113.62 

Ontiveros, Audrey 010-430002/27/20235002055186 287.55 

Hunter, Stacy M 010-430002/27/20235002055187 15.84 

Beneke, Thomas 010-430002/27/20235002055188 127.62 

McGrath, Erin N 010-430002/27/20235002055189 51.17 

All Phase Electric 010-430002/27/20235002055190 134.30 

Alpha Petroleum Transport, Inc . 010-580002/27/20235002055191 2,989.00 

Amazon Capital Service 010-420002/27/20235002055192 945.77 

010-4300 5,080.44 4,134.67 

Aramsco Inc. 010-430002/27/20235002055193 1,318.15 

Art Trek 010-510002/27/20235002055194 41,043.75 

Barnes Charter 010-581202/27/20235002055195 3,271.14 

BDJtech 010-440002/27/20235002055196 2,653.50 

California Hose, Inc 010-430002/27/20235002055197 177.08 

Carnitas El Brother  Mexican Grill 010-430002/27/20235002055198 240.34 

Catalyst Family Inc. 010-510002/27/20235002055199 25,220.72 

City of Oxnard ATTN City Corps 010-510002/27/20235002055200 132,188.68 

Coastal Pipco 010-430002/27/20235002055201 1,579.65 

Daniels Tire Service 010-560002/27/20235002055202 329.04 

City Of Oxnard/Treasurer Del Norte 

Regional Recycling

010-550102/27/20235002055203 30.57 

Dell Marketing LP 010-430002/27/20235002055204 601.57 

Desoto Sales Inc 010-430002/27/20235002055205 42.65 

Don & Tom's Front End & Brake 010-560002/27/20235002055206 306.50 

FCG Environmental 010-560002/27/20235002055207 640.00 

Gimkit, Inc. 010-580002/27/20235002055208 650.00 

Grainger 010-430002/27/20235002055209 471.66 

Standard Plumbing Supply Co 010-430002/27/20235002055210 32.41 

Jeremy Resnick 010-580002/27/20235002055211 1,350.00 

Kwang Sung Lee DBA K & S 

Lawnmower

010-430002/27/20235002055212 148.36 

Mindful Strategies, Inc. 010-580002/27/20235002055213 5,000.00 

Oxnard Pipe & Supply 010-430002/27/20235002055214 15,267.05 

Paradise Chevrolet 010-430002/27/20235002055215 884.18 

Port Hueneme Marine Supply Co 010-430002/27/20235002055216 3,471.27 

Anthony W. Russo 010-420002/27/20235002055217 317.90 

Saviers Smog 010-560002/27/20235002055218 119.50 

Signarama Ventura 010-430002/27/20235002055219 316.61 

010-5800 1,210.87 894.26 

Silvas Oil Company Inc 010-430002/27/20235002055220 5,191.67 

Xpressmyself.com LLC 010-430002/27/20235002055221 332.45 

Softchoice Corporation 010-580002/27/20235002055222 23,838.96 

Superior Sanitary Supplies 010-430002/27/20235002055223 202.01 

Tax Deferred Solutions 010-953302/27/20235002055224 196,477.76 

010-9539 197,927.76 1,450.00 

Teacher Created Materials, Inc . 010-430002/27/20235002055225 78.28 

Page 9 of 11

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:54PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 02/01/2023 through 02/28/2023

Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Expensed
Amount

Check
Amount

Turf Star Inc 010-430002/27/20235002055226 406.27 

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment 

Systems

010-420002/27/20235002055227 94.32 

010-4300 2,664.71 

010-5200 4,040.53 1,281.50 

Uline 010-430002/27/20235002055228 1,398.53 

010-4400 2,986.52 1,587.99 

US Air Conditioning 010-430002/27/20235002055229 90.20 

Venco Electric Inc 010-560002/27/20235002055230 705.00 

Ventura County Auto Suppy 010-430002/27/20235002055231 360.43 

Ventura Steel Inc. 010-430002/27/20235002055232 1,033.13 

Western Exterminator 010-550002/27/20235002055233 262.35 

Williams Scotsman, Inc. Mobile Mini 010-569902/27/20235002055234 669.61 

Adams Silva & Mcnally LLP 010-581502/28/20235002055235 338.00 

Amazon Capital Service 010-420002/28/20235002055236 80.66 

010-4300 1,216.71 1,136.05 

American Express Attn Payment 

Processing

010-420002/28/20235002055237 1,150.48 

010-4300 2,972.11 

010-5211 1,106.64 

010-5800 5,514.71 285.48 

Aramsco Inc. 010-430002/28/20235002055238 1,206.71 

Barnes & Noble Inc 010-420002/28/20235002055239 473.87 

Cafe Amri 010-430002/28/20235002055240 314.84 

Catalyst Family Inc. 010-510002/28/20235002055241 19,908.56 

Charter Communications 010-590302/28/20235002055242 1,249.80 

CSF/CJSF 010-530002/28/20235002055243 75.00 

Dance 4 Wellness 010-510002/28/20235002055244 391,772.00 

MCI Comm Service 010-590302/28/20235002055245 36.93 

School Services of California 010-520002/28/20235002055246 1,770.00 

School Specialty, LLC 010-430002/28/20235002055247 588.74 

So Ca Edison Co 010-550602/28/20235002055248 206.26 

Staples Advantage 010-430002/28/20235002055249 124.03 

Uline 010-430002/28/20235002055250 930.62 

Williams Scotsman, Inc. Mobile Mini 216-620002/28/20235002055251 1,293.20 

3,406,561.68 Total Number of Checks 348 

Cancel  5 10,962.70 
AmountCount

Net Issue 3,395,598.98 

Fund Recap

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

General Fund 328 2,262,175.91 010

Cafeteria Fund 12 239,191.37 130

Measure B Building Fund 9 894,604.80 216

Page 10 of 11

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:54PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 02/01/2023 through 02/28/2023

Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Expensed
Amount

Check
Amount

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 3,395,972.08 

373.10-

3,395,598.98 

343 

Page 11 of 11

Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:54PM

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Item 7.2 (3) 

  HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  REPORT OF MISCELLANEOUS INCOME FOR  

FEBRUARY 2023 

 

BOARD MEETING DATE:  March 27, 2023 

 

FROM:    Patricia Marshall, Chief Business Official 

     Dr. Christine Walker, Superintendent 

 

STAFF COMMENT  
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

For information only 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The monthly miscellaneous income report is a summary of funds received in the district 

office and transmitted to the Ventura County Office of Education for deposit into the 

various funds of the district at the County Treasury. 

 

The February report reflects the receipt of $579,641.15 as follows: 

 

Fund Description Amount 

010 General Fund $352,894.32 

130 Cafeteria Fund $224,163.83 

215 Measure T Bldg. Fund $0 

250 Developer Fee Fund $2,583.00 

95X Student Funds  $0 

 Totals $579,641.15 

 

 
 

 

 



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

02/01/23 STICKER VENDINGDP23-0000914 CR195566(711339) Sunkist Elementary School Cash 01/25/231525Posted 271.00 

( 011151)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 280- 000- D000- 0 271.00 

02/01/23 JAN - MAR 2023 MATT MARTINEAUDP23-0000915 CR195566(000208) Matt Martineau Check 3389 AR23-005151527Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/01/23 JAN- MAR 2023 MARY PORTERDP23-0000916 CR195566(000211) Mary Porter Check 3327 AR23-005191527Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

02/01/23 JAN - MAR 2023 DONNA DOWNEY-DAILYDP23-0000917 CR195566(000271) Donna Downey-Daily Check 3578 AR23-005081527Posted 27.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 27.00 

02/01/23 JAN - MAR 2023 DONALD BAUGHNDP23-0000918 CR195566(000200) Donald Baughn Check 476 AR23-005031527Posted 561.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 561.00 

02/01/23 JAN - MAR 2023 CARRIE BURTONDP23-0000919 CR195566(000235) Carrie Burton Check 2269 AR23-005491527Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/01/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 PATRICIA CHAPARRODP23-0000920 CR195566(000198) Patricia Chaparro Check 14025 AR23-005531527Posted 240.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 240.00 

02/01/23 JAN  - MAR 2023  LINDA CODYDP23-0000921 CR195566(703357) Linda Cody Check 14230 AR23-005551527Posted 5,418.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 5,418.00 

02/01/23 JAN - MAR 2023 RENEE CALLAHANDP23-0000922 CR195566(710574) Renee Callahan Check 13239 AR23-005501527Posted 180.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 180.00 

02/01/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 MARLENE BLANCHARDDP23-0000923 CR195566(711577) Marlene Blanchard Check 295 AR23-005451527Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/01/23 JAN - MAR 2023 ANNA HERNANDEZDP23-0000924 CR195566(000217) Anna Hernandez Check 4251 AR23-005141527Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/01/23 JAN - MAR 2023 NANCY NISHIMORIDP23-0000925 CR195566(000210) Nancy Nishimori Check 6839 AR23-005181527Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/01/23 FEB 23 CLASSROOM LEASE - HATHAWAYDP23-0000926 CR195566(711709) First Five Ventura County     Children & Families FirstCheck 013601 AR23-000101527Posted 500.00 

( 011131)  010- 8650- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 500.00 

02/01/23 USPS REFUND 108401307 01/12/23DP23-0000927 CR195566(711338) Parkview Elementary School Check 2809530521527Posted 43.13 

( 011150)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 260- 000- D000- 0 43.13 

02/01/23 SPIRITWEARDP23-0000928 CR195566(711331) Beach Elementary School Cash 01/17/231527Posted 71.83 

( 011142)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 120- 000- D000- 0 71.83 

02/01/23 PALI CAMP ODSDP23-0000929 CR195566(711331) Beach Elementary School Cash 01/23/231527Posted 200.00 

( 036296)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 120- 000- 9970- 0 200.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 2/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 2/28/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:52PM

Page 1 of 16



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

02/01/23 W/C - ARREDONDO, M. 01/10/23-01/23/23DP23-0000930 CR195566(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 640821527Posted 971.94 

( 041795)  130- 2200- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 180- 560- 0000- 6 971.94 

02/01/23 JAN - MAR 2023 PAMELA ROSSDP23-0000931 CR195566(000099) Pamela Ross Check 3151 AR23-005221527Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/01/23 JAN - MAR 2023 DIANE FRANZDP23-0000932 CR195566(701541) Diane Franz Check 211 AR23-005101527Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/01/23 JAN-MAR 2023 LORI ANAYADP23-0000933 CR195566(000146) Lori Anaya Check 0038074727 AR23-004391527Posted 195.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 195.00 

02/01/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 SHIRLEY ANDERSONDP23-0000934 CR195566(005383) Shirley Anderson Check 2395 AR23-005421527Posted 180.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 180.00 

02/01/23 PREM REFUND P0K1J3L6DP23-0000935 CR195566AFLAC Check R0114864731527Posted 6.06 

( 022206)  010- 9539-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 6.06 

02/01/23 FAC USE APP - BSTK 03/09/23 & 05/11/23DP23-0000936 CR195566(711689) Neighborhood Council Services - City of OxnardCash RCPT 0078521527Posted 20.00 

( 011131)  010- 8650- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 20.00 

02/01/23 JAN-MAR 2023 DEBORAH LOFTONDP23-0000937 (701735) Deborah Lofton Check 2584 AR23-000561528Cancelled .00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - .00 

02/01/23 JAN - MAR 2023 SOPHIA CORMACKDP23-0000938 CR195566(000171) Sophia Cormack Check 8082 AR23-005571527Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/01/23 01/26/23DP23-0000939 CR195566(711333) E.O. Green Jr High School Cash 01/26/231527Posted 360.00 

( 011144)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 160- 000- D000- 0 360.00 

02/01/23 01/26/23DP23-0000940 CR195566(711333) E.O. Green Jr High School Cash 01/26/231527Posted 405.00 

( 011144)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 160- 000- D000- 0 405.00 

02/01/23 OCT - DEC 2022 MARGARET SOFERDP23-0000941 CR195566(000269) Margaret Sofer Check 885 AR23-003161527Posted 561.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 561.00 

02/01/23 JAN - MAR 2023 MARGARET SOFERDP23-0000942 CR195566(000269) Margaret Sofer Check 885 AR23-005241527Posted 561.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 561.00 

02/01/23 JAN - MAR 2023 MARSHA BRUMANADP23-0000943 CR195566(713338) Marsha Brumana Check 2334 AR23-005481527Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/01/23 JAN - MAR 2023 NANCY NGUYENDP23-0000944 CR195566(000192) Nancy Nguyen Check 6131 AR23-005171527Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/01/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 CAROL BOERRIGTERDP23-0000945 CR195566(000201) Carol Boerrigter Check 2139 AR23-005041527Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 2/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 2/28/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:52PM

Page 2 of 16



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

02/01/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 MARIA CISNEROSDP23-0000946 CR195566(000223) Maria Cisneros Check 1866 AR23-005061527Posted 27.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 27.00 

02/01/23 APR-JUN 2023 DONNA MONTGOMERYDP23-0000947 CR195566(703358) Donna Montgomery Check 2521 AR23-006631527Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/01/23 JAN - MAR 2023 CYNTHIA SANCHEZDP23-0000948 CR195566(000214) Cynthia Sanchez Check 0102 AR23-005231527Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/01/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 BRUCE FRASERDP23-0000949 CR195566(701841) Bruce Fraser Check 17744 AR23-005751527Posted 27.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 27.00 

02/01/23 01 APR - JUN 2023 BRUCE FRASERDP23-0000950 CR195566(701841) Bruce Fraser Check 17744 AR23-006641527Posted 27.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 27.00 

02/01/23 **JUL-SEP 2023 BRUCE FRASERDP23-0000951 CR195566(701841) Bruce Fraser Check 177441527Posted 27.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 27.00 

02/01/23 **OCT-DEC 2023 BRUCE FRASERDP23-0000952 CR195566(701841) Bruce Fraser Check 1774441527Posted 27.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 27.00 

02/01/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 SHARON FRASERDP23-0000953 CR195566(702336) Sharon Fraser Check 17743 AR23-005761527Posted 27.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 27.00 

02/01/23 01 APR - JUN 2023 SHARON FRASERDP23-0000954 CR195566(702336) Sharon Fraser Check 17743 AR23-006651527Posted 27.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 27.00 

02/01/23 **JUL-SEP 2023 SHARON FRASERDP23-0000955 CR195566(702336) Sharon Fraser Check 177431527Posted 27.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 27.00 

02/01/23 **OCT-DEC 2023 SHARON FRASERDP23-0000956 CR195566(702336) Sharon Fraser Check 177431527Posted 27.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 27.00 

02/01/23 JAN - MAR 2023 BARBARA CAMACHODP23-0000957 CR195566(000227) Barbara Camacho Check 0154 AR23-005051527Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/01/23 Release time - Ortiz; November 18, 2022DP23-0000958 CR195566(710114) California Teachers Assoc Check 110989 AR23-004531527Posted 232.35 

( 032460)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- HEA0- 0 232.35 

02/01/23 FY22-23 Q1 FACILITY USE (JULY - SEPT 2022)DP23-0000959 CR195566(711111) Child Development Resources ofVentura County IncCheck 694637 AR23-000321527Posted 2,340.00 

( 011131)  010- 8650- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 2,340.00 

02/01/23 FY22-23 Q2 FACILITY USE (OCT - DEC 2022)DP23-0000960 CR195566(711111) Child Development Resources ofVentura County IncCheck 694637 AR23-000331527Posted 4,260.00 

( 011131)  010- 8650- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 4,260.00 

02/01/23 01 UTILITIES FOR FY23 Q1 (JUL-SEP 2022) HYCXDP23-0000961 CR195566(711111) Child Development Resources ofVentura County IncCheck 694637 AR23-005671527Posted 1,016.09 

( 011136)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 1,016.09 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 2/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 2/28/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:52PM

Page 3 of 16



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

02/01/23 FINGERPRINT & BACKGROUND CHECK FEESDP23-0000962 CR195566(711709) First Five Ventura County     Children & Families FirstCheck 013618 AR23-004431527Posted 104.00 

( 011136)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 104.00 

02/01/23 FINGERPRINT & BACKGROUND CHECK FEESDP23-0000963 CR195566(711709) First Five Ventura County     Children & Families FirstCheck 013618 AR23-005611527Posted 52.00 

( 011136)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 52.00 

02/01/23 W/C - ORTIZ, L. 01/11/23-01/24/23DP23-0000964 CR195566(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 641321527Posted 2,712.62 

( 027018)  010- 1100- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 180- 100- 0000- 1 2,712.62 

02/01/23 W/C - FABER, L. 01/16/23-01/23/23DP23-0000965 CR195566(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 641351527Posted 1,850.46 

( 027018)  010- 1100- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 180- 100- 0000- 1 1,850.46 

02/01/23 PALI CAMP ODSDP23-0000966 CR195566(711331) Beach Elementary School Cash 01/30/231527Posted 400.00 

( 036296)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 120- 000- 9970- 0 400.00 

02/01/23 W/C - CEJA, M. 01/12/23-01/25/23DP23-0000967 CR195566(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 641421527Posted 499.68 

( 041855)  130- 2200- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 300- 560- 0000- 6 499.68 

02/01/23 W/C - HENSLEY, D. 01/13/23-01/26/23DP23-0000968 CR195566(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 643451527Posted 3,079.42 

( 045727)  010- 1100- 0709- 0- 1110- 1000- 280- 400- GSA0- 1 3,079.42 

02/01/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 ELNA RANSONDP23-0000969 CR195566(711594) Elna Ranson Check 5532 AR23-006411527Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/01/23 Bus Grant - Parkview ElemDP23-0000970 CR195566(000276) CUE COMPUTER USING EDUCATORSCheck 2717 AR23-004771527Posted 575.00 

( 011150)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 260- 000- D000- 0 575.00 

02/01/23 BEANIE SALES 01/31/23DP23-0000971 CR195566(711331) Beach Elementary School Cash 01/31/231527Posted 55.00 

( 011142)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 120- 000- D000- 0 55.00 

02/01/23 PALI CAMP ODSDP23-0000972 CR195566(711331) Beach Elementary School Cash 01/30/231527Posted 400.00 

( 036296)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 120- 000- 9970- 0 400.00 

02/01/23 USB - DEC 2022DP23-0000973 CR195566(711764) Hueneme School District USB Electronic Funds Xfer 01/30/231527Posted 18,624.32 

( 059559)  010- 8639- 8210- 0- 0000- 0000- 100- 000- 0000- 0 113.29 

( 059561)  010- 8639- 8210- 0- 0000- 0000- 120- 000- 0000- 0 268.35 

( 059571)  010- 8639- 8210- 0- 0000- 0000- 220- 000- 0000- 0 777.00 

( 059577)  010- 8639- 8210- 0- 0000- 0000- 280- 000- 0000- 0 17,465.68 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 MARCIA SAKLADDP23-0000974 CR196065(000156) Marcia Saklad Check 2019 AR23-006071529Posted 561.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 561.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 ARLENE MODELLDP23-0000975 CR196065(000153) Arlene Modell Check 2446 AR23-005991529Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 CAROL SHORTDP23-0000976 CR196065(000182) Carol Short Check 2460 AR23-006101529Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 2/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 2/28/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:52PM

Page 4 of 16



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 MARIAN MEIERDP23-0000977 CR196065(000129) Marian Meier Check 2471 AR23-005971529Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 MARY ALICE WALDODP23-0000978 CR196065(003951) Mary Alice Waldo Check 8152 AR23-006201529Posted 1,368.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 1,368.00 

02/08/23 OCT-DEC 2022 LORENZO RAMIREZDP23-0000979 CR196065(712929) Lorenzo Ramirez Check 5127 AR23-002811529Posted 225.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 225.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 LORENZO RAMIREZDP23-0000980 CR196065(712929) Lorenzo Ramirez Check 5127 AR23-006401529Posted 240.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 240.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 DONALD PINEDODP23-0000981 CR196065(000144) Donald Pinedo Check 1131 AR23-005401529Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN  - MAR 2023 LINDA LOWEDP23-0000982 CR196065(703144) Linda Lowe Check 6264 AR23-005941529Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 JULIA GARVEYDP23-0000983 CR196065(702193) Julia Garvey Check 157 AR23-005781529Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 CORINE OTERO REEBERDP23-0000984 CR196065(004264) Corine Otero Reeber Check 1785 AR23-006061529Posted 2,856.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 2,856.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 LAUREN GONZALEZDP23-0000985 CR196065(000096) Lauren Gonzalez Check 6854 AR23-005791529Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 DONNA BRANSTROMDP23-0000986 CR196065(701204) Donna Branstrom Check 3425 AR23-005471529Posted 54.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 54.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 SYLVIA GONZALEZ-JUAREZDP23-0000987 CR196065(000095) Sylvia Gonzalez-Juarez Check 5252 AR23-005801529Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 BARBARA PONTINENDP23-0000988 CR196065(700632) Barbara Pontinen Check 5196 AR23-006031529Posted 180.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 180.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 FRANZISKA JEFFREYSDP23-0000989 CR196065(711609) Franziska Jeffreys Check 1986 AR23-005871529Posted 357.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 357.00 

02/08/23 01 REIMBURSE 2022 DELEGATE ASSEMBLY - BRUNODP23-0000990 CR196065(005530) Ventura County School Boards  AssociationCheck 1146 AR23-006661529Posted 405.65 

( 010190)  010- 5218- 0000- 0- 0000- 7110- 000- 710- 9000- 0 405.65 

02/08/23 JAN-MAR 2023 CHRISTINA MOTTARDP23-0000991 CR196065(000181) Christina Mottar Check 0000997272 AR23-002321529Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

02/08/23 01 OCT - DEC 2022 DEMERIA WALTZDP23-0000992 CR196065(000197) Demeria Waltz Check 0049131127 AR23-003181529Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 2/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 2/28/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:52PM

Page 5 of 16



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 DEMERIA WALTZDP23-0000993 CR196065(000197) Demeria Waltz Check 0049131127 AR23-005251529Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 JO ANN BORCHARDDP23-0000994 CR196065(700101) Jo Ann Borchard Check 5234 AR23-005461529Posted 567.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 567.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 JEAN MCDERMONTTDP23-0000995 CR196065(701556) Jean McDermott Check 6453 AR23-005961529Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 ANNALYN PARVINDP23-0000996 CR196065(000120) Annalyn Parvin Check 11379 AR23-006521529Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 EVANGELINE URIASDP23-0000997 CR196065(700877) Evangeline Urias Check 419 AR23-006441529Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 VICTORIA MARTINEZDP23-0000998 CR196065(713059) Victoria Martinez Check 2125 AR23-004721529Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 DONNA JIMENEZDP23-0000999 CR196065(710414) Donna Jimenez Check 17674 AR23-006311529Posted 561.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 561.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 PAULA HACKNEY-SMITHDP23-0001000 CR196065(702191) Paula Hackney-Smith Check 7313 AR23-005831529Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 LINDA RAMIREZDP23-0001001 CR196065(000213) Linda Ramirez Check 6126 AR23-005211529Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 BARBARA KENDALL-WOODDP23-0001002 CR196065(004727) Barbara Kendall-Wood Check 3600 AR23-005891529Posted 1,368.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 1,368.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 RICK UELMENDP23-0001003 CR196065(712183) Rick Uelmen Check 6379 AR23-006161529Posted 2,856.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 2,856.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 IMELDA MARESDP23-0001004 CR196065(000231) Imelda Mares Check 2641 AR23-005321529Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/08/23 JAN-MAR 2023 LINDA GONZALESDP23-0001005 CR196065(710412) Linda Gonzales Check 2817 AR23-004651529Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

02/08/23 01 FACILITY USE - EO GREEN CAFEDP23-0001006 CR196065(711904) Mermaid Girls Softball League Check 2406 AR23-006621529Posted 104.00 

( 011131)  010- 8650- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 104.00 

02/08/23 DONATION - GF 01/31/23DP23-0001007 CR196065(711333) E.O. Green Jr High School Cash 01/31/231529Posted 15.00 

( 011144)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 160- 000- D000- 0 15.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 DARLYNE SCHOTTDP23-0001008 CR196065(711611) Darlyne Schott Check 2649 AR23-006081529Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 2/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 2/28/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:52PM

Page 6 of 16



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 CARLO LOGANDP23-0001009 CR196065(005463) Carlo Logan Check 8293 AR23-005931529Posted 69.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 69.00 

02/08/23 JAN- MAR 2023 MARY PORTERDP23-0001010 CR196065(000211) Mary Porter Check 3481 AR23-005191529Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 LINDA NAHRSTEDTDP23-0001011 CR196065(700323) Linda Nahrstedt Check 1356 AR23-006001529Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 ALLEN KRAHENBUHLDP23-0001012 CR196065(711733) Allen Krahenbuhl Check 3984 AR23-006331529Posted 2,649.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 2,649.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 LINDA KRAHENBULDP23-0001013 CR196065(003901) Linda Krahenbuhl Check 938 AR23-005911529Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 LAURA WOLFF-RINGDP23-0001014 CR196065(000267) Laura Wolff-Ring Check 1524 AR23-005261529Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 CHERYL ENGELDP23-0001015 CR196065(004839) Cheryl Engel Check 9822 AR23-005711529Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 PATRICIA CHAPARRODP23-0001016 CR196065(000198) Patricia Chaparro Check 14035 AR23-005531529Posted 240.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 240.00 

02/08/23 OCT - DEC 2022 JENNIFER CARRDP23-0001017 CR196065(000221) Jennifer Carr Check 3075 AR23-002541529Posted 139.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 139.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 JENNIFER CARRDP23-0001018 CR196065(000221) Jennifer Carr Check 3075 AR23-005381529Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 ROSIE GARCIADP23-0001019 CR196065(711605) Rosie Garcia Check 10053 AR23-004971529Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 LEANN WRENDP23-0001020 CR196065(700099) Leann Wren Check 9625 AR23-006211529Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 CLAUDINE MEDINADP23-0001021 CR196065(711130) Claudine Medina Check 4260 AR23-004941529Posted 240.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 240.00 

02/08/23 JAN-MAR 2023 REGINO MEDINADP23-0001022 CR196065(712136) Regino Medina Check 4259 AR23-004931529Posted 240.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 240.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 JANE MESROBIANDP23-0001023 CR196065(000199) Jane Mesrobian Check 7865 AR23-005981529Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/08/23 Field Trip Buses - PARKVIEW 01/17/23DP23-0001024 CR196065(000087) SEEAG.ORG Check 30030 AR23-006461529Posted 250.00 

( 011150)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 260- 000- D000- 0 250.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 2/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 2/28/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:52PM

Page 7 of 16



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

02/08/23 Field Trip Buses - PARKVIEW 01/12/23DP23-0001025 CR196065(000087) SEEAG.ORG Check 30030 AR23-006581529Posted 250.00 

( 011150)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 260- 000- D000- 0 250.00 

02/08/23 01 Pre-School Classroom Leases FEB 23DP23-0001026 CR196065(712362) Catalyst Family Inc. Check 1140472 AR23-000121529Posted 300.00 

( 011131)  010- 8650- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 300.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 SHARON MEYERDP23-0001027 CR196065(711613) Sharon Meyer Check 1393 AR23-005011529Posted 69.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 69.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 BERNABE SIMONDP23-0001028 CR196065(710606) Bernabe Simon Check 7424305129 AR23-004661529Posted 187.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 187.00 

02/08/23 00 JAN - MAR 2023 DENNIS HELDDP23-0001029 CR196065(713339) Dennis Held Check 5171 AR23-004641529Posted 456.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 456.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 VIOLET ESCOBEDODP23-0001030 CR196065(711597) Vi Escobedo Check 0050497690 AR23-004501529Posted 869.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 869.00 

02/08/23 01 APR-JUN 2023 VIOLET ESCOBEDODP23-0001031 CR196065(711597) Vi Escobedo Check 0050497690 AR23-006671529Posted 14.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 14.00 

02/08/23 JAN-MAR 2023 PATRICK NEWTONDP23-0001032 CR196065(004899) Patrick Newton Check 0049945002 AR23-004861529Posted 1,026.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 1,026.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 RICHARD FROYENDP23-0001033 CR196065(711604) Richard Froyen Check 0049534397 AR23-006501529Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 GLORIA FROYENDP23-0001034 CR196065(004488) Gloria Froyen Check 0049534396 AR23-005771529Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 GERALDINE TROUTMANDP23-0001035 CR196065(003845) Geraldine Troutman Check 9481 AR23-006151529Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 SANDRA FLETCHERDP23-0001036 CR196065(000161) Sandra Fletcher Check 3732 AR23-005271529Posted 180.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 180.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 ALLYSON SOLORZANODP23-0001037 CR196065(002705) Allyson Solorzano Check 1556 AR23-006131529Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 IRMA VILLANUEVADP23-0001038 CR196065(000183) Irma Villanueva Check 2010238404 AR23-006541529Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 SUSAN KNUPPDP23-0001039 CR196065(700983) Susan Knupp Check 2262 AR23-005901529Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/08/23 JAN-MAR 2023 PATRICIA GRIFFINDP23-0001040 CR196065(000151) Patricia Griffin Check 1156 AR23-004901529Posted 187.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 187.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 2/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 2/28/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:52PM

Page 8 of 16



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 DAVID VANKEERSBILCKDP23-0001041 CR196065(000158) David VanKeersbilck Check 302 AR23-006181529Posted 5,382.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 5,382.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 NANCY HOWISONDP23-0001042 CR196065(711673) Nancy Howison Check 8611 AR23-005861529Posted 27.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 27.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 LYNN ARNOLDDP23-0001043 CR196065(002897) Lynn Arnold Check 4907 AR23-005431529Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 COLLEEN POTUZAKDP23-0001044 CR196065(000155) Colleen Potuzak Check 8876 AR23-006041529Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 STEPHEN GREENDP23-0001045 CR196065(000234) Stephen Green Check 821 AR23-005821529Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 MARTIN JOHNSONDP23-0001046 CR196065(000169) Martin Johnson Check 3632 AR23-005311529Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 ROSANNA KISSINGERDP23-0001047 CR196065(713797) Rosanna Kissinger Check 2399 AR23-006321529Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 JANET COMSTOCKDP23-0001048 CR196065(710368) Jan Comstock Check 4059 AR23-005561529Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 FRANCISCO RODRIGUEZDP23-0001049 CR196065(710417) Francisco Rodriguez Check 5561 AR23-006421529Posted 561.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 561.00 

02/08/23 00 JAN - MAR 2023 LYDIA HERNANDEZDP23-0001050 CR196065(000175) Lydia Hernandez Check 275 AR23-006291529Posted 480.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 480.00 

02/08/23 01 UTILITIES FOR FY23 Q1 (JUL-SEP 2022) BARDDP23-0001051 CR196065(711111) Child Development Resources ofVentura County IncCheck 694717 AR23-005661529Posted 473.46 

( 011136)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 473.46 

02/08/23 01 UTILITIES FOR FY23 Q1 (JUL-SEP 2022) SUNKISTDP23-0001052 CR196065(711111) Child Development Resources ofVentura County IncCheck 694717 AR23-005681529Posted 333.67 

( 011136)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 333.67 

02/08/23 W/C - AGUILAR, B. 01/17/23-01/30/23DP23-0001053 CR196065(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 644421529Posted 1,318.40 

( 063172)  010- 2200- 2600- 0- 0000- 8210- 000- 000- 0000- 6 1,318.40 

02/08/23 01 APR-JUN 2023 SUSAN BURRESDP23-0001054 CR196065(712518) Susan Burres Check 1106 AR23-006681530Posted 183.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 183.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 LINDA ROSARIODP23-0001055 CR196065(003674) Linda Rosario Check 793681123 AR23-004851530Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

02/08/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 RUBEN ROSARIODP23-0001056 CR196065(702406) Ruben Rosario Check 793681122 AR23-004831530Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 2/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 2/28/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:52PM

Page 9 of 16



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

02/08/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 PAMELA GIBSONDP23-0001057 CR196065(000203) Pamela Gibson Check 4268 AR23-005111530Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/08/23 JAN - MAR 2023 NICOLAS MONTANEZDP23-0001058 CR196065(000154) Nicolas Montanez Check 1077 AR23-005341530Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/08/23 W/C - GARIBAY, N. 01/20/23-02/02/23DP23-0001059 CR196065(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 646601530Posted 3,079.42 

( 045727)  010- 1100- 0709- 0- 1110- 1000- 280- 400- GSA0- 1 3,079.42 

02/08/23 W/C - VERAY-HOUSTON, F. 02/01/23-02/01/23DP23-0001060 CR196065(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 646021530Posted 146.21 

( 007373)  010- 2400- 0000- 0- 0000- 3600- 000- 550- 7230- 6 146.21 

02/08/23 ODS 02/03/23DP23-0001061 CR196065(711333) E.O. Green Jr High School Cash 02/03/231530Posted 5,915.00 

( 026523)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 160- 000- 9970- 0 5,915.00 

02/08/23 ODS 02/03/23DP23-0001062 CR196065(711331) Beach Elementary School Cash 02/03/231530Posted 200.00 

( 036296)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 120- 000- 9970- 0 200.00 

02/08/23 SHUTTERFLY - FALL PICS 02/03/23DP23-0001063 CR196065(711334) Hathaway Elementary School Check 1143691530Posted 197.88 

( 011145)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 180- 000- D000- 0 197.88 

02/08/23 SHUTTERFLY - 02/06/23DP23-0001064 CR196065(711336) Hueneme Elementary School Check 1143681530Posted 198.78 

( 011147)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 220- 000- D000- 0 198.78 

02/15/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 SANDY CASEDP23-0001065 CR196503(701535) Sandy Case Check 2260 AR23-005521531Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/15/23 JAN - MAR 2023 PATRICIA ARRIAGADP23-0001066 CR196503(000162) Patricia Arriaga Check 3404 AR23-006251531Posted 27.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 27.00 

02/15/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 PATRICIA HUMPHRIESDP23-0001067 CR196503(005585) Patricia Humphries Check 0112 AR23-004911531Posted 456.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 456.00 

02/15/23 JAN - MAR 2023 ESTELA MACIASDP23-0001068 CR196503(000179) Estela Macias Check 672 AR23-005951531Posted 1,368.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 1,368.00 

02/15/23 JAN - MAR 2023 ALISA SMENTDP23-0001069 CR196503(000266) Alisa Sment Check 4978 AR23-006121531Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/15/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 JOSE GONZALEZDP23-0001070 CR196503(000140) Jose Gonzalez Check 3842 AR23-005291531Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/15/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 CAROL GOTTLIEBDP23-0001071 CR196503(711624) Carol Gottlieb Check 9077 AR23-005811531Posted 54.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 54.00 

02/15/23 00 FEB - MAR 2023 IVETTE POSADADP23-0001072 CR196503(000277) Ivette Posada Check 19-322486253 AR23-006551531Posted 1,000.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 1,000.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 2/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 2/28/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:52PM

Page 10 of 16



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

02/15/23 00 FEB - MAR 2023 IVETTE POSADADP23-0001073 CR196503(000277) Ivette Posada Check 19-322486254 AR23-006551531Posted 177.84 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 177.84 

02/15/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 DOROTHY SCHWARZEDP23-0001074 CR196503(000130) Dorothy Schwarze Check 7578 AR23-006091531Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/15/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 MARIA ZELEDONDP23-0001075 CR196503(710358) Maria Zeledon Check 5617 AR23-006451531Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/15/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 SARAH PUGLISIDP23-0001076 CR196503(000212) Sarah Puglisi Check 8876 AR23-005201531Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/15/23 JAN-MAR 2023 BETTY ANGULODP23-0001077 CR196503(000159) Betty Angulo Check 466 AR23-004891531Posted 69.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 69.00 

02/15/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 CHEREDA HAMILTONDP23-0001078 CR196503(701097) Chereda Hamilton Check 8780 AR23-005841531Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/15/23 JAN-MAR 2023 SHIRLEY BROWNDP23-0001079 CR196503(005349) Shirley Brown Check 0051128999 AR23-004701531Posted 67.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 67.00 

02/15/23 JAN-MAR 2023 HILDA VALENZUELADP23-0001080 CR196503(710570) Hilda Valenzuela Check 0050958487 AR23-004711531Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

02/15/23 Release time - Ortiz; January 30, 2023DP23-0001081 CR196503(710114) California Teachers Assoc Check 01111365 AR23-004751531Posted 232.35 

( 032460)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- HEA0- 0 232.35 

02/15/23 W/C - MUNIZ, J. 01/24/23-02/06/23DP23-0001082 CR196503(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 648111531Posted 1,482.34 

( 007266)  010- 2200- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 000- 540- 0000- 6 1,482.34 

02/15/23 W/C - ARREDONDO, M. 01/24/23-02/06/23DP23-0001083 CR196503(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 648101531Posted 971.94 

( 041795)  130- 2200- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 180- 560- 0000- 6 971.94 

02/15/23 W/C - ORTIZ, L. 01/25/23-02/07/23DP23-0001084 CR196503(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 649411531Posted 2,712.62 

( 027018)  010- 1100- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 180- 100- 0000- 1 2,712.62 

02/15/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 SALLY KEEVYDP23-0001085 CR196503(711776) Sally Keevy Check 3012743036 AR23-004951531Posted 137.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 137.00 

02/15/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 FRANCES HRUSKADP23-0001086 CR196503(710525) Frances Hruska Check 324 AR23-006301531Posted 180.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 180.00 

02/15/23 JAN - MAR 2023 DIANE GOMEZDP23-0001087 CR196503(000270) Diane Gomez Check 3096 AR23-005121531Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/15/23 JAN - MAR 2023 CHERYL DAVIDSON-FITZGERALDDP23-0001088 CR196503(000091) Cheryl Davidson-Fitzgerald Check 0051572505 AR23-006481531Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 2/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 2/28/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:52PM

Page 11 of 16



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

02/15/23 01 JAN  - MAR 2023 SHARON STEWARTDP23-0001089 CR196503(711828) Sharon Stewart Check 105 AR23-006141531Posted 180.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 180.00 

02/15/23 JAN - MAR 2023 DEBORAH OWENSDP23-0001090 CR196503(000098) Deborah Owens Check 551 AR23-006021531Posted 180.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 180.00 

02/15/23 JAN-MAR 2023 MARILYN HOLYOAKDP23-0001091 CR196503(004717) Marilyn Holyoak Check 1192 AR23-004801531Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/15/23 OCT - DEC 2022 ADRIAN LAVEAGADP23-0001092 CR196503(712974) Adrian Laveaga Check 207 AR23-004181531Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/15/23 01 JAN-MAR 2023 DELORES WALKERDP23-0001093 CR196503(002603) Delores Walker Check 0039865857 AR23-005021531Posted 1,806.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 1,806.00 

02/15/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 DARLINDA WANDERERDP23-0001094 CR196503(000184) Darlinda Wanderer Check 1183 AR23-005371531Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/15/23 JAN - MAR 2023 CAROLYN ZIMRINGDP23-0001095 CR196503(005567) Carolyn Zimring Check 2788 AR23-006241531Posted 1,368.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 1,368.00 

02/15/23 JAN - MAR 2023 RICHARD CALZADADP23-0001096 CR196503(000028) Richard Calzada Check 2990 AR23-005511531Posted 180.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 180.00 

02/15/23 01 VMRT Participation School Payment RequestDP23-0001097 CR196503(710213) Pearson Education Check 1226026 AR23-005641531Posted 5,160.00 

( 011143)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 140- 000- D000- 0 5,160.00 

02/15/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 JOHN KLOPFSTEINDP23-0001098 CR196503(703048) John Klopfstein Check 0039916118 AR23-006511531Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/15/23 DEV FEES - 201 W BARD STDP23-0001099 CR196503MARIA TOVAR Check 10231531Posted 2,583.00 

( 011703)  250- 8681- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 0000- 0 2,583.00 

02/15/23 W/C - DE LA MORA, A. 01/30/23-02/12/23DP23-0001100 CR196503(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 650781531Posted 1,427.14 

( 063172)  010- 2200- 2600- 0- 0000- 8210- 000- 000- 0000- 6 1,427.14 

02/15/23 W/C - HENSLEY, D. 01/27/23-01/31/23DP23-0001101 CR196503(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 649811531Posted 1,099.79 

( 045727)  010- 1100- 0709- 0- 1110- 1000- 280- 400- GSA0- 1 1,099.79 

02/15/23 W/C - CEJA, M. 02/01/23-02/08/23DP23-0001102 CR196503(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 649491531Posted 212.08 

( 041855)  130- 2200- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 300- 560- 0000- 6 212.08 

02/15/23 W/C - CEJA, M. 01/26/23-01/31/23DP23-0001103 CR196503(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 649471531Posted 214.15 

( 041855)  130- 2200- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 300- 560- 0000- 6 214.15 

02/15/23 ODS 02/08/23DP23-0001105 CR196503(711331) Beach Elementary School Cash1531Posted 1,000.00 

( 036296)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 120- 000- 9970- 0 1,000.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 2/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 2/28/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:52PM

Page 12 of 16



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

02/15/23 ODS 02/10/23DP23-0001106 CR196503(711333) E.O. Green Jr High School Cash 02/10/231531Posted 5,145.00 

( 026523)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 160- 000- 9970- 0 5,145.00 

02/15/23 BIG STICK SALES 02/14/23DP23-0001107 CR196503(711334) Hathaway Elementary School Cash 02/14/231531Posted 161.00 

( 011145)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 180- 000- D000- 0 161.00 

02/15/23 BIG STICK SALES 02/08/23DP23-0001108 CR196503(711334) Hathaway Elementary School Cash 02/08/231531Posted 370.95 

( 011145)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 180- 000- D000- 0 370.95 

02/15/23 SB MISSION FIELD TRIP 02/08/23DP23-0001109 CR196503(711339) Sunkist Elementary School Cash 02/08/231531Posted 170.00 

( 011151)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 280- 000- D000- 0 170.00 

02/15/23 SHUTTERFLY 02/01/23DP23-0001110 CR196503(711339) Sunkist Elementary School Check 1149611531Posted 318.26 

( 011151)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 280- 000- D000- 0 318.26 

02/15/23 ODS PALI CAMP 02/10/23DP23-0001111 CR196503(711331) Beach Elementary School Check 13211531Posted 200.00 

( 036296)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 120- 000- 9970- 0 200.00 

02/22/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 AURORA GARCIADP23-0001112 CR196774(000136) Aurora Garcia Check 0640282617 AR23-005281532Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/22/23 00 JAN - MAR 2023 REBECCA LOPEZDP23-0001113 CR196774(713344) Rebecca Lopez Check 240 AR23-006371532Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/22/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 BARBARA SMALLEYDP23-0001114 CR196774(702574) Barbara Smalley Check 3564 AR23-006111532Posted 2,856.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 2,856.00 

02/22/23 00 JAN - MAR 2023 INDALICIO PASCUADP23-0001115 CR196774(712850) Indalicio Pascua Check 3390 AR23-006391532Posted 27.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 27.00 

02/22/23 W/C - AGUILAR, B. 01/31/23-02/13/23DP23-0001116 CR196774(701405) Ventura County Schools        Self-Funding AuthorityCheck 651611532Posted 1,318.40 

( 063172)  010- 2200- 2600- 0- 0000- 8210- 000- 000- 0000- 6 1,318.40 

02/22/23 01 OCT - DEC 2022 CYNTHIA CARPENTERDP23-0001117 CR196774(004675) Cynthia Carpenter Check 2257 AR23-006471532Posted 54.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 54.00 

02/22/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 ROSS CARPENTERDP23-0001118 CR196774(003144) Ross Carpenter Check 2257 AR23-006281532Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/22/23 JAN - MAR 2023 JOSEPH LEGACYDP23-0001119 CR196774(700575) Joseph Legacy Check 0053292860 AR23-005921532Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/22/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 MARIA ONATE-MARTINDP23-0001120 CR196774(000080) Maria Onate-Martin Check 1608 AR23-006381532Posted 411.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 411.00 

02/22/23 01 JULY - AUGUST 2022 ROSE MESSINADP23-0001121 CR196774(003011) Rose Messina Check 2162 AR23-001671532Posted 18.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 18.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 2/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 2/28/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:52PM

Page 13 of 16



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

02/22/23 JAN  - MAR 2023 LINDA BELLDP23-0001122 CR196774(701588) Linda Bell Check 3638 AR23-005441532Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/22/23 01 APR-JUN 2023 SUSAN BURRESDP23-0001123 CR196774(712518) Susan Burres Check 1112 AR23-006681532Posted 24.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 24.00 

02/22/23 JUL-SEP 2023 EXCESS PAID 712518 CK1112DP23-0001124 CR196774(712518) Susan Burres Check 11121532Posted 21.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 21.00 

02/22/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 GLORIA VALDEZDP23-0001125 CR196774(000126) Gloria Valdez Check 145018541 AR23-006171532Posted 234.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 234.00 

02/22/23 Facility Use - EO Green GradNation 02/04/23DP23-0001127 CR196774(000137) United Way of Ventura County Check 206822997 AR23-006571532Posted 1,262.00 

( 052949)  010- 8699- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 160- 000- D002- 0 1,262.00 

02/22/23 01 PRE-K  Meals DEC 2022DP23-0001128 CR196774(711111) Child Development Resources ofVentura County IncCheck 694862 AR23-006011532Posted 7,067.70 

( 041744)  130- 8634- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 100- 000- 2500- 0 1,371.99 

( 041748)  130- 8634- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 180- 000- 2500- 0 2,301.84 

( 041751)  130- 8634- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 240- 000- 2500- 0 1,155.36 

( 041752)  130- 8634- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 260- 000- 2500- 0 1,083.15 

( 041753)  130- 8634- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 280- 000- 2500- 0 1,155.36 

02/22/23 01 JAN - MAR 2023 MARY LOU QUINTDP23-0001129 CR196774(711615) Mary Lou Quint Check 2052 AR23-006531532Posted 207.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 207.00 

02/22/23 HEALTH CARE DEPOSITDP23-0001130 CR196774(701503) State Of California Check 31-0019981532Posted 5,917.88 

( 064125)  010- 8699- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 5640- 0 5,917.88 

02/22/23 STATE MEAL REIMB NOV 2022DP23-0001131 CR196774(701503) State Of California Check 63-651244 AR23-005621534Posted 214,226.34 

( 041711)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 100- 000- 0000- 0 15,400.25 

( 041712)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 120- 000- 0000- 0 6,425.50 

( 041713)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 140- 000- 0000- 0 39,461.31 

( 041714)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 160- 000- 0000- 0 36,842.69 

( 041715)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 180- 000- 0000- 0 15,292.61 

( 041716)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 200- 000- 0000- 0 29,465.86 

( 041717)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 220- 000- 0000- 0 8,268.51 

( 041718)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 240- 000- 0000- 0 20,022.35 

( 041719)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 260- 000- 0000- 0 13,793.06 

( 041720)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 280- 000- 0000- 0 15,606.40 

( 041721)  130- 8520- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 300- 000- 0000- 0 13,647.80 

02/22/23 IMPACT AID 7003 02/15/23DP23-0001132 CR196503(711754) U S Dept of Education Electronic Funds Xfer 02/15/231538Posted 41,872.00 

( 022394)  010- 8110- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 7003- 0 41,872.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 2/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 2/28/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:52PM

Page 14 of 16



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

02/22/23 IMPACT AID 7002 02/15/23DP23-0001133 CR196503(711754) U S Dept of Education Electronic Funds Xfer 02/15/231535Posted 154,497.00 

( 047424)  010- 8110- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 7002- 0 154,497.00 

02/22/23 IMPACT AID 02/15/23DP23-0001134 CR196503(711754) U S Dept of Education Electronic Funds Xfer 02/15/231535Posted 11,476.00 

( 022394)  010- 8110- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 000- 000- 7003- 0 11,476.00 

02/22/23 JAN-MAR 2023 DEBORAH LOFTONDP23-0001135 CR196503(701735) Deborah Lofton Check 2584 AR23-000561537Posted 195.00 

( 022204)  010- 9537-     -  -     -     -    -    -     - 195.00 

579,641.15 Total for Hueneme Elementary School District  

Fund-Object Recap

010-1100 14,534.33 Teachers' Salaries

010-2200 5,546.28 Classified Support Salaries

010-2400 146.21 Clerical and Office Salaries

010-5218 405.65 Board/Bruno - Travel & Confere

010-8110 207,845.00 Maint & Operations (Public Law

010-8639 18,624.32 All Other Sales

010-8650 7,524.00 Leases and Rentals

010-8699 31,956.63 All Other Local Revenue

010-9537 66,305.84 Retiree Benefits Liability

010-9539 6.06 Payroll Deduction Liability

352,894.32 Fund 010 - General Fund   

130-2200 2,869.79 Classified Support Salaries

130-8520 214,226.34 Child Nutrition Programs

130-8634 7,067.70 Food Services Sales

224,163.83 Fund 130 - Cafeteria Fund   

250-8681 2,583.00 Mitigation/Developer Fees

2,583.00 Fund 250 - Capital Facilities Fund   

Total for Hueneme Elementary School District  579,641.15 

Org Recap

Hueneme Elementary School District

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 2/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 2/28/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:52PM

Page 15 of 16



Receipt DetailAR06a

COUNTY   - County Account

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

Org Recap

15,159.78 $ - Cash

338,012.05 C - Check

226,469.32 E - Electronic Funds Xfer

Total Receipts 579,641.15 

Report Total 579,641.15 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 602, Starting Receipt Date = 2/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 2/28/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

602 - Hueneme Elementary School District Generated for Gina Olmande (602GOLMANDE), Mar  9 2023 

12:52PM

Page 16 of 16



Item 7.3 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM: ACCEPTANCE OF GIFTS TO THE DISTRICT 

 

BOARD MEETING DATE:  March 27, 2023 

 

FROM:    Dr. Christine Walker, Superintendent 

 

STAFF COMMENT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

It is recommended that the Governing Board formally accept the following new gifts to the 

district and authorize the Superintendent to send a letter of appreciation to the donors.  

 

 $150.00 from Patricia Griffin for the December 2022 holiday gift giveaway event at 

Fred L. Williams Elementary School 

 

 

 



Item 7.4 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM: RATIFY A FIVE-YEAR CONTRACT WITH CROWN 

CASTLE, INC. FOR FIBER OPTIC, WIDE AREA 

NETWORK SERVICE THAT QUALIFIES UNDER THE 

E-RATE DISCOUNT PROGRAM 

 

BOARD MEETING DATE:  March 27, 2023 

 

FROM: David Ragsdale, Associate Superintendent, Technology and 

Strategic Operations 

     Dr. Christine Walker, Superintendent 

 

STAFF COMMENT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

It is recommended that the Governing Board ratifies a five-year contract with Crown 

Castle, Inc. for fiber optic, wide area network (WAN) service that qualifies under the E-

Rate discount program. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

This five-year contract with Crown Castle will provide connectivity from 12 sites to the 

district’s network hub at a speed of 10 Gbps. Crown Castle has been HESD’s provider for 

WAN service since 2018. This new contract will allow the district to continue this service 

without incurring any non-recurring charges for construction as it will utilize existing 

infrastructure.  

 

The E-Rate program administered by Universal Service Administrative Corporation 

(USAC) provides discounts to schools and libraries for telecommunications services and 

hardware. The E-Rate discount on this contract will be 90%. 

 



 

Ethernet Supplement Rev. 3/1/2021                                                            CROWN CASTLE PROPRIETARY & CONFIDENTIAL 

ETHERNET SUPPLEMENT 
TO THE  

MASTER TELECOMMUNICATIONS LICENSE AGREEMENT 
LICENSEE: Hueneme Elementary School District 

 
This Ethernet Supplement (“Supplement”) is effective as of the last date of execution below (“Supplement Effective Date”) by and 
between CROWN CASTLE FIBER LLC (“Crown Castle”) and Licensee, and is hereby incorporated into and made a part of the 
Master Telecommunications License Agreement or Master Service Agreement between Licensee and Crown Castle (the 
“Agreement”).  Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms in this Supplement shall have the meanings given in the 
Agreement.  Section and subsection headings contained in this Supplement are inserted for convenience of reference only, shall 
not be deemed to be a part of this Supplement for any purpose, and shall not in any way define or affect the meaning, construction 
or scope of any of the provisions hereof. 
 
1. SCOPE OF SUPPLEMENT 
 
This Supplement applies to Ethernet licensed to Licensee under an Order Form that specifies Ethernet. This Supplement shall not 
apply to other products, including dark fiber, wavelength, Internet, or colocation. 
 
1.1 “Ethernet” or “Product” means a method of switched communication between or among two or more Locations using 
the Ethernet protocol defined by IEEE 802.3.  Ethernet may be ordered and provisioned either as On-Net Products or Off-Net 
Products.  Ethernet includes, without limitation, the following types of Products: 

 
(a) E-Line or Fixed Wireless E-Line (if fixed wireless technology is utilized): a port-based Product providing dedicated 

UNIs for point to point connections.  E-Line supports a single EVC between two (2) UNIs.  
 
(b) Ethernet Virtual Private Line (EVPL) or Fixed Wireless Ethernet Virtual Private Line (EVPL) (if fixed wireless 

technology is utilized): a VLAN based Product providing multiplexed UNIs allowing multiple EVCs per UNI. 
 
(c) Ethernet LAN (E-LAN) or Fixed Wireless Ethernet LAN (E-LAN) (if fixed wireless technology is utilized): a 

VLAN based meshed Product providing many-to-many communication with dedicated or service-multiplexed 
UNIs.  E-LAN supports transparent LAN and multipoint Layer 2 VPNs.      

 
(d) Metro-E Advanced Private Line or Fixed Wireless Metro-E Advanced Private Line (if fixed wireless technology 

is utilized): dedicated point-to-point switched Ethernet provided within a metro area over dedicated fiber transport 
and/or fixed wireless transport if fixed wireless technology is utilized. 

 
(e) ENNI (External Network to Network Interface): an interconnection point between the Crown Castle and Licensee 

Ethernet networks as defined in MEF Specification 26.  
 

1.2 “Class of Service”  or “CoS”:    Crown Castle offers CoS with Ethernet.  CoS enables Licensee to differentiate traffic by 
assigning Bandwidth with various classes of network priority designated by Licensee.  If Licensee elects CoS, (i) Licensee’s traffic 
must be marked by Licensee in accordance with Crown Castle’s available classes of network priority, and (ii) Licensee traffic will 
be prioritized in accordance with the assigned network priority.  If Licensee does not elect CoS, Licensee’s traffic will be treated 
with the default network priority level.  Crown Castle offers the following classes of CoS ranging from highest to lowest in terms 
of network priority:   

 
• Mission Critical 
• Business Critical 
• Business Priority 
• Standard  (Default class for all Ethernet) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Ethernet Supplement Rev. 3/1/2021                                                         CROWN CASTLE PROPRIETARY & CONFIDENTIAL 
 

2 

1.3 Protection Options.  Ethernet comes with various Protection Options, as described below.   
  

Protection 
Option Description  

Minimum Location Requirements 
Space Power  Environmental 

Control 
Back Up 
Power 

Unprotected (Level A Access) 

1 

Level A Access means the access portion of the Ethernet (i.e. the segments from 
the last Crown Castle Network switching hub (or for Metro-E Advanced Private 
Line or Fixed Wireless Metro-E Advanced Private Line Products - the lateral 
segments supporting the respective Product) to the point of entry of the Location) 
is provided over a single  transmission path by fiber and/or fixed wireless without 
protection. Level A Access consists of the following minimum requirements at 
each Location: (i) a single point of entry into the Location; (ii) one (1) Crown 
Castle Equipment chassis; (iii) one (1) port;  (iv) a 2-fiber handoff to the Licensee 
from the Crown Castle Equipment; and (v) one (1) Crown Castle fixed wireless 
receiver equipment chassis if fixed wireless technology is utilized by Crown 
Castle for the applicable Product.   
  

(1) (2) 
  

(4) 
  

Not 
applicable 

 
Optical Protection (Level AA Access) 

2 

Level AA Access means the access portion of the Ethernet (i.e. the segments from 
the last Crown Castle Network switching hub to the point of entry of the Location) 
is provided over two (2) separate transmission paths by fiber and/or fixed 
wireless, one of which is the working (primary) path and the other the protect 
(secondary) path.  Crown Castle is responsible for managing the Failover 
Switching at each Location. Level AA Protection consists of the following 
minimum requirements at each Location: (i) a single point of entry into the 
Location; (ii) one (1) Crown Castle Equipment chassis; (iii) one (1) port; (iv) a 2-
fiber handoff to the Licensee from the Crown Castle Equipment; and (v) one (1) 
Crown Castle fixed wireless receiver equipment chassis if fixed wireless 
technology is utilized by Crown Castle for the applicable Product. 

(1) (2) (4) (6) 

  Dual Path Protection (Level AAA) 

3 

Level AAA Access means the access portion of the Ethernet (i.e. the segments 
from the last Crown Castle Network switching hub to the point of entry of the 
Location) is provided over two (2) separate transmission paths by fiber and/or 
fixed wireless, one of which is the working (primary) path and the other the 
protect (secondary) path. Failover Switching at each Location will be provided 
by Licensee or by Crown Castle as specified in the Order Form.  Level AAA 
Protection consist of the following minimum requirements at each Location:  (i) 
two (2) separate points of entry into the Location; (ii) two (2) Crown Castle 
Equipment chassis; (iii) one (1) line card per chassis; (iv) 4-fiber handoff to the 
Licensee from the Crown Castle Equipment, with two fibers handed off from one 
of the Crown Castle Equipment chassis and two fibers handed off from the other 
Crown Castle Equipment chassis;  (v) Licensee Equipment must have hardware 
redundancy (i.e., separate cards, one for one of the 2-fiber handoffs and the other 
for the second 2-fiber handoff); and (vi) two (2) Crown Castle fixed wireless 
receiver equipment chassis if fixed wireless technology is utilized by Crown 
Castle for the applicable Product.  

(1) (3) (5) (7) 

(1) Secure space for Crown Castle Equipment at each Location with 24x7x365 access. 
(2) Dedicated electrical circuit for Crown Castle Equipment (i.e. the circuit has no other load from the Crown Castle Equipment to a circuit breaker) at each 
Location from the public utility. 
(3) Redundant, dedicated electrical circuit at each Location from the public utility (i.e. each power circuit is fed from a different circuit breaker panel and 
has its own circuit breaker). 
(4) For Crown Castle Equipment installed indoors - Substantially dust free with temperature control that maintains temperature between 50 and 80 degrees 
Fahrenheit and humidity control that maintains relative humidity below 80%. 
(5) For Crown Castle Equipment installed indoors - Substantially dust free with temperature control that maintains temperature between 60 and 80 degrees 
Fahrenheit and humidity control that maintains relative humidity between 40% and 60%. 



 
Ethernet Supplement Rev. 3/1/2021                                                         CROWN CASTLE PROPRIETARY & CONFIDENTIAL 
 

3 

(6) Crown Castle (or Licensee if the Parties agree) to install and maintain a minimum of four (4) hours of standby power. 
(7) Crown Castle (or Licensee if the Parties agree) to install and maintain a minimum of eight (8) hours of standby power and Licensee shall provide 
emergency power generation. 
 
  
2. ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS 

 
 “Bandwidth” or “BW” means the amount of data (quantified as “Mbps” or “Gbps”) made available to Licensee.   
   
“Ethernet Virtual Connection” or “EVC” is a logical connection between two or more UNIs.   
 
“Failover Switching” means the automatic restore and reroute of a Product to an alternate transmission path. 
 
“Location” is an address wherein Crown Castle will hand off Ethernet to Licensee.  
 
“Product Availability” means the percentage of minutes during a calendar month that the licensed Product has not incurred a 
Product Outage.  Product Availability is calculated as follows: (43,200 - total number of minutes of Product Outage during the 
calendar month) divided by 43,200.    

 “Product Credit” means a credit that Licensee is eligible to receive if Crown Castle fails to meet the parameters set forth in Section 
5.2 below. 
 
“Product Outage” means a complete interruption of communications between any two (2) or more Locations.   
 
“Product Performance Failure” means a failure of the Product to meet any performance parameters set forth in Section 5.2(B) 
through 5.2(D) below.  Product Performance Failure is not a Product Outage. 
  
“User Network Interface” or “UNI” means the interface used to interconnect Licensee to the Crown Castle Network which provides 
a reference point for demarcation between the Licensee’s network and the Crown Castle Network. 
 
“Virtual Local Area Network” or “VLAN” means a data communication network, configured using the IEEE 802.1q standard that 
logically interconnects computers and network devices, allowing a group of hosts to communicate, regardless of Location, as if 
they were attached to the same physical media. 
 
“VPN” means a virtual private network.    
 
 
3. SPECIFICATIONS  
 
3.1 The Specifications applicable to Ethernet are as follows: 
 
Technical Specifications:   

• IEEE 802.3 
 
 
4. USE BY LICENSEE 
 
4.1 Interstate Traffic.  Licensee acknowledges that Crown Castle has no ability to determine whether the communications 
traffic carried via the licensed Ethernet is jurisdictionally interstate or intrastate.  Licensee acknowledges and agrees that the 
communications traffic to be carried via the Crown Castle Network shall be treated as jurisdictionally interstate, pursuant to the 
Federal Communications Commission’s mixed-use “10% Rule” (47 CFR 36.154, 4 FCC Rcd. 1352), unless Licensee provides 
timely written certification on Crown Castle’s prescribed form that the traffic is jurisdictionally intrastate under the 10% Rule. 
 
4.2 Permitted Use.  Licensee may use the Ethernet for its own use. Licensee acknowledges that Crown Castle does not 
monitor the content of the Ethernet traffic unless required by law and Licensee shall be solely liable and responsible for the content 
of any communications transmitted via the Ethernet. 
 
 
5. SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT 
 
5.1 Product Service Level.  Subject to this Section 5, in the event of a Product Outage to any licensed Ethernet or a Product 
Performance Failure, Licensee may be entitled to a Product Credit in accordance with the applicable Service Level Objective set 



 
Ethernet Supplement Rev. 3/1/2021                                                         CROWN CASTLE PROPRIETARY & CONFIDENTIAL 
 

4 

forth in Section 5.2 below.  A Product Outage, or Product Performance Failure as the case may be, shall be deemed to begin upon 
the earlier of Crown Castle’s actual knowledge of the same or Crown Castle’s receipt of notice from Licensee of the same, and end 
when the Product is operational and in material conformance with the applicable Specifications.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary in this Supplement, the Agreement or any Order Form, in no event shall a Product Outage and/or Product Performance 
Failure and/or any other defect or failure in the Product be deemed to be or constitute a breach by Crown Castle of this Supplement, 
the Agreement or any Order Form.   
 
5.2 Service Level Objectives. 
 

A.  Product Availability  
 
If the total minutes of Product Outage in any month exceeds the number of minutes or hours set forth in the table below, Licensee 
shall be entitled to a Product Credit equal to the percentage of the applicable MRC set forth in the following table: 

 
 

Quality Level 
Product 

Availability 
Objective 

Measurement 
Timeframe 

Product Credit  
Cumulative Duration of  

Product Outage(s) % of MRC 

 On-Net  - Level A 
Access    

1 Product 
Availability 

 99.9% 
 One Month 

0 to 43.2 mins. 0% 
>43.2 mins. to 10 hrs.  5% 

>10 hrs. to 16 hrs.  10% 
>16 hrs. to 24 hrs.  20% 
>24 hrs. to 36hrs.  40% 

> 36 hrs.  50% 

 On-Net  - Level AA 
Access    

2 Product 
Availability 

 99.99% 
 One Month 

0 to 4.32 mins. 0% 
>4.32 mins. to 30 mins. 5% 

>30 mins. to 1 hr.   10% 
>1hrs. to 8 hrs. 20% 

>8 hrs. to 16 hrs. 30% 
>16 hrs. to 24 hrs.   40% 

>24 hrs.   50% 

 On-Net  - Level AAA 
Access    

3 Product 
Availability 

99.999% 
 One Month 

0 to 43 secs. 0% 
> 43 secs. to 4 mins. 5% 
>4 mins. to 10 mins.  10% 
>10 mins. to 2 hrs.  20% 

>2 hrs. to 8 hrs.   40% 
>8 hrs.  50% 

 
 

B. Network Latency 
“Network Latency” is the average round-trip transmission time (in milliseconds) for packets to travel on the Crown Castle 
Network (including, but not limited to, link insertion delays, propagation delays and queuing delays in the Crown Castle 
Network). Network Latency is determined by Crown Castle by averaging sample measurements taken each calendar 
month between Crown Castle’s designated points of presence.   
  
If Network Latency in any month exceeds the number of milliseconds set forth in the table below and such failure is 
quality-impacting, Licensee shall be entitled to a Product Credit equal to the percentage of the applicable MRC set forth 
in the following table: 
 

  
NETWORK 
LATENCY 

    

 CoS Designation -   % of MRC   
Domestic US Standard Business Priority  Business Critical Mission Critical  
>120ms  10% 20% 30% 50% 



 
Ethernet Supplement Rev. 3/1/2021                                                         CROWN CASTLE PROPRIETARY & CONFIDENTIAL 
 

5 

 
C. Frame Delivery Rate (Packet Delivery) 

 
“Frame Delivery Rate” is the ratio of performance test frames successfully received from the Crown Castle Network 
relative to the number of performance test frames offered to the Crown Castle Network.  Frame Delivery Rate is 
determined by Crown Castle by averaging sample measurements taken each calendar month between Crown Castle’s 
designated points of presence.  
 
If Frame Delivery Rate in any month is less than the percentages set forth in the left column of the table below and such 
failure is quality-impacting, Licensee shall be entitled to a Product Credit equal to the percentage of the applicable MRC 
set forth in the following table: 
 

FRAME 
DELIVERY RATE 

    

 CoS Designation -   % of MRC   
Domestic US Standard Business Priority  Business Critical  Mission Critical 
99.999% or greater No Credit No Credit No Credit No Credit 
99.99% to 99.998% No Credit No Credit No Credit 10% 
99.9% to 99.98% No Credit No Credit 10% 20% 
99% to 99.8% No Credit 10% 20% 30% 
Less than 99% 10% 20% 30% 50% 

 
D. Frame Delay Variation (Jitter) 

 
“Frame Delay Variation”, also known as packet jitter, is a measurement of the average variation (measured in 
milliseconds) in the time delay for packet transfers between two performance test frames.  Frame Delay Variation is 
determined by Crown Castle by averaging sample measurements taken each calendar month between designated points 
of presence.  
 
If Frame Delay Variation in any month exceeds the number of milliseconds set forth in the table below and such failure 
is quality-impacting, Licensee shall be entitled to a Product Credit equal to the percentage of the applicable MRC set 
forth in the following table: 
 

FRAME DELAY 
VARIATION 

    

 CoS Designation -   % of MRC   
Domestic US Standard Business Priority  Business Critical Mission Critical 
2ms or less No Credit No Credit No Credit No Credit 
>2ms to 3ms No Credit No Credit No Credit 10% 
>3ms to 4ms No Credit 10% 15% 30% 
>4ms  10% 20% 30% 50% 

 
 
5.3 Product Credits.  Product Credits hereunder are calculated as a percentage of the MRC set forth in the Order Form, and 
may not be applied to usage charges, government fees, taxes, or surcharges, or any third party charges passed through to Licensee 
by Crown Castle.  Product Credits hereunder may be paid only once per any given billing cycle.  Product Credits issued to Licensee 
hereunder shall be Licensee’s sole and exclusive remedy at law or in equity on account of any Product Outage and/or Product 
Performance Failure and/or any other defect or failure in the Product. Product Credits will not be issued to Licensee if Licensee’s 
account with Crown Castle is in arrears. If an incident affects the performance of the Product and results in a period or periods of 
interruption, disruption, failure or degradation in quality, entitling Licensee to one or more credits under multiple quality level 
standards, only the single highest credit with respect to that incident will be applied, and Licensee shall not be entitled to credits 
under multiple quality level standards for the same incident.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the above-stated 
Product Credits shall not apply to Off-Net Products; in the event of a Product Outage or Product Performance Failure, Crown Castle 
agrees to pass through a credit equal to the credit received by Crown Castle from its underlying provider(s) for such Product Outage 
or Product Performance Failure, in lieu of the above-stated Product Credits.  In no event shall Product Credits in any month for any 
and all interruptions, disruptions, failures, and/or degradations in quality (including, without limitation, any Product Outage or Product 
Performance Failure) exceed fifty percent (50%) of the MRC for the affected Product for that month. 
 
5.4 Product Credit Request.  Licensee must submit a written request to claim a Product Credit no later than thirty (30) days 
following the event which gives rise to Licensee’s right to the Product Credit. Failure to request a Product Credit within such period 
shall constitute a waiver of any claim for a Product Credit. 



 
Ethernet Supplement Rev. 3/1/2021                                                         CROWN CASTLE PROPRIETARY & CONFIDENTIAL 
 

6 

 
5.5 Events Excepted From Product Credit. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensee shall not receive any Product Credit 
for any Product Outage, Product Performance Failure, failure to meet any objectives or parameters hereunder, or delay in performing 
repairs, arising from or caused, in whole or in part, by any of the following events:  
 

a. Licensee’s (including its agents, contractors and vendors) acts or omissions; 
b. Failure on the part of Licensee Equipment, end user equipment or Licensee’s vendor’s equipment; 
c. Failure of electrical power not provided by Crown Castle; 
d. Election by Licensee, after requested by Crown Castle, not to release the Product for testing and repair; 
e. Crown Castle’s inability to obtain access required to remedy a defect; 
f. Scheduled maintenance periods; 
g. Scheduled upgrade of Product at the request of Licensee; 
h. Force Majeure Event;  
i. Unavailability of spectrum not due to the fault or negligence of Crown Castle when fixed wireless is utilized 

in the provisioning of the Product; 
j. Disconnection or suspension of the Product by Crown Castle pursuant to a right provided under this 

Agreement; and/or 
k. Crown Castle’s inability to repair due to utility safety restrictions. 

 
 
 The Parties have executed this Supplement as of the last date of execution below. 
 

LICENSEE: Hueneme Elementary School District 
     

 CROWN CASTLE FIBER LLC:    

  
  
By: _______________________________________ 
 

By: _____________________________________ 

Print Name:_______________________________ Print Name:_______________________________ 
  
Title: ____________________________________ Title: ____________________________________ 
  
Date:  ____________________________________ 
 

Date: ____________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

David Ragsdale

Associate Superintendent
3/13/23

Tara Johns

Attorney
March 20, 2023



 

 
Master Telecommunications License Agreement Rev. 3/1/2021  CROWN CASTLE PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL 
 
 

 
MASTER TELECOMMUNICATIONS LICENSE AGREEMENT 

 
LICENSEE: Hueneme Elementary School District  
Address: 205 N Ventura Rd. Port Hueneme, CA 93041 
State of Organization: California 

  
This MASTER TELECOMMUNICATIONS LICENSE AGREEMENT is effective as of the last date of execution below 

(“Effective Date”) by and between CROWN CASTLE FIBER LLC (“Crown Castle” or “Company”), and Licensee (as named above).  This 
Master Telecommunication License Agreement and any and all Supplements (as defined herein) and exhibits hereto are collectively referred 
to as the “Agreement”.  Crown Castle and Licensee are collectively referred to as the “Parties” or individually as a “Party”. 
 
1.  PRODUCTS, ORDER FORMS, AND SUPPLEMENTS. 

 
1.1 Products and Order Forms.  This Agreement applies to each telecommunications facility, or product, provided or licensed by 
Crown Castle to Licensee (each a “Product”).  Each Product will be specified in an order form executed by the Parties (each an “Order Form”).    
Purchase orders issued by Licensee shall not be deemed to amend, modify or supplement this Agreement or any Order Form issued hereunder 
and shall not be legally binding on Crown Castle unless otherwise agreed in writing by Crown Castle.   
 
1.2 Supplements. From time to time, the Parties may execute one or more supplements to this Agreement that may contain technical 
specifications, service level objectives, and other terms and conditions applicable to specific types of Products (each a “Supplement”).  Upon 
execution by the Parties, each such Supplement shall be incorporated into this Agreement. In the event Crown Castle and Licensee have not 
executed a Supplement or Service Level Agreement applicable to the type of product contemplated by an Order Form, then the product-specific 
portion of the then-current version of the "Crown Castle Terms and Conditions” available at https://fiber.crowncastle.com/crown-castle-
telecommunications-license-terms-and-conditions.pdf  (“Online Terms”), shall apply.   
 
1.3 Crown Castle Affiliates.  At Crown Castle’s option, Products may be provided or licensed by Crown Castle, or by an Affiliate of Crown 
Castle.  Any charges or other amounts received by the Crown Castle under this Agreement, to the extent attributable to Products provided or licensed 
by an Affiliate of Crown Castle, shall be received by Crown Castle in its capacity as an agent on behalf of such Affiliate.  Internet access will be 
provided by Crown Castle’s affiliate, Crown Castle Fiber Enterprise LLC.  In addition, Order Forms may be executed by an Affiliate of Crown 
Castle, and in such event, any and all references to “Crown Castle” herein shall be deemed to be a reference to the applicable Affiliate of Crown 
Castle that executed such Order Form.  The term “Affiliate” as used hereunder shall mean, with respect to either Party, any entity controlled 
by, in control of, or under common control with such Party. 
 
2. TERM. 
 
2.1 Agreement Term.  The term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date, and continues through the later of (i) five (5) 
years from Effective Date, or (ii) latest expiration of active Order Forms, unless earlier terminated as provided herein.  This Agreement is a set 
of general terms and conditions, and does not obligate either Party to provide or pay for any Product other than as reflected in a particular Order 
Form executed by the Parties.   
 
2.2 Product Term.  The term (each a “Product Term”) for each Product begins on the Acceptance Date (as defined below) applicable to 
such Product, and remains in effect until the expiration of the initial Product Term specified in the applicable Order Form unless earlier 
terminated as provided herein.  The Product Term shall automatically extend for consecutive month-to-month terms, unless either Party notifies 
the other of its intent not to renew at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the then-current initial or renewal Product Term.   
 
2.3 Acceptance Date.  The “Acceptance Date” for each Product shall be the earliest of (a) the date on which Licensee delivers written 
notice of acceptance, (b) the date on which Licensee begins to use the Product, other than for testing purposes, or (c) the fifteenth (15th) 
calendar day following Crown Castle’s delivery of notice of the installation of the Product (such notice, a “Connection Notice”), unless Licensee 
notifies Crown Castle in writing within said two-day period of a Defect in the Product, specifying in detail the nature of such Defect.  A 
“Defect” exists if the Product fails to perform materially in accordance with its technical specifications as set forth in the applicable Supplement 
(“Specifications”).   Upon receipt of notice of a Defect, Crown Castle and Licensee shall work cooperatively to promptly remedy such Defect, 
and Crown Castle shall deliver another Connection Notice, whereupon the process described in the first sentence of this Section shall apply 
again.  If the Acceptance Date is delayed as a result of any failure, act or omission of Licensee, Crown Castle will give Licensee written notice 
to cure such failure within five (5) calendar days.  If Licensee fails to cure within such period, the Acceptance Date will be deemed to be the 
end of such five (5) calendar-day period.   
 



  

Master Telecommunications License Agreement Rev. 3/1/2021  CROWN CASTLE PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL 
 2  

3. PAYMENT TERMS. 
 
3.1 Charges.  Crown Castle will invoice Licensee for any non-recurring charge (“NRC”) associated with the Product upon or after 
execution of the applicable Order Form.  The monthly-recurring charge (“MRC”) associated with the Product shall begin to accrue on the 
Acceptance Date of such Product.  Crown Castle will invoice Licensee the MRC associated with the Product in advance, except Crown Castle 
will invoice Licensee usage based charges (if any) associated with the Product in arrears.  An MRC for a partial month will be pro-rated.  
Licensee shall be responsible for payment of the MRC for the entire Product Term specified in the applicable Order Form.  
 
3.2.   Payments; Late Payments.  Licensee shall pay each invoice within thirty (30) days of the date of the invoice (the “Due Date”), 
without setoff or deduction.  In the event Licensee fails to make any payment by the Due Date, Licensee shall pay a late charge on all past 
due amounts at the rate of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month, compounded monthly (or, if lower, the maximum rate allowed by 
law).  Further, Crown Castle shall be entitled to recover from Licensee all collection costs, including attorney fees. 

3.3 Disputed Payments.  Licensee may in good faith dispute charges set forth in an invoice, provided Licensee notifies Crown Castle 
of such dispute in writing no later than sixty (60) days after the date of the invoice.  Failure of Licensee to so notify Crown Castle of any dispute 
shall constitute a waiver by Licensee of any dispute.   In the event Licensee so disputes any amount in good faith, Licensee must submit a 
documented claim in writing for the disputed amount and pay the undisputed amounts in accordance with Section 3.2.  Licensee shall submit 
all documentation as may reasonably be required to support the claim.  If the dispute is resolved in favor of Licensee and Licensee previously 
paid the disputed amount to Crown Castle, Crown Castle will apply a credit to Licensee’s account in the amount of the dispute.  If the dispute 
is resolved in Crown Castle’s favor and Licensee has withheld the disputed amount, Licensee must pay the disputed amount (together with the 
late payment charge pursuant to Section 3.2) within five (5) business days following notice of the resolution of the dispute.   
 
4. TAXES AND FEES.   
 
4.1 Taxes and Fees. All charges set forth in an Order Form(s) are exclusive of, and Licensee shall be responsible for and agrees to pay, 
any and all applicable international, federal, state and local use, excise, sales, value added, consumption, gross receipts, access, franchise and 
other taxes, fees, assessments, duties and surcharges (including, without limitation, any universal service fund surcharge) levied or imposed 
upon Crown Castle or Licensee in connection with the provision, sale or use of the Product or facility furnished to Licensee and which Crown 
Castle is required or permitted to collect from Licensee (collectively referred to as “Taxes”).  Licensee shall not be responsible for, and Taxes 
will not include, taxes on Crown Castle’s net income.  If Licensee believes it is exempt from Taxes, Licensee shall provide Crown Castle with 
a valid and duly executed exemption certificate and any other information with respect to such exemption as Crown Castle may require; such 
certificate will be honored from the date that Crown Castle receives such certificate and additional information from Licensee. If any such 
exemption is ruled invalid by the tax or governmental authority for any reason, Licensee shall reimburse Crown Castle for any Taxes, including 
without limitation any penalties and interest, arising from or in connection with such invalid claim of exemption. 
 
4.2 REIT Status.  Licensee acknowledges that: (i) Crown Castle is directly or indirectly owned in whole or in part by an entity (“REIT 
Owner”) that qualifies as a “real estate investment trust” (“REIT”) under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended (the “Code”); and (ii) Crown Castle and REIT Owner are therefore subject to operating and other restrictions under the Code.  The 
Parties intend that this Agreement shall constitute a lease of the Products for purposes of Section 856 of the Code, and the Parties shall not take 
any position on any tax return inconsistent therewith except as required by law. 
 
5. CROWN CASTLE EQUIPMENT AND NETWORK; LICENSEE EQUIPMENT. 
 
5.1 Crown Castle Equipment; Crown Castle Network.  The telecommunications devices, apparatus and associated equipment owned, 
leased, or otherwise obtained by Crown Castle to provide  Products (“Crown Castle Equipment”) and Crown Castle’s fiber optic cable network 
and associated optical/electronic equipment used to deliver Products, whether owned, leased or otherwise obtained by Crown Castle (the 
“Crown Castle Network”) shall remain the sole and exclusive property of Crown Castle notwithstanding that it may be or become attached or 
affixed to real property, and nothing contained herein or in any Order Form grants or conveys to Licensee any right, title or interest in any 
Crown Castle Equipment or the Crown Castle Network.  Licensee may not, and may not permit others to, alter, adjust, encumber, tamper, 
repair, rearrange, change, remove, relocate, or damage any Crown Castle Equipment or the Crown Castle Network without the prior written 
consent of Crown Castle.  Licensee may not cause any liens to be placed on any Crown Castle Equipment or the Crown Castle Network, and 
will cause any such liens to be removed within ten (10) days of Licensee’s knowledge thereof.  Licensee shall be liable to Crown Castle for 
any loss or damage to the Crown Castle Equipment or Crown Castle Network caused by Licensee or Licensee’s employees, contractors, agents 
or end users.  Nothing herein shall prevent Crown Castle from using the Crown Castle Network and Crown Castle Equipment to provide 
products to other customers.   
 
5.2 Extension of Network.  To the extent an Order Form requires Crown Castle to complete construction, extend the Crown Castle 
Network and/or obtain additional Underlying Rights, Licensee shall use commercially reasonable efforts to assist Crown Castle in obtaining 
such Underlying Rights as necessary to provide the Product.  Crown Castle may, without liability to either Party, terminate a Product prior to 
delivery, if Crown Castle encounters unexpected construction costs, or unavailability of or excess costs for Underlying Rights, that make the 
construction economically or legally unfeasible.  Following the Acceptance Date of the Product, in the event that Crown Castle is unable to 
maintain any necessary Underlying Rights without incurring additional costs, unless Licensee bears the costs of obtaining such Underlying 
Rights, Crown Castle may cancel the applicable Order Form and shall incur no liability to Licensee hereunder.  Without limiting the foregoing, 
Crown Castle shall not be deemed to be in breach of this Agreement for its failure to meet any anticipated Product installation or delivery date 
if such failure is caused, in whole or in part, by (i) a Force Majeure Event, (ii) failure to obtain, or delay in obtaining, any required Underlying 



  

Master Telecommunications License Agreement Rev. 3/1/2021  CROWN CASTLE PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL 
 3  

Rights, (iii) construction delays, or (iv) any other circumstances beyond the control of Crown Castle. “Underlying Rights” means any and all 
agreements, licenses, conduit use agreements, pole attachment agreements, leases, easements, rights-of-way, franchises, permits, governmental 
and regulatory approvals and authorizations, and other rights, consents, and approvals that are necessary to construct, install, maintain, operate, 
and repair the Crown Castle Network and/or for Crown Castle to provide a Product other than building access rights described in Section 7.1.  
Without limiting the foregoing, Underlying Rights include agreements for Off-Net Products that are necessary for Crown Castle to provide a 
Product.   “Off-Net Products” shall mean any products provided by a third-party. “On-Net Products” shall mean Products that use transmission 
and related facilities owned and controlled by Crown Castle. 
 
5.3 Licensee Equipment.  Licensee shall, at its own expense, procure any equipment necessary to implement or receive each Product 
(“Licensee Equipment”).  Crown Castle will have no obligation to install, maintain, or repair Licensee Equipment. Promptly upon notice from 
Crown Castle, Licensee shall eliminate any hazard, interference or Product obstruction that any such Licensee Equipment is causing or may 
cause as reasonably determined by Crown Castle.   
 
6. MAINTENANCE.    
 
6.1 Scheduled Maintenance.  Crown Castle will endeavor to conduct (or cause to be conducted) scheduled maintenance that is 
reasonably expected to interrupt the Product between 12:00 midnight and 6:00 a.m. local time or, upon Licensee’s reasonable request, at a time 
mutually agreed to by Licensee and Crown Castle.  Crown Castle will use commercially reasonable efforts to notify Licensee of scheduled 
maintenance that is reasonably expected to interrupt the Product via telephone or e-mail, no less than five (5) days prior to commencement of 
such maintenance activities.  Licensee shall provide a list of Licensee contacts for maintenance and escalation purposes, which may be included 
on the Order Forms, and Licensee shall provide updated lists to Crown Castle, as necessary.   

 
6.2 Emergency Maintenance.  Crown Castle may perform emergency maintenance in its reasonable discretion, with or without prior 
notice to Licensee, to preserve the overall integrity of the Crown Castle Network.  Crown Castle will notify Licensee as soon as reasonably 
practicable of any such emergency maintenance activity that materially and adversely impacts a Product. 
 
6.3 Product Issues.  Licensee may notify Crown Castle’s Network Operating Center (“NOC”) of Product problems by telephone 888-
LT-FIBER, or at the contacts listed in Crown Castle’s Customer Support Information provided to Licensee, which may be updated by Crown 
Castle from time to time.   If Crown Castle dispatches a field technician to Licensee or an end-user location and the problem is caused by (i) 
the Licensee Equipment or any end-user’s equipment or (ii) any acts or omissions of Licensee or its end user, or of any of its or their invitees, 
licensees, customers or contractors, Licensee will pay Crown Castle for any and all associated time and materials at Crown Castle's then-
standard rates. 
 
7. IMPLEMENTATION REQUIREMENTS.  
 
7.1 Access to Premises.   Unless otherwise provided for in the applicable Order Form, Licensee, at its own expense, shall secure 
throughout the Product Term any easements, leases, licenses or other agreements necessary to allow Crown Castle to use pathways into and in 
each building at which Licensee’s or its end-user’s premises is located, to the Demarcation Point.  Such access rights shall grant to Crown 
Castle the right to access such premises to the extent reasonably requested by Crown Castle to install, maintain, repair, replace and remove any 
and all equipment, cables or other devices Crown Castle deems necessary to provide the Product.  Upon expiration or termination of the 
applicable Product Term, Licensee shall grant Crown Castle access to its premises as necessary to enable Crown Castle to remove the Crown 
Castle Equipment.  Crown Castle, its employees, contractors and agents shall have access to any Crown Castle Equipment or facilities at a 
Licensee or end user premises.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Crown Castle shall have no liability for any delay or failure 
in its performance to the extent caused by any delay or failure of Licensee (including, but not limited to, the failure to provide Crown Castle 
prompt access) and/or caused by any notice or access restrictions or requirements.  “Demarcation Point” shall mean the network interface point 
where Crown Castle hands off the Product to Licensee.  The Demarcation Point delineates where responsibility for the Parties’ respective 
networks, equipment and/or maintenance obligations begin and end.  Licensee is responsible, at its sole cost and expense, for connecting to the 
Demarcation Point.   

 
7.2 Space and Power. Licensee shall procure and make available to Crown Castle, at Licensee’s locations and at end user locations 
where a Product is provided or licensed, at Licensee’s sole cost and expense, adequate space, AC power and HVAC for Crown Castle 
Equipment.       
 
 
8. DEFAULT & REMEDIES 
 
8.1 Default By Licensee; Suspension.  In the event (i) Licensee fails to timely and fully make any payment required hereunder, and 
such payment breach is not cured within five (5) days after written notice thereof, or (ii) Licensee breaches any other provision of this 
Agreement and such breach is not cured within thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice thereof, then Crown Castle may, at its sole option, 
either (a) terminate any and all Products, (b) suspend the affected Product to which the breach is related without further notice to Licensee, 
and/or (c) pursue any other remedies available to Crown Castle at law, or in equity.   
 
8.2 Default By Crown Castle.  Licensee may terminate a Product in the event Crown Castle breaches this Agreement with respect to 
such Product and such breach is not cured within thirty (30) days after Crown Castle’s receipt of written notice thereof, provided that if a breach 
subject to this Section 8.2 cannot be cured within thirty (30) days, but is capable of being cured within a reasonable time thereafter, then 
Licensee may not terminate the Product if Crown Castle commences to cure within said thirty (30) days and thereafter diligently and 



  

Master Telecommunications License Agreement Rev. 3/1/2021  CROWN CASTLE PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL 
 4  

continuously pursues such cure to completion, or Crown Castle provides Licensee reasonable assurance that the same breach to the same 
Product will not subsequently occur.   
 
9. INSURANCE. 
 
9.1   Insurance.  Each Party shall procure and maintain the following insurance coverage: 
  

• Commercial General and Umbrella Liability Insurance. Commercial general liability (CGL) and, if necessary, commercial umbrella 
insurance with a limit of not less than $5,000,000 for each occurrence.  CGL insurance shall cover liability arising from premises, 
operations, independent contractors, products-completed operations, personal and advertising injury, and liability assumed under an 
insured contract. Each Party shall name the other Party as an additional insured to provide coverage for the additional insured on a 
primary and non-contributory basis. The coverage provided to the additional insured shall apply to the extent of the indemnification 
obligation identified in paragraphs 10.2.  

• Workers Compensation Insurance.  Workers compensation and employers liability insurance as required by the laws and regulations 
applicable to the employees who are engaged in the performance of any activities hereunder or under an Order Form.   
 

9.2   Type and Proof of Insurance. The insurance coverage required by this Section 9 shall be obtained on an occurrence basis from carriers 
having a Best Rating Product rating of A- or better.  Upon request, a Party will provide the other Party a certificate of insurance or other proof 
of such insurance. 
 
10. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY; INDEMNIFICATION. 
 
10.1. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR ANY INDIRECT, 
CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, INCIDENTAL, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION 
LOSS OF USE OF DATA, OR LOST BUSINESS, REVENUE, PROFITS OR GOODWILL, ARISING IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
AGREEMENT OR ANY PRODUCT OR ANY ORDER FORM, EVEN IF THE PARTY KNEW OR SHOULD HAVE KNOWN OF THE  
POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.   
 
CROWN CASTLE’S TOTAL LIABILITY TO LICENSEE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT FOR ANY AND ALL CAUSES 
OF ACTION AND CLAIMS, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, BREACH OF CONTRACT, BREACH OF WARRANTY, 
NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY, MISREPRESENTATION AND OTHER TORTS, SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE LESSER OF: (A) 
PROVEN DIRECT DAMAGES OR (B) THE AGGREGATE AMOUNT OF PAYMENTS MADE BY LICENSEE TO CROWN CASTLE 
FOR THE AFFECTED PRODUCT DURING THE TWELVE (12) MONTH PERIOD IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE MONTH IN 
WHICH THE CIRCUMSTANCES GIVING RISE TO THE CLAIM OCCURRED.  IN NO EVENT SHALL CROWN CASTLE BE LIABLE 
FOR ANY DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF THE ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF UNAFFILIATED THIRD PARTIES, INCLUDING 
UNDERLYING PRODUCT PROVIDERS, OR ANY THIRD-PARTY EQUIPMENT OR PRODUCTS NOT PROVIDED OR LICENSED BY 
CROWN CASTLE.    
 
10.2. Indemnification.  Except to the extent of the other Party’s negligence or willful misconduct, each Party shall indemnify, defend, 
release, and hold harmless the other Party, its Affiliates, directors, members, officers, employees, managers, agents, representatives, and 
contractors (collectively, “Indemnitees”) from and against any third-party action, claim, suit, judgment, damage, demand, loss, or penalty, and 
any cost or expense associated therewith (including but not limited to reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert fees and costs) (collectively, “Claims”) 
imposed upon such Indemnitee(s) by reason of damage to real or tangible personal property or for bodily injury, including death, as a result of 
any willful misconduct or negligent act or omission on the part of the indemnifying Party in connection with the performance of this Agreement.  
In addition to the foregoing, Licensee shall indemnify, defend, release, and hold harmless Crown Castle and its Indemnitees from and against 
any third-party Claims brought against such Crown Castle and its Indemnitees arising from or in connection with Licensee’s (or its end users’) 
unlawful use of a Product. 

 
10.3. Indemnification Process.  If a Party (“Indemnifying Party”) is required to indemnify the other Party (“Indemnified Party”) pursuant 
to Section 10.2, the Indemnified Party shall promptly notify the Indemnifying Party. The Indemnifying Party will be permitted to assume 
primary control of the defense of the action with counsel of the Indemnifying Party's choice. The Indemnified Party will cooperate in the 
defense of the action as requested by the Indemnifying Party. The Indemnified Party may, but shall not be required to, participate in the defense 
of the action with its own counsel, at its own expense.  The Indemnifying Party will assume the cost of the defense on behalf of the Indemnified 
Party and its Affiliates (other than the expense of Indemnified Party's counsel pursuant to the immediately preceding sentence) and will pay all 
expenses and satisfy all judgments which may be incurred or rendered against the Indemnified Party or its Affiliates in connection therewith, 
provided that without the Indemnified Party’s written consent, the Indemnifying Party shall not enter into or acquiesce to any settlement 
containing any admission of or stipulation to any guilt, fault, or wrongdoing on the part of the Indemnified Party, which would otherwise 
adversely affect the Indemnified Party, or which results in less than a full release of all claims. 
 
 
 
 
11. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. 
   
11.1  EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT, CROWN CASTLE MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS AND 
WARRANTIES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, EITHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, AND CROWN CASTLE HEREBY 



  

Master Telecommunications License Agreement Rev. 3/1/2021  CROWN CASTLE PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL 
 5  

EXPRESSLY EXCLUDES AND DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, (i) NON-
INFRINGEMENT, (ii) IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND (iii) 
PERFORMANCE OR INTEROPERABILITY OF THE PRODUCT WITH ANY LICENSEE OR END-USER EQUIPMENT.  NO 
WARRANTY IS MADE OR PASSED ON WITH RESPECT TO ANY PRODUCTS OR SERVICES PROVIDED BY OR FURNISHED BY 
ANY THIRD PARTY. 
 
11.2 Each Party represents and warrants to the other that (a) it has the full right and authority to enter into, execute, deliver and perform 
its obligations under this Agreement, (b) it will comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, rules and regulations in 
connection with the provision and use of the Products (including but not limited to the FCC’s “intermediate provider” requirements, 47 CFR § 
64.2119, where applicable), and (c) this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of such Party enforceable against such 
Party in accordance with its terms. 
 
12. CONFIDENTIALITY; SERVICE MARKS; PUBLICITY. 
 
12.1   Confidentiality.  Neither Party, without the other Party’s prior written consent, shall disclose to any third party, including but not 
limited to its customers or prospective customers, any information supplied to it relating to the disclosing Party, its Affiliates, and/or its 
customers by the other Party which has been designated as confidential, proprietary or private or which, from the circumstances, in good faith 
should be treated as confidential (“Proprietary Information”).  Proprietary Information shall not include any of the following: (i) information 
that has been, or is subsequently, made public by the disclosing Party; (ii) information that is independently developed by the receiving Party; 
and (iii) information that has been previously known by or disclosed to the receiving Party by a third party not bound by confidentiality 
restrictions.  Pricing information exchanged in connection with this Agreement, or included in any Order Form hereunder, and the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, are hereby designated as confidential without further obligation on the part of either Party to mark or designate 
it as such.  Neither Party shall permit any of its employees, Affiliates nor representatives to disclose Proprietary Information to any third person, 
and it shall disclose Proprietary Information only to those of its employees, Affiliates, and representatives who have a need for it in connection 
with the use or provision of Products required to fulfill this Agreement.  If a receiving Party is required by any governmental authority or by 
applicable law to disclose any Proprietary Information, then to the extent permitted by applicable law, such receiving Party shall provide the 
disclosing Party with written notice of such requirement as soon as possible and prior to such disclosure.  Upon receipt of written notice of the 
requirement to disclose Proprietary Information, the disclosing Party, at its expense, may then either seek appropriate protective relief in 
advance of such requirement to prevent all or part of such disclosure or shall waive the receiving Party’s compliance with the requirements of 
the foregoing sentence with respect to all or part of such Proprietary Information.   
   
12.2   Service Marks, Trademarks and Publicity.  Neither Party shall: (a) use the name, service mark, trademark, trade name, logo, or 
trade dress of the other Party; or (b) refer to the other Party in connection with any advertising, promotion, press release or publication, unless 
it obtains the other Party’s prior written approval. 
 
13. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither Party will assign or transfer this Agreement or any license or Order Form hereunder without the other 
Party’s prior written consent, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld.  Any assignment made in violation of this requirement shall be 
void and invalid.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, either Party may assign this Agreement without the other Party’s consent to a person or entity 
(i) that controls, is controlled by or is under common control with the assigning Party, (ii) which purchases all or substantially all of its assets 
or equity, or (iii) resulting from any merger, consolidation or other reorganization involving such Party.       
 
14. FORCE MAJEURE.  Neither Party shall be liable, nor shall any credit or other remedy be extended, for any delay or failure to 
fulfill any obligation under this Agreement or any Order Forms due to any cause beyond a Party’s reasonable control, including, but not limited 
to: acts of God, flood, extreme weather, fire, natural calamity, terrorism, any moratorium, law, order, regulation, action or inaction of any 
governmental entity or civil or military authority, power or utility failures, fiber or cable cuts caused by third parties, unavailability of rights-
of-way, national emergencies, insurrection, riots, wars, strikes, lock-outs, work stoppages or other labor difficulties, pole hits, or material 
shortages (each a “Force Majeure Event”).   
 
15. NOTICES.  Any request to terminate this Agreement, or any claim for breach thereof, shall be in writing and transmitted either via 
(i) overnight courier or hand delivery, or (ii) certified or registered mail, postage prepaid and return receipt requested, to the other Party at the 
following address.  Notices shall be deemed delivered upon receipt. 
 

Address for Licensee Notices:   
 
***** 
***** 
***** 
***** 

 Address for Crown Castle Notices: 
 

Crown Castle      
2000 Corporate Drive 
Canonsburg, PA  15317 
Attention: Legal Department – Networks 
 

           
A Party may change the address for notices by notice to the other Party provided pursuant to this Section 15. All other notices, requests, or 
communications may be transmitted by email as specified in the relevant invoice or Order Form, at http://fiber.crowncastle.com/support, or as 
otherwise directed by Crown Castle. 
 



  

Master Telecommunications License Agreement Rev. 3/1/2021  CROWN CASTLE PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL 
 6  

16. MISCELLANEOUS 
 
16.1   Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California without regard to its choice of law 
principles.   
 
16.2   No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  The covenants, undertakings, and agreements set forth in this Agreement are solely for the benefit 
of and enforceable by the Parties or their respective successors or permitted assigns.  It is the explicit intention of the Parties hereto that no 
person or entity other than the Parties (and, with respect to the provisions of Section 10, the Indemnitees) is or shall be entitled to any legal 
rights under this Agreement. 
 
16.3   Relationship of the Parties.  The relationship between the Parties hereunder is not that of partners or agents for one another and 
nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute or create a partnership, joint venture or similar relationship.  Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be construed to authorize either Party to represent the other Party for any purpose whatsoever without the prior written consent 
of such other Party. 
 
16.4   Order of Precedence.  If any conflict or contradiction exists between these general terms and conditions and a Supplement, the terms 
of a Supplement will control.  If any conflict or contradiction exists between a Supplement and the terms of an Order Form, the terms of the 
Order Form will control.  If any conflict or contradiction exists between these general terms and conditions and the terms of an Order Form, 
the terms of the Order Form will control. 
 
16.5 Non-Exclusivity.  This Agreement is non-exclusive.  Both Parties may enter into similar arrangements with others, and Crown Castle 
may, as part of its normal business undertakings, actively market its products to any person or entity anywhere in the world, including but not 
limited to in competition with Licensee and/or Licensee's end users. 
 
16.6 Non-Waiver.  The waiver by any Party hereto of a breach or a default under any of the provisions of this Agreement, any Supplement 
or any Order Form, or the failure of any Party, on one or more occasions, to enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement or to exercise any 
right or privilege hereunder shall not thereafter be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach or default of a similar nature, or as a waiver 
of any such provision, right or privilege hereunder.  

 
16.7 Survival.  The terms and provisions contained in this Agreement that by their nature and context are intended to survive the 
performance thereof by the Parties hereto shall so survive the completion of performance and termination or early termination of this 
Agreement, including, without limitation, provisions for indemnification, confidentiality, and the making of payments due hereunder.  
 
16.8 Headings.  Section and subsection headings contained in this Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only, shall not be 
deemed to be a part of this Agreement for any purpose, and shall not in any way define or affect the meaning, construction or scope of any of 
the provisions hereof. 
 
16.9 Severability; Void or Illegal Provisions.  If any part of this Agreement, Supplement or an Order Form shall be determined to be 
invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, said part shall be ineffective to the extent of such invalidity or unenforceability 
only, without in any way affecting the remaining parts of this Agreement or such Order Form.  The remainder of this Agreement will continue 
in full force and effect insofar as it remains a workable instrument to accomplish the intent and purposes of the Parties.  The Parties will replace 
the severed provision with a provision that reflects the initial intention of the Parties. 
 
16.10 Entire Agreement; Amendment.  This Agreement, including all Supplements, Order Forms, exhibits and addenda attached hereto 
is the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes any and all prior negotiations, 
understandings and agreements, whether oral or written, with respect to such subject matter.  This Agreement may be amended only by a 
written instrument executed by the Parties.   
 
16.11 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, all of which taken together shall constitute one and 
the same instrument.  The Parties agree that fully-executed electronic copies or facsimile copies of this Agreement and corresponding Order 
Forms are legally binding and shall act as originals for the purpose thereof.  
 
16.12 Disconnection Notice Requirement.  Licensee shall submit all requests for disconnection of Products in writing to Crown Castle.  
The effective date of any such disconnection will be the later of (i) thirty (30) days from Crown Castle’s receipt of such disconnection request, 
or (ii) the date requested by Licensee in the disconnection request.  Each disconnection request must specify the Licensee name and address, 
email address and telephone number of the person authorizing the disconnect, the circuit ID for the Product to which the disconnect request 
applies, the product type, and requested disconnection date.  Upon termination of a Product, Crown Castle shall have the right (but not the 
obligation) to act on behalf of and as agent for Licensee to terminate all cross-connects relating to such Product, including cross-connects 
ordered by Licensee. Upon request Licensee shall confirm to the applicable supplier of the cross-connect(s) that Crown Castle is authorized to 
terminate such cross-connects on Licensee’s behalf.  Disconnections shall not affect Licensee’s obligation to make payments as agreed in each 
Order Form.     

 



  

Master Telecommunications License Agreement Rev. 3/1/2021  CROWN CASTLE PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL 
 7  

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the last date of execution below. 
 

LICENSEE:     CROWN CASTLE FIBER LLC   
  
By: _____________________________________ By: _____________________________________ 
  
Print Name:_______________________________ Print Name:_______________________________ 
  
Title: ____________________________________ Title: ____________________________________ 
  
Date: ____________________________________ 
 

Date: ____________________________________ 

 

David Ragsdale
Associate Superintendent

3/13/23

Tara Johns

Attorney

March 20, 2023



Licensee or Customer Contact Detail
Licensee or Customer Hueneme Elementary School District

Address 205 N VENTURA RD
Address & Contact City, State PORT HUENEME, CA  93041

Phone (805) 488-3588 Fax (000) 000-0000

Name SUN: Hueneme Elementary School District 
(309122) Email pdelgado@hueneme.org

Billing Address & Contact Billing Address 205 N. Ventura Road Phone -

City, State Port Hueneme, CA 93041 Fax
Technical Contact Name David Ragsdale Primary Phone

E-mail dragsdale@hueneme.org Alternate Phone

Product Detail
Ethernet #1 Product Type Metro-E Advanced Private Line Total Bandwidth 10Gbps

Total MRC $0.00 Total NRC $0.00 Service Level 99.9%

Install Lead Time 10 Days

Existing Product ID S167679

Location A Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location A 701 E Bard Rd, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93033
Location Z Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location Z 701 E Bard Rd, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93033

Ethernet #2 Product Type Metro-E Advanced Private Line Total Bandwidth 10Gbps

Total MRC $1,400.00 Total NRC $0.00 Service Level 99.9%

Install Lead Time 10 Days

Existing Product ID S292825

Location A Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location A 701 E Bard Rd, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93033
Location Z Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location Z 550 Thomas Ave, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93033

Ethernet #3 Product Type Metro-E Advanced Private Line Total Bandwidth 10Gbps

Total MRC $1,400.00 Total NRC $0.00 Service Level 99.9%

Install Lead Time 10 Days

Existing Product ID S292826

Location A Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location A 701 E Bard Rd, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93033
Location Z Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location Z 5400 Perkins Rd, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93033

Ethernet #4 Product Type Metro-E Advanced Private Line Total Bandwidth 10Gbps

Total MRC $1,400.00 Total NRC $0.00 Service Level 99.9%

Install Lead Time 10 Days

Existing Product ID S292823

Location A Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location A 701 E Bard Rd, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93033
Location Z Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location Z 3739 S C St, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93033

Ethernet #5 Product Type Metro-E Advanced Private Line Total Bandwidth 10Gbps

Total MRC $1,400.00 Total NRC $0.00 Service Level 99.9%

Install Lead Time 10 Days

Existing Product ID S292832

Location A Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location A 701 E Bard Rd, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93033
Location Z Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location Z 4000 Sunset Ln, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93035

PRO102193 L281456 3/9/2023 2:35 PM Initials _____Page 1 of 3V22

Order Form
2023-102193SO #
Renewal/ChangeOrder Type:



Ethernet #6 Product Type Metro-E Advanced Private Line Total Bandwidth 10Gbps

Total MRC $1,400.00 Total NRC $0.00 Service Level 99.9%

Install Lead Time 10 Days

Existing Product ID S292827

Location A Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location A 701 E Bard Rd, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93033
Location Z Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location Z 354 N 3rd St, 1st Floor, Port Hueneme, CA 93041

Ethernet #7 Product Type Metro-E Advanced Private Line Total Bandwidth 10Gbps

Total MRC $1,400.00 Total NRC $0.00 Service Level 99.9%

Install Lead Time 10 Days

Existing Product ID S292822

Location A Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location A 701 E Bard Rd, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93033
Location Z Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location Z 205 N Ventura Rd, 1st Floor, Port Hueneme, CA 93041

Ethernet #8 Product Type Metro-E Advanced Private Line Total Bandwidth 10Gbps

Total MRC $1,400.00 Total NRC $0.00 Service Level 99.9%

Install Lead Time 10 Days

Existing Product ID S292828

Location A Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location A 701 E Bard Rd, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93033
Location Z Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location Z 700 E Port Hueneme Rd, 1st Floor, Port Hueneme, CA 93041

Ethernet #9 Product Type Metro-E Advanced Private Line Total Bandwidth 10Gbps

Total MRC $1,400.00 Total NRC $0.00 Service Level 99.9%

Install Lead Time 10 Days

Existing Product ID S292829

Location A Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location A 701 E Bard Rd, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93033
Location Z Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location Z 405 E Dollie St, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93033

Ethernet #10 Product Type Metro-E Advanced Private Line Total Bandwidth 10Gbps

Total MRC $1,400.00 Total NRC $0.00 Service Level 99.9%

Install Lead Time 10 Days

Existing Product ID S292831

Location A Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location A 701 E Bard Rd, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93033
Location Z Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location Z 1416 N 6th Pl, 1st Floor, Port Hueneme, CA 93041

Ethernet #11 Product Type Metro-E Advanced Private Line Total Bandwidth 10Gbps

Total MRC $1,400.00 Total NRC $0.00 Service Level 99.9%

Install Lead Time 10 Days

Existing Product ID S292824

Location A Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location A 701 E Bard Rd, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93033
Location Z Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location Z 622 E Pleasant Valley Rd, 1st Floor, Port Hueneme, CA 93041

Ethernet #12 Product Type Metro-E Advanced Private Line Total Bandwidth 10Gbps

Total MRC $1,400.00 Total NRC $0.00 Service Level 99.9%

Install Lead Time 10 Days

Existing Product ID S292830

Location A Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location A 701 E Bard Rd, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93033
Location Z Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location Z 1400 Teakwood St, 1st Floor, Port Hueneme, CA 93041

Ethernet #13 Product Type Metro-E Advanced Private Line Total Bandwidth 10Gbps

Total MRC $1,400.00 Total NRC $0.00 Service Level 99.9%

PRO102193 L281456 3/9/2023 2:35 PM Initials _____Page 2 of 3V22

Order Form
2023-102193SO #
Renewal/ChangeOrder Type:



Install Lead Time 10 Days

Existing Product ID S292821

Location A Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location A 701 E Bard Rd, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93033
Location Z Product Details Handoff Type 10 Gbps

Location Z 4300 Anchorage St, 1st Floor, Oxnard, CA 93033

Order Summary
Salesperson Anthony Apostol Term (Months) 60

Client Service Mgr Douglas Wagner
Order Contact David Ragsdale Contact Email dragsdale@hueneme.org

Contract Renewal Start Date 07/01/2023

Pricing & Contract Terms NRC * MRC*
Ethernet $0.00 $16,800.00

Total $0.00 $16,800.00

*Pricing shown does not reflect applicable taxes and fees.

SPECIAL ORDER PROVISIONS
The Parties agree that during the Product Term, Customer shall have the option to increase Product(s) from:
(A) 10Gbps to 20Gbps - 40 Gbps with an incremental increase in MRC of $2,600 per circuit (from $1,400 per month to $4,000 per month)
(B) 10Gbps to 40Gbps - 100 Gbps with an incremental increase in MRC of $3,100 per circuit (from $1,400 per month to $4,500 per month)

ORDER ACCEPTANCE
This Order Form is entered into between Provider (or “Company”) and Customer (or “Licensee”) effective as of the date of the last signature below, and is subject to the 
provisions of the Master Telecommunications License Agreement or other master agreement between the parties dated _______________ (“Agreement”), which is 
incorporated herein by reference. In the event the date in the previous sentence is blank, or the Agreement is no longer in effect, then this Order Form will be governed by the 
"Crown Castle Terms and Conditions Version 4.2” available at https://fiber.crowncastle.com/crown-castle-telecommunications-license-terms-and-conditions.pdf (“Online 
Terms”). In addition, if Company and Licensee have not executed a Supplement or Service Level Agreement applicable to the type of product contemplated by this Order 
Form, then the product-specific portion of the Online Terms applicable to the product under this Order Form shall apply.

Licensee or Customer Company or Provider
Hueneme Elementary School District Crown Castle Fiber LLC

XXXSignature    ##Signature## Signature    ##CCSignature##

XXXName/Title    ##Title## Name/Title    ##CCTitle##

Date    ##Date## Date    ##CCDate##

PRO102193 L281456 3/9/2023 2:35 PM Page 3 of 3V22

Order Form
2023-102193SO #
Renewal/ChangeOrder Type:

David Ragsdale
3/13/23

Tara Johns, Attorney
March 20, 2023

3/20/2023



Item 7.5 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM: RATIFY A THREE-YEAR CONTRACT WITH 

SPECTRUM ENTERPRISE FOR FIBER OPTIC SERVICE 

TO VENTURA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

THAT QUALIFIES UNDER THE E-RATE DISCOUNT 

PROGRAM 

 

BOARD MEETING DATE:  March 27, 2023 

 

FROM: David Ragsdale, Associate Superintendent, Technology and 

Strategic Operations 

     Dr. Christine Walker, Superintendent 

 

STAFF COMMENT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

It is recommended that the Governing Board ratify a three-year contract with Spectrum 

Enterprise to provide fiber optic service to Ventura County Office of Education (VCOE) 

that qualifies under the E-Rate discount program. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

This contract with Spectrum will continue the district’s point-to-point connectivity with 

Ventura County Office of Education. On the advice of the district’s E-Rate consultant, 

Infinity Communications, Inc., we bid this service prior to the end of the contract term. Our 

incumbent provider, Spectrum, responded with a three-year contract for higher bandwidth 

service (10 Gbps) at nearly the same cost we were paying for a 5 Gbps connection to 

VCOE.  

 

The E-Rate program administered by Universal Service Administrative Corporation 

(USAC) provides discounts to schools and libraries for telecommunications services and 

hardware. The E-Rate discount on this contract will be 90%. 



 

Spectrum Enterprise Service Order v210416                            CONFIDENTIAL Page 1 of 6 

© 2016-2022 Charter Communications Operating, LLC.  All Rights Reserved 

Created Date: 02/23/2023 

  

      

 

SERVICE ORDER 
 

THIS SERVICE ORDER (“Service Order”), is executed and effective upon the date of the signature set forth in the 

signature block below (“Effective Date”) and is by and between Charter Communications Operating, LLC on 

behalf of those operating subsidiaries providing the Service(s) hereunder (“Spectrum”) and Customer (as shown 

below) and is governed by and subject to the Spectrum Enterprise Commercial Terms of Service posted to the 

Spectrum Enterprise website, https://enterprise.spectrum.com/ (or successor url) or, if applicable, an existing 

services agreement mutually executed by the parties (each, as appropriate, a “Service Agreement”). Except as 

specifically modified herein, all other terms and conditions of the Service Agreement shall remain unamended 

and in full force and effect. 

 

Spectrum Enterprise Contact Information 

Contact:  Mark Kim       

Telephone: 562-677-0311          

Email:    mark.kim@charter.com  

 

Customer Information  

Customer Name 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT  

Order # 

13577039 

 
 

Address 

205 N VENTURA RD  PORT HUENEME CA 93041  

 
 

Telephone 

(805) 488-3588 

Email: 

dragsdale@hueneme.org 

 
 

Contact Name  

Dave Ragsdale 

Telephone 

(805) 488-3588 

Email: 

dragsdale@hueneme.org 

 

 

Billing Address 

205 N VENTURA RD  PORT HUENEME CA 93041 

 
 

    

 

 

 

  

NEW AND REVISED SERVICES AT 5100 Adolfo Rd  , Camarillo CA 93012 

Service Description Order Term Quantity 

Monthly 

Recurring 

Charge(s) 

Total 

Monthly 

Recurring 

Charge(s) 

EPL 10Gbps 36 Months 1 $ 674.50 $ 674.50 

TOTAL* $674.50 

 



 

Spectrum Enterprise Service Order v210416                            CONFIDENTIAL Page 2 of 6 

© 2016-2022 Charter Communications Operating, LLC.  All Rights Reserved 

Created Date: 02/23/2023 

  

      

 

NEW AND REVISED SERVICES AT 701 E Bard Rd  , Oxnard CA 93033 

Service Description Order Term Quantity 

Monthly 

Recurring 

Charge(s) 

Total 

Monthly 

Recurring 

Charge(s) 

EPL 10Gbps 36 Months 1 $ 674.50 $ 674.50 

Spoke 36 Months 1 $   0.00 $   0.00 

TOTAL* $674.50 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Spectrum Enterprise Service Order v210416                            CONFIDENTIAL Page 3 of 6 

© 2016-2022 Charter Communications Operating, LLC.  All Rights Reserved 

Created Date: 02/23/2023 

  

      

 

1. TOTAL CHARGE(S).  Total Monthly Recurring Charges and Total One-Time Charges are due in 

accordance with the monthly invoice.  

2. TAXES.  Plus applicable taxes, fees, and surcharges as presented on the respective invoice(s). 

3. SPECIAL TERMS. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

E-RATE FUNDING CONTINGENCY.   

 

Customer may submit this Service Order and the Agreement to the Schools and Libraries Division of the 

Universal Service Administrative Company, (i.e., the entity appointed by the Federal Communications 

Commission to administer the Universal Service Program with respect to Schools and Libraries (E-Rate) 

funding) as part of any application seeking a federal subsidy or funding. 

 

Customer is responsible for notifying Spectrum of its election of either the Service Provider Invoice (SPI) 

or Billed Entity Applicant Reimbursement (BEAR) discount method by May 15th prior to the applicable 

funding year.  Customer must complete and return an E-Rate Discount Election Form to Spectrum prior 

to such date, or Customer will be deemed to have chosen the BEAR discount method for the funding 

year.  

 

Upon Spectrum’s receipt of appropriate notice that Customer is an approved E-Rate program participant 

for a Service, Spectrum will invoice Customer for the Service in accordance with E-Rate guidelines and/or 

rules.  If Spectrum invoices Customer for a Service pursuant to any E-Rate program rates, discounts or 

credits in advance of receiving such notice and Customer’s request for E-Rate program funding is denied, 

limited or reduced, Spectrum will invoice Customer and Customer will pay the difference between such 

invoiced amount(s) and the actual amount of the charges for the Service as described in this Service 

Order.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Customer’s obligations under this Service Order 

shall remain in full force and effect in the event Customer withdraws or is removed from the E-Rate 



 

Spectrum Enterprise Service Order v210416                            CONFIDENTIAL Page 4 of 6 

© 2016-2022 Charter Communications Operating, LLC.  All Rights Reserved 

Created Date: 02/23/2023 

  

      

 

program, receives E-Rate program funding that is less than Customer’s requested funding amount, or is 

denied E-Rate program funding for any Service described in this Service Order.  For the avoidance of 

doubt, Customer is solely responsible for all charges for services, as described in this Service Order, that 

were installed prior to the E-Rate program funding year start date. 

 

 

During the Order Term, Customer shall have the option, exercisable upon thirty (30) days prior written 

notice to Spectrum (the 'Required Notice'), to upgrade its purchased bandwidth at the Service Location(s) 

reflected in this Service Order to the bandwidth and MRC as reflected in the chart in Exhibit A provided 

that: (i ) Customer has paid for all necessary Equipment, if any, to provide the upgrade; (ii) Customer is 

in good standing on its payment obligations at the time of the requested upgraded Services; and (iii) 

such upgrade applies to bandwidth/speed upgrades only, and not a change to Customer’s existing 

product(s). Nothing herein is intended to modify the Order Term of this Service Order. Except as 

specifically modified herein, all other terms and conditions of the Service Agreement and this Service 

Order shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. Customer will be required to execute a new 

Service Order to document the upgrade. 

 

 

Customer shall have the option to renew this Service Order for up to two (2) additional consecutive 

twelve (12) month terms (each, a “Renewal Term” and collectively with the Initial Order Term, the 

“Order Term”), at the same monthly recurring charge set forth in this Service Order, by providing notice 

of such renewal to Spectrum at least thirty (30) days prior to expiration of the then-current Order Term 

(i.e. either the Initial Order Term or a Renewal Term, as applicable). Notwithstanding the foregoing, 

either Spectrum or Customer may elect to not renew and terminate the Service Order as of the end of 

the then-current Order Term by providing notice thereof to the other Party at least thirty (30) days in 

advance of the expiration of the then-current Order Term. 

 

If Customer does not exercise its option to renew the Service Order for an available Renewal Term in 

accordance with the foregoing, and/or neither Party has terminated the Service Order as of the end of 

an Order Term as permitted above, then upon reaching the end of the then-current Order Term the 

Service Order shall automatically renew for successive one-month terms (each, a “Monthly Renewal 

Term”). Thereafter, either Spectrum or Customer may terminate the Service Order by providing notice 

of termination to the other Party at least thirty (30) days in advance of, and to be effective as of, the 

expiration of a Monthly Renewal Term. 

   

 

 



 

Spectrum Enterprise Service Order v210416                            CONFIDENTIAL Page 5 of 6 

© 2016-2022 Charter Communications Operating, LLC.  All Rights Reserved 

Created Date: 02/23/2023 

  

      

 

 

 

 

By signing below, the signatory represents they are duly authorized to execute this Service Order. 

 

CUSTOMER 
 

 

Charter Communications Operating, LLC 

By: Charter Communications, Inc., its Manager 

 

                       \s1\ 

Signature:__________________________________ 
 

                       \s2\        

Signature:____________________________________ 

                                \n1\ 

Printed Name:_______________________________ 
 

                                \n2\ 

Printed Name:_________________________________ 

             \t1\ 

Title:________________________________________ 
 

            \t2\ 

Title:__________________________________________ 

             \d1\ 

Date:__________________________________________ 
 

              \d2\ 

Date:__________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

David Ragsdale

Associate Superintendent

2/28/23

Sales Manager

3/1/2023

Thomas Heil



 

Spectrum Enterprise Service Order v210416                            CONFIDENTIAL Page 6 of 6 

© 2016-2022 Charter Communications Operating, LLC.  All Rights Reserved 

Created Date: 02/23/2023 

  

      

 

This page intentionally left blank 

 

Exhibit A 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Service 

Location  

A or 

Z Loc 

Circuit 

Group Service 

Bandwidth / 

Product 

Description 

Order 

Term 

(Months) QTY MRC 

5100 Adolfo 

Rd, Camarillo, 

CA 93012 

 Z loc   Ethernet 

EPL 

20,000  36  1  $2,000.00 

701 E Bard Rd, 

Oxnard, CA 

93033 

 A 

loc 

  Ethernet 

EPL 

20,000  36  1  $2,000.00 

5100 Adolfo 

Rd, Camarillo, 

CA 93012 

 Z loc   Ethernet 

EPL 

50,000  36  1  $3,520.00 

701 E Bard Rd, 

Oxnard, CA 

93033 

 A 

loc 

  Ethernet 

EPL 

50,000  36  1  $3,520.00 

5100 Adolfo 

Rd, Camarillo, 

CA 93012 

 Z loc    Ethernet 

EPL 

100,000  36  1  $4,750.00 

701 E Bard Rd, 

Oxnard, CA 

93033 

 A 

loc 

  Ethernet 

EPL 

100,000  36  1  $4,750.00 



Item 8.1 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  
 

RESOLUTION B22-23-14 OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE HUENEME 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE 

OF HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT GENERAL OBLIGATION 

BONDS, 2018 ELECTION, SERIES C, IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO 

EXCEED TWO MILLION DOLLARS ($2,000,000); PRESCRIBING THE TERMS OF 

THE BONDS AND THEIR SALE; APPROVING THE FORM OF BONDS; 

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A BOND PURCHASE 

AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING DELIVERY OF A PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL 

STATEMENT AND AN OFFICIAL STATEMENT WITH RESPECT TO SUCH 

BONDS; AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS AND 

AGREEMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF SUCH BONDS; 

MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS AND TAKING RELATED 

ACTIONS 

 

BOARD MEETING DATE: March 27, 2023 

 

FROM: Patricia Marshall, Chief Business Official 

 Dr. Christine Walker, Superintendent 

 

STAFF COMMENT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

 It is recommended that the Governing Board adopt Resolution B22-23-14. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

On January 22, 2018, the Board of Trustees (“Board”) of the Hueneme Elementary School 

District (“District”) adopted Resolution No. B17-18-04 calling a general obligation bond 

election within the boundaries of the District to finance designated District capital projects, 

facilities and supporting infrastructure, subject to certain limitations imposed by California 

law.  The general obligation bond measure was designated as “Measure B” by the Ventura 

County Registrar of Voters office.  On June 5, 2018, the voters within the District voted to 

approve Measure B by greater than the 55% affirmative vote requirement.  Measure B 

authorized the District to issue and sell up to $34,200,000 of general obligation bonds.  The 

Measure B proceedings were authorized, and the election conducted, pursuant to the 

California Constitution, the provisions of Proposition 39, related California law and 

District Resolution No. B17-18-04. 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of applicable State law, the District has previously authorized 

and issued the Hueneme Elementary School District General Obligation Bonds, 2018 

Election, Series A and Series B, leaving $2,000,000 of the Measure B bond authorization 

unissued.   



RESOLUTION B22-23-14 

March 27, 2023 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

Based upon the facilities expectations, plans and financing requirements of the District, 

and subject to the limitations of State law and Proposition 39, it is now proposed to issue 

and sell the remaining portion of the bonds authorized by Measure B (in an amount not to 

exceed $2,000,000) to be designated as the “Hueneme Elementary School District General 

Obligation Bonds, 2018 Election, Series C (“Series C Bonds”).  The Series C Bonds will 

be issued by the District and sold pursuant to the provisions of Resolution No. B22-23-14 

(“Bond Resolution”) and applicable State law.  It is anticipated that following the issuance 

and sale of the Series C Bonds all of the Measure B Bond Authorization shall have been 

issued. 

 

The Bond Resolution provides for the issuance, sale and delivery of the Series C Bonds 

and provides for the sale parameters for the Series C Bonds, which have been reviewed by 

the District’s Financial Advisor and Bond Counsel.  The Resolution also makes certain 

findings and determinations and directs various actions required by State law to provide 

for the issuance and sale of the Series C Bonds.  Additional information on the structuring 

of the Series C Bond sale, and related financial information, will be provided to the Board 

at the time Resolution No. B22-23-14 is presented for approval. 

 

The proposed forms of the Bond Purchase Agreement and the Continuing Disclosure 

Certificate relating to the Series C Bonds are attached as exhibits to the Resolution.  The 

Bond Purchase Agreement sets out the terms under which the Series C Bonds would be 

sold to the Underwriter (excluding final amounts and interest rates which will be 

determined when the Series C Bonds are priced) and includes factual representations that 

the Underwriter is required to confirm in order to consummate a valid purchase of the 

Series C Bonds.  Resolution No. B22-23-14 also authorizes the Series C Bonds to be sold 

through a private placement sale process should market conditions warrant.  The 

Continuing Disclosure Certificate is a document delivered by the District to comply with 

federal on-going disclosure requirements.  Those requirements apply to the Series C Bonds 

and require that the District annually provide certain information relating to the Series C 

Bonds to investors and potential investors.  The Bond Purchase Agreement and Continuing 

Disclosure Certificate are presented to the District Board in draft form and will be finalized 

during the process for the issuance and sale of the Series C Bonds. 

 

A Preliminary Official Statement, by which the Series C Bonds will be offered to 

purchasers, has also been prepared by the District’s Disclosure Counsel and provided to 

the District in draft form.  It is important that each member of the Board read and be 
familiar with the contents of the Preliminary Official Statement inasmuch as this 
document constitutes the District’s principal offering document for this transaction.  

Comments or questions concerning matters or information in the Preliminary Official 

Statement should be directed to District staff or District Disclosure Counsel. 

 

The Board will be presented with information with regard to the proposed structure of the 

Series C Bonds and potential tax rate implications of the issuance of the Series C Bonds 

on taxpayers within the boundaries of the District.  This information is required to be 

presented by the Board pursuant to the provisions of the State law to issue the Series C 

Bonds. 



RESOLUTION B22-23-14 

March 27, 2023 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

The Series C Bonds are proposed to be sold through Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, 

Incorporated, as the Underwriter.  The District is represented in the issuance and sale of 

the Series C Bonds by Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo, A Professional Law 

Corporation as District Bond Counsel, Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth as District 

Disclosure Counsel and Isom Advisors, a Division of Urban Futures, Inc., as District 

Financial (Municipal) Advisor. 

  

The issuance of the Series C Bonds is also subject to the requirements and limitations of 

Proposition 39.  Various other findings and determinations required by Proposition 39 and 

State law are included with Resolution No. B22-23-14. 

 

The District will also arrange, through the County, for the collection of the ad valorem 

property taxes within the boundaries of the District necessary to repay the principal and 

interest on the Series C Bonds pursuant to applicable statutory requirements, Proposition 

39 and as directed in Resolution No. B22-23-14.   

 

Provided Documents 

 District Resolution No. B22-23-14 

 Preliminary Official Statement 

 Form of Bond Purchase Agreement 

 Form of Continuing Disclosure Certificate  

 Underwriter Representations Letter 

 Financial information concerning the Series C Bonds and total projected tax rates 

 

Financial Implications 
 

The issuance and sale of the Series C Bonds will generate funding for capital facilities 

projects as identified in Measure B and in the District’s facilities planning documentation.   

 

It is anticipated that upon the issuance of the Series C Bonds (when added to the debt 

service requirements for the outstanding Series A Bonds), the tax rate on properties within 

the boundaries of the District necessary to pay debt service on all outstanding bonds 

authorized by Measure “B” will not exceed $30.00 per $100,000 of assessed value, 

conforming to State requirements. 

 

Estimates of the Costs of Issuance of the Series C Bonds are provided in Resolution No. 

B22-23-14 as an Exhibit.  Fees for legal counsel, financial advisory services and 

underwriting fees for the Series C Bonds are contingent upon the successful issuance and 

sale of the Series C Bonds. 

 

Additional financial information, provided to comply with State statutory requirements, is 

provided to the Board in Exhibit “E” as provided by the District’s Financial (Municipal) 

Advisor (Isom Advisors, a Division of Urban Futures, Inc.). 

 



























































































































































































PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED APRIL __, 2023 

4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

T
h

is
 P

re
li

m
in

ar
y

 O
ff

ic
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
en

t 
an

d
 t

h
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 c

o
n

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
 a

re
 s

u
b

je
ct

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 o
r 

am
en

d
m

en
t.

  
T

h
es

e 
se

cu
ri

ti
es

 m
ay

 n
o
t 

b
e 

so
ld

, 
n
o

r 
m

ay
 o

ff
er

s 
to

 b
u

y
 t

h
em

 b
e 

ac
ce

p
te

d
, 

p
ri

o
r 

to
  

th
e 

ti
m

e 
th

e 
O

ff
ic

ia
l 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

is
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 i
n

 f
in

al
 f

o
rm

. 
 U

n
d

er
 n

o
 c

ir
cu

m
st

an
ce

s 
sh

al
l 

th
is

 P
re

li
m

in
ar

y
 O

ff
ic

ia
l 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

co
n

st
it

u
te

 a
n

 o
ff

er
 t

o
 s

el
l 

o
r 

th
e 

so
li

ci
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
an

 o
ff

er
 t

o
 b

u
y

, 
n
o

r 
sh

al
l 

th
er

e 
 

b
e 

an
y

 s
al

e 
o

f,
 t

h
es

e 
se

cu
ri

ti
es

 i
n

 a
n

y
 j

u
ri

sd
ic

ti
o

n
 i

n
 w

h
ic

h
 s

u
ch

 o
ff

er
, 

so
li

ci
ta

ti
o
n

 o
r 

sa
le

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 u

n
la

w
fu

l.
 

NEW ISSUE -- FULL BOOK-ENTRY Rating: Standard & Poor’s: “___” 
See “RATING”  

In the opinion of Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo, A Professional Law Corporation, Irvine, California, Bond 

Counsel, subject, however, to certain qualifications described herein, under existing laws, regulations, rulings and court decisions, 

and assuming, among other matters, the accuracy of certain representations and compliance with certain covenants, interest on the 

Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 

amended (“Code”).  In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the 

federal alternative minimum tax.  In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Bonds is exempt from State of California 

personal income taxation.  Bond Counsel expresses no other opinion regarding or concerning any other tax consequences related to 

the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds.   See “TAX MATTERS” herein.   

$2,000,000* 
HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(Ventura County, California) 
General Obligation Bonds, 2018 Election, Series C 

(Bank Qualified) 

Dated: Date of Delivery  Due:  August 1, as shown on inside front cover 

This cover page contains information for quick reference only.  It is not a summary of this issue.  Investors must read the 

entire official statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision.  Capitalized terms used 

in this cover page and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings set forth herein.  

The Hueneme Elementary School District (Ventura County, California) General Obligation Bonds, 2018 Election, Series C 

(Bank Qualified) (the “Bonds”), were authorized at an election of the registered voters of the Hueneme Elementary School District 

(the “District”) held on June 5, 2018, at which more than the requisite 55% of the persons voting on the proposition voted to 

authorize the issuance and sale of $34,200,000 aggregate principal amount of general obligation bonds of the District.  The Bonds are 

being issued to finance the repair, upgrading, modernization, renovation, construction and equipping of certain District property and 

facilities, to pay capitalized interest on the Bonds, and to pay certain costs of issuing the Bonds.   

The Bonds represent a general obligation of the District, payable solely from ad valorem property taxes.  The Board of 

Supervisors of Ventura County (the “County”) is empowered and obligated to annually levy ad valorem taxes for the payment of the 

principal of and interest on the Bonds upon all property subject to taxation by the District without limitation of rate or amount (except 

as to certain personal property which is taxable at limited rates). 

The Bonds will be issued in book-entry form only, and will be initially issued and registered in the name of Cede & Co. as 

nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (collectively referred to herein as “DTC”).  Purchasers of the 

Bonds (the “Beneficial Owners”) will not receive physical certificates representing their interests in the Bonds.   

Interest with respect to the Bonds accrues from the date of delivery and is payable semiannually on February 1 and August 1 

of each year, commencing August 1, 2023.  Payment to owners of $1,000,000 or more in principal amount of Bonds, at the owner’s 

option, will be made by wire transfer.  The Bonds are issuable as fully registered Bonds in denominations of $5,000 principal amount 

or any integral multiple thereof.   

Payments of principal of and interest on the Bonds will be made by U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as 

Paying Agent, to DTC for subsequent disbursement to DTC Participants (defined herein) who will remit such payments to the 

Beneficial Owners (defined herein) of the Bonds.  See “THE BONDS – Book-Entry Only System.” 

The District has applied for a municipal bond insurance policy for the scheduled payment of principal of and interest on the 

Bonds when due, which, if purchased, would be issued concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds. 

The Bonds are subject to optional and mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity, as described herein.* 
    

 MATURITY SCHEDULE* 

(see inside front cover) 
    

The Bonds are offered when, as and if issued, and received by the Underwriter subject to the approval as to their legality by 

Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo, a Professional Law Corporation, Irvine, California, Bond Counsel to the District.  Certain 

legal matters will be passed upon for the District by Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, San Francisco, 

California, and for the Underwriter by Kutak Rock LLP, Denver, Colorado.  The Bonds, in book-entry form, will be available for 

delivery through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company on or about May __, 2023.* 

[Stifel logo] 
The date of this Official Statement is May __, 2023.  
   
*  Preliminary, subject to change. 



 

4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

MATURITY SCHEDULE 

$2,000,000* 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
(Ventura County, California) 

General Obligation Bonds, 2018 Election, Series C 
(Bank Qualified) 

Base CUSIP†: 444258 
$_________ Serial Bonds 

Maturity 
(August 1) 

Principal 
Amount 

Interest 
Rate 

 
Yield 

 
CUSIP† 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

$_________  ____% Term Bonds due August 1, 20__ - Yield ____% - CUSIP†:  

 

                                                      
*  Preliminary, subject to change. 

†   CUSIP is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Association.  CUSIP data herein is provided by CUSIP 

Global Services, managed by FactSet Research Systems Inc. on behalf of the American Bankers Association.  These 

data are not intended to create a database and do not serve in any way as a substitute for the CUSIP Services.  Neither 

the Underwriter nor the District is responsible for the selection or correctness of the CUSIP numbers set forth herein.  



 

 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
(Ventura County, California) 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Charles Weis, Ph.D., President 

Darlene A. Bruno, Clerk 

Siugen Constanza, Member 

Bexy I. Gomez, Member 

Daisy Sampablo, Member 

DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION 

Christine Walker, Ed.D., Superintendent 

Patricia Marshall, Chief Business Official 

________________________ 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

BOND COUNSEL 

Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo, 

a Professional Law Corporation 

Irvine, California 

DISCLOSURE COUNSEL 

Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, 

a Professional Corporation 

San Francisco, California 

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR 

Isom Advisors, a Division of Urban Futures, Inc. 

Walnut Creek, California 

UNDERWRITER 

Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated 

San Francisco, California 

PAYING AGENT 

U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association 

Los Angeles, California 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Page 

 i 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................................................................ 1 

THE DISTRICT ......................................................................................................................................................................1 
SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS.......................................................................................................1 
PURPOSE OF ISSUE ...............................................................................................................................................................2 
DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS ...............................................................................................................................................2 
TAX MATTERS .....................................................................................................................................................................3 
AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS ..........................................................................................................................3 
OFFERING AND DELIVERY OF THE BONDS ............................................................................................................................3 
BANK QUALIFIED ................................................................................................................................................................3 
BOND OWNER’S RISKS ........................................................................................................................................................4 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE ...................................................................................................................................................4 
PROFESSIONALS INVOLVED IN THE OFFERING ......................................................................................................................4 
FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS .......................................................................................................................................4 
OTHER INFORMATION ..........................................................................................................................................................5 

THE BONDS......................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE ..................................................................................................................................................5 
SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT ................................................................................................................................6 
DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS ...............................................................................................................................................7 
BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM ...............................................................................................................................................7 
PAYING AGENT ....................................................................................................................................................................9 
REDEMPTION ..................................................................................................................................................................... 10 
REGISTRATION, TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE OF BONDS ...................................................................................................... 12 
DEFEASANCE ..................................................................................................................................................................... 13 
APPLICATION AND INVESTMENT OF BOND PROCEEDS ........................................................................................................ 14 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS ......................................................................................................... 14 

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULES ....................................................................................................................................... 15 

TAX BASE FOR REPAYMENT OF THE BONDS........................................................................................................ 15 

AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAXATION ................................................................................................................................... 15 
ASSESSED VALUATIONS..................................................................................................................................................... 16 
APPEALS AND REDUCTIONS OF ASSESSED VALUATIONS .................................................................................................... 19 
ASSESSED VALUATION AND PARCELS BY LAND USE ......................................................................................................... 20 
ASSESSED VALUATION BY JURISDICTION ........................................................................................................................... 20 
ASSESSED VALUATION PER PARCEL OF SINGLE FAMILY HOMES ....................................................................................... 21 
TAXATION OF STATE-ASSESSED UTILITY PROPERTY ......................................................................................................... 21 
SECURED TAX CHARGES AND DELINQUENCIES .................................................................................................................. 22 
ALTERNATIVE METHOD OF TAX APPORTIONMENT ............................................................................................................ 23 
TAX RATES ........................................................................................................................................................................ 24 
LARGEST PROPERTY OWNERS ............................................................................................................................................ 26 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT ...................................................................................................................................... 26 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES AND 
APPROPRIATIONS .......................................................................................................................................................... 28 

ARTICLE XIIIA OF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION ......................................................................................................... 28 
PROPOSITION 19 ................................................................................................................................................................ 29 
LEGISLATION IMPLEMENTING ARTICLE XIIIA ................................................................................................................... 29 
PROPOSITION 50 AND PROPOSITION 171 ............................................................................................................................. 29 
UNITARY PROPERTY .......................................................................................................................................................... 30 
ARTICLE XIIIB OF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION.......................................................................................................... 30 
ARTICLE XIIIC AND ARTICLE XIIID OF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION ......................................................................... 31 
PROPOSITION 26 ................................................................................................................................................................ 32 
PROPOSITIONS 98 AND 111 ................................................................................................................................................ 32 
PROPOSITION 39 ................................................................................................................................................................ 34 
JARVIS V. CONNELL ........................................................................................................................................................... 35 
PROPOSITION 1A AND PROPOSITION 22 .............................................................................................................................. 35 
PROPOSITION 30 AND PROPOSITION 55 ............................................................................................................................... 36 
PROPOSITION 2 .................................................................................................................................................................. 36 
PROPOSITION 51 ................................................................................................................................................................ 38 
FUTURE INITIATIVES .......................................................................................................................................................... 39 
STATE BUDGET .................................................................................................................................................................. 39 



TABLE OF CONTENTS (cont’d) 
Page 

 ii 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

THE DISTRICT ................................................................................................................................................................. 45 

INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................................................................................. 45 
ADMINISTRATION .............................................................................................................................................................. 46 
ENROLLMENT TRENDS ....................................................................................................................................................... 47 
LABOR RELATIONS ............................................................................................................................................................ 48 
STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS ........................................................................................................................................... 48 
POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS .......................................................................................................................................... 58 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITIES ............................................................................................................................................. 59 

DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION..................................................................................................................... 59 

STATE FUNDING OF EDUCATION ........................................................................................................................................ 59 
OTHER REVENUE SOURCES ................................................................................................................................................ 63 
CONSIDERATIONS REGARDING COVID-19 ........................................................................................................................ 63 
STATE DISSOLUTION OF REDEVELOPMENT AGENCIES ........................................................................................................ 66 
ACCOUNTING PRACTICES ................................................................................................................................................... 67 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ................................................................................................................................................... 68 
BUDGET PROCESS .............................................................................................................................................................. 69 
GENERAL FUND BUDGETS ................................................................................................................................................. 71 
DISTRICT DEBT STRUCTURE .............................................................................................................................................. 72 

TAX MATTERS ................................................................................................................................................................. 75 

LEGAL MATTERS ........................................................................................................................................................... 77 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE ................................................................................................................................................. 77 
LEGALITY FOR INVESTMENT IN CALIFORNIA ...................................................................................................................... 77 
BANK QUALIFIED .............................................................................................................................................................. 77 
ABSENCE OF MATERIAL LITIGATION ................................................................................................................................. 77 
LEGAL OPINION ................................................................................................................................................................. 78 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ................................................................................................................................................... 78 

RATING .............................................................................................................................................................................. 78 

UNDERWRITING ............................................................................................................................................................. 78 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ..................................................................................................................................... 79 

 

APPENDIX A  FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE DISTRICT ..................................... A-1 

APPENDIX B  FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL ................................................................................................ B-1 

APPENDIX C  FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE .............................................................................. C-1 

APPENDIX D  GENERAL ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION REGARDING THE DISTRICT ........................ D-1 

APPENDIX E  VENTURA COUNTY STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY AND REPORT OF INVESTMENTS .................. E-1 

 

 

 



 

  
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

This Official Statement does not constitute an offering of any security other than the original offering of the 

Bonds of the District.  No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the District to give any 

information or to make any representations other than as contained in this Official Statement, and if given or made, 

such other information or representation not so authorized should not be relied upon as having been given or 

authorized by the District. 

The issuance and sale of the Bonds have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933 or the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, both as amended, in reliance upon exemptions provided thereunder by 

Section 3(a)2 and 3(a)12, respectively, for the issuance and sale of municipal securities.  This Official Statement 

does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy in any state in which such offer or solicitation is 

not authorized or in which the person making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so or to any person to 

whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation. 

Certain information set forth herein has been obtained from sources outside the District which are believed 

to be reliable, but such information is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness, and is not to be construed as a 

representation by the District.  The information and expressions of opinions herein are subject to change without 

notice and neither delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, 

create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the District since the date hereof.  This Official 

Statement is submitted in connection with the sale of the Bonds referred to herein and may not be reproduced or 

used, in whole or in part, for any other purpose. 

When used in this Official Statement and in any continuing disclosure by the District in any press release 

and in any oral statement made with the approval of an authorized officer of the District or any other entity 

described or referenced in this Official Statement, the words or phrases “will likely result,” “are expected to,” “will 

continue,” “is anticipated,” “estimate,” “project,” “forecast,” “expect,” “intend” and similar expressions identify 

“forward looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.  Such 

statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those 

contemplated in such forward-looking statements.  Any forecast is subject to such uncertainties.  Inevitably, some 

assumptions used to develop the forecasts will not be realized and unanticipated events and circumstances may 

occur.  Therefore, there are likely to be differences between forecasts and actual results, and those differences may 

be material. 

Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated (the “Underwriter”), has provided the following sentence for 

inclusion in this Official Statement: 

“The Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and 

as part of, its responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts 

and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or the 

completeness of such information.” 

In connection with this offering, the Underwriter may overallot or effect transactions which stabilize 
or maintain the market prices of the Bonds at levels above those that might otherwise prevail in the open 
market.  Such stabilizing, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time.  The Underwriter may offer and 
sell the Bonds to certain securities dealers and dealer banks and banks acting as agent at prices lower than 
the public offering prices stated on the inside cover page and said public offering prices may be changed from 
time to time by the Underwriter. 

The District maintains a website and social media accounts.  However, the information presented therein is 

not part of this Official Statement and should not be relied upon in making an investment decision with respect to 

the Bonds.  

 



 

1 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

$2,000,000

 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
(Ventura County, California) 

General Obligation Bonds, 2018 Election, Series C 
(Bank Qualified) 

 

INTRODUCTION 

This Official Statement, which includes the cover page, inside cover page, and appendices hereto, 

provides information in connection with the sale of the above-captioned Hueneme Elementary School 

District (Ventura County, California) General Obligation Bonds, 2018 Election, Series C (Bank 

Qualified) (the “Bonds”).   

This Introduction is not a summary of this Official Statement.  It is only a brief description 
of and guide to, and is qualified by, more complete and detailed information contained in the entire 
Official Statement, including the cover page, inside cover page and appendices hereto, and the 
documents summarized or described herein.  A full review should be made of the entire Official 
Statement.  The offering of Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of the entire Official 
Statement. 

The District 

The Hueneme Elementary School District (the “District”), located on the Pacific Coast of 

southern California, serves a large portion of the city of Port Hueneme, a small portion of the city of 

Oxnard, and adjacent unincorporated territory in Ventura County (the “County”).  The District 

encompasses an area of approximately eight square miles and an estimated population of approximately 

53,995 residents.  The District is an elementary school district for students in grades K-8.  The District 

currently operates 11 schools, including nine elementary schools and two junior high schools.  District 

enrollment for the 2022-23 school year is [7,121] students.   

The District is governed by a five-member Board of Trustees (the “Board”), each member of 

which is elected at large to a four-year term.  Elections for positions to the Board are held every two 

years, alternating between two and three available positions.  The day-to-day affairs of the District are the 

responsibility of its Superintendent.  Christine Walker, Ed.D., is the Superintendent of the District and 

Patricia Marshall is the Chief Business Official of the District.  See “THE DISTRICT – Administration.” 

Security and Sources of Payment for the Bonds 

The Bonds are general obligation bonds of the District payable solely from ad valorem property 

taxes levied and collected by the County on taxable property located within the boundaries of the District.  

The Board of Supervisors (the “Board of Supervisors”) of the County has the power and is obligated to 

annually levy ad valorem taxes for the payment of the Bonds and the interest thereon upon all property 

within the District subject to taxation by the District without limitation of rate or amount (except certain 

personal property which is taxable at limited rates).  See “THE BONDS – Security and Sources of 

Payment.”   

                                                      
  Preliminary, subject to change. 



 

2 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Purpose of Issue 

The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used by the District to (i) finance the repair, 

upgrading, modernization, renovation, construction and equipping of certain District property and 

facilities, (ii) pay capitalized interest on the Bonds, and (iii) pay certain costs of issuing the Bonds.   

See “THE BONDS – Application and Investment of Bond Proceeds” and “ESTIMATED 

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS.”  

Description of the Bonds 

Form, Registration and Denomination.  The Bonds will be issued in fully registered form only 

(without coupons), initially registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust 

Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), and will be available to actual purchasers of the Bonds (the 

“Beneficial Owners”) in the denominations set forth on the inside cover page hereof, under the book-entry 

only system maintained by DTC, only through brokers and dealers who are or act through DTC 

Participants as described herein.  Beneficial Owners will not be entitled to receive physical delivery of the 

Bonds.  See “THE BONDS – Book-Entry Only System.”  In the event that the book-entry only system 

described below is no longer used with respect to the Bonds, the Bonds will be registered in accordance 

with the Resolution described herein.  See “THE BONDS – Registration, Transfer and Exchange of 

Bonds.” 

Individual purchases of interests in the Bonds will be available to purchasers of the Bonds in the 

denominations of $5,000 principal amount or any integral multiple thereof. 

Redemption.*  The Bonds are subject to optional redemption and mandatory sinking fund 

redemption prior to maturity as described herein.  See “THE BONDS – Redemption.” 

Payments.  Interest on the Bonds accrues from their initial date of delivery, and is payable 

semiannually on each February 1 and August 1 (each a “Bond Payment Date”), commencing August 1, 

2023.  Principal on the Bonds is payable on August 1 in the amounts and years as set forth on the inside 

cover page hereof.  Payments of the principal of and interest on the Bonds will be made by U.S. Bank 

Trust Company, National Association, the designated paying agent, bond registrar, authenticating agent 

and transfer agent (the “Paying Agent”), to DTC for subsequent disbursement through DTC Participants 

(defined herein) to the Beneficial Owners (defined herein) of the Bonds.  See “THE BONDS – Book-

Entry Only System.” 

Bond Insurance.  The District has applied for municipal bond insurance for the scheduled 

payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds when due which, if purchased, would be issued 

concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds.   

In the event of a default in the payment of principal of or interest on the Bonds, when all or some 

becomes due, any Owner of such Bonds may have a claim under any municipal bond insurance policy 

(each, a “Policy”) secured in connection with the Bonds.  Such a Policy may not insure against 

redemption premium, if any, with respect to the Bonds. 

In the event that the provider of such a Policy (an “Insurer”) is unable to make payments of 

principal of or interest on the Bonds, as such payments become due under a Policy, such Bonds will be 

payable solely as otherwise described herein.  In the event that an Insurer becomes obligated to make 

                                                      
* Preliminary, subject to change. 



 

3 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

payments with respect to the Bonds, no assurance can be given that such event would not adversely affect 

the market price of such Bonds or the marketability or liquidity of such Bonds.   

If a Policy is obtained, the long-term ratings on the Bonds will be dependent in part on the 

financial strength of the Insurer providing such a Policy, and its claim paying ability.  Such Insurer’s 

financial strength and claims paying ability are predicated upon a number of factors which could change 

over time.  No assurance is given that the long-term ratings of such an Insurer and of the ratings on the 

Bonds insured by such Insurer will not be subject to downgrade, and such event could adversely affect the 

market price of the Bonds, or the marketability or liquidity for such Bonds. 

Neither the District, Municipal Advisor, nor Underwriter have made independent investigations 

into the claims paying ability of any potential Insurer and no assurance or representation regarding the 

financial strength or projected financial strength of any such Insurer is given.  Thus, when making an 

investment decision, potential investors should carefully consider the ability of the County to levy and 

collect sufficient ad valorem property taxes to pay principal and interest on the Bonds, and the claims 

paying ability of any such Insurer, particularly over the life of the investment.  

Tax Matters 

In the opinion of Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo, a Professional Law Corporation, 

Irvine, California, Bond Counsel, subject, however, to certain qualifications described herein, under 

existing laws, rulings and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, the accuracy of certain 

representations and compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross 

income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 

amended (“Code”).  In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax 

preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax.  In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, 

interest on the Bonds is exempt from State of California personal income taxation.  Bond Counsel 

expresses no other opinion regarding or concerning any other tax consequences related to the ownership 

or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds.  See “TAX MATTERS” herein.  The 

form of the proposed opinion of Bond Counsel relating to the Bonds is included with this Official 

Statement.  See “APPENDIX B – FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL” attached hereto. 

Authority for Issuance of the Bonds 

The Bonds are issued pursuant to certain provisions of the State of California Government Code 

and other applicable law, and pursuant to the Resolution (as defined herein) adopted by the Board.  See 

“THE BONDS – Authority for Issuance.” 

Offering and Delivery of the Bonds 

The Bonds are offered when, as and if issued, subject to approval as to the validity by Bond 

Counsel.  It is anticipated that the Bonds will be available for delivery through the facilities of DTC on or 

about May __, 2023.* 

Bank Qualified 

The District will designate the Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt obligations,” thereby allowing 

certain financial institutions that are holders of such qualified tax-exempt obligations to deduct a portion 

                                                      
*  Preliminary, subject to change. 



 

4 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

of such institution’s interest expense allocable to such qualified tax-exempt obligations, all as determined 

in accordance with Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.  See “LEGAL MATTERS – Bank Qualified” herein. 

Bond Owner’s Risks 

The Bonds are general obligations of the District payable solely from ad valorem property taxes 

which may be levied on all taxable property in the District, without limitation as to rate or amount (except 

with respect to certain personal property which is taxable at limited rates).  For more complete 

information regarding the District’s financial condition and taxation of property within the District, see 

“TAX BASE FOR REPAYMENT OF THE BONDS,” “DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION” and 

“THE DISTRICT” herein. 

Continuing Disclosure 

The District will covenant for the benefit of bondholders to make available certain financial 

information and operating data relating to the District and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain 

enumerated events, in compliance with S.E.C. Rule 15c2-12(b)(5).  The specific nature of the information 

to be made available and of the notices of events required to be provided are summarized in Appendix C.  

See “LEGAL MATTERS – Continuing Disclosure.” 

Professionals Involved in the Offering 

Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo, a Professional Law Corporation, Irvine, California is 

acting as Bond Counsel to the District with respect to the Bonds.  Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a 

Professional Corporation, San Francisco, California is acting as Disclosure Counsel to the District in 

connection with the Bonds.  Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo and Stradling Yocca Carlson & 

Rauth will receive compensation from the District contingent upon the sale and delivery of the Bonds.  

Isom Advisors, a Division of Urban Futures, Inc. is acting as municipal advisor to the District.  U.S. Bank 

Trust Company, National Association, Los Angeles, California is acting as Paying Agent with respect to 

the Bonds.  Kutak Rock LLP, Denver, Colorado is serving as Underwriter’s Counsel in connection with 

the sale and delivery of the Bonds.   

Forward Looking Statements 

Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this Official Statement constitute 

“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the United States Private Securities Litigation 

Reform Act of 1995, Section 21E of the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 

Section 27A of the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended.  Such statements are generally 

identifiable by the terminology used such as “plan,” “expect,” “estimate,” “project,” “budget” or other 

similar words.  Such forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, certain statements 

contained in the information regarding the District herein. 

The achievement of certain results or other expectations contained in such forward-looking 
statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause 
actual results, performance or achievements described to be materially different from any future 
results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.  
The District does not plan to issue any updates or revisions to the forward-looking statements set 
forth in this Official Statement. 



 

5 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Other Information 

This Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information contained herein is subject 

to change.  Copies of documents referred to herein and information concerning the Bonds are available 

from the Superintendent, Hueneme Elementary School District, 205 North Ventura Road, Port Hueneme, 

California  93041-3065.  The District may impose a charge for copying, mailing and handling. 

No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the District to give any 

information or to make any representations other than as contained herein and, if given or made, such 

other information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the District.  

This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy nor shall 

there be any sale of the Bonds by a person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to 

make such an offer, solicitation or sale.  

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with the purchasers of the Bonds.  

Statements contained in this Official Statement which involve estimates, forecasts or matters of opinion, 

whether or not expressly so described herein, are intended solely as such and are not to be construed as 

representations of fact.  The summaries and references to documents, statutes and constitutional 

provisions referred to herein do not purport to be comprehensive or definitive, and are qualified in their 

entireties by reference to each of such documents, statutes and constitutional provisions. 

Certain information set forth herein, other than that provided by the District, has been obtained 

from official sources which are believed to be reliable but it is not guaranteed as to accuracy or 

completeness, and is not to be construed as a representation by the District.  The information and 

expressions of opinions herein are subject to change without notice and neither delivery of this Official 

Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there 

has been no change in the affairs of the District since the date hereof. This Official Statement is submitted 

in connection with the sale of the Bonds referred to herein and may not be reproduced or used, in whole 

or in part, for any other purpose. 

Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to such 

terms in the applicable Resolution (defined herein). 

THE BONDS 

Authority for Issuance 

The Bonds are issued pursuant to the provisions of Article 4.5 of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 

of Title 5 of the California Government Code of the State of California (the “Act”), commencing with 

Section 53506 et seq., as amended, Article XIIIA of the California Constitution, and applicable provisions 

of the California Education Code and pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Board on March 27, 2023 

(the “Resolution”).  The District received authorization at an election held on June 5, 2018, by 55% or 

more of the votes cast by eligible voters within the District to issue not to exceed $34,200,000 aggregate 

principal amount of general obligation bonds (the “2018 Authorization”).  The Bonds are the third series 

of bonds issued under the 2018 Authorization and following the issuance thereof, no further bonds may 

be issued under the 2018 Authorization.*   

See “DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION – District Debt Structure – General Obligation 

Bonds” for information concerning other outstanding general obligation bonds of the District.  

                                                      
*  Preliminary, subject to change. 



 

6 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Security and Sources of Payment 

The Bonds are general obligations of the District, and payable solely from the proceeds of ad 

valorem property taxes.  The Board of Supervisors of the County is empowered and obligated to annually 

levy ad valorem taxes for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds upon all property 

within the District, subject to taxation by the District without limitation as to rate or amount (except 

certain personal property which is taxable at limited rates).  Such taxes, when collected, will be deposited 

by the County into the debt service fund established pursuant to the Resolution (the “Debt Service 

Fund”), which is segregated and held by the County and which is irrevocably pledged for the payment of 

principal of and interest on the applicable Bonds when due.  Although the County is obligated to levy an 

ad valorem tax for the payment of the Bonds, and the County will hold the Debt Service Fund, the Bonds 

are not a debt of the County.  See “TAX BASE FOR REPAYMENT OF THE BONDS.”  

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 53515, the Bonds will be secured by a statutory 

lien on all revenues received pursuant to the levy and collection of ad valorem property taxes for the 

payment thereof.  The lien automatically attaches, without further action or authorization by the Board, 

and is valid and binding from the time the Bonds are executed and delivered.  The revenues received 

pursuant to the levy and collection of the ad valorem property tax will be immediately subject to the lien, 

and such lien will be enforceable against the District, its successor, transferees and creditors, and all other 

parties asserting rights therein, irrespective of whether such parties have notice of the lien and without the 

need for physical delivery, recordation, filing or further act.  

The moneys in the Debt Service Fund, to the extent necessary to pay the principal of and interest 

on the Bonds, as the same becomes due and payable, will be transferred by the County to the Paying 

Agent which, in turn, shall remit such moneys to DTC to pay, as the case may be, the principal of and 

interest on the Bonds.  DTC will thereupon make payment of principal and interest of such Bonds to the 

DTC Participants who will thereupon make payments of principal and interest to its Participants (as 

defined herein) for subsequent disbursement to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.  

The amount of the annual ad valorem tax rates levied by the County to repay the Bonds will be 

determined by the relationship between the assessed valuation of taxable property in the District and the 

amount of debt service due on the Bonds in any year.  Fluctuations in the annual debt service on the 

Bonds and the assessed value of taxable property in the District may cause the annual tax rates to 

fluctuate.  Economic and other factors beyond the District’s control, such as general market decline in 

property values, disruption in financial markets that may reduce the availability of financing for 

purchasers of property, pandemics or other outbreaks of disease, reclassification of property to a class 

exempt from taxation, whether by ownership or use (such as exemptions for property owned by the State 

of California (the “State”) and local agencies and property used for qualified education, hospital, 

charitable or religious purposes), or the complete or partial destruction of the taxable property caused by a 

natural or manmade disaster, such as earthquake, flood, fire or toxic contamination, could cause a 

reduction in the assessed value of taxable property within the District and necessitate a corresponding 

increase in the respective annual tax rates.  For further information regarding the District’s assessed 

valuation, tax rates, overlapping debt, and other matters concerning taxation, see “TAX BASE FOR 

REPAYMENT OF THE BONDS” and “CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS 

AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS – Article XIIIA of the California 

Constitution.” 



 

7 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Description of the Bonds 

The Bonds will be issued in book-entry form only and will be initially issued and registered in the 

name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC.  Purchasers will not receive certificates representing their 

interests in the Bonds. 

Interest with respect to the Bonds accrues from their date of delivery, and is payable semiannually 

on February 1 and August 1 of each year (each a “Bond Payment Date”), commencing August 1, 2023.  

Interest on the Bonds will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.  Each 

Bond shall bear interest from the Bond Payment Date next preceding the date of authentication thereof 

unless it is authenticated as of a day during the period from the 16th day of the month immediately 

preceding any Bond Payment Date to and including such Bond Payment Date, in which event it shall bear 

interest from such Bond Payment Date, or unless it is authenticated on or before July 15, 2023, in which 

event it shall bear interest from its date; provided, that if, at the time of authentication of any Bond 

interest is in default on any outstanding Bonds, such Bond shall bear interest from the Bond Payment 

Date to which interest has previously been paid or made available for payment on the outstanding Bonds.  

The Bonds are issuable in denominations of $5,000 principal amount or any integral multiple thereof and 

mature on August 1 in the years and amounts set forth on the inside cover hereof.   

The principal of the Bonds will be payable on the dates indicated on the inside cover page hereof, 

in lawful money of the United States of America to the registered owner thereof, upon the surrender 

thereof at the designated corporate trust office of the Paying Agent.  The interest on the Bonds will be 

payable in lawful money of the United States of America to the person whose name appears on the bond 

registration books of the Paying Agent as the registered owner thereof as of the close of business on the 

15th day of the month next preceding any Bond Payment Date (a “Record Date”), whether or not such 

day is a business day, such interest to be paid by check or draft mailed on such Bond Payment Date to 

such registered owner at such registered owner’s address as it appears on such registration books on the 

preceding Record Date or at such address as the registered owner may have filed with the Paying Agent 

for that purpose.  The interest payments on the Bonds will be made in immediately available funds (e.g., 

by wire transfer) to any registered owner of at least $1,000,000 of outstanding Bonds who shall have 

requested in writing such method of payment of interest on the Bonds prior to the close of business on the 

Record Date immediately preceding any Bond Payment Date.   

Book-Entry Only System 

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained 

from sources that the District believes to be reliable, but neither the District nor the Underwriter takes 

any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness thereof.  Information presented at any website cited 

within this section is not incorporated herein by reference.  The District cannot and does not give any 

assurances that DTC, DTC Participants or Indirect Participants will distribute to the Beneficial Owners 

(a) payments of interest, principal or premium, if any, with respect to the Bonds, (b) certificates 

representing ownership interest in or other confirmation or ownership interest in the Bonds, or 

(c) redemption or other notices sent to DTC or Cede & Co., its nominee, as the registered owner of the 

Bonds, or that they will so do on a timely basis or that DTC, DTC Participants or DTC Indirect 

Participants will act in the manner described in this Official Statement.  The current “Rules” applicable 

to DTC are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission and the current “MMI Procedures” of 

DTC to be followed in dealing with DTC Participants are on file with DTC. 

DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds.  The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered 

securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be 

requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  One fully-registered Bond certificate will be issued for 



 

8 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

each maturity of the Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited 

with DTC.   

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under 

the New York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, 

a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York 

Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of 

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. 

and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 

100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC.  DTC also facilitates the 

post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, 

through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts.  

This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates.  Direct Participants include both U.S. 

and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other 

organizations.  DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation 

(“DTCC”).  DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed 

Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies.  DTCC is owned by the users of 

its regulated subsidiaries.  Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-

U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or 

maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”).  

DTC has a Standard & Poor’s rating of “AA+.”  The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file 

with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  More information about DTC can be found at 

www.dtcc.com.  

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which 

will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records.  The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of 

each Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records.  

Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase.  Beneficial 

Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as 

well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the 

Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction.  Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be 

accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of 

Beneficial Owners.  Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in 

the Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.  

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered 

in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an 

authorized representative of DTC.  The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede 

& Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership.  DTC has no knowledge 

of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct 

Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.  

The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on 

behalf of their customers.  

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct 

Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners 

will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may 

be in effect from time to time.  Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the 

transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, 

defaults, and proposed amendments to the Bond documents.  For example, Beneficial Owners of Bonds may 

wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit 

http://www.dtcc.com/


 

9 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

notices to Beneficial Owners.  In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and 

addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them.  

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Bonds within an issue are being 

redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such 

issue to be redeemed.  

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the 

Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures.  Under its 

usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the District as soon as possible after the record date.  The 

Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose 

accounts Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).  

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and interest payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., 

or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC’s practice is to 

credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information 

from the District or the Paying Agent, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown 

on DTC’s records.  Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing 

instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in 

bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, 

the Paying Agent, or the District, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect 

from time to time.  Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and interest payments to Cede & Co. (or 

such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the 

District or the Paying Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility 

of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct 

and Indirect Participants.  

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by 

giving reasonable notice to the District or the Paying Agent.  Under such circumstances, in the event that a 

successor depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.  

The District may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a 

successor securities depository).  In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.  

So long as Cede & Co. is the registered Owner of the Bonds, as nominee of DTC, references 
herein to the Owners or Holders of the Bonds (other than under the caption “TAX MATTERS”) 
will mean Cede & Co. and will not mean the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds. 

Paying Agent 

U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, with a designated office located in Los 

Angeles, California, will act as the registrar, transfer agent, authenticating agent and paying agent (the 

“Paying Agent”) for the Bonds.  As long as DTC is the registered owner of the Bonds and DTC’s book-

entry method is used for the Bonds, the Paying Agent will send any notice of redemption or other notices 

to Owners only to DTC. 

Neither the Paying Agent, the District, nor the Underwriter of the Bonds have any responsibility 

or liability for any aspects of the records relating to or payments made on account of beneficial 

ownership, or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to beneficial ownership of 

interests in the Bonds. 



 

10 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Redemption* 

Optional Redemption.  The Bonds maturing on or before August 1, 20__, are not subject to 

redemption.  The Bonds maturing on or after August 1, 20__, are subject to redemption prior to their 

respective stated maturity dates, at the option of the District, from any source of available funds, in whole 

or in part on any date, on or after August 1, 20__, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount of 

the Bonds called for redemption as of the date set for redemption, plus unpaid accrued interest to the date 

fixed for redemption, without premium.  

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption.  The Term Bonds maturing on August 1, 20__, are 

subject to redemption prior to maturity from mandatory sinking fund payments on August 1 of each year, 

on and after August 1, 20__, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, together with 

accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption, without premium.  The principal amounts represented by 

such Bonds to be so redeemed and the dates therefor and the final principal payment date are as indicated 

in the following table:  

Redemption Date 

(August 1) 

Principal Amount 

to be Redeemed 

  

  

  

  
 

 
_______________________________ 

(1)  Maturity.   

In the event that a portion of the Term Bonds maturing on August 1, 20__, are optionally 

redeemed prior to maturity, the remaining mandatory sinking fund payments shown above shall be 

reduced proportionately, or as otherwise directed by the District, in integral multiples of $5,000 of 

principal amount, in respect of the portion of such Bonds optionally redeemed.  

Selection of Bonds for Redemption.  Whenever provision is made for the redemption of Bonds 

and less than all Bonds are to be redeemed, the Paying Agent, upon written instruction from the District, 

will select the Bonds for redemption as so directed and if not directed, in inverse order of maturity.  

Within a maturity, the Paying Agent will select Bonds for redemption by lot.  The portion of any Bond to 

be redeemed in part shall be in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  

Notice of Redemption.  While the Bonds are subject to DTC’s book-entry system, the Paying 

Agent will be required to give notice of redemption of such Bonds only to DTC as provided in the letter of 

representations executed by the District and received and accepted by DTC.  DTC and the Participants 

will have sole responsibility for providing any such notice of redemption to the beneficial owners of the 

Bonds to be redeemed.  Any failure of DTC to notify any Participant, or any failure of Participants to 

notify the Beneficial Owner of any Bonds to be redeemed, of a notice of redemption or its content or effect 

will not affect the validity of the notice of redemption, or alter the effect of redemption set forth in the 

applicable Resolution. 

The Paying Agent shall give notice of the redemption (a “Redemption Notice”) of Bonds at the 

expense of the District.  Such Redemption Notice shall specify: (a) the Bonds or designated portions 

thereof (in the case of redemption of the Bonds in part but not in whole) which are to be redeemed, (b) if 

less than all of the then-outstanding Bonds are to be called for redemption, shall designate the numbers 

                                                      
*  Preliminary, subject to change. 



 

11 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

(or state that all Bonds between two stated numbers both inclusive have been called for redemption) and 

CUSIP numbers, if any, of the Bonds to be redeemed, (c) the date of notice and the date of redemption, 

(d) the place or places where the redemption will be made, and (e) descriptive information regarding the 

Bonds and the specific Bonds to be redeemed, including the dated date, interest rate and stated maturity 

date of each.  Such Redemption Notice shall further state that on the specified date there shall become due 

and payable upon each Bond to be redeemed, the portion of the principal of such Bond to be redeemed, 

together with the interest accrued to the redemption date, and redemption premium, if any, and that from 

and after such date, interest with respect thereto shall cease to accrue, as applicable. 

Any Redemption Notice shall be mailed, by first-class mail, postage prepaid, to the Owners of the 

applicable Bonds, to a Securities Depository and to a national information service, and by first-class mail, 

postage prepaid, to the District and the County and the respective Owners of any registered Bonds 

designated for redemption at their addresses appearing on the Bond registration books, in every case at 

least 20 days, but not more than 45 days, prior to the designated redemption date; provided that neither 

failure to receive such notice, nor any defect in any notice so mailed, shall affect the sufficiency of the 

proceedings for the redemption of such Bonds nor entitle the Owner thereof to interest beyond the date 

given for redemption.  Neither failure to receive or failure to send, any Redemption Notice, nor any defect 

in any such Redemption Notice, so mailed shall affect the sufficiency of the proceedings for the 

redemption of the affected Bonds, nor entitle the Owner thereof to interest beyond the date given for 

redemption or affect the cessation of accrual of interest, as applicable, represented thereby from and after 

the redemption date.  Each check issued or other transfer of funds made by the Paying Agent for the 

purpose of redeeming Bonds shall bear or include the CUSIP number identifying, by issue and maturity, 

the Bonds being redeemed with the proceeds of such check or other transfer.  

Partial Redemption of Bonds.  Upon the surrender of any Bond redeemed in part only, the 

Paying Agent shall execute and deliver to the Owner thereof a new Bond or Bonds of like tenor and 

maturity and of authorized denominations equal to the principal amount of the unredeemed portion of the 

Bond surrendered.  Such partial redemption shall be valid upon payment of the amount required to be 

paid to such Owner, and the District shall be released and discharged thereupon from all liability to the 

extent of such payment. 

Effect of Notice of Redemption.  Notice having been given pursuant to the applicable Resolution, 

and the moneys for the redemption (including the interest to the applicable date of redemption) having 

been set aside in the applicable Debt Service Fund, the Bonds to be redeemed shall become due and 

payable on such date of redemption.  

If on such a redemption date, money for the redemption of all the Bonds to be redeemed as 

provided in the Resolution; together with interest accrued to such redemption date, shall be available 

therefor on such redemption date, and if notice of redemption thereof shall have been given pursuant to 

the Resolution, then from and after such redemption date, interest with respect to the Bonds to be 

redeemed shall cease to accrue.  All money held for the redemption of Bonds shall be held in trust for the 

account of the Owners of the Bonds so to be redeemed. 

Bonds No Longer Outstanding.  All Bonds paid at maturity or redeemed prior to maturity 

pursuant to the applicable Resolution shall be cancelled upon surrender thereof and be delivered to or 

upon the order of the County or the District.  All or any portion of a Bond purchased by the County or the 

District shall be cancelled by the Paying Agent. 

Contingent Redemption; Rescission of Redemption.  Any redemption notice may specify that 

redemption of the Bonds designated for redemption on a specified date will be subject to the receipt by 

the District of moneys sufficient to cause such redemption (and will specify the proposed source of such 



 

12 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

moneys), and the District, the County and the Paying Agent will have no liability to the Owners of any 

Bonds, or any other party, as a result of the District’s failure to redeem the Bonds designated for 

redemption as a result of insufficient moneys therefor. 

Additionally, the District may rescind any optional redemption of the Bonds, and notice thereof, 

for any reason on any date prior to the date fixed for such redemption by causing written notice of the 

rescission to be given to the Owners of the Bonds so called for redemption.  Notice of rescission of 

redemption shall be given in the same manner in which notice of redemption was originally given.  The 

actual receipt by the Owner of any Bond of notice of such rescission shall not be a condition precedent to 

rescission, and failure to receive such notice or any defect in such notice shall not affect the validity of the 

rescission.  Neither the District nor the Paying Agent will have any liability to the Owners of any Bonds, 

or any other party, as a result of the District’s decision to rescind a redemption of any Bonds pursuant to 

the provisions of the applicable Resolution. 

Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds 

So long as any of the Bonds remain outstanding, the District will cause the Paying Agent to 

maintain and keep at its principal office all books and records necessary for the registration, exchange and 

transfer of the Bonds as provided in the applicable Resolution (the “Bond Register”).  Subject to the 

provisions of the applicable Resolution, the person in whose name a Bond is registered on the Bond 

Register shall be regarded as the absolute Owner of that Bond for all purposes of the applicable 

Resolution.  Payment of or on account of the principal, premium, if any, and interest on any Bond shall be 

made only to or upon the order of the Owner thereof; the District, the County and the Paying Agent shall 

not be affected by any notice to the contrary, but the registration may be changed as provided in the 

applicable Resolution.  All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the 

District’s liability upon the Bonds of such Series, including interest, to the extent of the amount or 

amounts so paid. 

In the event that the book-entry-only system as described above is no longer used with respect to 

the Bonds, the following provisions will govern the transfer and exchange of the Bonds. 

Any Bond may be exchanged for Bonds of like tenor, maturity and aggregate principal amount, 

upon presentation and surrender at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent, together with a 

request for exchange signed by the Owner or by a person legally empowered to do so in a form 

satisfactory to the Paying Agent.  A Bond may (but only if the District determines no longer to maintain 

the book-entry-only status of the Bonds of such Series, DTC determines to discontinue providing such 

services and no successor securities depository is named or DTC requests the District to deliver 

certificated securities to particular DTC Participants) be transferred on the applicable Bond Register only 

upon surrender of such Bond for cancellation at the office of the Paying Agent accompanied by delivery 

of a duly executed written instrument of transfer in a form approved by the Paying Agent.  Upon 

exchange or transfer, the Paying Agent shall register, authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds of 

like tenor and of any authorized denomination or denominations requested by the Owner in the aggregate 

principal amount of the Bond surrendered and bearing or accruing interest at the same rate and maturing 

on the same date.  

In all cases of exchanged or transferred Bonds, the County shall sign and the Paying Agent shall 

authenticate and deliver Bonds in accordance with the provisions of the applicable Resolution.  All fees 

and costs of transfer shall be paid by the requesting party.  Those charges may be required to be paid 

before the procedure is begun for the exchange or transfer.  All Bonds issued upon any exchange or 

transfer shall be valid obligations of the District, evidencing the same debt and entitled to the same 



 

13 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

security and benefit under the applicable Resolution as the Bonds surrendered upon that exchange or 

transfer. 

Any Bond surrendered to the Paying Agent for payment, retirement, exchange, replacement or 

transfer shall be cancelled by the Paying Agent.  The District and the County may at any time deliver to 

the Paying Agent for cancellation any previously authenticated and delivered Bonds that the District and 

the County may have acquired in any manner whatsoever, and those Bonds shall be promptly cancelled 

by the Paying Agent.  Written reports of the surrender and cancellation of Bonds shall be made to the 

District and the County by the Paying Agent and updated annually.  The cancelled Bonds shall be 

destroyed by the Paying Agent in accordance with its procedures as confirmed in writing to the District. 

Neither the District nor the Paying Agent will be required (a) to issue or transfer any Bonds 

during a period beginning with the day after the Record Date next preceding any Bond Payment Date or 

beginning the date of selection of Bonds to be redeemed and ending with the close of business on the 

Bond Payment Date or any day on which the applicable notice of redemption is given, as applicable, or 

(b) to transfer any Bonds which have been selected or called for redemption in whole or in part. 

Defeasance 

All or any portion of the outstanding maturities of the Bonds may be defeased at any time prior to 

maturity in the following ways: 

(a) Cash:  By irrevocably depositing with a bank or trust company in escrow, an amount of 

cash which together with amounts then on deposit in the applicable Debt Service Fund, to be 

applied thereto, as applicable, is sufficient to pay all Bonds outstanding and designated for 

defeasance, including all principal of, interest thereon and redemption premium, if any; or 

(b) Defeasance Securities: By irrevocably depositing with a bank or trust company in 

escrow, noncallable Defeasance Securities (as defined below) together with cash, if required, in 

such amount as will, in the opinion of an independent certified public accountant, together with 

interest to accrue thereon and moneys then on deposit in the applicable Debt Service Fund, to be 

applied thereto, together with the interest to accrue thereon, be fully sufficient to pay and 

discharge all Bonds outstanding and designated for defeasance (including all principal of, interest 

thereon and redemption premiums, if any), at or before their maturity date;  

then, notwithstanding that any of such Bonds shall not have been surrendered for payment, all obligations 

of the District with respect to all such designated outstanding Bonds shall cease and terminate, except for 

the obligation of the Paying Agent or an independent escrow agent selected by the District to pay or cause 

to be paid from funds deposited pursuant to paragraph (a) or paragraph (b) above, to the Owners of such 

designated Bonds not so surrendered and paid all sums due with respect thereto. 

“Defeasance Securities” shall mean direct and general obligations of the United States of 

America (including State and Local Government Series), or obligations that are unconditionally 

guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United States of America, including (in the case of direct 

and general obligations of the United States of America) evidence of direct ownership or proportionate 

interests in future interest or principal payments of such obligations.  In the case of investments in such 

proportionate interests, such proportionate interests shall be limited to circumstances wherein (a) a bank 

or trust company acts as custodian and holds the underlying Defeasance Securities; (b) the owner of the 

investment is the real party in interest and has the right to proceed directly and individually against the 

obligor of the underlying Defeasance Securities; and (c) the underlying Defeasance Securities are held in 

a special account, segregated from the custodian’s general assets, and are not available to satisfy any 



 

14 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

claim of the custodian, any person claiming through the custodian, or any person to whom the custodian 

may be obligated; provided that such obligations are rated or assessed at the highest then-prevailing 

United States Treasury securities credit rating. 

Application and Investment of Bond Proceeds 

The Bonds are being issued to finance the repair, upgrading, modernization, renovation, 

construction and equipping of certain District property and facilities, to pay capitalized interest on the 

Bonds, and to pay certain costs of issuing the Bonds.   

The net proceeds from the sale of the Bonds shall be paid to the County to the credit of the 

“Hueneme Elementary School District General Obligation Bonds, 2018 Election, Series C Building 

Fund” (the “Building Fund”).  Any premium received by the County from the sale of the Bonds shall be 

kept separate and apart in the “Hueneme Elementary School District General Obligation Bonds, 2018 

Election, Series C Debt Service Fund” (the “Debt Service Fund”) and used only for payment of principal 

of and interest on the Bonds.  Any excess proceeds of the Bonds not needed for the authorized purposes 

for which the Bonds are being issued shall be transferred to the Debt Service Fund and applied to the 

payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds.  If, after payment in full of the Bonds, there remain 

excess proceeds, any such excess amounts shall be transferred to the debt service funds of any then-

outstanding general obligation bonds of the District, and if there are none, shall be transferred to the 

general fund of the District.  

Expected Investment of Bond Proceeds.  Moneys in the Debt Service Fund and the Building 

Fund are expected to be invested through the County Treasury Pool.  See “APPENDIX E – VENTURA 

COUNTY STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY AND REPORT OF INVESTMENTS.” 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

The estimated sources and uses of funds with respect to the Bonds are as follows: 

Sources of Funds  
  
 Principal Amount of the Bonds  
 [Net Original Issue Premium/Discount]  

    Total Sources  
    

Uses of Funds  
   Building Fund  

 Debt Service Fund
(1) 

 
 Costs of Issuance

(2)
  

    Total Uses  
____________ 
(1)  Represents capitalized interest on the Bonds. 
(2)  Includes Underwriter’s discount, legal fees, printing fees, demographics, rating fees, bond insurance premium, 

if any, municipal advisor’s fees, initial fees of the Paying Agent, and related expenses.  



 

15 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULES 

The following table summarizes the annual debt service requirements of the District with respect 

to the Bonds (assuming no optional redemptions are made):  

Year Ending 

August 1 

Annual 

Principal Payment
 

Annual 

   Interest Payment
(1) 

Total Annual 

Debt Service 

2023    

2024    

2025    

2026    

2027    

2028    

2029    

2030    

2031    

2032    

    

Total    
________________________ 
(1) Interest payments on the Bonds will be made semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing 

August 1, 2023.   

See “DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION – District Debt Structure – General Obligation 

Bonds” for a schedule of the combined debt service requirements for all of the District’s outstanding 

general obligation bonds. 

TAX BASE FOR REPAYMENT OF THE BONDS 

The information in this section describes ad valorem property taxation, assessed valuation, and 

other measures of the tax base of the District. The Bonds are payable solely from ad valorem taxes levied 

and collected by the County on taxable property in the District. The District’s general fund is not a 

source for the repayment of the Bonds. 

Ad Valorem Property Taxation 

Taxes are levied by the County for each fiscal year on taxable real and personal property which is 

situated in the District as of the preceding January 1.  For assessment and collection purposes, property is 

classified either as “secured” or “unsecured” and is listed accordingly on separate parts of the assessment 

roll.  The “secured roll” is that part of the assessment roll containing State-assessed public utilities 

property and real property having a tax lien which is sufficient, in the opinion of the County Assessor, to 

secure payment of the taxes.  Other property is assessed on the “unsecured roll.” 

Property taxes on the secured roll are due in two installments, on November 1 and February 1 of 

each fiscal year.  If unpaid, such taxes become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively, and 

a 10% penalty attaches to any delinquent payment.  Property on the secured roll with respect to which 

taxes are delinquent becomes tax defaulted on or about June 30 of the fiscal year.  Such property may 

thereafter be redeemed by payment of a penalty of 1.5% per month to the time of redemption, plus costs 

and a redemption fee.  If taxes are unpaid for a period of five years or more, the property is subject to sale 

by the County Treasurer-Tax Collector. 



 

16 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due as of the January 1 lien date and become delinquent, 

if unpaid, on August 31.  A 10% penalty attaches to delinquent unsecured taxes.  If unsecured taxes are 

unpaid at 5:00 p.m. on October 31, an additional penalty of 1.5% attaches to them on the first day of each 

month until paid.  The taxing authority has four ways of collecting delinquent unsecured personal 

property taxes:  (1) bringing a civil action against the  taxpayer; (2) filing a certificate in the office of the 

County Clerk specifying certain facts in order to obtain a lien on certain property of the taxpayer; 

(3) filing a certificate of delinquency for record in the County Clerk and County Recorder’s office in 

order to obtain a lien on certain property of the taxpayer; and (4) seizing and selling personal property, 

improvements, or possessory interests belonging or assessed to the assessee. 

Assessed Valuations 

The assessed valuation of property in the District is established by the Ventura County Assessor, 

except for public utility property which is assessed by the State Board of Equalization.  Assessed 

valuations are reported at 100% of the “full cash value” of the property, as defined in Article XIIIA of the 

California Constitution (“Article XIIIA”).  For a discussion of how properties currently are assessed and 

reassessed, see “CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING DISTRICT 

REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS.”  Certain classes of property, such as churches, colleges, 

not-for-profit hospitals, and charitable institutions, are exempt from property taxation and do not appear 

on the tax rolls.   

Property within the District had a total assessed valuation for fiscal year 2022-23 of 

$5,608,763,528.  Shown in the following table are the assessed valuations for the District since 1979-80.  

The District’s assessed valuation increased by 875.24% between fiscal year 1979-80 and fiscal year 

2022-23, representing an approximate average annual compound growth rate of 5.44%.  



 

17 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

ASSESSED VALUATION 
Fiscal Years 1979-80 to 2022-23 

Hueneme Elementary School District 

 

Fiscal Year 

Total 

Assessed Valuation 

Annual % 

Change 

   
1979-80 $575,118,172 -- 

1980-81 654,737,740 13.84% 

1981-82 749,589,161 14.49 

1982-83 866,914,277 15.65 

1983-84 892,694,304 2.97 

1984-85 946,950,992 6.08 

1985-86 1,007,052,983 6.35 

1986-87 1,110,866,270 10.31 

1987-88 1,182,836,484 6.48 

1988-89 1,254,012,531 6.02 

1989-90 1,392,047,979 11.01 

1990-91 1,562,405,550 12.24 

1991-92 1,620,854,573 3.74 

1992-93 1,678,662,881 3.57 

1993-94 1,713,066,686 2.05 

1994-95 1,780,367,104 3.93 

1995-96 1,769,752,159 -0.60 

1996-97 1,735,451,822 -1.94 

1997-98 1,792,380,793 3.28 

1998-99 1,810,271,479 1.00 

1999-00 1,874,295,472 3.54 

2000-01 2,003,031,831 6.87 

2001-02 2,143,529,090 7.01 

2002-03 2,296,325,485 7.13 

2003-04 2,535,572,116 10.42 

2004-05 2,742,994,554 8.18 

2005-06 3,082,414,429 12.37 

2006-07 3,537,026,950 14.75 

2007-08 3,772,908,011 6.67 

2008-09 3,768,415,303 -0.12 

2009-10 3,524,708,884 -6.47 

2010-11 3,450,613,451 -2.10 

2011-12 3,397,658,738 -1.53 

2012-13 3,353,265,032 -1.31 

2013-14 3,512,392,668 4.75 

2014-15 3,788,984,108 7.87 

2015-16 4,020,841,444 6.12 

2016-17 4,178,747,940 3.93 

2017-18 4,383,705,918 4.90 

2018-19 4,576,022,261 4.39 

2019-20 4,825,903,867 5.46 

2020-21 5,013,330,152 3.88 

2021-22 5,162,149,534 2.97 

2022-23 5,608,763,528 8.65 

__________ 
Note:  Excludes assessed valuation from unitary utility roll, beginning in 1988-89. 

Source:  California Municipal Statistics, Inc. 



 

18 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Economic and other factors beyond the District’s control, such as general market decline in 

property values, disruption in financial markets that may reduce availability of financing for purchasers of 

property, pandemics or other outbreaks of disease, reclassification of property to a class exempt from 

taxation, whether by ownership or use (such as exemptions for property owned by the State and local 

agencies and property used for qualified education, hospital, charitable or religious purposes), or the 

complete or partial destruction of the taxable property caused by a natural or manmade disaster, such as 

earthquake, flood, fire or toxic contamination, could cause a reduction in the assessed value of taxable 

property within the District.  Any such reduction would result in a corresponding increase in the annual 

tax rate levied by the County to pay the debt service with respect to the Bonds.  See “THE BONDS – 

Security and Sources of Payment,” as well as “DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION – 

Considerations Regarding COVID-19” herein.  

Seismic Events.  Portions of the District are located within hazard areas identified by the Tsunami 

Hazard Area Map (“THAP”) for the County.  THAPs are produced jointly by the California Geological 

Survey (the “CGS”) and the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services to assist cities and counties 

identify potential areas of inundation and other damage related to a tsunami event.  The District is also 

located in a seismically active region of the State, and much of the District is subject to seismic and 

geological hazards such as ground shaking and liquefaction hazards.  These seismic and geological 

hazards can affect the structural integrity of buildings and utilities and, in turn, cause severe property 

damage, potential loss of life and could adversely affect the assessed valuation of property within the 

District, or more generally the region’s economy. 

Drought.  In recent years California has experienced severe drought conditions. In January of 

2014, the Governor declared a statewide Drought State of Emergency.  As of such date, the State faced 

water shortfalls due to the driest year in recorded State history, the State’s river and reservoirs were below 

their record low levels, and manual and electronic readings recorded the water content of snowpack at the 

highest elevations in the State (chiefly in the Sierra Nevada mountain range) at about 20% of normal 

average for the winter season.  Following the Governor’s declaration, the California State Water 

Resources Control Board (the “Water Board”) issued a statewide notice of water shortages and potential 

future curtailment of water right diversions.  In April 2017, the Governor lifted the drought emergency 

declaration, while retaining a prohibition on wasteful practices and advancing conservation measures.  In 

April 2021, the Governor announced regional drought emergencies in two Northern California counties 

following two years of dry conditions.  On May 10, 2021, the Governor expanded the emergency drought 

declaration to include an additional 39 counties throughout the State.  On July 8, 2021 the Governor 

expanded the declaration to further include an additional nine counties.  On October 19, 2021, the 

Governor extended the declaration to include all remaining counties, including the County, such that the 

drought state of emergency is now in effect Statewide.  On March 28, 2022, the Governor issued 

Executive Order N0-27-22, which directed the Water Board to issue drought regulations, including a 

recommendation to have urban water suppliers initiate water shortage contingency plans.  On 

February 13, 2023, the Governor issued Executive Order N-03-23, relaxing some previous restrictions on 

approvals for new groundwater wells or alterations of existing wells, but confirming that the State 

remains in critical drought conditions. 

Wildfires.  Major wildfires have occurred in recent years in different regions of the State, 

including in the fall of 2020 and in the summer of 2021.  Serious and significant property damage has 

resulted in areas of the State due to fire damage.  The Governor has previously signed a number of 

measures into law intended to address a variety of issues related to mitigating the risk of wildfires, 

including forest management, mutual aid for fire departments, emergency alerts and other safety 

mandates. 

Sea Level Rise.  [To be completed.] 



 

19 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Climate Change.  In addition to the events described above, climate change caused by human 

activities may have adverse effects on the assessed value of property within the District.  As greenhouse 

gas emissions continue to accumulate in the atmosphere as a result of economic activity, many scientists 

expect that climate change will intensify, increasing the frequency, severity and timing of extreme 

weather events such as coastal storm surges, drought, wildfires, floods, heat waves, and rising sea levels.  

See also “—Drought” and “—Wildfires” above.  Projections of the impact of global climate change are 

complex and depend on a variety of factors outside of the District’s control.  The various scientific studies 

that forecast the amount and timing of adverse impacts of climate change are based on assumptions 

contained in such studies, but actual events may vary materially.  In addition, the scientific understanding 

of climate change and its effects continues to evolve.  Accordingly, the District is unable to forecast with 

certainty when or if adverse impacts of climate change will occur or the extent of such impacts. 

Appeals and Reductions of Assessed Valuations 

Under California law, property owners may apply for a reduction of their property tax assessment 

by filing a written application, in form prescribed by the State Board of Equalization, with the appropriate 

county board of equalization or assessment appeals board.  County assessors may independently reduce 

assessed values as well based upon the factors described in the preceding section or reductions in the fair 

market value of the taxable property.  In most cases, the appeal is filed because the applicant believes that 

present market conditions (such as residential home prices) cause the property to be worth less than its 

current assessed value.  Any reduction in the assessment ultimately granted as a result of such appeal 

applies to the year for which application is made and during which the written application was filed.  

Such reductions are subject to yearly reappraisals and may be adjusted back to their original values when 

market conditions improve.  Once the property has regained its prior value, adjusted for inflation, it once 

again is subject to the annual inflationary factor growth rate allowed under Article XIIIA.  See 

“CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES AND 

APPROPRIATIONS – Article XIIIA of the California Constitution.”   

A second type of assessment appeal involves a challenge to the base year value of an assessed 

property.  Appeals for reduction in the base year value of an assessment, if successful, reduce the 

assessment for the year in which the appeal is taken and prospectively thereafter.  The base year is 

determined by the completion date of new construction or the date of change of ownership.  Any base 

year appeal must be made within four years of the change of ownership or new construction date. 

No assurance can be given that property tax appeals or reassessments initiatived by the County 

Assessor in the future will not significantly reduce the assessed valuation of property within the District. 

Assembly Bill 102.  On June 27, 2017, the Governor signed into law Assembly Bill 102 

(“AB 102”).  AB 102 restructures the functions of the State Board of Equalization (“SBE”) and creates 

two new separate agencies: (i) the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration, and (ii) the 

Office of Tax Appeals.  Under AB 102, the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration will 

take over programs previously in the SBE Property Tax Department, such as the Tax Area Services 

Section, which is responsible for maintaining all property tax-rate area maps and for maintaining special 

revenue district boundaries.  Under AB 102, the SBE will continue to perform the duties assigned by the 

State Constitution related to property taxes, however, beginning January 1, 2018, the SBE will only hear 

appeals related to the programs that it constitutionally administers and the Office of Tax Appeals will hear 

tax appeals on all other taxes and fee matters, such as sales and use tax and other special taxes and fees.  

AB 102 obligates the Office of Tax Appeals to adopt regulations as necessary to carry out its duties, 

powers, and responsibilities.   



 

20 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Assessed Valuation and Parcels by Land Use 

The following table shows the distribution of the secured assessed valuation and parcels in the 

District by land use for fiscal year 2022-23. 

ASSESSED VALUATION AND PARCELS BY LAND USE 
Fiscal Year 2022-23 

Hueneme Elementary School District 
 2022-23 % of No. of % of No. of Taxable % 

 Assessed Valuation(1) Total Parcels Total Parcels Total 

Non-Residential:       

  Commercial $160,226,006  3.12% 181 1.47% 179 1.48% 

  Vacant Commercial 6,238,510  0.12 21 0.17 20 0.17 

  Professional/Office 23,210,240  0.45 38 0.31 38 0.31 

  Industrial 76,081,753  1.48 24 0.20 24 0.20 

  Vacant Industrial 6,047,891  0.12 7 0.06 7 0.06 

  Government/Social/Institutional 13,062,051  0.25 389 3.17 213 1.76 

  Miscellaneous      2,167,871  0.04   86 0.70   86 0.71 

    Subtotal Non-Residential $287,034,322  5.60% 746 6.08% 567 4.69% 

       

Residential:       

  Single Family Residence $3,453,261,544  67.34% 8,143 66.32% 8,143 67.33% 

  Condominium/Townhouse 755,417,229  14.73 2,148 17.49 2,148 17.76 

  Mobile Home Park 3,321,518  0.06 1 0.01 1 0.01 

  Mobile Home 23,138,967  0.45 380 3.09 380 3.14 

  Hotel/Motel 15,596,918  0.30 6 0.05 6 0.05 

  2-4 Residential Units 298,570,069  5.82 640 5.21 640 5.29 

  5+ Residential Units/Apartments 275,217,788  5.37 150 1.22 148 1.22 

  Vacant Residential       16,196,439    0.32        64   0.52        62   0.51 

    Subtotal Residential $4,840,720,472  94.40% 11,532 93.92% 11,528 95.31% 

       

Total $5,127,754,794  100.00% 12,278 100.00% 12,095 100.00% 

    
(1) Local secured assessed valuation; excluding tax-exempt property. 

Source:  California Municipal Statistics, Inc. 

Assessed Valuation by Jurisdiction 

The following table shows the distribution of taxable property within the District by jurisdiction, 

as measured by assessed valuation for fiscal year 2022-23. 

ASSESSED VALUATION BY JURISDICTION 
Fiscal Year 2022-23 

Hueneme Elementary School District 

 Assessed Valuation % of Assessed Valuation % of Jurisdiction 

Jurisdiction: in School District School District of Jurisdiction in School District 

City of Oxnard $2,377,696,204 42.39% $24,740,419,622 9.61% 

City of Port Hueneme  1,516,474,833  27.04 $2,433,174,916 62.32% 

Unincorporated Ventura County  1,714,592,491    30.57 $27,088,242,874 6.33% 

  Total District $5,608,763,528 100.00%   

     

Ventura County $5,608,763,528 100.00% $163,165,747,693 3.44% 

    
Source:  California Municipal Statistics, Inc. 



 

21 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Assessed Valuation Per Parcel of Single Family Homes 

The following table shows increments of assessed valuation for single family parcels in the 

District for fiscal year 2022-23, including the median and average assessed value per parcel. 

ASSESSED VALUATION PER PARCEL OF SINGLE FAMILY HOMES 
Fiscal Year 2022-23 

Hueneme Elementary School District 
 No. of 2022-23 Average Median 

 Parcels Assessed Valuation Assessed Valuation Assessed Valuation 

Single Family Residential 8,143 $3,453,261,544 $424,077 $334,987 

 

 2022-23 No. of  % of Cumulative Total % of Cumulative 

 Assessed Valuation Parcels(1) Total % of Total Valuation Total % of Total 

 $0 - $49,999  96 1.179% 1.179% $3,757,283  0.109% 0.109% 

 $50,000 - $99,999  792 9.726 10.905 53,707,932  1.555 1.664 

 $100,000 - $149,999  431 5.293 16.198 54,622,811  1.582 3.246 

 $150,000 - $199,999  464 5.698 21.896 81,151,106  2.350 5.596 

 $200,000 - $249,999  792 9.726 31.622 179,802,623  5.207 10.803 

 $250,000 - $299,999  881 10.819 42.441 242,328,526  7.017 17.820 

 $300,000 - $349,999  853 10.475 52.917 276,955,936  8.020 25.840 

 $350,000 - $399,999  610 7.491 60.408 228,285,339  6.611 32.451 

 $400,000 - $449,999  675 8.289 68.697 286,506,273  8.297 40.748 

 $450,000 - $499,999  647 7.945 76.643 307,410,747  8.902 49.650 

 $500,000 - $549,999  382 4.691 81.334 199,417,977  5.775 55.424 

 $550,000 - $599,999  265 3.254 84.588 151,805,584  4.396 59.820 

 $600,000 - $649,999  276 3.389 87.977 172,210,698  4.987 64.807 

 $650,000 - $699,999  162 1.989 89.967 108,645,428  3.146 67.953 

 $700,000 - $749,999  87 1.068 91.035 62,751,023  1.817 69.771 

 $750,000 - $799,999  60 0.737 91.772 46,636,078  1.350 71.121 

 $800,000 - $849,999  80 0.982 92.755 65,890,337  1.908 73.029 

 $850,000 - $899,999  58 0.712 93.467 50,664,344  1.467 74.496 

 $900,000 - $949,999  46 0.565 94.032 42,645,700  1.235 75.731 

 $950,000 - $999,999  43 0.528 94.560 42,050,132  1.218 76.949 

 $1,000,000 and greater    443     5.440 100.000     796,015,667    23.051 100.000 

  8,143 100.000%  $3,453,261,544  100.000%  

     
(1) Improved single family residential parcels.  Excludes condominiums and parcels with multiple family units. 

Source:  California Municipal Statistics, Inc. 

Taxation of State-Assessed Utility Property 

A portion of property tax revenue of the District is derived from utility property subject to 

assessment by the SBE.  State-assessed property, or “unitary property,” is property of a utility system 

with components located in many taxing jurisdictions that are assessed as part of a “going concern” rather 

than as individual pieces of real or personal property.  The assessed value of unitary and certain other 

State-assessed property is allocated to the counties by the SBE, taxed at special county-wide rates, and the 

tax revenues distributed to taxing jurisdictions (including the District) according to statutory formulae 

generally based on the distribution of taxes in the prior year. 

Any changes in the California electric utility industry structure and in the way in which 

components of the industry are regulated and owned, including the sale of electric generation assets to 

largely unregulated, nonutility companies, may affect how utility assets are assessed in the future, and 

which local agencies are to receive the property taxes.  The District is unable to predict the impact of 

these changes on its utility property tax revenues, or whether legislation or litigation may affect 



 

22 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

ownership of utility assets or the State’s methods of assessing utility property and the allocation of 

assessed value to local taxing agencies, including the District.   

Secured Tax Charges and Delinquencies 

Property taxes on the secured roll are due in two installments, November 1 and February 1 of the 

calendar year, and if unpaid, become delinquent after December 10 and April 10, respectively.  A 10% 

penalty attaches to any delinquent installment plus a minimum $10 cost on the second installment, plus 

any additional amount determined by the Treasurer-Tax Collector of the County.  See “ – Ad valorem 

Property Taxation” herein.   

Pursuant to Revenue and Taxation Code Section 4985.2, the Treasurer-Tax Collector may cancel 

any penalty, costs or other charges resulting from tax delinquency upon a finding that the late payment is 

due to reasonable cause and circumstances beyond the taxpayer’s control, and occurred notwithstanding 

the exercise of ordinary care in the absence of willful neglect, provided the property taxes are paid within 

four fiscal years of such taxes coming due.   

The table on the following page shows the secured tax charges and delinquencies for taxes 

collected in the District by the County from fiscal year 2006-07 through fiscal year 2021-22 (i) with 

respect to the general countywide ad valorem property tax levy and (ii) with respect to the tax levy within 

the District for its general obligation bonds.  The ad valorem property tax to be levied to pay the interest 

on and principal of the Bonds will be subject to the Teeter Plan (as defined below), beginning in the first 

year of such levy.  Under the Teeter Plan, the District will receive 100% of the ad valorem property tax 

levied to pay the Bonds irrespective of actual delinquencies in the collection of the tax by the County. 



 

23 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

SECURED TAX CHARGES AND DELINQUENCY RATES 
Fiscal Years 2006-07 through 2021-22 
Hueneme Elementary School District 

General Countywide Ad Valorem Tax Levy 

  Amount Percent 

Fiscal Secured Delinquent Delinquent 

Year Tax Charge 
(1)

 June 30 June 30 

2006-07 $6,202,975.02 $179,904.27 2.90% 

2007-08 6,604,446.97 260,416.38 3.94 

2008-09 6,352,228.88 235,268.35 3.57 

2009-10 6,162,711.20 148,148.40 2.40 

2010-11 6,050,352.59 115,185.32 1.90 

2011-12 5,940,442.23 80,510.16 1.36 

2012-13 5,871,100.14  80,482.73  1.37 

2013-14 6,153,773.20  170,151.78  2.76 

2014-15 6,647,712.57  54,968.03  0.83 

2015-16 7,115,429.14  97,152.17  1.37 

2016-17 7,380,364.73  59,849.03  0.81 

2017-18 7,750,321.68  58,467.46  0.75 

2018-19 8,102,550.81 59,103.42 0.73 

2019-20 8,541,299.05 118,920.55 1.39 

2020-21 8,896,683.33  66,400.14  0.75 

2021-22 9,126,774.07  74,873.08  0.82 

    

General Obligation Bond Debt Service Levy 

  Amount Percent 

Fiscal Secured Delinquent Delinquent 

Year Tax Charge 
(2)

 June 30 June 30 

2006-07 $1,098,715.63 $97,150.82 8.84% 

2007-08 1,232,821.52 135,415.19 10.98 

2008-09 1,270,135.55 101,108.14 7.96 

2009-10 1,375,070.02 62,803.59 4.57 

2010-11 1,406,939.22 50,500.79 3.59 

2011-12 1,502,142.23 50,362.96 3.35 

2012-13 1,456,154.05  36,103.26  2.48 

2013-14 2,237,156.65  54,308.29  2.43 

2014-15 2,217,860.78  54,276.85  2.45 

2015-16 2,422,145.98 54,268.84 2.24 

2016-17 2,103,997.94  73,989.68  3.52 

2017-18 2,506,485.05  60,219.29  2.40 

2018-19 2,755,231.07 65,800.00 2.39 

2019-20 2,680,815.91 79,934.85 2.98 

2020-21 4,021,267.37  140,896.58  3.50 

2021-22 4,020,474.77  107,127.83  2.66 
  
(1) District’s share of 1% countywide levy. Reflects countywide delinquency rate.  
(2) District’s general obligation bond debt service levy.  

Sources:  California Municipal Statistics, Inc. and Ventura County Auditor-Controller. 

Alternative Method of Tax Apportionment 

The Board of Supervisors of Ventura County has approved the implementation of the Alternative 

Method of Distribution of Tax Levies and Collections and of Tax Sale Proceeds (the “Teeter Plan”), as 

provided for in Section 4701 et seq. of the California Revenue and Taxation Code.  Under the Teeter 



 

24 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Plan, the County apportions secured property taxes on an accrual basis when due (irrespective of actual 

collections) to its local political subdivisions, including the District, for which the County acts as the tax-

levying or tax-collecting agency. 

The Teeter Plan is applicable to all secured tax levies for which the County acts as the tax-levying 

or tax-collecting agency, or for which the County treasury is the legal depository of the tax collections.  

As adopted by the County, the Teeter Plan excludes Mello-Roos Community Facilities Districts and 

special assessment districts which provide for accelerated judicial foreclosure of property for which 

assessments are delinquent. 

The ad valorem property tax to be levied to pay the interest on and principal of the Bonds will be 

subject to the Teeter Plan, beginning in the first year of such levy.  The District will receive 100% of the 

ad valorem property tax levied to pay the Bonds irrespective of actual delinquencies in the collection of 

the tax by the County. 

The Teeter Plan is to remain in effect unless the Board of Supervisors of the County orders its 

discontinuance or unless, prior to the commencement of any fiscal year of the County (which commences 

on July 1), the Board of Supervisors receives a petition for its discontinuance joined in by a resolution 

adopted by at least two-thirds of the participating revenue districts in the County.  In the event the Board 

of Supervisors is to order discontinuance of the Teeter Plan subsequent to its implementation, only those 

secured property taxes actually collected would be allocated to political subdivisions (including the 

District) for which the County acts as the tax-levying or tax-collecting agency.  

There can be no assurance that the County will always maintain the Teeter Plan or will have 

sufficient funds available to distribute the full amount of the District’s share of property tax collections to 

the District.  The ability of the County to maintain the Teeter Plan may depend on its financial resources 

and may be affected by future property tax delinquencies.  Property tax delinquencies may be impacted 

by economic and other factors beyond the District’s or the County’s control, including the ability or 

willingness of property owners to pay property taxes during an economic recession or depression.  An 

economic recession or depression could be caused by many factors outside the control of the District, 

including high interest rates, reduced consumer confidence, reduced real wages or reduced economic 

activity as a result of the spread of COVID-19 or other pandemic or natural or manmade disaster.  See 

“DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION – Considerations Regarding COVID-19.”  However, 

notwithstanding any possible future change to or discontinuation of the Teeter Plan, State law requires the 

County to levy ad valorem property taxes sufficient to pay the Bonds when due. 

Tax Rates 

There are a total of 66 tax rate areas in the District.  A representative District tax rate area located 

within the city of Port Hueneme, Tax Rate Area 6-003, has a fiscal year 2022-23 assessed valuation of 

$488,274,996, representing 8.71% of the District’s taxable assessed valuation.  A representative tax rate 

area of the District located within the city of Oxnard, Tax Rate Area 3-005, has a fiscal year 2022-23 

assessed valuation of $670,778,185, representing 11.96% of the District’s taxable assessed valuation.  A 

representative tax rate area in the unincorporated County portion of the District, Tax Rate Area 63-014, 

has a fiscal year 2022-23 assessed valuation $860,564,417, representing 15.34% of the District’s taxable 

assessed valuation.  The table below summarizes the total ad valorem tax rates levied by all taxing entities 

in these three tax rate areas during the five-year period from 2018-19 to 2022-23.   



 

25 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

SUMMARY OF AD VALOREM TAX RATES 
$1 Per $100 of Assessed Valuation 

Hueneme Elementary School District 

City of Oxnard – Tax Rate Area 3-005 
(2022-23 Assessed Valuation: $670,778,185) 

      

 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 

General Tax Rate $1.000000 $1.000000 $1.000000 $1.000000 $1.000000 
Hueneme Elementary School District .066500 .090200 .088700 .085600 .062400 
Oxnard Union High School District .047500 .049100 .052700 .043500 .048500 
Ventura Community College District .015200 .014300 .015000 .014800 .014200 
Metropolitan Water District .003500 .003500 .003500 .003500 .003500 
City of Oxnard   .062796   .060177 .070667 .048331 .029095 
  Total All Property Tax Rate $1.195496 $1.217277 $1.230567 $1.195731 $1.157695 
      

City of Port Hueneme – Tax Rate Area 6-003 
(2022-23 Assessed Valuation: $488,274,996) 

      

 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 

General Tax Rate $1.000000 $1.000000 $1.000000 $1.000000 $1.000000 

Hueneme Elementary School District .066500 .090200 .088700 .085600 .062400 

Oxnard Union High School District .047500 .049100 .052700 .043500 .048500 

Ventura Community College District .015200 .014300 .015000 .014800 .014200 

Metropolitan Water District .003500 .003500 .003500 .003500 .003500 

  Total All Property Tax Rate $1.132700 $1.157100 $1.159900 $1.147400 $1.128600 

      

United Water Conservation District .024886 .017208 .007838 .022226 .018510 

  Total Land and Improvement Tax Rate $.024886 $.017208 $.007838 $.022226 $.018510 

      

Unincorporated Ventura County – Tax Rate Area 63-014 
(2022-23 Assessed Valuation: $860,564,417) 

 
 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 

General Tax Rate $1.000000 $1.000000 $1.000000 $1.000000 $1.000000 
Hueneme Elementary School District .066500 .090200 .088700 .085600 .062400 
Oxnard Union High School District .047500 .049100 .052700 .043500 .048500 
Ventura Community College District .015200 .014300 .015000 .014800 .014200 
Metropolitan Water District .003500 .003500 .003500 .003500 .003500 
  Total All Property Tax Rate $1.132700 $1.157100 $1.159900 $1.147400 $1.128600 
      
United Water Conservation District .024886 .017208 .007838 .022226 .018510 
  Total Land and Improvement Tax Rate $.024886 $.017208 $.007838 $.022226 $.018510 
      
____________ 

Source:  California Municipal Statistics, Inc. 



 

26 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Largest Property Owners 

The more property (by assessed value) which is owned by a single taxpayer within the District, 

the greater amount of tax collections that are exposed to weaknesses in such a taxpayer’s financial 

situation and ability or willingness to pay property taxes.  The table below lists the 20 largest local 

secured taxpayers in the District in terms of their fiscal year 2022-23 secured assessed valuations.  Each 

taxpayer listed below is a name listed on the tax rolls.  The District cannot make any representation as to 

whether individual persons, corporations or other organizations are liable for tax payments with respect to 

multiple properties held in various names that in aggregate may be larger than is suggested by the table 

below. 

LARGEST 2022-23 LOCAL SECURED PROPERTY TAXPAYERS 
Hueneme Elementary School District 

   2022-23  

 Property Owner Primary Land Use Assessed Valuation    Total 
(1)

 

1. TV Oxnard Bliss LLC Apartments $50,606,700 0.99% 

2. Ocean Villas LP Apartments 39,619,100 0.77 

3. New Indy Oxnard LLC Industrial 34,688,917 0.68 

4. Wraith LP Apartments 12,598,600 0.25 

5. Roussey Family Partnership LP Commercial 11,649,397 0.23 

6. Social Betterment Properties International Assisted Living 11,562,957 0.23 

7. Ruth D. McPherson Trust Residential Properties 11,454,600 0.22 

8. Rexford Industrial Realty LP Industrial 10,716,662 0.21 

9. We-Jen Enterprises LLC Apartments 10,203,078 0.20 

10. Pleasant Valley 52 LP Apartments 10,130,430 0.20 

11. Pleasant Valley Plaza LP Shopping Center 10,001,581 0.20 

12. Zaya and Sherry Younan Trust Residential Properties 9,904,000 0.19 

13. Seaview Apartments LLC Apartments 9,629,806 0.19 

14. Greco-Mexica Trust Shopping Center 9,550,000 0.19 

15. Global Premier RP Oxnard LP Convalescent Home 7,994,733 0.16 

16. 939 X Serano Ave. LLC Commercial 7,917,832 0.15 

17. Evergreen 41 LP Apartments 7,633,099 0.15 

18. Casa Pacifica  Apartments 6,695,559 0.13 

19. CTR Partnership LP Office Building 6,632,407 0.13 

20. Empresa Oxnard LLC Apartments     6,530,693 0.13 

   $285,720,151 5.57% 
______________________ 
(1)  2022-23 local secured assessed valuation:  $5,127,754,794. 

Source:  California Municipal Statistics, Inc. 

Direct and Overlapping Debt 

Set forth below is a direct and overlapping debt report regarding the District (a “Debt Report”) 

prepared by California Municipal Statistics, Inc. and effective March 1, 2023.  The Debt Report is 

included for general information purposes only.  The District has not reviewed the Debt Report for 

completeness or accuracy and make no representation in connection therewith. 

The Debt Report generally include long-term obligations sold in the public credit markets by 

public agencies whose boundaries overlap the boundaries of the District in whole or in part.  Such long-

term obligations generally are not payable from revenues of the District (except as indicated) nor are they 

necessarily obligations secured by land within the District.  In many cases, long-term obligations issued 

by a public agency are payable only from the general fund or other revenues of such public agency. 



 

27 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

The contents of the Debt Report is as follows: (1) the first column indicates the public agencies 

which have outstanding debt as of the date of the Debt Report and whose territory overlaps the District; 

(2) the second column shows the respective percentage of the assessed valuation of the overlapping public 

agencies identified in column 1 which is represented by property located in the District; and (3) the third 

column is an apportionment of the dollar amount of each public agency’s outstanding debt (which amount 

is not shown in the table) to property in the District, as determined by multiplying the total outstanding 

debt of each agency by the percentage of the District’s assessed valuation represented in column 2. 

STATEMENT OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT 
Hueneme Elementary School District 

2022-23 Assessed Valuation:  $5,608,763,528 

 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT: % Applicable Debt 3/1/23 

Metropolitan Water District 0.152%  $29,207   

Ventura County Community College District 3.438 8,400,295  

Oxnard Union High School District 10.530 45,961,030  

Hueneme School District 100.000   57,045,506 
(1)

 

  TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT   $111,436,038   

    

OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT:    

Ventura County General Fund Obligations 3.437%  $9,950,802   

Ventura County Superintendent of Schools Certificates of Participation 3.437 252,620  

Oxnard Union High School District General Fund Obligations 10.530 6,211,986  

City of Oxnard General Fund Obligations 9.611 6,908,331  

City of Port Hueneme General Fund and Pension Obligation Bonds 62.325   2,497,911  

  TOTAL OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT   $25,821,650   

    

OVERLAPPING TAX INCREMENT DEBT (Successor Agencies):   $5,723,573   

    

  COMBINED TOTAL DEBT   $142,981,261  
(2)

 

  

Ratios to 2022-23 Assessed Valuation: 

  Direct Debt  ($57,045,506) .................................................... 1.02% 
  Total Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt ....... 1.99% 

  Combined Total Debt .............................................................. 2.55% 

 

Ratios to Redevelopment Incremental Valuation  ($1,368,715,896): 

  Total Overlapping Tax Increment Debt 0.42% 

    
(1) Excludes the Bonds. 
(2) Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and non-bonded capital 

lease obligations. 
Source:  California Municipal Statistics, Inc. 

 



 

28 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING 
DISTRICT REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS 

The principal of and interest on the Bonds of the District is payable from the proceeds of an ad 

valorem tax levied by the County for the payment thereof.  See “THE BONDS – Security and Sources of 

Payment.”  Articles XIIIA, XIIIB, XIIIC and XIIID of the Constitution, Propositions 98 and 111, and 

certain other provisions of law discussed below, are included in this section to describe the potential 

effect of these Constitutional and statutory measures on the ability of the County to levy taxes on behalf of 

the District and the District to spend its revenues for operating and other purposes, and it should not be 

inferred from the inclusion of such materials that these laws impose any limitation on the ability of the 

District to levy taxes for payment of its Bonds.  The tax levied by the County for payment of the Bonds 

was approved by the District’s voters in compliance with Article XIIIA, Article XIIIC, and all applicable 

laws. 

Article XIIIA of the California Constitution 

Article XIIIA of the State Constitution limits the amount of ad valorem taxes on real property to 

1% of “full cash value” as determined by the county assessor.  Article XIIIA defines “full cash value” to 

mean “the county assessor’s valuation of real property as shown on the 1975-76 bill under “full cash 

value,” or thereafter, the appraised value of real property when purchased, newly constructed or a change 

in ownership has occurred after the 1975 assessment,” subject to exemptions in certain circumstances of 

property transfer or reconstruction.  Determined in this manner, the full cash value is also referred to as 

the “base year value.”  The full cash value is subject to annual adjustment to reflect increases, not to 

exceed 2% for any year, or decreases in the consumer price index or comparable local data, or to reflect 

reductions in property value caused by damage, destruction or other factors. 

Article XIIIA has been amended to allow for temporary reductions of assessed value in instances 

where the fair market value of real property falls below the adjusted base year value described above.  

Proposition 8—approved by the voters in November of 1978—provides for the enrollment of  the lesser 

of the base year value or the market value of real property, taking into account reductions in value due to 

damage, destruction, depreciation, obsolescence, removal of property, or other factors causing a similar 

decline.  In these instances, the market value is required to be reviewed annually until the market value 

matches or exceeds the base year value.  Reductions in assessed value could result in a corresponding 

increase in the annual tax rate levied by the County to pay debt service on the Bonds.  See “THE BONDS 

– Security and Sources of Payment” and “TAX BASE FOR REPAYMENT OF THE BONDS” herein.  

Article XIIIA requires a vote of two-thirds of the qualified electorate of a city, county, special 

district or other public agency to impose special taxes, while precluding the imposition of any additional 

ad valorem, sales or transaction tax on real property, with certain exceptions.  Article XIIIA exempts 

from the 1% tax limitation any taxes above that level required to pay debt service (a) on any indebtedness 

approved by the voters prior to July 1, 1978, or (b), as the result of an amendment approved by State 

voters on June 3, 1986, on any bonded indebtedness approved by two-thirds of the votes cast by the 

voters for the acquisition or improvement of real property on or after July 1, 1978, or (c) on bonded 

indebtedness incurred by a school district or community college district for the construction, 

reconstruction, rehabilitation or replacement of school facilities or the acquisition or lease of real property 

for school facilities, approved by 55% or more of the votes cast on the proposition, but only if certain 

accountability measures are included in the proposition.  The tax for payment of the Bonds falls within 

the exception described in (c) of the immediately preceding sentence.  In addition, Article XIIIA requires 

the approval of two-thirds of all members of the State legislature to change any state taxes for the purpose 

of increasing tax revenues. 



 

29 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Proposition 19 

On November 3, 2020, California voters approved Proposition 19, a legislatively referred 

constitutional amendment (“Proposition 19”), which amends Article XIIIA to: (i) expand special rules 

that give property tax savings to homeowners that are over the age of 55, severely disabled, or whose 

property has been impacted by wildfire or natural disaster, when they buy a different home; (ii) narrow 

existing special rules for inherited properties; and (iii) dedicate most of the potential new State revenue 

generated from Proposition 19 toward fire protection.  The District cannot make any assurance as to what 

effect the implementation of Proposition 19 will have on District revenues or the assessed valuation of 

real property in the District.  

Legislation Implementing Article XIIIA 

Legislation has been enacted and amended a number of times since 1978 to implement 

Article XIIIA.  Under current law, local agencies are no longer permitted to levy directly any property tax 

(except to pay voter-approved indebtedness).  The 1% property tax is automatically levied by the county 

and distributed according to a formula among taxing agencies.  The formula apportions the tax roughly in 

proportion to the relative shares of taxes levied prior to 1979. 

Increases of assessed valuation resulting from reappraisals of property due to new construction, 

change in ownership or from the annual adjustment not to exceed 2% are allocated among the various 

jurisdictions in the “taxing area” based upon their respective “situs.”  Any such allocation made to a local 

agency continues as part of its allocation in future years. 

All taxable property value included in this Official Statement is shown at 100% of taxable value 

(unless noted differently) and all tax rates reflect the $1 per $100 of taxable value. 

Both the United States Supreme Court and the California State Supreme Court have upheld the 

general validity of Article XIIIA. 

Proposition 50 and Proposition 171 

On June 3, 1986, the voters of the State approved Proposition 50.  Proposition 50 amends 

Section 2 of Article XIIIA of the State Constitution to allow owners of property that was “substantially 

damaged or destroyed” by a disaster, as declared by the Governor (the “Damaged Property”), to transfer 

their existing base year value (the “Original Base Year Value”) to a comparable replacement property 

within the same county, which is acquired or constructed within five years after the disaster.  At the time 

of such transfer, the Damaged Property will be reassessed at its full cash value immediately prior to 

damage or destruction (the “Original Cash Value”); however, such property will retain its base year value 

notwithstanding such a transfer.  Property is substantially damaged or destroyed if either the land or the 

improvements sustain physical damage amounting to more than 50% of either the land or improvements 

full cash value immediately prior to the disaster.  There is no filing deadline, but the assessor can only 

correct four years of assessments when the owner fails to file a claim within four years of acquiring a 

replacement property.  

Under Proposition 50, the base year value of the replacement property (the “Replacement Base 

Year Value”) depends on the relation of the full cash value of the replacement property (the 

“Replacement Cash Value”) to the Original Cash Value:  if the Replacement Cash Value exceeds 120% 

of the Original Cash Value, then the Replacement Base Year Value is calculated by combining the 

Original Base Year Value with such excessive Replacement Cash Value; if the Replacement Cash Value 

does not exceed 120% of the Original Cash Value, then the Replacement Base Year Value equals the 



 

30 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Original Base Year Value; if the Replacement Cash Value is less than the Original Cash Value, then the 

Replacement Base Year Value equals the Replacement Cash Value.  The replacement property must be 

comparable in size, utility, and function to the Damaged Property.  

On November 2, 1993, the voters of the State approved Proposition 171.  Proposition 171 amends 

subdivision (e) of Section 2 of Article XIIIA of the State Constitution to allow owners of Damaged 

Property to transfer their Original Base Year Value to a “comparable replacement property” located 

within another county in the State, which is acquired or newly constructed within three years after the 

disaster.  

Intra-county transfers under Proposition 171 are more restrictive than inter-county transfers under 

Proposition 50.  For example, Proposition 171 (1) only applies to (a) structures that are owned and 

occupied by property owners as their principal place of residence and (b) land of a “reasonable size that is 

used as a site for a residence;” (2) explicitly does not apply to property owned by firms, partnerships, 

associations, corporations, companies, or legal entities of any kind; (3) only applies to replacement 

property located in a county that adopted an ordinance allowing Proposition 171 transfers; (4) claims 

must be timely filed within three years of the date of purchase or completion of new construction; and 

(5) only applies to comparable replacement property, which has a full cash value that is of “equal or lesser 

value” than the Original Cash Value.   

Within the context of Proposition 171, “equal or lesser value” means that the amount of the 

Replacement Cash Value does not exceed either (1) 105% of the Original Cash Value when the 

replacement property is acquired or constructed within one year of the destruction, (2) 110% of the 

Original Cash Value when the replacement property is acquired or constructed within two years of the 

destruction, or (3) 115% of the Original Cash Value when the replacement property is acquired or 

constructed within three years of the destruction. 

Unitary Property 

Some amount of property tax revenue of the District is derived from utility property which is 

considered part of a utility system with components located in many taxing jurisdictions (“unitary 

property”).  Under the State Constitution, such property is assessed by the SBE as part of a “going 

concern” rather than as individual pieces of real or personal property.  Such utilities may include railways, 

telephone companies and companies transmitting or selling gas or electricity.  The assessed value of 

unitary and certain other state-assessed property is allocated to the counties by the SBE, taxed at special 

county-wide rates, and the tax revenues distributed to taxing jurisdictions (including the District) 

according to statutory formulae generally based on the distribution of taxes in the prior year.  So long as 

the District is not a basic aid district, taxes lost through any reduction in assessed valuation will be 

compensated by the State as equalization aid under the State’s school financing formula.  See “DISTRICT 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION” herein.   

Article XIIIB of the California Constitution 

Article XIIIB (“Article XIIIB”) of the State Constitution, as subsequently amended by 

Propositions 98 and 111, respectively, limits the annual appropriations of the State and of any city, 

county, school district, authority or other political subdivision of the State to the level of appropriations of 

the particular governmental entity for the prior fiscal year, as adjusted for changes in the cost of living 

and in population and for transfers in the financial responsibility for providing services and for certain 

declared emergencies.  As amended, Article XIIIB defines: 



 

31 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

(a) “change in the cost of living” with respect to school districts to mean the percentage 

change in California per capita income from the preceding year, and 

(b) “change in population” with respect to a school district to mean the percentage change in 

the average daily attendance of the school district from the preceding fiscal year. 

For fiscal years beginning on or after July 1, 1990, the appropriations limit of each entity of 

government shall be the appropriations limit for the 1986-87 fiscal year adjusted for the changes made 

from that fiscal year pursuant to the provisions of Article XIIIB, as amended. 

The appropriations of an entity of local government subject to Article XIIIB limitations include 

the proceeds of taxes levied by or for that entity and the proceeds of certain state subventions to that 

entity.  “Proceeds of taxes” include, but are not limited to, all tax revenues and the proceeds to the entity 

from (a) regulatory licenses, user charges and user fees (but only to the extent that these proceeds exceed 

the reasonable costs in providing the regulation, product or service), and (b) the investment of tax 

revenues. 

Appropriations subject to limitation do not include (a) refunds of taxes, (b) appropriations for 

debt service such as the Bonds, (c) appropriations required to comply with certain mandates of the courts 

or the federal government, (d) appropriations of certain special districts, (e) appropriations for all 

qualified capital outlay projects as defined by the State legislature, (f) appropriations derived from certain 

fuel and vehicle taxes and (g) appropriations derived from certain taxes on tobacco products. 

Article XIIIB includes a requirement that all revenues received by an entity of government other 

than the State in a fiscal year and in the fiscal year immediately following it in excess of the amount 

permitted to be appropriated during that fiscal year and the fiscal year immediately following it shall be 

returned by a revision of tax rates or fee schedules within the next two subsequent fiscal years. 

Article XIIIB also includes a requirement that 50% of all revenues received by the State in a 

fiscal year and in the fiscal year immediately following it in excess of the amount permitted to be 

appropriated during that fiscal year and the fiscal year immediately following it shall be transferred and 

allocated to the State School Fund pursuant to Section 8.5 of Article XVI of the State Constitution.  See 

“– Propositions 98 and 111” herein. 

Article XIIIC and Article XIIID of the California Constitution 

On November 5, 1996, the voters of the State approved Proposition 218, popularly known as the 

“Right to Vote on Taxes Act.”  Proposition 218 added to the California Constitution Articles XIIIC and 

XIIID (respectively, “Article XIIIC” and “Article XIIID”), which contain a number of provisions 

affecting the ability of local agencies, including school districts, to levy and collect both existing and 

future taxes, assessments, fees and charges. 

According to the “Title and Summary” of Proposition 218 prepared by the California Attorney 

General, Proposition 218 limits “the authority of local governments to impose taxes and property-related 

assessments, fees and charges.”  Among other things, Article XIIIC establishes that every tax is either a 

“general tax” (imposed for general governmental purposes) or a “special tax” (imposed for specific 

purposes), prohibits special purpose government agencies such as school districts from levying general 

taxes, and prohibits any local agency from imposing, extending or increasing any special tax beyond its 

maximum authorized rate without a two-thirds vote; and also provides that the initiative power will not be 

limited in matters of reducing or repealing local taxes, assessments, fees and charges.  Article XIIIC 

further provides that no tax may be assessed on property other than ad valorem property taxes imposed in 



 

32 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

accordance with Articles XIII and XIIIA of the California Constitution and special taxes approved by a 

two-thirds vote under Article XIIIA, Section 4.  Article XIIID deals with assessments and property-

related fees and charges, and explicitly provides that nothing in Article XIIIC or XIIID will be construed 

to affect existing laws relating to the imposition of fees or charges as a condition of property 

development. 

The District does not impose any taxes, assessments, or property-related fees or charges which 

are subject to the provisions of Proposition 218.  It does, however, receive a portion of the basic 1% ad 

valorem property tax levied and collected by the County pursuant to Article XIIIA of the California 

Constitution.  The provisions of Proposition 218 may have an indirect effect on the District, such as by 

limiting or reducing the revenues otherwise available to other local governments whose boundaries 

encompass property located within the District thereby causing such local governments to reduce service 

levels and possibly adversely affecting the value of property within the District. 

Proposition 26 

On November 2, 2010, voters in the State approved Proposition 26.  Proposition 26 amends 

Article XIIIC of the State Constitution to expand the definition of “tax” to include “any levy, charge, or 

exaction of any kind imposed by a local government” except the following:  (1) a charge imposed for a 

specific benefit conferred or privilege granted directly to the payor that is not provided to those not 

charged, and which does not exceed the reasonable costs to the local government of conferring the benefit 

or granting the privilege; (2) a charge imposed for a specific government service or product provided 

directly to the payor that is not provided to those not charged, and which does not exceed the reasonable 

costs to the local government of providing the service or product; (3) a charge imposed for the reasonable 

regulatory costs to a local government for issuing licenses and permits, performing investigations, 

inspections, and audits, enforcing agricultural marketing orders, and the administrative enforcement and 

adjudication thereof; (4) a charge imposed for entrance to or use of local government property, or the 

purchase, rental, or lease of local government property; (5) a fine, penalty, or other monetary charge 

imposed by the judicial branch of government or a local government, as a result of a violation of law; (6) 

a charge imposed as a condition of property development; and (7) assessments and property-related fees 

imposed in accordance with the provisions of Article XIIID.  Proposition 26 provides that the local 

government bears the burden of proving by a preponderance of the evidence that a levy, charge, or other 

exaction is not a tax, that the amount is no more than necessary to cover the reasonable costs of the 

governmental activity, and that the manner in which those costs are allocated to a payor bear a fair or 

reasonable relationship to the payor’s burdens on, or benefits received from, the governmental activity. 

Propositions 98 and 111 

On November 8, 1988, voters approved Proposition 98, a combined initiative constitutional 

amendment and statute called the “Classroom Instructional Improvement and Accountability Act” (the 

“Accountability Act”).  Certain provisions of the Accountability Act have, however, been modified by 

Proposition 111, discussed below, the provisions of which became effective on July 1, 1990.  The 

Accountability Act changes State funding of public education below the university level and the operation 

of the State’s appropriations limit.  The Accountability Act guarantees State funding for K-12 school 

districts and community college districts (hereinafter referred to collectively as “K-14 school districts”) at 

a level equal to the greater of (a) the same percentage of State general fund revenues as the percentage 

appropriated to such districts in 1986-87, and (b) the amount actually appropriated to such districts from 

the State general fund in the previous fiscal year, adjusted for increases in enrollment and changes in the 

cost of living.  The Accountability Act permits the Legislature to suspend this formula for a one-year 

period. 



 

33 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

The Accountability Act also changes how tax revenues in excess of the State appropriations limit 

are distributed.  Any excess State tax revenues up to a specified amount would, instead of being returned 

to taxpayers, be transferred to K-14 school districts.  Any such transfer to K-14 school districts would be 

excluded from the appropriations limit for K-14 school districts and the K-14 school district 

appropriations limit for the next year would automatically be increased by the amount of such transfer.  

These additional monies would enter the base funding calculation for K-14 school districts for subsequent 

years, creating further pressure on other portions of the State budget, particularly if revenues decline in a 

year following an Article XIIIB surplus.  The maximum amount of excess tax revenues which could be 

transferred to K-14 school districts is 4% of the minimum State spending for education mandated by the 

Accountability Act. 

Since the Accountability Act is unclear in some details, there can be no assurances that the 

Legislature or a court might not interpret the Accountability Act to require a different percentage of State 

general fund revenues to be allocated to K-14 school districts, or to apply the relevant percentage to the 

State’s budgets in a different way than is proposed in the Governor’s Budget.   

On June 5, 1990, the voters approved Proposition 111 (Senate Constitutional Amendment No. 1) 

called the “Traffic Congestion Relief and Spending Limit Act of 1990” (“Proposition 111”) which further 

modified Article XIIIB and Sections 8 and 8.5 of Article XVI of the State Constitution with respect to 

appropriations limitations and school funding priority and allocation. 

The most significant provisions of Proposition 111 are summarized as follows: 

a. Annual Adjustments to Spending Limit.  The annual adjustments to the Article XIIIB 

spending limit were liberalized to be more closely linked to the rate of economic growth.  

Instead of being tied to the Consumer Price Index, the “change in the cost of living” is 

now measured by the change in California per capita personal income.  The definition of 

“change in population” specifies that a portion of the State’s spending limit is to be 

adjusted to reflect changes in school attendance. 

b. Treatment of Excess Tax Revenues.  “Excess” tax revenues with respect to Article XIIIB 

are now determined based on a two-year cycle, so that the State can avoid having to 

return to taxpayers excess tax revenues in one year if its appropriations in the next fiscal 

year are under its limit.  In addition, the Proposition 98 provision regarding excess tax 

revenues was modified.  After any two-year period, if there are excess State tax revenues, 

50% of the excess are to be transferred to K-14 school districts with the balance returned 

to taxpayers; under prior law, 100% of excess State tax revenues went to K-14 school 

districts, but only up to a maximum of 4% of the schools’ minimum funding level.  Also, 

reversing prior law, any excess State tax revenues transferred to K-14 school districts are 

not built into the school districts’ base expenditures for calculating their entitlement for 

State aid in the next year, and the State’s appropriations limit is not to be increased by 

this amount. 

c. Exclusions from Spending Limit.  Two exceptions were added to the calculation of 

appropriations which are subject to the Article XIIIB spending limit.  First, there are 

excluded all appropriations for “qualified capital outlay projects” as defined by the 

Legislature.  Second, there are excluded any increases in gasoline taxes above the 1990 

level (then nine cents per gallon), sales and use taxes on such increment in gasoline taxes, 

and increases in receipts from vehicle weight fees above the levels in effect on January 1, 

1990.  These latter provisions were necessary to make effective the transportation 

funding package approved by the Legislature and the Governor, which was expected to 



 

34 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

raise over $15 billion in additional taxes from 1990 through 2000 to fund transportation 

programs. 

d. Recalculation of Appropriations Limit.  The Article XIIIB appropriations limit for each 

unit of government, including the State, is to be recalculated beginning in fiscal year 

1990-91.  It is based on the actual limit for fiscal year 1986-87, adjusted forward to  

1990-91 as if Proposition 111 had been in effect. 

e. School Funding Guarantee.  There is a complex adjustment in the formula enacted in 

Proposition 98 which guarantees K-14 school districts a certain amount of State general 

fund revenues.  Under prior law, K-14 school districts were guaranteed the greater of 

(1) 40.9% of State general fund revenues (the “first test”) or (2) the amount appropriated 

in the prior year adjusted for changes in the cost of living (measured as in Article XIIIB 

by reference to per capita personal income) and enrollment (the “second test”).  Under 

Proposition 111, schools will receive the greater of (1) the first test, (2) the second test, or 

(3) a third test, which will replace the second test in any year when growth in per capita 

State general fund revenues from the prior year is less than the annual growth in 

California per capita personal income.  Under the third test, schools will receive the 

amount appropriated in the prior year adjusted for change in enrollment and per capita 

State general fund revenues, plus an additional small adjustment factor.  If the third test is 

used in any year, the difference between the third test and the second test will become a 

“credit” to schools which will be paid in future years when State general fund revenue 

growth exceeds personal income growth. 

Proposition 39 

On November 7, 2000, California voters approved an amendment (commonly known as 

“Proposition 39”) to the California Constitution.  This amendment (1) allows school facilities bond 

measures to be approved by 55% (rather than two-thirds) of the voters in local elections and permits 

property taxes to exceed the Article XIIIA 1% limit in order to repay the bonds and (2) changes existing 

statutory law regarding charter school facilities.  As adopted, the constitutional amendments may be 

changed only with another statewide vote of the people.  The statutory provisions could be changed by a 

majority vote of both houses of the Legislature and approval by the Governor, but only to further the 

purposes of the proposition.  The local school jurisdictions affected by this proposition are K-12 school 

districts, including the District, community college districts, and county offices of education.  As noted 

above, the California Constitution previously limited property taxes to 1% of the value of property, and 

permitted property taxes to exceed this limit only to pay for (1) any local government debts approved by 

the voters prior to July 1, 1978 or (2) bonds to acquire or improve real property that receive two-thirds 

voter approval after July 1, 1978. 

The 55% vote requirement would apply only if the local bond measure presented to the voters 

includes: (1) a requirement that the bond funds can be used only for construction, rehabilitation, 

equipping of school facilities, or the acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities; (2) a 

specific list of school projects to be funded and certification that the school board has evaluated safety, 

class size reduction, and information technology needs in developing the list; and (3) a requirement that 

the school board conduct annual, independent financial and performance audits until all bond funds have 

been spent to ensure that the bond funds have been used only for the projects listed in the measure. 

Legislation approved in June 2000 placed certain limitations on local school bonds to be approved by 

55% of the voters.  These provisions require that the tax rate per $100,000 of taxable property value 

projected to be levied as the result of any single election be no more than $60 (for a unified school 

district), $30 (for a high school or elementary school district), or $25 (for a community college district).  



 

35 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

These requirements are not part of the constitutional amendment and can be changed with a majority vote 

of both houses of the Legislature and approval by the Governor. 

Jarvis v. Connell 

On May 29, 2002, the California Court of Appeal for the Second District decided the case of 

Howard Jarvis Taxpayers Association, et al. v. Kathleen Connell (as Controller of the State of 

California).  The Court of Appeal held that either a final budget bill, an emergency appropriation, a self-

executing authorization pursuant to state statutes (such as continuing appropriations) or the California 

Constitution or a federal mandate is necessary for the State Controller to disburse funds.  The foregoing 

requirement could apply to amounts budgeted by the District as being received from the State.  To the 

extent the holding in such case would apply to State payments reflected in the District’s budget, the 

requirement that there be either a final budget bill or an emergency appropriation may result in the delay 

of such payments to the District if such required legislative action is delayed, unless the payments are 

self-executing authorizations or are subject to a federal mandate.  On May 1, 2003, the California 

Supreme Court upheld the holding of the Court of Appeal, stating that the Controller is not authorized 

under State law to disburse funds prior to the enactment of a budget or other proper appropriation, but 

under federal law, the Controller is required, notwithstanding a budget impasse and the limitations 

imposed by State law, to timely pay those State employees who are subject to the minimum wage and 

overtime compensation provisions of the federal Fair Labor Standards Act. 

Proposition 1A and Proposition 22 

On November 2, 2004, California voters approved Proposition 1A, which amends the State 

Constitution to significantly reduce the State’s authority over major local government revenue sources.  

Under Proposition 1A, the State cannot (i) reduce local sales tax rates or alter the method of allocating the 

revenue generated by such taxes, (ii) shift property taxes from local governments to schools or 

community colleges, (iii) change how property tax revenues are shared among local governments without 

two-third approval of both houses of the State Legislature or (iv) decrease Vehicle License Fee revenues 

without providing local governments with equal replacement funding.  Proposition 1A does allow the 

State to approve voluntary exchanges of local sales tax and property tax revenues among local 

governments within a county.  Proposition 1A also amends the State Constitution to require the State to 

suspend certain State laws creating mandates in any year that the State does not fully reimburse local 

governments for their costs to comply with the mandates.  This provision does not apply to mandates 

relating to schools or community colleges or to those mandates relating to employee rights. 

Proposition 22, The Local Taxpayer, Public Safety, and Transportation Protection Act, approved 

by the voters of the State on November 2, 2010, prohibits the State from enacting new laws that require 

redevelopment agencies to shift funds to schools or other agencies and eliminates the State’s authority to 

shift property taxes temporarily during a severe financial hardship of the State.  In addition, 

Proposition 22 restricts the State’s authority to use State fuel tax revenues to pay debt service on state 

transportation bonds, to borrow or change the distribution of state fuel tax revenues, and to use vehicle 

license fee revenues to reimburse local governments for state mandated costs.  Proposition 22 impacts 

resources in the State’s general fund and transportation funds, the State’s main funding source for schools 

and community colleges, as well as universities, prisons and health and social services programs.  

According to an analysis of Proposition 22 submitted by the Legislative Analyst’s Office (the “LAO”) on 

July 15, 2010, the expected reduction in resources available for the State to spend on these other programs 

as a consequence of the passage of Proposition 22 will be approximately $1 billion in fiscal year 2010-11, 

with an estimated immediate fiscal effect equal to approximately 1% of the State’s total general fund 

spending.  The longer-term effect of Proposition 22, according to the LAO analysis, was expected to be 



 

36 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

an increase in the State’s general fund costs by approximately $1 billion annually for several decades.  

See also “DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION – State Dissolution of Redevelopment Agencies.” 

Proposition 30 and Proposition 55 

On November 6, 2012, State voters approved the Temporary Taxes to Fund Education, 

Guaranteed Local Public Safety Funding, Initiative Constitutional Amendment (also known as 

“Proposition 30”), which temporarily increased the State Sales and Use Tax and personal income tax rates 

on higher incomes.  For personal income taxes imposed beginning in the taxable year commencing 

January 1, 2012 and ending December 31, 2018, Proposition 30 increases the marginal personal income 

tax rate by: (i) 1% for taxable income over $250,000 but less than $300,001 for single filers (over 

$500,000 but less than $600,001 for joint filers and over $340,000 but less than $408,001 for head-of-

household filers), (ii) 2% for taxable income over $300,000 but less than $500,001 for single filers (over 

$600,000 but less than $1,000,001 for joint filers and over $408,000 but less than $680,001 for head-of-

household filers), and (iii) 3% for taxable income over $500,000 for single filers (over $1,000,000 for 

joint filers and over $680,000 for head-of-household filers).  

The California Children’s Education and Health Care Protection Act of 2016 (also known as 

“Proposition 55”) is a constitutional amendment approved by State voters on November 8, 2016.  

Proposition 55 extends the increases to personal income tax rates for high-income taxpayers that were 

approved as part of Proposition 30 through 2030.  Proposition 55 did not extend the temporary State Sales 

and Use Tax rate increase enacted under Proposition 30, which expired as of January 1, 2017. 

The revenues generated from the personal income tax increases will be included in the calculation 

of the Proposition 98 Minimum Funding Guarantee (defined herein) for K-14 school districts.  See 

“CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES AND 

APPROPRIATIONS – Propositions 98 and 111” herein.  From an accounting perspective, the revenues 

generated from the personal income tax increases are being deposited into the State account created 

pursuant to Proposition 30 called the Education Protection Account (the “EPA”).  Pursuant to Proposition 

30, funds in the EPA will be allocated quarterly, with 89% of such funds provided to schools districts and 

11% provided to community college districts.  The funds will be distributed to K-14 school districts in the 

same manner as existing unrestricted per-student funding, except that no school district will receive less 

than $200 per unit of average daily attendance (“ADA”) and no community college district will receive 

less than $100 per full time equivalent student.  The governing board of each school district and 

community college district is granted sole authority to determine how the moneys received from the EPA 

are spent, provided that the appropriate governing board is required to make these spending 

determinations in open session at a public meeting and such local governing board is prohibited from 

using any funds from the EPA for salaries or benefits of administrators or any other administrative costs. 

Proposition 2 

On November 4, 2014, State voters approved the Rainy Day Budget Stabilization Fund Act (also 

known as “Proposition 2”).  Proposition 2 is a legislatively-referred constitutional amendment which 

makes certain changes to State budgeting practices, including substantially revising the conditions under 

which transfers are made to and from the State’s Budget Stabilization Account (the “BSA”) established 

by the California Balanced Budget Act of 2004 (also known as Proposition 58).   

Under Proposition 2, and beginning in fiscal year 2015-16 and each fiscal year thereafter, the 

State will generally be required to annually transfer to the BSA an amount equal to 1.5% of estimated 

State general fund revenues (the “Annual BSA Transfer”).  Supplemental transfers to the BSA (a 

“Supplemental BSA Transfer”) are also required in any fiscal year in which the estimated State general 



 

37 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

fund revenues that are allocable to capital gains taxes exceed 8% of total estimated general fund tax 

revenues.  Such excess capital gains taxes—net of any portion thereof owed to K-14 school districts 

pursuant to Proposition 98—will be transferred to the BSA.  Proposition 2 also increases the maximum 

size of the BSA to an amount equal to 10% of estimated State general fund revenues for any given fiscal 

year.  In any fiscal year in which a required transfer to the BSA would result in an amount in excess of the 

10% threshold, Proposition 2 requires such excess to be expended on State infrastructure, including 

deferred maintenance.   

For the first 15-year period ending with the 2029-30 fiscal year, Proposition 2 provides that half 

of any required transfer to the BSA, either annual or supplemental, must be appropriated to reduce certain 

State liabilities, including making certain payments owed to K-14 school districts, repaying State 

interfund borrowing, reimbursing local governments for State mandated services, and reducing or 

prefunding accrued liabilities associated with State-level pension and retirement benefits.  Following the 

initial 15-year period, the Governor and the Legislature are given discretion to apply up to half of any 

required transfer to the BSA to the reduction of such State liabilities.  Any amount not applied towards 

such reduction must be transferred to the BSA or applied to infrastructure, as described above. 

Proposition 2 changes the conditions under which the Governor and the Legislature may draw 

upon or reduce transfers to the BSA.  The Governor does not retain unilateral discretion to suspend 

transfers the BSA, nor does the Legislature retain discretion to transfer funds from the BSA for any 

reason, as previously provided by law.  Rather, the Governor must declare a “budget emergency,” defined 

as an emergency within the meaning of Article XIIIB of the Constitution or a determination that estimated 

resources are inadequate to fund State general fund expenditures, for the current or ensuing fiscal year, at 

a level equal to the highest level of State spending within the three immediately preceding fiscal 

years.  Any such declaration must be followed by a legislative bill providing for a reduction or 

transfer.  Draws on the BSA are limited to the amount necessary to address the budget emergency, and no 

draw in any fiscal year may exceed 50% of funds on deposit in the BSA unless a budget emergency was 

declared in the preceding fiscal year. 

Proposition 2 also requires the creation of the Public School System Stabilization Account (the 

“PSSSA”) into which transfers will be made in any fiscal year in which a Supplemental BSA Transfer is 

required (as described above).  Such transfer will be equal to the portion of capital gains taxes above the 

8% threshold that would be otherwise paid to K-14 school districts as part of the minimum funding 

guarantee.  A transfer to the PSSSA will only be made if certain additional conditions are met, as follows: 

(i) the minimum funding guarantee was not suspended in the immediately preceding fiscal year, (ii) the 

operative Proposition 98 formula for the fiscal year in which a PSSSA transfer might be made is “Test 1,” 

(iii) no maintenance factor obligation is being created in the budgetary legislation for the fiscal year in 

which a PSSSA transfer might be made, (iv) all prior maintenance factor obligations have been fully 

repaid, and (v) the minimum funding guarantee for the fiscal year in which a PSSSA transfer might be 

made is higher than the immediately preceding fiscal year, as adjusted for ADA growth and cost of 

living.  Proposition 2 caps the size of the PSSSA at 10% of the estimated minimum guarantee in any 

fiscal year, and any excess funds must be paid to K-14 school districts.  Reductions to any required 

transfer to the PSSSA, or draws on the PSSSA, are subject to the same budget emergency requirements 

described above.  However, Proposition 2 also mandates draws on the PSSSA in any fiscal year in which 

the estimated minimum funding guarantee is less than the prior year’s funding level, as adjusted for ADA 

growth and cost of living. 

SB 858.  Senate Bill 858 (“SB 858”) became effective upon the passage of Proposition 2.  SB 858 

includes provisions which could limit the amount of reserves that may be maintained by a school district 

in certain circumstances.  Under SB 858, in any fiscal year immediately following a fiscal year in which 

the State has made a transfer into the PSSSA, any adopted or revised budget by a school district would 



 

38 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

need to contain a combined unassigned and assigned ending fund balance that (a) for school districts with 

an ADA of less than 400,000, is not more than two times the amount of the reserve for economic 

uncertainties mandated by the State Education Code, or (b) for school districts with an ADA that is more 

than 400,000, is not more than three times the amount of the reserve for economic uncertainties mandated 

by the State Education Code.  In certain cases, the county superintendent of schools may grant a school 

district a waiver from this limitation on reserves for up to two consecutive years within a three-year 

period if there are certain extraordinary fiscal circumstances. 

The District, which has an ADA of less than 400,000, would be required pursuant to SB 858 to 

maintain a reserve for economic uncertainty in an amount equal to 3% of its general fund expenditures 

and other financing uses. 

SB 751.  Senate Bill 751 (“SB 751”), enacted on October 11, 2017, alters the reserve 

requirements imposed by SB 858.  Under SB 751, in a fiscal year immediately after a fiscal year in which 

the amount of moneys in the PSSSA is equal to or exceeds 3% of the combined total general fund 

revenues appropriated for school districts and allocated local proceeds of taxes for that fiscal year, a 

school district budget that is adopted or revised cannot have an assigned or unassigned ending fund 

balance that exceeds 10% of those funds.  SB 751 excludes from the requirements of those provisions 

basic aid school districts (also known as community funded districts) and small school districts having 

fewer than 2,501 units of ADA. 

The Bonds are payable from ad valorem taxes to be levied within the District pursuant to the 

State Constitution and other State law.  Accordingly, the District does not expect SB 858 or SB 751 to 

adversely affect its ability to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as and when due. 

Proposition 51 

The Kindergarten Through Community College Public Education Facilities Bond Act of 2016 

(also known as Proposition 51) is an initiative that was approved by State voters on November 8, 2016.  

Proposition 51 authorizes the sale and issuance of $9 billion in State general obligation bonds for the new 

construction and modernization of K-14 facilities.   

K-12 School Facilities.  Proposition 51 includes $3 billion for the new construction of K-12 

facilities and an additional $3 billion for the modernization of existing K-12 facilities.  K-12 school 

districts will be required to pay for 50% of the new construction costs and 40% of the modernization costs 

with local revenues.  If a school district lacks sufficient local funding, it may apply for additional State 

grant funding, up to 100% of the project costs.  In addition, a total of $1 billion will be available for the 

modernization and new construction of charter school ($500 million) and technical education ($500 

million) facilities.  Generally, 50% of modernization and new construction project costs for charter school 

and technical education facilities must come from local revenues.  However, schools that cannot cover 

their local share for these two types of projects may apply for State loans.  State loans must be repaid over 

a maximum of 30 years for charter school facilities and 15 years for career technical education facilities.  

For career technical education facilities, State grants are capped at $3 million for a new facility and $1.5 

for a modernized facility.  Charter schools must be deemed financially sound before project approval.   

Community College Facilities.  Proposition 51 includes $2 billion for community college district 

facility projects, including buying land, constructing new buildings, modernizing existing buildings, and 

purchasing equipment.  In order to receive funding, community college districts must submit project 

proposals to the Chancellor of the community college system, who then decides which projects to submit 

to the Legislature and Governor based on a scoring system that factors in the amount of local funds 



 

39 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

contributed to the project.  The Governor and Legislature will select among eligible projects as part of the 

annual State budget process.  

The District makes no guarantees that it will either pursue or qualify for Proposition 51 State 

facilities funding. 

Future Initiatives 

Article XIIIA, Article XIIIB, Article XIIIC and Article XIIID of the California Constitution and 

Propositions 22, 26, 30, 39, 98, 51 and 55 were each adopted as measures that qualified for the ballot 

pursuant to the State’s initiative process.  From time to time other initiative measures could be adopted 

further affecting District revenues or the District’s ability to expend revenues.  The nature and impact of 

these measures cannot be anticipated by the District. 

State Budget 

The following information concerning the State’s budgets has been obtained from publicly 

available information which the District believes to be reliable; however, the District does not guarantee 

the accuracy or completeness of this information and has not independently verified such information.  

Furthermore, it should not be inferred from the inclusion of this information herein that the principal of 

or interest on the Bonds is payable from the general fund of the District.  The Bonds are payable from the 

proceeds of an ad valorem property tax required to be levied by the County in an amount sufficient for the 

payment thereof.   

2022-23 State Budget.  On June 30, 2022, the Governor signed the State budget for fiscal year 

2022-23 (the “2022-23 Budget”).  The following information is drawn from the State Department of 

Finance (the “DOF”) and LAO summaries of the 2022-23 Budget.   

For fiscal year 2021-22, the 2022-23 Budget projects total general fund revenues and transfers of 

$277.1 billion and authorizes expenditures of $242.9 billion.  The State is projected to end the 2021-22 

fiscal year with total reserves of $46.7 billion, including $18.2 billion in the traditional general fund 

reserve, $20.3 billion in the BSA, $7.3 billion in the PSSSA and $900 million in the Safety Net Reserve 

Fund.  For fiscal year 2022-23, the 2022-23 Budget projects total general fund revenues and transfers of 

$219.7 billion and authorizes expenditures of $234.4 billion.  The State is projected to end the 2022-23 

fiscal year with total reserves of $37.2 billion, including $3.5 billion in the traditional general fund 

reserve, $23.3 billion in the BSA, $9.5 billion in the PSSSA and $900 million in the Safety Net Reserve 

Fund.  The 2022-23 Budget includes deposits to the PSSSA of $3.1 billion, $4 billion and $2.2 billion 

attributable to fiscal years 2020-21 through 2022-23, respectively.  The balance of $7.1 billion in the 

PSSSA in fiscal year 2021-22  triggers school district reserve caps beginning in fiscal year 2022-23.  See 

“CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES AND 

APPROPRIATIONS – Proposition 2” herein.  

The 2022-23 Budget sets total funding for all K-12 education programs at $128.6 billion, 

including $78.6 billion from the State general fund.  This results in per-pupil funding of $22,893, 

including $16,993 from Proposition 98 sources.  The minimum funding guarantee in fiscal year 2022-23 

is set at $110.4 billion.  The 2022-23 Budget also makes retroactive increases to the minimum funding 

guarantee in fiscal years 2020-21 and 2021-22, setting them at $96.1 billion and $110.2 billion, 

respectively.  Collectively, this represents a three-year increase in the minimum funding guarantee of 

$35.8 billion over the level projected by the State budget for fiscal year 2021-22 (the “2021-22 Budget”).  

Test 1 is projected to be in effect over this three year period. 



 

40 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Other significant features relating to K-12 education funding include the following: 

 Local Control Funding Formula:  The 2022-23 Budget funds a cost of living adjustment (a 

“COLA”) of 6.56% to LCFF apportionments, the largest COLA in the history of the LCFF.  

To assist school district and charter schools address ongoing fiscal pressures, staff shortages 

and other operational needs, the 2022-23 Budget includes $4.32 billion in ongoing 

Proposition 98 funding to increase LCFF base funding by an additional 6.28%.  With respect 

to county offices of education, the 2022-23 Budget includes $101.2 million in ongoing, 

augmented LCFF funding.  To support the fiscal stability of all local educational agencies, 

including those with declining student populations, the 2022-23 Budget amends the LCFF 

calculation to consider the greater of a school district’s current year, prior year or average of 

three prior years’ ADA.  Finally, to minimize reductions in LCFF funding that would 

otherwise occur due to increased absences in fiscal year 2021-22, the 2022-23 Budget enables 

all classroom-based local educational agencies that can demonstrate they provided 

independent study offerings to students in fiscal year 2021-22 to be funded at the greater of 

their current year ADA or their current year enrollment, adjusted for pre-COVID-19 absence 

rates in the 2021-22 fiscal year.  The 2022-23 Budget also allows classroom based charter 

schools to be similarly funded.  The 2022-23 Budget reflects $2.8 billion in ongoing 

Proposition 98 funding and $413 million in one-time Proposition 98 funding to implement 

these stabilization policies. 

 Learning Recovery:  The 2022-23 Budget establishes the Learning Recovery Emergency 

Fund and appropriates $7.9 billion in one-time Proposition 98 funding to establish a block 

grant to support local educational agencies in establishing learning recovery initiatives.   

 Discretionary Block Grant: $3.6 billion in one-time, discretionary Proposition 98 funding to 

school districts, county offices of education, charter schools and State special schools to be 

spent on a variety of purposes, including arts and music programs, professional development, 

instructional materials, operational costs and expenses related to the COVID-19 pandemic.   

 Student Supports: The 2021-22 Budget provided $3 billion, available over several years, to 

expand and strengthen the implementation and use of community school models in 

communities with high levels of poverty.  Community schools typically integrate health, 

mental health and other services for students and families and provide these services directly 

on school campuses.  The 2022-23 Budget includes an additional $1.1 billion in one-time 

Proposition 98 funding to expand access to community schools.  

 Educator Workforce: The 2021-22 Budget provided $2.9 billion to support a variety of 

initiatives intended to further expand the State’s educator preparation and training 

infrastructure, including meeting the needs of early childhood educators.  To further support 

this effort, the 2022-23 Budget provides $48.1 million in one-time funding to waive certain 

teacher examination fees, $20 million in one-time funding to develop and implement 

integrated teacher preparation programs, $2.7 million to fund State operational  support for 

teacher credentialing, and $1.4 million to establish career counselors for prospective 

educators.   

 Educator Preparation, Retention and Training:  The 2022-23 Budget funds a variety of 

additional educator workforce initiatives, including (i) $250 million in one-time Proposition 

98 funding to expand residency slots for teachers and school counselors, (ii) $85 million in 

one-time Proposition 98 funding to create Pre-Kindergarten through 12
th
 grade educator 

resources and professional learning in science technology, engineering and math, and (iii) 



 

41 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

$35 million in one-time Proposition 98 funding, available over three years, for educator 

training in computer science, special education and support for English-learners. 

 Universal Transitional Kindergarten: $614 million in ongoing Proposition 98 funding to 

expand eligibility for transitional kindergarten to include all children turning five years old 

between September 2 and February 2, beginning in the 2022-23 fiscal year.  To accommodate 

expected enrollment increases related to the expansion of transitional kindergarten, the 2022-

23 Budget will rebench the Test 1 percentage of State revenues allocated to education.  

Additionally, the 2022-23 Budget includes $383 million in Proposition 98 funding to add one 

additional certificated or classified employee to every transitional kindergarten class, which is 

expected to reduce student-to-adult ratios to more closely align with the State’s preschool 

program.  Finally, the 2022-23 Budget provides $100 million of one-time funding in 2022-23, 

and $550 million of funding in 2023-24, to support the construction or retrofit of school 

facilities for the purpose of providing classrooms for transitional kindergarten, full-day 

kindergarten or preschool.   

  Expanded Learning Time:  $3 billion of Proposition 98 funding as part of a multi-year plan 

to implement expanded-day, full-year instruction and enrichment for all elementary school 

students, with a focus on local educational agencies with the highest concentrations of low-

income students, English language learners, and foster youth.  Pursuant to this plan, all local 

educational agencies will receive funding for expanded learning opportunities based on their 

numbers of such students.  Beginning in fiscal year 2023-24, local educational agencies will 

be required to offer expanded learning opportunities to all low-income students, English 

language learnings and foster youth.  Local educational agencies with the highest 

concentrations of these students will be required to offer expanded learning opportunities to 

all students.  The 2022-23 Budget continues to assume full implementation of this program 

by fiscal year 2025-26. 

 Literacy: $250 million in one-time Proposition 98 funding, available over five years, for 

grants to high-needs schools to train and hire literacy coaches and reading specialists to guide 

productive classroom instruction and offer one-on-one and small group intervention for 

struggling readers.   

 Community Engagement: $100 million in one-time Proposition 98 funding to expand the 

reach of an initiative included in prior budgetary legislation which builds the capacity of local 

educational agencies to engage more effectively with their communities. 

 Special Education:  $500 million in ongoing Proposition 98 funding to increase in the State-

wide base funding rate for special education funding. 

 College and Career Pathways: $500 million in one-time Proposition 98 funding, over seven  

years, to support the development of college and career pathways program focused on 

technology (including computer science, green technology and engineering), health care, 

education and climate-related fields.  Additionally, the 2022-23 Budget includes $200 million 

in one-time Proposition 98 funding, available over four years, to strengthen and expand 

student access and participation in dual enrollment opportunities. 

 Home-to-School Transportation:  $637 million in ongoing Proposition 98 funding to 

reimburse local educational agencies for up to 60% of their prior year transportation costs.  In 

addition, commencing in fiscal 2023-24, the 2022-23 Budget reflects the application of an 

ongoing COLA to the current LCFF Home-to-School Transportation add-on.  Finally, the 



 

42 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

2022-23 Budget provides $1.5 billion in one-time Proposition 98 funding, available over five 

years, to support the greening of school buses as part of a Statewide zero-emissions initiative.   

 Nutrition: $596 million in Proposition 98 funding to create universal access to subsidized 

school meals.  The 2022-23 Budget provides an additional $611.8 million in ongoing 

Proposition 98 funding to augment State meal program reimbursements rates beginning in 

fiscal year 2022-23, in order to allow local educational agencies to continue offering higher-

quality and more diverse meals for students.  Additionally, the 2022-23 Budget includes $600 

million in one-time Proposition 98 funding, available over three years, to upgrade school 

kitchen infrastructure and equipment, provide food service employee training and incorporate 

fresh, minimally-processed, California-grown foods in school meals.  The 2022-23 Budget 

also provides an additional $100 million in one-time Proposition 98 funding to support local 

educational agency procurement practices for plant-based or restricted diet meals, as well as 

to procure California-grown or California-produced, sustainably grown and whole or 

minimally processed foods.  Finally, the 2022-23 Budget includes an additional $30 million 

in one-time Proposition 98 funding for the California Farm to School Program, which 

connects local producers and school food buyers, increases food education opportunities and 

engages schools and students with the agricultural community.  

 Facilities:  $1.4 billion in State general obligation bond funding to support school 

construction projects.  This represents the final installment available to K-12 school districts 

under Proposition 51.  See “CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS 

AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS – Proposition 51” herein.  

The 2022-23 Budget also provides $1.3 billion in one-time funding in fiscal year 2022-23, 

$2.1 billion of such funds in 2023-24 and $875 million of such funds in fiscal year 2024-25, 

to support new construction and modernization projects through the State’s school facility 

program.  Finally, the 2022-23 Budget includes $30 million in ongoing Proposition 98 

funding to support eligible facilities costs for the Charter School Facility Grant Program.   

 Classified Staff: An increase of $35 million in one-time Proposition 98 funding, and $90 

million in ongoing Proposition 98 funding, for the Classified School Employee Summer 

Assistance Program, which provides supplemental pay for classified staff during the 

intersessional months when they are not employed. 

For additional information regarding the 2022-23 Budget, see the DOF and LAO websites at 

www.dof.ca.gov and www.lao.ca.gov.  However, the information presented on such websites is not 

incorporated herein by any reference.   

Proposed 2023-24 State Budget.  On January 10, 2023, the Governor released his proposed State 

budget for fiscal year 2023-24 (the “Proposed 2023-24 Budget”).  The following information is drawn 

from the DOF and LAO summaries of the Proposed 2023-24 Budget.  

The Proposed 2023-24 Budget reports that due to several factors, including continued high 

inflation, multiple federal reserve bank interest rate increases and stock market declines, the revenue 

outlook is substantially different from the previous two years.  The Proposed 2023-24 Budget forecasts 

that State general fund revenues will be $29.5 billion lower than the level projected by the 2022-23 

Budget, and the State faces an estimated budget gap of approximately $22.5 billion in fiscal year 2023-24.  

The LAO estimates a slightly lower budget gap of $18 billion, and results from a difference in what the 

Governor and the LAO treat as spending that was approved by prior budgets.   

http://www.dof.ca.gov/
http://www.lao.ca.gov/


 

43 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

To close the budget gap, the Proposed 2023-24 Budget includes a series of measures intended to 

avoid deep reductions to priority programs that marked budgetary shortfalls over the past two decades, as 

well as avoid draws on State reserves:    

 Funding Delays - $7.4 billion: Delayed funding for multiple items across fiscal years 

2021-22 through 2023-24.  The majority of these funding delays are in higher education, 

healthcare and broadband access.  The LAO notes that these funding delays will result in 

net cost increases in fiscal years 2024-25 and 2025-26.   

 Reductions/Pullbacks - $5.7 billion: Reductions in spending for various items across 

fiscal years 2021-22 through 2023-24, and a pull back of certain items that were included 

in the 2022-23 Budget.  Significant items in this category include a $3 billion inflationary 

adjustment included in the prior budget, and a $750 million principal payment to the 

State’s unemployment insurance loan.  

 Cost Shifts - $4.3 billion: Shifts in certain expenditures in fiscal years 2022-23 and 

2023-24 from the State general fund to other sources.   

 Trigger Reductions - $3.9 billion: Reductions to funding for certain items in fiscal years 

2020-21 through 2023-24.  These reductions would be placed in a “trigger” that would 

restore funding if sufficient revenues are available.  The reductions are to baseline 

adjustments, enrollments, caseloads and population adjustments, primarily in the areas of 

natural resources and the environment, transportation, housing and homelessness, State 

parks and workforce training.  

 Limited Revenue Generation and Borrowing - $1.2 billion: Augmentation to State general 

fund sources and limited borrowing, the majority of which would be derived from loans 

from special funds and a renewal of a tax on managed care organizations.  

The Proposed 2023-24 Budget also includes estimates of multiyear revenues and spending.  

Under these projections and the current budget proposals, the State is projected to face operating deficits 

of $9 million in fiscal year 2024-25, $9 million in fiscal year 2025-26 and $4 million in fiscal year 

2026-27. 

For fiscal year 2022-23, the Proposed 2023-24 Budget projects total general fund revenues and 

transfers of $208.9 billion and authorizes expenditures of $240.1 billion.  The State is projected to end the 

2022-23 fiscal year with total reserves of $47.7 billion, including $17.2 billion in the traditional general 

fund reserve, $21.5 billion in the BSA, $8.1 billion in the PSSSA and $900 million in the Safety Net 

Reserve Fund.  For fiscal year 2023-24, the Proposed 2023-24 Budget projects total general fund 

revenues and transfers of $210.2 billion and authorizes expenditures of $223.6 billion.  The State is 

projected to end the 2023-24 fiscal year with total reserves of $35.6 billion, including $3.8 billion in the 

traditional general fund reserve, $22.4 billion in the BSA, $8.5 billion in the PSSSA and $900 million in 

the Safety Net Reserve Fund.   

The ending balance in the BSA is at the constitutional maximum amount, resulting in $951 

million that is required to be dedicated to infrastructure improvements in fiscal year 2023-24.  The 

Proposed 2023-24 Budget also includes revised deposits to the PSSSA of $3.7 billion and $1.1 billion 

attributable to fiscal years 2021-22 and 2022-23, respectively, and authorizes a deposit in fiscal year 

2023-24 of $365 million.  The balance of $8.5 billion in the PSSSA in fiscal year 2022-23 would  trigger 

school district reserve caps in fiscal year 2023-24.  See “CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY 

PROVISIONS AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS – Proposition 2 herein.   



 

44 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

The Proposed 2023-24 Budget sets total funding for all K-12 education programs at $128.5 

billion, including $78.7 billion from the State general fund and $49.8 billion from other sources.  This 

results in per-pupil funding of $23,723, including $17,519 from Proposition 98 sources.  The minimum 

funding guarantee in fiscal year 2023-24 is set at $108.8 billion, reflecting a decrease of approximately 

$1.5 billion from the prior year.  The Proposed 2023-24 Budget also makes retroactive increases to the 

minimum funding guarantee in fiscal years 2021-22 and 2022-23, setting them at $110.4 billion and 

$106.9 billion, respectively.  Collectively, this represents a three-year decrease in the minimum funding 

guarantee of $4.7 billion over the level projected by the 2022-23 Budget.  Test 1 is projected to be in 

effect over this three year period. 

 Other significant features relating to K-12 education funding include the following: 

 Local Control Funding Formula:  The Proposed 2023-24 Budget funds a COLA of 8.13% to 

LCFF apportionments.  When combined with growth adjustments, this increase will result in 

$4.2 billion in additional discretionary funds for local educational agencies.  To fund the 

increase and maintain the current-year level of LCFF apportionments, the Proposed 2023-24 

Budget provides approximately $613 million in one-time resources to support the ongoing 

cost of the LCFF in fiscal year 2022-23, and $1.4 billion of such resources to support the 

ongoing cost of the LCFF in fiscal year 2023-24.  The Proposed 2023-24 Budget also 

provides an increase of $51.7 million in ongoing Proposition 98 funding to support an 8.13% 

COLA for county offices of education, and an increase of $669 million of such funding to 

support a similar COLA for categorical programs that remain outside the LCFF.  Finally, to 

accelerate learning gains and close opportunity gaps, the Proposed 2023-24 Budget provides 

$300 million in ongoing Proposition 98 funding to establish an equity multiplier as an add-on 

to the LCFF.  These funds will be allocated to local educational agencies based on school-site 

eligibility, and the funds are intended to augment resources that support the highest-needs 

schools in the State. 

 Universal Transitional Kindergarten: $690 million in ongoing Proposition 98 funding to 

continue the implementation of transitional kindergarten, expanding eligibility to include all 

children turning five years old between September 2 and April 2, beginning in the 2023-24 

fiscal year.  To accommodate expected enrollment increases related to this expansion, the 

Proposed 2023-24 Budget will rebench the Test 1 percentage of State revenues allocated to 

education.  Additionally, the Proposed 2023-24 Budget includes $165 million to add one 

additional certificated or classified employee to every transitional kindergarten class.  The 

Proposed 2023-24 Budget also delays, to fiscal year 2024-25, $550 million of funding 

previously approved to support the construction or retrofit of full-day kindergarten and 

preschool facilities. 

 Literacy: $250 million in additional one-time Proposition 98 funding for grants to high-needs 

schools to train and hire literacy coaches and reading specialists to guide productive 

classroom instruction and offer one-on-one and small group intervention for struggling 

readers.   

 Arts and Cultural Enrichment:  On November 8, 2022, State voters approved Proposition 28, 

which requires that an amount equal to 1% of the prior year’s minimum funding guarantee be 

allocated to schools to increase arts instruction and arts programs in public education.  The 

Proposed 2023-24 Budget includes $941 million to fund this mandate.  Given the need to 

cover the costs of the LCFF in fiscal years 2022-23 and 2023-24, the Proposed 2023-24 

Budget reflects a reduction of approximately $1.2 billion in Proposition 98 funding 

previously approved for the Arts, Music and Instructional Materials Block Grant.  The 



 

45 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Proposed 2023-24 Budget also provides $100 million in one-time Proposition 98 funding to 

enable local educational agencies to provide high school seniors with access to cultural 

enrichment experiences.   

 Facilities: The Proposed 2023-24 Budget reflects a decrease of $100 million in State general 

fund support for the State school facilities program.  The Proposed 2023-24 Budget also 

includes $30 million in ongoing Proposition 98 funding to support eligible facilities costs for 

the Charter School Facility Grant Program, and would set aside $15 million of previously 

appropriated funding to support school kitchen infrastructure improvements.   

Future Actions and Events.  The District cannot predict what additional actions will be taken in 

the future by the State legislature and the Governor to address changing State revenues and expenditures.  

The District also cannot predict the impact such actions will have on State revenues available in the 

current or future years for education.  The State budget will be affected by national and State economic 

conditions and other factors over which the District will have no control.  Certain actions or results could 

produce a significant shortfall of revenue and cash, and could consequently impair the State’s ability to 

fund schools.  The COVID-19 pandemic has already resulted in significant negative economic effects at 

State and federal levels, and additional negative economic effects are possible, each of which could 

negatively impact anticipated State revenue levels.  In addition, the pandemic could also result in higher 

State expenditures, of both a direct nature (such as those related to managing the outbreak) and an indirect 

nature (such as higher public usage of need-based programs resulting from unemployment or disability).  

See “DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION – Considerations Regarding COVID-19” herein.  State 

budget shortfalls in future fiscal years may also have an adverse financial impact on the financial 

condition of the District.  However, the obligation to levy ad valorem property taxes upon all taxable 

property within the District for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds would not be 

impaired.   

THE DISTRICT 

Introduction 

The District is located on the Pacific Coast of the County, about 60 miles northwest of Los 

Angeles and 35 miles southeast of Santa Barbara.  The District encompasses an area of approximately 

eight square miles and an estimated population of approximately 53,995 residents, including a large 

portion of the city of Port Hueneme, a small portion of the city of Oxnard, and adjacent unincorporated 

areas. 

The District is an elementary school district for students in grades K-8.  The District currently 

operates 11 schools, including nine elementary schools and two junior high schools.  District enrollment 

for the 2022-23 school year is [7,121] students.  Eighth grade students graduating from the District attend 

high school in the Oxnard Union High School District (the “High School District”).  The District is one of 

six feeder elementary districts to the High School District. 

Unless otherwise indicated, the following financial, statistical and demographic data has been 

provided by the District.  Additional information concerning the District and copies of the most recent 

and subsequent audited financial reports of the District may be obtained by contacting: Hueneme 

Elementary School District, 205 North Ventura Road, Port Hueneme, California  93041-3065, Attention:  

Superintendent.  The District may impose a charge for copying, mailing and handling.  



 

46 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Administration 

The District’s Board consists of five elected members.  Members are elected at-large to serve 

staggered four-year terms.  Elections for positions to the Board are held every two years, alternating 

between two and three available positions.  A president is elected by members of the Board each year.  

The day-to-day affairs of the District are the responsibility of the Superintendent.  Current members of the 

Board, together with their offices and the dates their current terms expire, are listed below: 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Hueneme Elementary School District 

Board Member  Office  Current Term Expires 

     
Charles Weis, Ph.D.  President  December 2026 

Darlene A. Bruno  Clerk  December 2024
 

Siugen Constanza  Member  December 2024
 

Bexy I. Gomez  Member  December 2026 

Daisy Sampablo  Member  December 2026 

The Superintendent of the District is responsible for administering the affairs of the District in 

accordance with the policies of the Board.  Currently, Christine Walker, Ed.D., is the Superintendent of 

the District.  Patricia Marshall is the Chief Business Official of the District.   



 

47 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Enrollment Trends 

Enrollment in the District has increased by 3.4% since 1986-87, representing an average annual 

compound growth rate of 0.09%.  The following table shows the enrollment history for the District.   

ANNUAL ENROLLMENT 
Fiscal Years 1986-87 Through 2022-23 
Hueneme Elementary School District 

 

Year 

 

 Enrollment
(1) 

Annual 

Change 

Annual 

% Change 

1986-87 6,889 -- -- 

1987-88 6,963 74 1.1% 

1988-89 7,139 176 2.5 

1989-90 7,244 105 1.5 

1990-91 7,252 8 0.1 

1991-92 7,417 165 2.3 

1992-93 7,623 206 2.8 

1993-94 7,608 -15 -0.2 

1994-95 7,854 246 3.2 

1995-96 8,020 166 2.1 

1996-97  8,076 56 0.7 

1997-98 8,241 165 2.0 

1998-99 8,416 175 2.1 

1999-00 8,547 131 1.6 

2000-01 8,651 104 1.2 

2001-02 8,698 47 0.5 

2002-03 8,648 -50 -0.6 

2003-04 8,508 -140 -1.6 

2004-05 8,274 -234 -2.8 

2005-06 8,208 -66 -0.8 

2006-07 8,025 -180 -2.2 

2007-08 8,091 66 0.8 

2008-09 7,983 -108 -1.3 

2009-10 8,079 96 1.2 

2010-11 8,122 43 0.5 

2011-12 8,250 128 1.6 

2012-13 8,332 82 1.0 

2013-14 8,435 103 1.2 

2014-15 8,393 -42 -0.5 

2015-16 8,458 65 0.8 

2016-17 8,379 -79 -0.9 

2017-18 8,429 50 0.6 

2018-19 8,243 -186 -2.2 

2019-20 7,948 -295 -3.6 

2020-21
 

7,544 -404 -5.1 

2021-22 7,206 -338 -4.5 

2022-23 [7,121] [-85] [-1.2] 

____________ 
(1)  Enrollment as of October CBEDS in each school year. 

Source:  The District. 



 

48 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Labor Relations 

As of January 1, 2023, the District employed 436 certificated employees and 321 classified 

employees (full-time equivalents).  District employees, except management and some part-time 

employees, are represented by two bargaining units as noted below:   

LABOR BARGAINING UNITS 
Hueneme Elementary School District 

 

Labor Organization 

Number of Employees 

In Organization 

Contract 

Expiration Date 

 
Hueneme Education Association  June 30, 2023

 

California School Employees Association  June 30, 2022
(1) 

    
(1)

 Contract currently under negotiation.  Applicable employees continue to work under the terms of the expired 

contract.  
Source:  The District. 

State Retirement Systems 

The information set forth below regarding the STRS and PERS programs, other than the 

information provided by the District regarding its annual contributions thereto, has been obtained from 

publicly available sources which are believed to be reliable but are not guaranteed as to accuracy or 

completeness, and should not be construed as a representation by either the District or the Underwriter.   

STRS.  All full-time certificated employees, as well as certain classified employees, are members 

of the California State Teachers’ Retirement System (“STRS”).  STRS provides retirement, disability and 

survivor benefits to plan members and beneficiaries under a defined benefit program (the “STRS Defined 

Benefit Program”).  The STRS Defined Benefit Program is funded through a combination of investment 

earnings and statutorily set contributions from three sources: employees, employers, and the State.  

Benefit provisions and contribution amounts are established by State statutes, as legislatively amended 

from time to time. 

Prior to fiscal year 2014-15, and unlike typical defined benefit programs, none of the employee, 

employer nor State contribution rates to the STRS Defined Benefit Program varied annually to make up 

funding shortfalls or assess credits for actuarial surpluses.  Previously, the combined employer, employee 

and State contributions to the STRS Defined Benefit Program have not been sufficient to pay actuarially 

required amounts.  As a result, and due to significant investment losses, the unfunded actuarial liability of 

the STRS Defined Benefit Program increased significantly in recent fiscal years.  In September 2013, 

STRS projected that the STRS Defined Benefit Program would be depleted in 31 years assuming existing 

contribution rates continued, and other significant actuarial assumptions were realized.  In an effort to 

reduce the unfunded actuarial liability of the STRS Defined Benefit Program, the State passed the 

legislation described below to increase contribution rates. 

Prior to July 1, 2014, K-14 school districts were required by such statutes to contribute 8.25% of 

eligible salary expenditures, while participants contributed 8% of their respective salaries.  On 

June 24, 2014, the Governor signed AB 1469 (“AB 1469”) into law as a part of the State’s fiscal year 

2014-15 budget.  AB 1469 seeks to fully fund the unfunded actuarial obligation with respect to service 

credited to members of the STRS Defined Benefit Program before July 1, 2014 (the “2014 Liability”), 

within 32 years, by increasing member, K-14 school district and State contributions to STRS.  



 

49 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Commencing July 1, 2014, the employee contribution rate increased over a three-year phase-in period in 

accordance with the following schedule: 

MEMBER CONTRIBUTION RATES 
STRS (Defined Benefit Program) 

 
Effective Date 

STRS Members Hired Prior to 
January 1, 2013 

STRS Members Hired  
After January 1, 2013 

July 1, 2014
 

8.150% 8.150% 
July 1, 2015 9.200 8.560 
July 1, 2016 10.250 9.205 

____________________ 
Source: AB 1469. 

Pursuant to the Reform Act (defined below), the contribution rates for members (“PEPRA 

Members”) hired after the Implementation Date (defined below) will be adjusted if the normal cost 

increases by more than 1% since the last time the member contribution was set.  The contribution rate for 

employees (“Classic Members”) hired before the Implementation Date (defined below) increased from 

9.205% of creditable compensation for fiscal year commencing July 1, 2017 to 10.205% of creditable 

compensation effective July 1, 2018.  For fiscal year commencing July 1, 2021, the contribution rate was 

10.250% for Classic Members and 10.205% for PEPRA Members.  For fiscal year commencing July 1, 

2022, the contribution rate is 10.250% for Classic Members and 10.205% for PEPRA Members. 

Pursuant to AB 1469, K-14 school districts’ contribution rate increased over a seven-year phase-

in period in accordance with the following schedule:  

K-14 SCHOOL DISTRICT CONTRIBUTION RATES 
STRS (Defined Benefit Program) 

Effective Date K-14 school districts 

July 1, 2014
 

8.88% 

July 1, 2015 10.73 

July 1, 2016 12.58 

July 1, 2017 14.43 

July 1, 2018 16.28 

July 1, 2019 18.13 

July 1, 2020 19.10 

____________________ 
Source: AB 1469. 

Based upon the recommendation from its actuary, for fiscal year 2021-22 and each fiscal year 

thereafter the STRS Teachers’ Retirement Board (the “STRS Board”), is required to increase or decrease 

the K-14 school districts’ contribution rate to reflect the contribution required to eliminate the remaining 

2014 Liability by June 30, 2046; provided that the rate cannot change in any fiscal year by more than 1% 

of creditable compensation upon which members’ contributions to the STRS Defined Benefit Program are 

based; and provided further that such contribution rate cannot exceed a maximum of 20.25%.  In addition 

to the increased contribution rates discussed above, AB 1469 also requires the STRS Board to report to 

the State Legislature every five years (commencing with a report due on or before July 1, 2019) on the 

fiscal health of the STRS Defined Benefit Program and the unfunded actuarial obligation with respect to 

service credited to members of that program before July 1, 2014.  The reports are also required to identify 

adjustments required in contribution rates for K-14 school districts and the State in order to eliminate the 

2014 Liability. 



 

50 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

On June 27, 2019, the Governor signed SB 90 (“SB 90”) into law as a part of the 2019-20 

Budget.  Pursuant to SB 90, the State Legislature appropriated $2.246 billion to be transferred to the 

Teacher’s Retirement Fund for the STRS Defined Benefit Program to pay in advance, on behalf of 

employers, part of the contributions required for fiscal years 2019-20 and 2020-21, resulting in K-14 

school districts having to contribute 1.03% less in fiscal year 2019-20 and 0.70% less in fiscal year 2020-

21, resulting in employer contribution rates of 17.1% in fiscal year 2019-20 and 18.4% in fiscal year 

2020-21.   In addition, the State made a contribution of $1.117 billion to be allocated to reduce the 

employer’s share of the unfunded actuarial obligation determined by the STRS Board upon 

recommendation from its actuary.  This additional payment was reflected in the June 30, 2020 actuarial 

valuation.  Subsequently, the State’s 2020-21 Budget redirected $2.3 billion previously appropriated to 

STRS and PERS pursuant to SB 90 for long-term unfunded liabilities to further reduce the employer 

contribution rates in fiscal year 2020-21 and 2021-22.  As a result, the effective employer contribution 

rate was 16.15% in fiscal year 2020-21 and is 16.92% in fiscal year 2021-22.  See “CONSTITUTIONAL 

AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS – 

State Budget.”  The employer contribution rate is 19.1% in fiscal year 2022-23.  

The District’s contributions to STRS were $7,494,658 in fiscal year 2018-19, $7,868,493 in fiscal 

year 2019-20, $7,135,961 in fiscal year 2020-21, and $8,328,744 in fiscal year 2021-22.  The District has 

budgeted $____________ as its contribution to STRS for fiscal year 2022-23.   

The State also contributes to STRS, currently in an amount equal to 8.328% for fiscal year 2021-

22, and 8.328% for fiscal year 2022-23. The State’s contribution reflects a base contribution rate of 

2.017%, and a supplemental contribution rate that will vary from year to year based on statutory criteria.  

Based upon the recommendation from its actuary, for fiscal year 2017-18 and each fiscal year thereafter, 

the STRS Board is required, with certain limitations, to increase or decrease the State’s contribution rates 

to reflect the contribution required to eliminate the unfunded actuarial accrued liability attributed to 

benefits in effect before July 1, 1990.  However, the maximum increase or decrease in a given year is 

limited to 0.5% of payroll under the STRS valuation policy.  Once the State has eliminated its share of the 

STRS’ unfunded actuarial obligation, the State contribution will be immediately reduced to the base 

contribution rate of 2.017% of payroll.   

In addition, the State is currently required to make an annual general fund contribution up to 2.5% 

of the fiscal year covered STRS member payroll to the Supplemental Benefit Protection Account (the 

“SBPA”), which was established by statute to provide supplemental payments to beneficiaries whose 

purchasing power has fallen below 85% of the purchasing power of their initial allowance.   

PERS.  Classified employees working four or more hours per day are members of the California 

Public Employees’ Retirement System (“PERS”).  PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, 

annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  Benefit 

provisions are established by the State statutes, as legislatively amended from time to time.  PERS 

operates a number of retirement plans including the Public Employees Retirement Fund (“PERF”).  PERF 

is a multiple-employer defined benefit retirement plan.  In addition to the State, employer participants at 

June 30, 2021 included 1,608 public agencies and 1,329 K-14 school districts and charter schools.  PERS 

acts as the common investment and administrative agent for the member agencies.  The State and K-14 

school districts (for “classified employees,” which generally consist of school employees other than 

teachers) are required by law to participate in PERF.  Employees participating in PERF generally become 

fully vested in their retirement benefits earned to date after five years of credited service.  One of the 

plans operated by PERS is for K-14 school districts throughout the State (the “Schools Pool”). 

Contributions by employers to the Schools Pool are based upon an actuarial rate determined 

annually and contributions by plan members vary based upon their date of hire.  Pursuant to SB 90, the 



 

51 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

State Legislature appropriated $904 million to the Schools Pool, including transfers in fiscal years 2019-

20 and 2020-21 to the Public Employees Retirement Fund to pay, in advance on behalf of K-14 school 

district employers, part of the contributions required for K-14 school district employers for such fiscal 

years, as well as additional amounts to be applied toward certain unfunded liabilities for K-14 school 

district employers.  In June 2020, SB 90 was amended by Assembly Bill 84/Senate Bill 111 (“AB 84”).   

Under AB 84, $144 million of the State contribution under SB 90 was deemed to satisfy a portion of the 

State’s required contribution in fiscal year 2019-20, and the amounts previously allocated toward future 

liabilities were redirected such that, $430 million will satisfy a portion of the employer contribution rate 

in fiscal year 2020-21, and $330 million will satisfy a portion of the employer contribution rate in fiscal 

year 2021-22.  As a result of the payments made by the State pursuant to SB 90, as amended by AB 84, 

the employer contribution rate was 19.721% for fiscal year 2019-20, 20.7% in fiscal year 2020-21, and 

22.91% for fiscal year 2021-22.  See “CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS 

AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS – State Budget.”  The employer 

contribution rate is 25.37% in fiscal year 2022-23.  Classic Members contribute at a rate established by 

statute, which was 7% of their respective salaries in fiscal year 2021-22 and is 7% in fiscal year 2022-23, 

while PEPRA Members contribute at an actuarially determined rate, which was 7% in fiscal year 2021-22 

and is 8% in fiscal year 2022-23.  Due primarily to the change in the discount rate, the total normal cost 

of PEPRA Members changed by more than 1% of payroll relative to fiscal year 2021-22, which required 

the PEPRA Member contribution rate to be adjusted to equal 50% of the total normal cost of 15.91% in 

fiscal year 2022-23.  See “—California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013” herein.   

The District’s contributions to PERS were $2,204,848 in fiscal year 2018-19, $2,544,462 in fiscal 

year 2019-20, $2,601,525 in fiscal year 2020-21, and $3,338,350 in fiscal year 2021-22.  The District has 

budgeted $____________ as its contribution to PERS for fiscal year 2022-23.  

State Pension Trusts.  Each of STRS and PERS issues a separate comprehensive financial report 

that includes financial statements and required supplemental information.  Copies of such financial 

reports may be obtained from each of STRS and PERS as follows: (i) STRS, P.O. Box 15275, 

Sacramento, California 95851-0275; (ii) PERS, P.O. Box 942703, Sacramento, California 94229-2703.  

Moreover, each of STRS and PERS maintains a website, as follows: (i) STRS: www.calstrs.com; 

(ii) PERS: www.calpers.ca.gov.  However, the information presented in such financial reports or on such 

websites is not incorporated into this Official Statement by any reference.   

Both STRS and PERS have substantial statewide unfunded liabilities.  The amount of these 

unfunded liabilities will vary depending on actuarial assumptions, returns on investments, salary scales 

and participant contributions.  The following table summarizes information regarding the 

actuarially-determined accrued liability for both STRS and PERS.  Actuarial assessments are “forward-

looking” information that reflect the judgment of the fiduciaries of the pension plans, and are based upon 

a variety of assumptions, one or more of which may not materialize or be changed in the future.  Actuarial 

assessments will change with the future experience of the pension plans. 

http://www.calstrs.com/
http://www.calpers.ca.gov/


 

52 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

FUNDED STATUS 
STRS (Defined Benefit Program) and PERS (Schools Pool) 

(Dollar Amounts in Millions) (1) 

Fiscal Years 2010-11 through 2020-21 

STRS 

Fiscal 
Year 

Accrued 
Liability 

Value of 
Trust 
Assets 

   (MVA)(2) 

Unfunded  
Liability 

  (MVA)(2) 

Value of 
Trust 
Assets 

   (AVA)(3) 

Unfunded  
Liability 

   (AVA)(3) 
2010-11 $208,405 $147,140 $68,365 $143,930 $64,475 

2011-12 215,189 143,118 80,354 144,232 70,957 

2012-13 222,281 157,176 74,374 148,614 73,667 

2013-14 231,213 179,749 61,807 158,495 72,718 

2014-15 241,753 180,633 72,626 165,553 76,200 

2015-16 266,704 177,914 101,586 169,976 96,728 

2016-17 286,950 197,718 103,468 179,689 107,261 

2017-18 297,603 211,367 101,992 190,451 107,152 

2018-19 310,719 225,466 102,636 205,016 105,703 

2019-20 322,127 233,253 107,999 216,252 105,875 

2020-21 332,082 292,980 60,136 242,363 89,719 

PERS 

Fiscal 
Year 

 
 

Accrued 
Liability 

Value of  
Trust 
Assets 

 (MVA) 

 
Unfunded 
Liability 
(MVA) 

Value of 
Trust 
Assets 

   (AVA)(3) 

 
Unfunded 
Liability 

   (AVA)(3) 
2010-11 $58,358 $45,901 $12,457 $51,547 $6,811 

2011-12 59,439 44,854 14,585 53,791 5,648 

2012-13 61,487 49,482 12,005 56,250 5,237 

2013-14 65,600 56,838 8,761 --
(4)

 --
(4)

 

2014-15 73,325 56,814 16,511 --
(4)

 --
(4)

 

2015-16 77,544 55,785 21,759 --
(4)

 --
(4)

 

2016-17 84,416 60,865 23,551 --
(4)

 --
(4)

 

2017-18 92,071 64,846 27,225 --
(4)

 --
(4)

 

2018-19
(5)

 99,528 68,177 31,351 --
(4)

 --
(4)

 

2019-20
(6)

 104,062 71,400 32,662 --
(4)

 --
(4)

 

2020-21 110,507 86,519 23,988 --
(4)

 --
(4)

 

   
(1) Amounts may not add due to rounding. 
(2) Reflects market value of assets, including the assets allocated to the SBPA reserve.  Since the benefits provided through the 

SBPA are not a part of the projected benefits included in the actuarial valuations summarized above, the SBPA reserve is 

subtracted from the STRS Defined Benefit Program assets to arrive at the value of assets available to support benefits 

included in the respective actuarial valuations. 
(3) Reflects actuarial value of assets.  
(4) Effective for the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation, PERS no longer uses an actuarial value of assets.  
(5) For fiscal year 2020-21, the additional $430 million State contribution made pursuant to AB 84 did not directly impact the 

actuarially determined contribution as it was not yet in the Schools Pool by the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation date.  The 

additional State contribution was treated as an advance payment toward the unfunded accrued liability contribution with 

required employer contribution rate correspondingly reduced. 
(6) For fiscal year 2021-22, the impact of the additional $330 million State contribution made pursuant to AB 84 is directly 

reflected in the actuarially determined contribution, because the additional payment was in the Schools Pool as of the June 

30, 2020 actuarial valuation date, which served to reduce the required employer contribution rate by 2.16% of payroll.  

Source: PERS Schools Pool Actuarial Valuation; STRS Defined Benefit Program Actuarial Valuation. 

The STRS Board has sole authority to determine the actuarial assumptions and methods used for 

the valuation of the STRS Defined Benefit Program.  Based on the multi-year CalSTRS Experience 

Analysis (spanning from July 1, 2010, through June 30, 2015) (the “2017 Experience Analysis”), on 



 

53 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

February 1, 2017, the STRS Board adopted a new set of actuarial assumptions that reflect member’s 

increasing life expectancies and current economic trends. These new assumptions were first reflected in 

the STRS Defined Benefit Program Actuarial Valuation, as of June 30, 2016 (the “2016 STRS Actuarial 

Valuation”).  The new actuarial assumptions include, but are not limited to: (i) adopting a generational 

mortality methodology to reflect past improvements in life expectancies and provide a more dynamic 

assessment of future life spans, (ii) decreasing the investment rate of return (net of investment and 

administrative expenses) to 7.25% for the 2016 STRS Actuarial Valuation and 7.00% for the June 30, 

2017 actuarial evaluation, and (iii) decreasing the projected wage growth to 3.50% and the projected 

inflation rate to 2.75%.   

Based on the multi-year CalSTRS Experience Analysis (spanning from July 1, 2015, through 

June 30, 2018) (the “2020 Experience Analysis”), on January 31, 2020, the STRS Board adopted a new 

set of actuarial assumptions that were first reflected in the STRS Defined Benefit Program Actuarial 

Valuation, as of June 30, 2019 (the “2019 STRS Actuarial Valuation”).  While no changes were made to 

the actuarial assumptions discussed above, which were established as a result of the 2017 Experience 

Analysis, certain demographic changes were made, including: (i) lowering the termination rates to reflect 

a continued trend of lower than expected teachers leaving their employment prior to retirement, and (ii) 

adopting changes to the retirement rates for both Classic Members and PEPRA Members to better reflect 

the anticipated impact of years of service on retirements. The 2021 STRS Actuarial Valuation (defined 

below) continues using the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method. 

The STRS Defined Benefit Program Actuarial Valuation, as of June 30, 2021 (the “2021 STRS 

Actuarial Valuation”) reports that the unfunded actuarial obligation decreased by $16.1 billion since the 

2020 STRS Actuarial Valuation and the funded ratio, based on an actuarial value of assets, increased by 

5.9% to 73.0% over such time period.  The increase in the funded ratio is primarily due to a greater than 

expected investment  return (27.2% in fiscal year 2020-21), salary increases less than assumed, additional 

State contributions, and contributions to pay down the unfunded actuarial obligation under the STRS 

Board’s valuation policy.  The full impact of the 27.2% investment return will take three years to be 

reflected in the contribution rates, since STRS uses an actuarial value of assets which smooths the 

volatility of investment returns by reflecting only one-third of the net accumulated investment gains or 

losses in a year.  The STRS Board has no authority to adjust rates to pay down the portion of the 

unfunded actuarial obligation related to service accrued on or after July 1, 2014 for member benefits 

adopted after 1990 (the “Unallocated UAO”). There was a decrease in the Unallocated UAO from $377 

million as of June 30, 2020 to a negative $469 million as of June 30, 2021. 

According to the 2021 STRS Actuarial Valuation, the future revenues from contributions and 

appropriations for the STRS Defined Benefit Program are projected to be approximately sufficient to 

finance its obligations with a projected ending funded ratio in fiscal year ending June 30, 2041 of 101.0%.  

This finding assumes additional increases in the scheduled contribution rates allowed under the current 

law will be made,  the future recognition of the currently deferred asset gains, and is based on the 

valuation assumptions and valuation policy adopted by the STRS Board, including a 7.00% investment 

rate of return assumption. 

In its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for fiscal year ending June 30, 2022, STRS 

reported a money weighted net return on investment of negative 2.4% and time-weighted net return on 

investments of negative 1.3% for fiscal year 2021-22, ending with the total fund value of $301.6 billion as 

of June 30, 2022.  When STRS released the preliminary investment return for fiscal year 2021-22 on July 

29, 2022, STRS noted that it is the first negative return since 2009, reflecting the ongoing volatility in the 

global financial markets impacted by inflation, rising interest rates, COVID-19 and the war in Ukraine.  

Due in part to the 27.2% return in fiscal year 2020-21, STRS remains in position to be fully funded by 

2046.    



 

54 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

On November 2, 2022, STRS released is 2022 Review of Funding Levels and Risks (the STRS 

2022 Review of Funding Levels and Risks”), which is based on the 2021 STRS Actuarial Valuation and 

reflects all relevant changes that have occurred since 2021 STRS Actuarial Valuation, including the 

negative 2.4% money-weighted investment loss reported for the 2021-22 fiscal year.  The key results and 

findings noted in the STRS 2022 Review of Funding Levels and Risks were that (i) the State’s share of 

the STRS unfunded actuarial obligation is still projected to be eliminated prior to 2046 (currently 

projected to be eliminated by fiscal year 2029-30), but not as early as projected in the June 30, 2021 

valuation, (ii) the current contribution rates for the State and employers are projected to be sufficient to 

eliminate their share of the STRS unfunded actuarial obligation by 2046 and contribution rate increases 

are not expected to be needed for fiscal year 2023-24, (iii) the largest risk facing STRS’ ability to reach 

full funding remains investment-related risk, especially considering the Defined Benefit Program 

continues to mature, which will increase the system’s sensitivity to investment experience, and the State’s 

share of the unfunded actuarial obligation could quickly increase if STRS were to experience another year 

in which the investment return is significantly below the assumed rate of return, (iv) anticipated continued 

decreases in enrollment in K-12 public schools could lead to future declines in the size of the active 

membership, resulting in lower than anticipated payroll growth, which could negatively impact STRS’ 

ability to achieve full funding, requiring contribution rate increases, especially among employers, (v) a 

recession resulting in a period of low investment returns and a decline in the size of the active 

membership could hurt STRS ability to reach full funding, and (vi) the ability of the funding plan to allow 

STRS to reach full funding is dependent on STRS meeting its current actuarial assumptions over the long 

term, while uncertainty around inflation, investment markets and payroll growth could put pressure on 

STRS’ ability to meet some of its long-term actuarial assumptions.  In addition, with respect to 

investment related risks, the STRS 2022 Review of Funding Levels and Risks notes that once the State’s 

supplemental contribution rate is reduced to zero (as discussed above), if it were ever needed to be 

increased again, the STRS Board will be limited to increases of only 0.5% of payroll each year, which 

could take the STRS Board years before it is able to increase the rate to the levels necessary to reduce any 

newly realized unfunded actuarial obligation. 

Between 2019 and 2020, the number of teachers actively working dropped from 451,000, to 

about 448,000.  Between 2020 and 2021, the number of active teachers continued to drop to about 

429,000, which resulted in a payroll that remained flat, below the 3.5% annual payroll growth 

assumption.  In 2022, the total number of active members was back to the levels last seen prior to the start 

of the COVID-19 pandemic, increasing by approximately 20,000 over the last fiscal year.  The total 

payroll increased by more than 6% over the last fiscal year, resulting in STRS collecting more 

contributions from employers than expected.   The STRS 2022 Review of Funding Levels and Risks notes 

that, a likely contributor to the decline in active membership in 2020-21 was the higher than expected 

retirements STRS experienced that fiscal year and the uncertainties related to the COVID-19 pandemic.  

Although an increase in retirements would normally not impact long-term funding, decisions made by 

employers about whether to replace the teachers who have retired can impact STRS ability to reach full 

funding by 2046, especially if it leads to an overall reduction in the number of teachers working in the 

State and a reduction in total payroll.  The STRS 2022 Review of Funding Levels and Risks, also notes 

that another area of particular concern related to payroll growth and the number of teachers in the State is 

the decreasing population of children enrolled in K-12 schools in the State.  Total enrollment in public 

schools in the State dropped 271,000, or 4.4% reduction, between 2019-20 and 2021-22.  Several factors 

contributed to the drop of enrollment during that time period, including the increase in the number of 

homeschool students and students enrolled in private schools during the COVID-19 pandemic.  The 

STRS 2022 Review of Funding Levels and Risks notes that it is unclear whether the decrease in overall 

enrollment is permanent or simply a temporary effect of the COVID-19 pandemic.   See “DISTRICT 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION – Considerations Regarding COVID-19.  In September 2022, the State 

updated its projection of K-12 enrollment for the State, which assumes the number of children enrolled in 

K-12 schools will decline approximately 9% over the next 10 years. 



 

55 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

In recent years, the PERS Board of Administration (the “PERS Board”) has taken several steps, 

as described below, intended to reduce the amount of the unfunded accrued actuarial liability of its plans, 

including the Schools Pool. 

On March 14, 2012, the PERS Board voted to lower the PERS’ rate of expected price inflation 

and its investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) (the “PERS Discount Rate”) from 7.75% 

to 7.5%.  On February 18, 2014, the PERS Board voted to keep the PERS Discount Rate unchanged at 

7.5%.  On November 17, 2015, the PERS Board approved a new funding risk mitigation policy to 

incrementally lower the PERS Discount Rate by establishing a mechanism whereby such rate is reduced 

by a minimum of 0.05% to a maximum of 0.25% in years when investment returns outperform the 

existing PERS Discount Rate by at least four percentage points.  On December 21, 2016, the PERS Board 

voted to lower the PERS Discount Rate to 7.0% over a three year phase-in period in accordance with the 

following schedule: 7.375% for the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation, 7.25% for the June 30, 2018 

actuarial valuation and 7.00% for the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation.  The new discount rate went into 

effect July 1, 2017 for the State and July 1, 2018 for K-14 school districts and other public agencies.  

Lowering the PERS Discount Rate means employers that contract with PERS to administer their pension 

plans will see increases in their normal costs and unfunded actuarial liabilities.  Active members hired 

after January 1, 2013, under the Reform Act (defined below) will also see their contribution rates rise.  

The PERS Funding Risk Mitigation Policy recently triggered an automatic decrease of 0.2% in the PERS 

Discount Rate due to the investment return in fiscal year 2020-21, lowering such rate to 6.8%. 

On April 17, 2013, the PERS Board approved new actuarial policies aimed at returning PERS to 

fully-funded status within 30 years.  The policies included a rate smoothing method with a 30-year fixed 

amortization period for gains and losses, a five-year increase of public agency contribution rates, 

including the contribution rate at the onset of such amortization period, and a five year reduction of public 

agency contribution rates at the end of such amortization period.  The new actuarial policies were first 

included in the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation and were implemented with respect the State, K-14 

school districts and all other public agencies in fiscal year 2015-16.  

Also, on February 20, 2014, the PERS Board approved new demographic assumptions reflecting 

(i) expected longer life spans of public agency employees and related increases in costs for the PERS 

system and (ii) trends of higher rates of retirement for certain public agency employee classes, including 

police officers and firefighters.  The new actuarial assumptions were first reflected in the Schools Pool in 

the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation.  The increase in liability due to the new assumptions will be 

amortized over 20 years with increases phased in over five years, beginning with the contribution 

requirement for fiscal year 2016-17.  The new demographic assumptions affect the State, K-14 school 

districts and all other public agencies. 

On February 14, 2018, the PERS Board approved a new actuarial amortization policy with an 

effective date for actuarial valuations beginning on or after June 30, 2019, which includes (i) shortening 

the period over which actuarial gains and losses are amortized from 30 years to 20 years, (ii) requiring 

that amortization payments for all unfunded accrued liability bases established after the effective date be 

computed to remain a level dollar amount throughout the amortization period, (iii) removing the 5-year 

ramp-up and ramp-down on unfunded accrued liability bases attributable to assumptions changes and 

non-investment gains/losses established on or after the effective date and (iv) removing the 5-year ramp-

down on investment gains/losses established after the effective date.  While PERS expects that reducing 

the amortization period for certain sources of unfunded liability will increase future average funding 

ratios, provide faster recovery of funded status following market downturns, decrease expected 

cumulative contributions, and mitigate concerns over intergenerational equity, such changes may result in 

increases in future employer contribution rates. 



 

56 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

The PERS Board is required to undertake an experience study every four years under its Actuarial 

Assumptions Policy and State law.  As a result of the most recent experience study, on November 17, 

2021 (the “2021 Experience Study”), the PERS Board approved new actuarial assumptions, including (i) 

lowering the inflation rate to 2.30% per year, (ii) increasing the assumed real wage inflation assumption 

to 0.5%, which results in a total wage inflation of 2.80%, (iii) increasing the payroll growth rate to 2.80%, 

and (iv) certain changes to demographic assumptions relating to modifications to the mortality rates, 

retirement rates, and disability rates (both work and non-work related), and rates of salary increases due to 

seniority and promotion.  These actuarial assumptions will be incorporated into the actuarial valuation for 

fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 and will first impact contribution rates for school districts in fiscal year 

2022-23.  Based on the timing of the study, the member data used in the analysis, which runs through 

June 30, 2019, does not include the impacts of COVID-19.  Preliminary analysis of the system experience 

since the beginning of the pandemic has shown demographic experience (e.g. retirements, deaths, etc.) 

did differ from the current actuarial assumptions in some areas, which will be more precisely quantified in 

future actuarial valuations.   

On November 15, 2021, the PERS Board selected a new asset allocation mix through its periodic 

Asset Liability Management Study that will guide the fund’s investment portfolio for the next four years, 

retained the current 6.8% discount rate and approved adding 5% leverage to increase diversification.  The 

new asset allocation takes effect July 1, 2022 and will impact contribution rates for employers and 

PEPRA employees beginning in fiscal year 2022-23.   

The Schools Pool Actuarial Valuation as of June 30, 2021 (the “2021 PERS Actuarial 

Valuation”), reported that from June 30, 2020 to June 30, 2021 the funded ratio of the Schools Pool 

increased by 9.7% (from 68.6% to 78.3%), which was primarily due to investment return in 2020-21 

being greater than expected, offset partially by the reduction in discount rate from 7.00% to 6.80%.  On 

July 12, 2021 PERS reported a preliminary 21.3% net return on investments for fiscal year 2021.  Since 

the preliminary return sufficiently exceeded the 7.00% discount rate, the Funding Risk Mitigation Policy 

triggered a 0.20% reduction in the discount rate, from 7.00% to 6.8%.  Pursuant to the Funding Risk 

Mitigation and Actuarial Amortization policies, a portion of the investment gain was used to fully offset 

the increase in unfunded liability resulting from the decrease in discount rate.  The remaining net 

investment gain was amortized over 20 years with a five year ramp.  The 2021 PERS Actuarial Valuation 

reports that the contribution rate for fiscal year 2023-24 is projected to be 27.0%, the contribution rate for 

fiscal year 2024-25 is projected to be 28.1%, the contribution rate for fiscal year 2025-26 is projected to 

be 28.8%, the contribution rate for fiscal year 2026-27 is projected to be 29.2%, and the contribution rate 

for fiscal year 2027-28 is projected to be 30.7%.  The projected contribution rates in the 2021 PERS 

Actuarial Valuation reflect an investment loss for fiscal year 2021-22 based on preliminary investment 

return information released by the PERS Investment Office, adjusted to reflect final audited June 30, 2021 

assets.  Further, projected rates reflect the anticipated decrease in normal cost due to new hires entering 

lower cost benefit tiers.  The projections assume that all actuarial assumptions will be realized and that no 

further changes to assumptions, contributions, benefits or funding will occur during the projection period.  

Future contribution requirements  may differ significantly.  The actual long-term cost of the plan will 

depend on the actual benefits and expenses paid and the actual investment experience of the fund. 

In its Basic Financial Statements for fiscal year ending June 30, 2022, PERS reported a time-

weighted net return on investment of negative 6.1% and a money-weighted net return on investment of 

negative 7.5% for fiscal year 2021-22.  When PERS released the preliminary investment returns for fiscal 

year 2021-22 on July 20, 2022, PERS noted that volatile global financial markets, geopolitical instability, 

domestic interest rate hikes, and inflation all had an impact on the investment return.  The investment 

return for fiscal year 2021-22 will be reflected in contribution levels for the State and employers in fiscal 

year 2023-24.  



 

57 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

In November 2022, PERS released its 2022 Annual Review of Funding Levels and Risk (the 

“2022 PERS Funding Levels and Risk Report”), which provided a summary of the current funding levels 

of the system, the near-term outlook for required contributions and risks faced by the system in the near 

and long-term.  The results presented in the 2022 PERS Funding Levels and Risk Report are based on the 

June 30, 2021 annual valuations, which have been projected forward to June 30, 2022 based on 

preliminary investment performance for the year ending June 30, 2022.  The unfavorable investment 

returns during the year ending June 30, 2022 resulted in decreases to the funded ratios for PERS plans.  

The funded status of the Schools Pool decreased from 78.3% as of June 30, 2021 to a projected 69% as of 

June 30, 2022.  The 2022 PERS Funding Levels and Risk Report notes that the pandemic has potential to 

alter the experience of the retirement in several different areas, including investment returns, inflation, 

deaths, retirements, terminations, disability retirements, and pay increases.  See “DISTRICT 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION – Considerations Regarding COVID-19.”  The 2022 PERS Funding 

Levels and Risk Report notes that over the next several years, inflation and near-term economic decline, 

also have the potential to either increase required contributions or add additional financial strain on 

employers and their ability to make required contributions.  PERS and its members are potentially 

impacted by high inflation because wages generally keep pace with inflation over the long-term, many 

retirees are likely to receive higher cost-of-living adjustments but will likely still lose purchasing power, 

and increases in wages exceeding the assumed increases and higher COLAs result in higher contributions 

for employers.  In addition, many forecasters are predicting an economic slowdown in the near future, 

which could lead to lower investment returns, increased investment volatility, and higher unemployment.  

If the system experiences lower than expected investment returns, the potential impact on required 

contributions, combined with the impacts of high inflation, could push contribution rates to levels that 

would prove challenging for some employers. 

The District can make no representations regarding the future program liabilities of STRS, or 

whether the District will be required to make additional contributions to STRS in the future above those 

amounts required under AB 1469.  The District can also provide no assurances that the District’s required 

contributions to PERS will not increase in the future. 

California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013.  On September 12, 2012, the 

Governor signed into law the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (the “Reform 

Act”), which makes changes to both STRS and PERS, most substantially affecting new employees hired 

after January 1, 2013 (the “Implementation Date”).  For PEPRA Members, the Reform Act changes the 

normal retirement age by increasing the eligibility for the 2% age factor (the age factor is the percent of 

final compensation to which an employee is entitled for each year of service) from age 60 to 62 and 

increasing the eligibility of the maximum age factor of 2.4% from age 63 to 65.  Similarly, for non-safety 

PERS participants hired after the Implementation Date, the Reform Act changes the normal retirement 

age by increasing the eligibility for the 2% age factor from age 55 to 62 and increases the eligibility 

requirement for the maximum age factor of 2.5% to age 67. Among the other changes to PERS and 

STRS, the Reform Act also: (i) requires all new participants enrolled in PERS and STRS after the 

Implementation Date to contribute at least 50% of the total annual normal cost of their pension benefit 

each year as determined by an actuary, (ii) requires STRS and PERS to determine the final compensation 

amount for employees based upon the highest annual compensation earnable averaged over a consecutive 

36-month period as the basis for calculating retirement benefits for new participants enrolled after the 

Implementation Date (previously 12 months for STRS members who retire with 25 years of service), and 

(iii) caps “pensionable compensation” for new participants enrolled after the Implementation Date at 

100% of the federal Social Security contribution (to be adjusted annually based on changes to the 

Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers) and benefit base for members participating in Social 

Security or 120% for members not participating in social security (to be adjusted annually based on 

changes to the Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers), while excluding previously allowed 



 

58 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

forms of compensation under the formula such as payments for unused vacation, annual leave, personal 

leave, sick leave, or compensatory time off. 

GASB Statement Nos. 67 and 68.  On June 25, 2012, GASB approved Statements Nos.  67 and 68 

(“Statements”) with respect to pension accounting and financial reporting standards for state and local 

governments and pension plans. The new Statements, No. 67 and No. 68, replace GASB Statement No. 

27 and most of Statements No. 25 and No. 50. The changes impact the accounting treatment of pension 

plans in which state and local governments participate. Major changes include:  (1) the inclusion of 

unfunded pension liabilities on the government’s balance sheet (previously, such unfunded liabilities are 

typically included as notes to the government’s financial statements); (2) more components of full 

pension costs being shown as expenses regardless of actual contribution levels; (3) lower actuarial 

discount rates being required to be used for underfunded plans in certain cases for purposes of the 

financial statements; (4) closed amortization periods for unfunded liabilities being required to be used for 

certain purposes of the financial statements; and (5) the difference between expected and actual 

investment returns being recognized over a closed five-year smoothing period.  In addition, according to 

GASB, Statement No. 68 means that, for pensions within the scope of the Statement, a cost-sharing 

employer that does not have a special funding situation is required to recognize a net pension liability, 

deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense 

based on its proportionate share of the net pension liability for benefits provided through the pension plan.  

Because the accounting standards do not require changes in funding policies, the full extent of the effect 

of the new standards on the District is not known at this time. The reporting requirements for pension 

plans took effect for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013 and the reporting requirements for government 

employers, including the District, took effect for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2014. 

Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liabilities.  The District’s proportionate shares of the net 

pension liabilities for STRS and PERS, as of June 30, 2022, are as shown in the following table. 

Pension 
Plan 

Proportionate Share of 
Net Pension Liability 

STRS $36,843,149 

PERS   17,742,969 

Total $54,586,118 
____________ 

Source:  The District. 

For additional information regarding the District’s pension liabilities, see Note 10 to the fiscal 

year 2021-22 audited financial statements of the District included in Appendix A hereto. 

Post-Employment Benefits 

The District has a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (the “Plan”) that provides post-

employment medical, dental and vision insurance benefits to certain eligible employees through the Gold 

Coast Joint Benefits Trust.  See “ – Joint Powers Authorities” below.  The District currently funds the 

Plan on a pay-as-you-go basis.  The most recent actuarial report for the Plan produced a valuation as of 

June 30, 2021.  As of June 30, 2022, the District had a total OPEB liability in respect of the Plan of 

$25,550,870.  For additional information regarding the Plan and its funding, see Note 9 to the fiscal year 

2021-22 audited financial statements of the District included in Appendix A hereto.   

In addition to the Plan, the District participates in the Medicare Premium Payment (“MPP”) 

Program, a cost-sharing multiple-employer other postemployment benefits program administered by 

STRS through the Teachers’ Health Benefit Fund.  The MPP Program pays Medicare Part A premiums 

and Medicare Parts A and B late enrollment surcharges for certain eligible individuals who were retired or 



 

59 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

began receiving a disability allowance prior to July 1, 2012, and were not eligible for premium free 

Medicare Part A.  As of June 30, 2022, the District’s proportionate share of the MPP Program OPEB 

liability was reported as $485,400.  See Note 9 to the fiscal year 2021-22 audited financial statements of 

the District included in Appendix A hereto.  

Joint Powers Authorities 

The District participates in joint ventures under joint powers agreements with the Ventura County 

Schools Self-Funding Authority (the “VCSSFA”) and the Gold Coast Joint Benefits Trust (the “GCJBT”) 

(together, the “JPAs”). The relationship between the District and the JPAs is such that the JPAs are not 

component units of the District for financial reporting purposes.  

The VCSSFA arranges for and provides worker’s compensation, fire, property, and liability 

insurance for the District.  The GCJBT arranges for and provides medical, dental, and vision care 

coverage for the District.  The JPAs are governed by independent boards consisting of representatives 

from each member district.  The respective boards control the operations of the JPAs, including selection 

of management and approval of operating budgets, independent of any influence by the member districts 

beyond their representation on the respective boards. 

DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The information in this section concerning the District’s general fund finances is provided as 

supplementary information only, and it should not be inferred from the inclusion of this information in this 

Official Statement that the principal of or interest on the Bonds is payable from the general fund of the 

District.  The Bonds are payable from the proceeds of ad valorem taxes required to be levied by the County 

in an amount sufficient for the payment thereof.  See “THE BONDS – Security and Sources of Payment.” 

State Funding of Education 

School district revenues consist primarily of guaranteed State moneys, local property taxes and 

funds received from the State in the form of categorical aid under ongoing programs of local assistance.  

All State aid is subject to the appropriation of funds in the State’s annual budget.   

Revenue Limit Funding.  Previously, school districts operated under general purpose revenue 

limits established by the State Department of Education.  In general, revenue limits were calculated for 

each school district by multiplying the ADA for such district by a base revenue limit per unit of ADA.  

Revenue limit calculations were subject to adjustment in accordance with a number of factors designed to 

provide COLAs and to equalize revenues among school districts of the same type.  Funding of a school 

district’s revenue limit was provided by a mix of local property taxes and State apportionments of basic 

and equalization aid.  Since fiscal year 2013-14, school districts have been funded based on uniform 

system of funding grants assigned to certain grade spans, as described below.  See “ – Local Control 

Funding Formula.”   

Local Control Funding Formula.  State Assembly Bill 97 (Stats. 2013, Chapter 47) (“AB 97”), 

enacted as part of the 2013-14 State budget, established the current system for funding school districts, 

charter schools and county offices of education.  Certain provisions of AB 97 were amended and clarified 

by Senate Bill 91 (Stats. 2013, Chapter 49) (“SB 91”).   

The primary component of AB 97 was the implementation of the Local Control Funding Formula 

(“LCFF”), which replaced the revenue limit funding system for determining State apportionments, as well 



 

60 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

as the majority of categorical program funding.  State allocations are now provided on the basis of target 

base funding grants per unit of ADA (a “Base Grant”) assigned to each of four grade spans.  Each Base 

Grant is subject to certain adjustments and add-ons, as discussed below.  During the implementation 

period of the LCFF, an annual transition adjustment was calculated for each school district, equal to such 

district’s proportionate share of appropriations included in the State budget to close the gap between the 

prior-year funding level and the target allocation following full implementation of the LCFF.  In each 

year, school districts had the same proportion of their respective funding gaps closed, with dollar amounts 

varying depending on the size of a district’s funding gap. 

The Base Grants per unit of ADA for each grade span are as follows: (i) $7,702 for grades K-3; 

(ii) $7,818 for grades 4-6; (iii) $8,050 for grades 7-8; and (iv) $9,329 for grades 9-12.  During the 

implementation period of the LCFF, Base Grants were required to be adjusted annually for COLAs by 

applying the implicit price deflator for government goods and services.  The provision of COLAs is now 

subject to appropriation for such adjustment in the annual State budget.  The differences among Base 

Grants are linked to differentials in statewide average revenue limit rates by district type, and are intended 

to recognize the generally higher costs of education at higher grade levels.  See “CONSTITUTIONAL 

AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS – 

State Budget” for information on the adjusted Base Grants provided by current budgetary legislation. 

The Base Grants for grades K-3 and 9-12 are subject to adjustments of 10.4% and 2.6%, 

respectively, to cover the costs of class size reduction in early grades and the provision of career technical 

education in high schools.  Unless otherwise collectively bargained for, school districts serving students 

in grades K-3 must maintain an average class enrollment of 24 or fewer students in grades K-3 at each 

school site in order to continue receiving the adjustment to the K-3 Base Grant.  Such school districts 

must also make progress towards this class size reduction goal in proportion to the growth in their funding 

over the implementation period.  AB 97 also provides additional add-ons to school districts that received 

categorical block grant funding pursuant to the Targeted Instructional Improvement and Home-to-School 

Transportation programs during fiscal year 2012-13.   

School districts that serve students of limited English proficiency (“EL” students), students from 

low income families that are eligible for free or reduced priced meals (“LI” students) and foster youth are 

eligible to receive additional funding grants.  Enrollment counts are unduplicated, such that students may 

not be counted as both EL and LI (foster youth automatically meet the eligibility requirements for free or 

reduced priced meals, and are therefore not discussed herein separately).  AB 97 authorizes a 

supplemental grant add-on (each, a “Supplemental Grant”) for school districts that serve EL/LI students, 

equal to 20% of the applicable Base Grant multiplied by such districts’ percentage of unduplicated EL/LI 

student enrollment.  School districts whose EL/LI populations exceed 55% of their total enrollment are 

eligible for a concentration grant add-on (each, a “Concentration Grant”) equal to 50% of the applicable 

Base Grant multiplied by the percentage of such district’s unduplicated EL/LI student enrollment in 

excess of the 55% threshold.   

The table on the following page shows a breakdown of the District’s ADA by grade span, total 

enrollment, and the percentage of EL/LI student enrollment for fiscal years 2013-14 through 2021-22 and 

budgeted figures for fiscal year 2022-23.   



 

61 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

ADA, ENROLLMENT AND EL/LI ENROLLMENT PERCENTAGE 
Hueneme Elementary School District 
Fiscal Years 2013-14 through 2022-23 

 Average Daily Attendance(1)  Enrollment(2) 
Fiscal 
Year TK-3 4-6 7-8 

Total 
ADA 

 Total 
Enrollment 

% of EL/LI 
Enrollment(3) 

2013-14 4,025 2,596 1,556 8,177  8,442 n/a 

2014-15 3,929 2,699 1,563 8,191  8,393 86 

2015-16 3,829 2,785 1,555 8,169  8,458 83 

2016-17 3,683 2,845 1,618 8,146  8,379 89 

2017-18 3,676 2,779 1,679 8,134  8,429 89 

2018-19 3,530 2,614 1,815 7,959  8,250 86 

2019-20
 

3,377 2,557 1,758 7,692  7,948 87 

2020-21
 

     7,544  

2021-22
 

     7,206  

2022-23
(4)

        
    

Note: ADA figures rounded to the nearest whole number. 
(1) Reflects ADA as of the second principal reporting period (P-2 ADA), ending on or before the last attendance month 

prior to April 15 of each school year.  An attendance month is equal to each four-week period of instruction beginning 

with the first day of school for a particular school district.  For fiscal year 2019-20, due to the outbreak of COVID-19, 

P-2 ADA only reflects full school months from July 1, 2019 through February 29, 2020.  See “– Considerations 

Regarding COVID-19” herein.  
(2) Enrollment reflects certified enrollment as of the fall census day (the first Wednesday in October), which is reported to 

the California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System (“CALPADS”) in each school year and used to calculate 

each school district’s unduplicated EL/LI student enrollment.  Adjustments may be made to the certified EL/LI counts 

by the State Department of Education.  CALPADS figures exclude preschool, extended transitional kindergarten, and 

adult transitional students.   
(3) For purposes of calculating Supplemental and Concentration Grants, a school district’s fiscal year 2013-14 percentage 

of unduplicated EL/LI students was expressed solely as a percentage of its total fiscal year 2013-14 total enrollment.  

For fiscal year 2014-15, the percentage of unduplicated EL/LI enrollment was based on the two-year average of EL/LI 

enrollment in fiscal years 2013-14 and 2014-15.  Beginning in fiscal year 2015-16, a school district’s percentage of 

unduplicated EL/LI students has been based on a rolling average of such district’s EL/LI enrollment for the then-

current fiscal year and the two immediately preceding fiscal years. 
(4) Projected. 

Source:  The District. 

For certain school districts that would have received greater funding levels under the prior 

revenue limit system, the LCFF provides for a permanent economic recovery target (“ERT”) add-on, 

equal to the difference between the revenue limit allocations such districts would have received under the 

prior system in fiscal year 2020-21, and the target LCFF allocations owed to such districts in the same 

year.  To derive the projected funding levels, the LCFF assumed the discontinuance of deficit revenue 

limit funding, implementation of COLAs in fiscal years 2014-15 through 2020-21, and restoration of 

categorical funding to pre-recession levels.  The ERT add-on was incrementally over the LCFF 

implementation period. The District does not qualify for the ERT add-on.   

The sum of a school district’s adjusted Base, Supplemental and Concentration Grants will be 

multiplied by such district’s P-2 ADA for the current or prior year, whichever is greater (with certain 

adjustments applicable to small school districts).  This funding amount, together with any applicable ERT 

or categorical block grant add-ons, will yield a district’s total LCFF allocation.  Generally, the amount of 

annual State apportionments received by a school district will amount to the difference between such total 

LCFF allocation and such district’s share of applicable local property taxes.  Most school districts receive 

a significant portion of their funding from such State apportionments.  As a result, decreases in State 

revenues may significantly affect appropriations made by the Legislature to school districts. 



 

62 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Community Supported Districts.  Certain schools districts, known as “community supported” 

districts (or, previously, as “basic aid” districts), have allocable local property tax collections that equal or 

exceed such districts’ total LCFF allocation, and result in the receipt of no State apportionment aid.  

Community supported school districts receive only special categorical funding, which is deemed to satisfy 

the “basic aid” requirement of $120 per student per year guaranteed by Article IX, Section 6 of the State 

Constitution.  The implication for community supported districts is that the legislatively determined 

allocations to school districts, and other politically determined factors, are less significant in determining 

their primary funding sources.  Rather, property tax growth and the local economy are the primary 

determinants.  The District does not qualify as a community supported district.   

Accountability.  Regulations adopted by the State Board of Education require that school districts 

increase or improve services for EL/LI students in proportion to the increase in funds apportioned to such 

districts on the basis of the number and concentration of such EL/LI students, and detail the conditions 

under which school districts can use supplemental or concentration funding on a school-wide or district-

wide basis. 

School districts are also required to adopt local control and accountability plans (“LCAPs”) 

disclosing annual goals for all students, as well as certain numerically significant student subgroups, to be 

achieved in eight areas of State priority identified by the LCFF.  LCAPs may also specify additional local 

priorities.  LCAPs must specify the actions to be taken to achieve each goal, including actions to correct 

identified deficiencies with regard to areas of State priority.  LCAPs are required to cover a three-year 

period and to be updated annually.  The State Board of Education has adopted a template LCAP for use 

by school districts. 

Support and Intervention.  AB 97, as amended by SB 91, established a new system of support 

and intervention to assist school districts meet the performance expectations outlined in their respective 

LCAPs.  School districts must adopt their LCAPs (or annual updates thereto) in tandem with their annual 

operating budgets, and not later than five days thereafter submit such LCAPs or updates to their 

respective county superintendents of schools.  On or before August 15 of each year, a county 

superintendent may seek clarification regarding the contents of a district’s LCAP (or annual update 

thereto), and the district is required to respond to such a request within 15 days.  Within 15 days of 

receiving such a response, the county superintendent can submit non-binding recommendations for 

amending the LCAP or annual update, and such recommendations must be considered by the respective 

school district at a public hearing within 15 days.  A district’s LCAP or annual update must be approved 

by the county superintendent by October 8 of each year if the superintendent determines that (i) the LCAP 

or annual update adheres to the State template, and (ii) the district’s budgeted expenditures are sufficient 

to implement the actions and strategies outlined in the LCAP.   

A school district is required to receive additional support if its respective LCAP or annual update 

thereto is not approved, if the district requests technical assistance from its respective county 

superintendent, or if the district does not improve student achievement across more than one State priority 

for one or more student subgroups.  Such support can include a review of a district’s strengths and 

weaknesses in the eight State priority areas, or the assignment of an academic expert to assist the district 

identify and implement programs designed to improve outcomes.  Assistance may be provided by the 

California Collaborative for Educational Excellence, a State agency created by the LCFF and charged 

with assisting school districts achieve the goals set forth in their LCAPs.  The State Board of Education 

has developed rubrics to assess school district performance and the need for support and intervention.  

The State Superintendent of Public Instruction (the “State Superintendent”) is further authorized, 

with the approval of the State Board of Education, to intervene in the management of persistently 

underperforming school districts.  The State Superintendent may intervene directly or assign an academic 



 

63 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

trustee to act on behalf of the State Superintendent.  In so doing, the State Superintendent is authorized to 

(i) modify a district’s LCAP, (ii) impose budget revisions designed to improve student outcomes, and (iii) 

stay or rescind actions of the local governing board that would prevent such district from improving 

student outcomes; provided, however, that the State Superintendent is not authorized to rescind an action 

required by a local collective bargaining agreement. 

Other State Sources.  In addition to State allocations determined pursuant to the LCFF, the 

District receives other State revenues consisting primarily of restricted revenues designed to implement 

State mandated programs.  Beginning in fiscal year 2013-14, categorical spending restrictions associated 

with a majority of State mandated programs were eliminated, and funding for these programs was folded 

into the LCFF.  Categorical funding for 14 programs was excluded from the LCFF—including, among 

others, child nutrition, after school education and safety, special education, and State preschool—and 

school districts will continue to receive restricted State revenues to fund these programs.  

Other Revenue Sources 

Federal and Local Sources.  The federal government provides funding for several school district 

programs, including specialized programs such as the Every Student Succeeds Act, special education 

programs, and programs under the Educational Consolidation and Improvement Act.  In addition, 

portions of a school district’s budget can come from local sources other than property taxes, including but 

not limited to interest income, leases and rentals, interagency services, developer fees, foundations, 

donations and sales of property.  

The California lottery is another source of funding for school districts, providing approximately 

1% to 3% of a school district’s budget.  Every school district receives the same amount of lottery funds 

per pupil from the State; however, these are not categorical funds as they are not for particular programs 

or children.  The initiative authorizing the lottery mandates the funds be used for instructional purposes, 

and prohibits their use for capital purposes.   

Considerations Regarding COVID-19 

General.  An outbreak of disease or similar public health threat, such as the ongoing coronavirus 

(“COVID-19”) pandemic, or fear of such an event, could have an adverse impact on the District’s 

financial condition and operating results.   

The spread of COVID-19 continues to have significant negative impacts throughout the world, 

including in the District.  The World Health Organization has declared the COVID-19 outbreak to be a 

pandemic, and states of emergency were declared by the State and the United States.  The purpose behind 

these declarations was to coordinate and formalize emergency actions and across federal, State and local 

governmental agencies, and to proactively prepare for the then-expected wider spread of the virus. 

To date there have been millions of confirmed cases in the United States, and over one million 

deaths related to COVID-19.  Although vaccines and vaccine boosters are currently widely available, no 

representation can be made as to whether the number of cases will continue to grow.  The COVID-19 

outbreak resulted in the imposition of restrictions on mass gatherings and widespread temporary closings 

of businesses, universities and schools through much of 2020 and portions of 2021, as well as supply 

chain issues and significant increases in inflation as these restrictions and closures have been lifted.  Stock 

markets in the U.S. and globally have been volatile, with significant declines attributed to coronavirus 

concerns.   



 

64 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Federal Response.  On March 27, 2020 the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act 

(the “CARES Act”) was signed by the President of the United States (the “President”).  The CARES Act 

appropriated over $2 trillion to, among other things, (i) provide cash payments to individuals, (ii) expand 

unemployment assistance and eligibility, (iii) provide emergency grants and loans for small businesses, 

(iv) provide loans and other assistance to corporations, including the airline industry, (v) provide funding 

for hospitals and community health centers, (vi) expand funding for safety net programs, including child 

nutrition programs, and (vii) provide aid to state and local governments.  On December 27, 2020, the 

President signed the Coronavirus Relief and Response Supplemental Appropriations Act, 2021 

(“CRRSA”), which included approximately $900 billion worth of provisions for additional 

COVID-related relief, including extension of or additional funding for various relief programs 

implemented by the CARES Act.  The CRRSA provided approximately $82 billion of COVID-19 related 

relief for education, including $54.3 billion for K-12 schools (largely through Title I funding), $22.7 

billion for higher education and $4 billion for state governors to spend at their discretion.  On March 12, 

2021, the President signed the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (the “American Rescue Plan”), which 

provides approximately $1.9 trillion in federal economic stimulus intended to accelerate the recovery 

from the COVID-19 pandemic.  The American Rescue Plan provides direct payments to individuals, 

extends unemployment benefits, provides funding to distribute COVID-19 vaccines and provides funding 

for schools, higher education institutions, state, tribal governments and businesses.  On January 30, 2023, 

the Office of the President announced its intent to end the national emergency and public health 

emergency declarations on May 11, 2023. 

State Response.   In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, on March 17, 2020, Senate Bill 89 

(“SB 89”) and Senate Bill 117 (“SB 117”) were signed by the Governor, both of which took effect 

immediately.  SB 89 amended the Budget Act of 2019 by appropriating $500,000,000 from the State 

general fund for any purpose related to the Governor’s March 4, 2020 emergency proclamation. SB 117, 

among other things, (i) specified that for school districts that comply with Executive Order N–26–20, the 

ADA reported to the State Department of Education for the second period and the annual period for 

apportionment purposes for the 2019-20 school year only includes all full school months from July 1, 

2019 through February 29, 2020, (ii) prevented the loss of funding related to an instructional time penalty 

because of a school closed due to the COVID–19 by deeming the instructional days and minutes 

requirements to have been met during the period of time the school was closed due to COVID–19, (iii) 

required a school district to be credited with the ADA it would have received had it been able to operate 

its After School Education and Safety Program during the time the school was closed due to COVID–19, 

and (iv) appropriated $100,000,000 from the State general fund to the State Superintendent to be 

apportioned to certain local educational agencies for purposes of purchasing personal protective 

equipment, or paying for supplies and labor related to cleaning school sites.  Additionally, the Governor, 

on March 4, 2021, signed into law Assembly Bill 86 (“AB 86”), urgency legislation which provided 

approximately $6.6 billion to accelerate the return of in-person school instruction and expand student 

support.  See also “ – State Budget Measures” herein. 

On June 29, 2020, Senate Bill 98 (“SB 98”), the education omnibus bill to the 2020-21 State 

budget, was signed by the Governor, which took effect immediately.  SB 98 provided that distance 

learning could be offered by a school district during the 2020-21 academic year on a local educational 

agency or schoolwide level as a result of an order or guidance from a State public health officer or a local 

public health officer or for pupils who are medically fragile or would be put at risk by in-person 

instruction, or who are self-quarantining because of exposure to COVID-19.  SB 98 provided 

requirements for distance learning, including, but not limited to: (i) confirmation or provision of access 

for all pupils to connectivity and devices adequate to participate in the educational program and complete 

assigned work, (ii) content aligned to grade level standards that is provided at a level of quality and 

intellectual challenge substantially equivalent to in-person instruction, (iii) support for pupils who are not 

performing at grade level or need support in other areas, (iv) special education services, (v) designated 



 

65 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

and integrated instruction in English language development for English learners, and (vi) daily live 

interaction with certificated employees and peers.  On February 28, 2023, the Governor issued a 

proclamation terminating the State’s COVID-19 state of emergency. 

District Response.  [To be updated.]  As a result of the outbreak of COVID-19, the District closed 

its schools for in-person learning for the remainder of the 2019-20 school year and began instruction 

through distance learning.  The District opened the 2020-21 school year in an all distance learning 

environment before transitioning back to in-person instruction.  The District evaluated State school 

guidelines and consulted with local health officials when planning the 2022-23 school year and is 

currently operating fully in-person, as well as offering a parent-elected independent study option. 

State law allows school districts to apply for a waiver to hold them harmless from the loss of 

LCFF funding based on attendance and state instructional time penalties when they are forced to close 

schools due to emergency conditions.  In addition, the Governor enacted Executive Order N-26-20 

(“Executive Order N-26-20”), which (i) generally streamlined the process of applying for such waivers 

for closures related to COVID-19 and (ii) directed school districts to use LCFF apportionment to fund 

distance learning and high quality educational opportunities, provide school meals and, as practicable, 

arrange for the supervision of students during school hours.  

In connection with the COVID-19 pandemic, the District received a total of $___________ in 

additional Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (“ESSER”) funding, a total of $________ 

in Learning Loss Mitigation funding (comprising Coronavirus Relief funding, Governor’s Emergency 

Education Relief (“GEER”) funding, and additional Proposition 98 funding), $__________ in Expanded 

Learning Opportunity Grant funding, $________ in In-Person Instruction Grant funding, and $_______ 

pursuant to SB 117 for personal protective equipment.  

Other potential impacts to the District associated with the COVID-19 outbreak include, but are 

not limited to, increasing costs and challenges relating to establishing distance learning programs or other 

measures to permit instruction while schools remain closed, disruption of the regional and local economy 

with corresponding decreases in tax revenues, including property tax revenue, sales tax revenue and other 

revenues, increases in tax delinquencies, potential declines in property values, and decreases in new home 

sales, and real estate development.  The economic consequences and the volatility in the U.S. and global 

stock markets resulting from the spread of COVID-19, and responses thereto by local, State, and the 

federal governments, could have a material impact on the investments in the State pension trusts, which 

could materially increase the unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the STRS Defined Benefit Program 

and PERS Schools Pool, which, in turn, could result in material changes to the District’s required 

contribution rates in future fiscal years.  See “THE DISTRICT – State Retirement Systems” herein. 

The COVID-19 outbreak is ongoing, and, notwithstanding the general availability of vaccines and 

vaccine boosters, the ultimate geographic spread of the virus, the duration and severity of the outbreak, 

the effectiveness of available vaccines in containing the spread or mutation of the virus, and the economic 

and other actions that may be taken by governmental authorities to contain the outbreak or to treat its 

impact are uncertain.  Additional information with respect to events surrounding the outbreak of COVID-

19 and responses thereto can be found on State and local government websites, including but not limited 

to: the Governor’s office (http://www.gov.ca.gov), California Department of Public Health 

(https://covid19.ca.gov/) and the Ventura County Public Health website (https://vchca.org/agency-

divisions/public-health).  The District has not incorporated by reference the information on such 

websites, and the District does not assume any responsibility for the accuracy of the information on such 

websites. 



 

66 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

The ultimate impact of COVID-19 on the District’s operations and finances is unknown.  There 

can be no assurances that the spread of COVID-19, or the responses thereto by local, State, or the federal 

government, will not materially adversely impact the local, state and national economies or the assessed 

valuation of property within the District, adversely impact enrollment or ADA within the District or the 

financial condition or operations of the District.  See also “TAX BASE FOR REPAYMENT OF THE 

BONDS – Assessed Valuations” herein.   

State Dissolution of Redevelopment Agencies 

On December 30, 2011, the California Supreme Court issued its decision in the case of California 

Redevelopment Association v. Matosantos (“Matosantos”), finding ABx1 26, a trailer bill to the 2011-12 

State budget, to be constitutional.  As a result, all Redevelopment Agencies in California ceased to exist 

as a matter of law on February 1, 2012.  The Court in Matosantos also found that ABx1 27, a companion 

bill to ABx1 26, violated the California Constitution, as amended by Proposition 22.  See 

“CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES AND 

APPROPRIATIONS – Proposition 1A and Proposition 22” herein.  ABx1 27 would have permitted 

redevelopment agencies to continue operations provided their establishing cities or counties agreed to 

make specified payments to K-14 school districts and county offices of education, totaling $1.7 billion 

statewide.   

ABx1 26 was modified by Assembly Bill No. 1484 (Chapter 26, Statutes of 2011-12) (“AB 

1484”), which, together with ABx1 26, is referred to herein as the “Dissolution Act.”  The Dissolution 

Act provides that all rights, powers, duties and obligations of a redevelopment agency under the 

California Community Redevelopment Law that have not been repealed, restricted or revised pursuant to 

ABx1 26 will be vested in a successor agency, generally the county or city that authorized the creation of 

the redevelopment agency (each, a “Successor Agency”).  All property tax revenues that would have been 

allocated to a redevelopment agency, less the corresponding county auditor-controller’s cost to administer 

the allocation of property tax revenues, are now allocated to a corresponding Redevelopment Property 

Tax Trust Fund (“Trust Fund”), to be used for the payment of pass-through payments to local taxing 

entities, and thereafter to bonds of the former redevelopment agency and any “enforceable obligations” of 

the Successor Agency, as well as to pay certain administrative costs.  The Dissolution Act defines 

“enforceable obligations” to include bonds, loans, legally required payments, judgments or settlements, 

legal binding and enforceable obligations, and certain other obligations.   

Among the various types of enforceable obligations, the first priority for payment is tax allocation 

bonds issued by the former redevelopment agency; second is revenue bonds, which may have been issued 

by the host city, but only where the tax increment revenues were pledged for repayment and only where 

other pledged revenues are insufficient to make scheduled debt service payments; third is administrative 

costs of the Successor Agency, equal to at least $250,000 in any year, unless the oversight board reduces 

such amount for any fiscal year or a lesser amount is agreed to by the Successor Agency; then, fourth tax 

revenues in the Trust Fund in excess of such amounts, if any, will be allocated as residual distributions to 

local taxing entities in the same proportions as other tax revenues.  Moreover, all unencumbered cash and 

other assets of former redevelopment agencies will also be allocated to local taxing entities in the same 

proportions as tax revenues.  Notwithstanding the foregoing portion of this paragraph, the order of 

payment is subject to modification in the event a Successor Agency timely reports to the State Controller 

and the Department of Finance that application of the foregoing will leave the Successor Agency with 

amounts insufficient to make scheduled payments on enforceable obligations.  If the county auditor-

controller verifies that the Successor Agency will have insufficient amounts to make scheduled payments 

on enforceable obligations, it shall report its findings to the State Controller.  If the State Controller 

agrees there are insufficient funds to pay scheduled payments on enforceable obligations, the amount of 

such deficiency shall be deducted from the amount remaining to be distributed to taxing agencies, as 



 

67 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

described as the fourth distribution above, then from amounts available to the Successor Agency to defray 

administrative costs.  In addition, if a taxing agency entered into an agreement pursuant to Health and 

Safety Code Section 33401 for payments from a redevelopment agency under which the payments were 

to be subordinated to certain obligations of the redevelopment agency, such subordination provisions 

shall continue to be given effect. 

As noted above, the Dissolution Act expressly provides for continuation of pass-through 

payments to local taxing entities.  Per statute, 100% of contractual and statutory two percent pass-

throughs, and 56.7% of statutory pass-throughs authorized under the Community Redevelopment Law 

Reform Act of 1993 (AB 1290, Chapter 942, Statutes of 1993) (“AB 1290”), are restricted to educational 

facilities without offset against revenue limit apportionments by the State.  Only 43.3% of AB 1290 pass-

throughs are offset against State aid so long as the affected local taxing entity uses the monies received 

for land acquisition, facility construction, reconstruction, or remodeling, or deferred maintenance as 

provided under Education Code Section 42238(h).  

ABX1 26 states that in the future, pass-throughs shall be made in the amount “which would have 

been received . . . had the redevelopment agency existed at that time,” and that the county auditor-

controller shall “determine the amount of property taxes that would have been allocated to each 

redevelopment agency had the redevelopment agency not been dissolved using current assessed values . . 

. and pursuant to statutory formulas and contractual agreements with other taxing agencies.” 

Successor Agencies continue to operate until all enforceable obligations have been satisfied and 

all remaining assets of the Successor Agency have been disposed of.  AB 1484 provides that once the 

debt of the Successor Agency is paid off and remaining assets have been disposed of, the Successor 

Agency shall terminate its existence and all pass-through payment obligations shall cease. 

The District can make no representations as to the extent to which its base apportionments from 

the State may be offset by the future receipt of residual distributions or from unencumbered cash and 

assets of former redevelopment agencies any other surplus property tax revenues pursuant to the 

Dissolution Act.   

Accounting Practices 

The accounting practices of the District conform to generally accepted accounting principles in 

accordance with policies and procedures of the California School Accounting Manual.  This manual, 

according to Section 41010 of the California Education Code, is to be followed by all California school 

districts.   

The District’s expenditures are accrued at the end of the fiscal year to reflect the receipt of goods 

and services in that year. Revenues generally are recorded on a cash basis, except for items that are 

susceptible to accrual (measurable and/or available to finance operations).  Current taxes are considered 

susceptible to accrual.  Delinquent taxes not received after the fiscal year end are not recorded as revenue 

until received.  Revenues from specific state and federally funded projects are recognized when qualified 

expenditures have been incurred.  State block grant apportionments are accrued to the extent that they are 

measurable and predictable.  The State Department of Education sends the District updated information 

from time to time explaining the acceptable accounting treatment of revenue and expenditure categories. 

The District’s accounting is organized on the basis of fund groups, with each group consisting of 

a separate set of self-balancing accounts containing assets, liabilities, fund balances, revenues and 

expenditures.  The major fund classification is the general fund which accounts for all financial resources 

not requiring a special type of fund.  The fiscal year for the District begins on July 1 and ends on June 30. 



 

68 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Financial Statements 

The District’s general fund finances the legally authorized activities of the District for which 

restricted funds are not provided.  General fund revenues are derived from such sources as State school 

fund apportionments, taxes, use of money and property, and aid from other governmental agencies.  

Audited financial statements of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, and prior fiscal years 

are on file with the District and available for public inspection at the Office of the Superintendent of the 

Hueneme Elementary School District, 205 North Ventura Road, Port Hueneme, California  93041-3065, 

telephone: (805) 488-3588.  The audited financial statements of the District for the year ended June 30, 

2022 are included in Appendix A hereto.  

A comparison of the District’s audited general fund revenues, expenditures and changes in fund 

balances from fiscal years 2017-18 through fiscal year 2021-22 is set forth in the following table.  



 

69 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – General Fund 

Fiscal Years 2017-18 through 2021-22(1) 
Hueneme Elementary School District 

 

Audited 
2017-18 

Audited 
2018-19 

Audited 
2019-20 

Audited 
2020-21 

Audited 
2021-22 

REVENUES      

LCFF sources
 

$80,310,789  $87,240,338  $87,738,004  $84,238,859  $91,278,012  

Federal sources 4,123,536  5,165,059  3,443,213  15,361,793  14,414,532  

Other state sources 10,475,781  13,386,690  11,051,749  13,430,251  21,010,322  

Other local sources 6,805,321  5,924,774  6,745,490  7,791,973  8,123,672  

Total Revenues 101,715,427  111,716,861  108,978,456  120,822,876  134,826,538  

EXPENDITURES      

Instruction 65,572,431  70,709,213  72,958,715  72,891,267  81,006,648  

Instruction-Related Services:      

Supervision of instruction 3,789,882  4,487,736  4,670,262  5,956,996  6,475,554  

Instruction library, media and technology 1,092,243  894,593  772,229  676,332  860,760  

School site administration 6,560,873  7,320,866  7,203,224  6,489,302  7,517,960  

Pupil Support Services      

Home-to-school transportation 982,822  1,173,289  1,063,501  1,081,189  1,380,667  

Food services 23,793  473  117,906  268,292  181,142  

All other pupil services 4,785,077  5,285,203  5,309,654  5,984,302  6,886,159  

Ancillary services -- -- -- 28,704  47,844  

General Administration Services:      

Data processing services 413,243  245,330  247,881  648,532  572,863  

Other general administration 4,230,934  4,065,648  3,954,624  4,355,991  4,287,129  

Plant services 8,402,087  9,190,749  8,564,740  9,095,689  9,905,601  

Community services 611,058  579,207  -- -- 1,032  

Transfers of indirect costs (189,327) (178,882) -- (133,077) (90,920) 

Capital outlay 801,011  1,864,485  330,763  -- 2,909,791  

Intergovernmental Transfers 3,720,237  3,620,889  3,833,701  2,373,012  4,384,007  

Debt Service       

Costs of issuance -- -- -- 54,253  21,172  

Principal -- -- -- -- -- 

Interest -- -- -- -- -- 

Total Expenditures 100,796,364  109,258,799  109,027,200  109,770,784  126,347,409  

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 

Expenditures 

919,063  2,458,062  (48,744) 11,052,092  8,479,129  

      

Fund Balance, July 1, as originally stated 10,089,339  11,008,402  13,466,464  13,417,720  24,607,729  

Adjustment for restatement -- -- -- 137,917  -- 

Fund Balance, July 1, as restated -- -- -- 13,555,637  -- 

Fund Balance, June 30 $11,008,402  $13,466,464  $13,417,720  $24,607,729  $33,086,858  

    
(1) From the District’s comprehensive audited financial statements for fiscal years 2017-18 through 2021-22, respectively.  Reflects combined 

unrestricted and restricted general fund.  All amounts rounded to nearest whole number.  For the District’s fiscal year 2022-23 projected 
general fund revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances, see “– General Fund Budgets” below.  

Source:  The District. 

Budget Process 

State Budgeting Requirements.  The District is required by provisions of the State Education 

Code to maintain a balanced budget each year, in which the sum of expenditures and the ending fund 

balance cannot exceed the sum of revenues and the carry-over fund balance from the previous year.  The 

State Department of Education imposes a uniform budgeting and accounting format for school districts.  

The budget process for school districts was substantially amended by Assembly Bill 1200 (“AB 1200”), 

which became State law on October 14, 1991.  Portions of AB 1200 are summarized below.  Additional 

amendments to the budget process were made by Assembly Bill 2585, effective as of September 9, 2014, 



 

70 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

including the elimination of the dual budget cycle option for school districts. All school districts must 

now be on a single budget cycle.  

School districts must adopt a budget on or before July 1 of each year.  The budget must be 

submitted to the county superintendent within five days of adoption or by July 1, whichever occurs first.  

The county superintendent will examine the adopted budget for compliance with the standards and criteria 

adopted by the State Board of Education and identify technical corrections necessary to bring the budget 

into compliance, and will determine if the budget allows the district to meet its current obligations, if the 

budget is consistent with a financial plan that will enable the district to meet its multi-year financial 

commitments, whether the budget includes the expenditures necessary to implement a LCAP, and 

whether the budget’s ending fund balance exceeds the minimum recommended reserve for economic 

uncertainties. 

On or before September 15, the county superintendent will approve, conditionally approve or 

disapprove the adopted budget for each school district.  Budgets will be disapproved if they fail the above 

standards.  The district board must be notified by September 15 of the county superintendent’s 

recommendations for revision and reasons for the recommendations.  The county superintendent may 

assign a fiscal advisor or appoint a committee to examine and comment on the superintendent’s 

recommendations.  The committee must report its findings no later than September 20.  Any 

recommendations made by the county superintendent must be made available by the district for public 

inspection.  No later than October 22, the county superintendent must notify the State Superintendent of 

all school districts whose budget may be disapproved. 

A school district whose budget has been disapproved must revise and readopt its budget by 

October 8, reflecting changes in projected income and expense since July 1, including responding to the 

county superintendent’s recommendations.  The county superintendent must determine if the budget 

conforms with the standards and criteria applicable to final school district budgets and not later than 

November 8, must approve or disapprove the revised budgets.  If the budget is disapproved, the county 

superintendent will call for the formation of a budget review committee pursuant to Education Code 

Section 42127.1.  No later than November 8, the county superintendent must notify the State 

Superintendent of Public Instruction of all school districts whose budget has been disapproved.  Until a 

school district’s budget is approved, the school district will operate on the lesser of its proposed budget 

for the current fiscal year or the last budget adopted and reviewed for the prior fiscal year. 

Interim Financial Reports.  Under the provisions of AB 1200, each school district is required to 

file interim certifications with the county office of education as to its ability to meet its financial 

obligations for the remainder of the then-current fiscal year and, based on current forecasts, for the 

subsequent fiscal year.  The county office of education reviews the certification and issues either a 

positive, negative or qualified certification.  A positive certification is assigned to any school district that 

will meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year and the subsequent two fiscal years.  A 

negative certification is assigned to any school district that will be unable to meet its financial obligations 

for the remainder of the fiscal year or subsequent fiscal year.  A qualified certification is assigned to any 

school district that may not meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year or the two subsequent 

fiscal years. 

[The District has never had an adopted budget disapproved by the county superintendent of 

schools, and has never received a “negative” certification of an Interim Report pursuant to AB 1200.  The 

District self-reported a “qualified” certification of its Second Interim Report in fiscal year 2009-10.  The 

District has received “positive” certifications for every subsequent Interim Report.]   



 

71 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

General Fund Budgets 

The District’s general fund budgets for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2021 through June 30, 

2023, actual results for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2022, and projected results for 

the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, are set forth in the following table.  

GENERAL FUND BUDGET AND ACTUAL RESULTS 
FISCAL YEARS ENDING JUNE 30, 2021 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2023 

Hueneme Elementary School District 

 2020-21 2020-21 2021-22 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 

    Budget(2)    Actual(2)    Budget(2)    Actual(2)    Budgeted(3)    Projected(4) 

REVENUES       
LCFF Sources $77,574,220  $84,238,859  $88,286,570  $91,278,012  $93,128,335  $100,502,599  

Federal Sources 5,618,470  15,361,793  7,777,167  14,414,532  14,725,660  16,385,091  

Other State Sources 3,100,061  13,430,251  8,164,076  21,010,322  25,493,220  22,001,696  
Other Local Sources   5,662,968     7,791,973     5,461,054     8,123,672     7,216,622     9,620,110  

Total Revenues 91,955,719  120,822,876  109,688,867  134,826,538  140,563,837  148,509,496  

       

Expenditures       

Certificated Salaries 43,810,823  47,137,198  46,706,425  53,936,342  51,027,104  56,581,662  

Classified Salaries 13,731,223  14,657,861  14,384,530  15,882,029  16,123,444  18,192,706  
Employee Benefits 22,488,682  28,404,490  25,269,160  30,600,352  29,129,758  30,677,739  

Books and Supplies 5,603,333  7,767,120  8,075,169  6,167,758  14,738,633  15,224,981  

Services and Other Operating Expenditures 7,869,078  9,508,312  10,616,588  12,399,593  25,026,411  26,484,498  
Transfers of indirect costs(5) (158,418) -- (163,952) (90,920) (197,456) (208,869) 

Capital Outlay -- 55,868  -- 3,068,248  180,000  1,940,391  

Intergovernmental/Other outgo 3,700,000  2,239,935  2,280,000  4,384,007  3,602,821  3,732,817  
Direct Support - Indirect Costs                --     _           -- _               -- _               --                 --                 -- 

Total Expenditures 97,044,721  109,770,784  107,167,920  126,347,409  139,630,715  152,625,925  

       
Net Change in Fund Balances (5,089,002) 11,052,092  2,520,947  8,479,129  933,122  (4,116,429) 

       

Fund Balance, July 1, as originally stated 10,822,952  13,417,720  18,117,204  24,607,729  25,150,152  32,430,603  

Adjustment for restatement -- 137,917  -- -- -- -- 

Fund Balance, July 1, as restated               -- 13,555,637                  --                  --                 --                 -- 

Fund Balance, June 30 $5,733,950  $24,607,729  $20,638,151  $33,086,858  $26,083,274  $28,314,174  

  
(1) Reflects combined unrestricted and restricted general fund.  All amounts rounded to nearest whole number.  Figures may not sum to totals due to rounding.  
(2) Original general fund budget and actual results from the District’s audited financial statements for fiscal years shown.  
(3) Adopted budget.  
(4) Projected fiscal year 2022-23 results based on the District’s Second Interim Report.  
(5) Transfers of indirect costs generally consist of ______________________. 

Source:  The District. 



 

72 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

District Debt Structure 

Schedule of Long-Term Debt.  A schedule of changes in District’s long-term debt (other than 

pensions) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, is shown below:  

 Balance 

June 30, 2021 

 

Additions 

 

Deductions 

Balance 

June 30, 2022 

General Obligation Bonds:     

Principal Payments $62,190,265 -- $2,967,310 $59,222,955 

Accreted Interest 3,654,912  $323,669  482,690  3,495,891  

Unamortized Issuance Premium   3,676,668             --     220,621     3,456,047  

Total General Obligation Bonds 69,521,845  323,669  3,670,621  66,174,893  

Compensated Absences       813,165             --       74,160         739,005  

Total
(1) 

$70,335,010  $323,669  $3,744,781  $66,913,898  
  
(1)

 Does not reflect pension liabilities or those for other post-employment benefits.  See “THE DISTRICT – State Retirement Systems – 

Proportionate share of Net Pension Liability” and “THE DISTRICT – Post-Employment Benefits.” 

Source:  The District.  

General Obligation Bonds.  The District received authorization at an election held on March 4, 

1997, by an affirmative vote of 75% of the votes cast by eligible voters within the District, to issue not to 

exceed $4,700,000 of general obligation bonds (the “1997 Authorization”).  On June 18, 1998, the 

District issued an aggregate principal amount of $2,085,011.00 of its General Obligation Bonds, 1997 

Election, Series A (the “1997 Election, Series A Bonds”) pursuant to the 1997 Authorization.  On May 6, 

1999, the District issued an aggregate principal amount of $2,611,156.40 of its General Obligation Bonds, 

1997 Election, Series B (the “1997 Election, Series B Bonds”) pursuant to the 1997 Authorization.  

Approximately $3,832 remains unissued under the 1997 Authorization.  

The District received authorization at an election held on June 6, 2000, by an affirmative vote of 

70.6% of the votes cast by eligible voters within the District, to issue not to exceed $6,950,000 of general 

obligation bonds (the “2000 Authorization”).  On November 16, 2000, the District issued an aggregate 

principal amount of $3,385,000.00 of its General Obligation Bonds, 2000 Election, Series A (the “2000 

Election, Series A Bonds”) pursuant to the 2000 Authorization.  On June 18, 2002, the District issued an 

aggregate principal amount of $3,563,544.55 of its General Obligation Bonds, 2000 Election, Series B 

(the “2000 Election, Series B Bonds”) pursuant to the 2000 Authorization.  Approximately $1,455 

remains unissued under the 2000 Authorization. 

On October 11, 2011, the District issued an aggregate principal amount of $3,980,000 of its 2011 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds (the “2011 Refunding Bonds”), proceeds of which were used to 

refund certain maturities of each of the 2000 Election, Series A Bonds and the 2000 Election, Series B 

Bonds. 

The District received authorization at an election held on November 2, 2004, by an affirmative 

vote of 74.0% of the eligible voters within the District, to issue not to exceed $17,100,000 of general 

obligation bonds (the “2004 Authorization”).  On July 28, 2005, the District issued an aggregate principal 

amount of $9,500,000.00 of its General Obligation Bonds, 2004 Election, Series A (the “2004 Election, 

Series A Bonds”) pursuant to the 2004 Authorization.  Pursuant to the 2004 Authorization, on August 9, 

2007, the District issued an aggregate principal amount of $7,599,996.25 of its General Obligation Bonds, 

2004 Election, Series B (the “2004 Election, Series B Bonds”).  Approximately $3 remains unissued 

under the 2004 Authorization.  On May 2, 2014, the District issued an aggregate principal amount of 

$8,700,000 of its 2014 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (the “2014 Refunding Bonds”) through a 

private placement, proceeds of which were used to refund certain maturities of the 2004 Election, 

Series A Bonds.  On June 28, 2017, the District issued an aggregate principal amount of $4,675,000 of its 



 

73 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

2017 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (the “2017 Refunding Bonds”), proceeds of which were used 

to refund certain maturities of the 2004 Election, Series B Bonds.  

The District received authorization at an election held on November 6, 2012, by an affirmative 

vote of 76.4% of the eligible voters within the District, to issue not to exceed $19,600,000 of general 

obligation bonds (the “2012 Authorization”).  On May 16, 2013, the District issued an aggregate principal 

amount of $4,000,000 of its General Obligation Bonds, 2012 Election, Series A (the “2012 Election, 

Series A Bonds”), pursuant to the 2012 Authorization.  On February 3, 2015, the District issued an 

aggregate principal amount of $11,000,000 of its General Obligation Bonds, 2012 Election, Series B (the 

“2012 Election, Series B Bonds”), pursuant to the 2012 Authorization.  See “THE BONDS – Authority 

for Issuance.  On June 28, 2017, the District issued an aggregate principal amount of $4,600,000 of its 

General Obligation Bonds, 2012 Election, Series C (the “2012 Election, Series C Bonds”), pursuant to the 

2012 Authorization.   

On June 11, 2019, the District issued an aggregate principal amount of $12,000,000 of its General 

Obligation Bonds, 2018 Election, Series A (the “2018 Election, Series A Bonds”), pursuant to the 2018 

Authorization.   

On September 30, 2020, the District issued (i) an aggregate principal amount of $20,200,000 of 

its General Obligation Bonds, 2018 Election, Series B (the “2018 Election, Series B Bonds”), pursuant to 

the 2018 Authorization, and (ii) an aggregate principal amount of $6,795,000 of its 2020 General 

Obligation Refunding Bonds (Federally Taxable) (the “2020 Refunding Bonds”), proceeds of which were 

used to refund certain maturities of the 2012 Election, Series A Bonds and 2012 Election, Series B Bonds. 

The Bonds are the third series of bonds issued under the 2018 Authorization and following the 

issuance thereof, no further bonds may be issued under the 2018 Authorization.*  

The table on the following page presents the annual debt service requirements on all of the 

District’s outstanding general obligation bonded debt, including the Bonds, assuming no optional 

redemptions of such bonds. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

  

                                                      
*  Preliminary, subject to change. 



 

74 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

AGGREGATE ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE FOR GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT(1) 

Hueneme Elementary School District 

Year Ending 

(August 1) 

1997 Election 

   Series A
(2) 

1997 Election 

   Series B
(3) 

2000 Election 

   Series B
(4) 

2004 Election 

Series B 

2011 

Refunding 

2012 Election 

   Series A
 

2014 

Refunding 

2012 Election 

   Series B
 

2012 Election 

Series C 

2017 

Refunding 

2018 Election 

Series A 

2018 Election 

Series B 

2020 

Refunding 

2018 Election 

Series C 

Total Annual 

Debt Service 

                

2021 $185,000 $225,000 $305,000 -- $276,825 $45,800 $728,850 $408,550 $448,200 $444,800 $1,445,900 $585,215 $269,712   

2022 190,000 225,000 310,000 -- 282,825 54,200 762,113 423,000 461,000 468,200 514,300 699,925 250,592   

2023 190,000 230,000 315,000 -- 285,625 57,200 793,750 444,800 477,800 485,200 461,800 699,925 250,107   

2024 -- 235,000 320,000 -- 292,500 -- 823,763 470,400 488,400 501,000 476,550 699,925 304,511   

2025 -- -- 330,000 -- 299,250 -- 857,150 489,600 508,000 525,600 495,300 699,925 313,255   

2026 -- -- 335,000 -- -- -- 893,750 512,600 521,200 543,600 512,800 699,925 321,680   

2027 -- -- 340,000 -- -- -- 928,400 539,200 538,200 565,200 529,050 699,925 319,532   

2028 -- -- -- -- -- -- 966,100 559,200 558,800 585,200 544,050 699,925 327,136   

2029 -- -- -- -- -- -- 1,006,688 587,800 332,800 613,600 562,800 699,925 329,133   

2030 -- -- -- $1,700,000 -- -- -- 609,600 -- -- 580,050 699,925 335,864   

2031 -- -- -- 1,755,000 -- -- -- 639,800 -- -- 598,650 699,925 337,224   

2032 -- -- -- 1,830,000 -- -- -- 663,450 -- -- 621,050 699,925 347,078   

2033 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 690,900 -- -- 637,050 1,479,925 346,536   

2034 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 717,000 -- -- 661,850 1,608,725 355,862   

2035 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 746,750 -- -- 680,050 1,666,125 364,792   

2036 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 701,850 1,719,725 1,078,327   

2037 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 727,050 1,774,525 1,107,861   

2038 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 750,450 1,830,325 1,140,943   

2039 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 772,050 1,891,925 1,176,362   

2040 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 796,850 1,953,925 --   

2041 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 826,450 2,016,125 --   

2042 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 849,550 2,083,325 --   

2043 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 881,300 2,145,125 --   

2044 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 906,400 2,221,000 --   

2045                

--                 --                 --                --                --             --                --              --                --                --                --    3,228,750               -- 

 

 

                

   Totals(5) $565,000 $915,000 $2,255,000 $5,285,000 $1,437,025 $157,200 $7,760,563 $8,502,650 $4,334,400 $4,732,400 $16,533,200 $33,903,915 $9,276,506 
 

 

    
(1) Figures rounded to the dollar. 
(2) Final maturity is June 1, 2023. 
(3) Final maturity is May 1, 2024. 
(4) Final maturity is June 1, 2027. 
(5) Figures may not sum to totals due to rounding. 

 

 



 

75 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

TAX MATTERS 

The following discussion of federal income tax matters written to support the promotion and 

marketing of the Bonds was not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, by a taxpayer for the 

purpose of avoiding federal tax penalties that may be imposed.  Each taxpayer should seek advice based 

on the taxpayer’s particular circumstances from an independent tax advisor. 

Tax Exemption.  In the opinion of Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo, A Professional 

Law Corporation, Irvine, California, Bond Counsel, subject, however, to certain qualifications described 

herein, under existing laws, regulations, rulings and court decisions and assuming, among other matters, 

the accuracy of certain representations and compliance with certain covenants, interest the Bonds is 

excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under the Code.  In the opinion of Bond 

Counsel, such interest is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum 

tax. 

The opinions of Bond Counsel set forth in the preceding paragraph are subject to the condition 

that the District complies with all requirements of the Code that must be satisfied subsequent to the 

issuance of the Bonds in order that such interest be, or continue to be, excluded from gross income for 

federal income tax purposes.  The District has covenanted in the Resolution to comply with each such 

requirement.  Failure to comply with certain of such requirements may cause the inclusion of such interest 

in gross income for federal income tax purposes to be retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds.  

The Resolution and other related documents refer to certain requirements, covenants and procedures 

which may be changed and certain actions that may be taken, upon the advice or with an opinion of 

nationally recognized bond counsel.  No opinion is expressed by Bond Counsel as to the effect on any 

Bond or the interest thereon if any such change is made or action is taken upon the advice or approval of 

counsel other than Bond Counsel.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding other tax consequences 

arising with respect to the Bonds. 

In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Bonds is exempt from State personal 

income taxation. 

Owners of the Bonds should also be aware that the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or 

receipt of interest on, the Bonds may have federal or State tax consequences other than as described 

above.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any federal or State tax consequences arising with 

respect to the Bonds other than as expressly described above. 

The form of the proposed opinion of Bond Counsel relating to the Bonds is attached to this 

Official Statement in “APPENDIX B –FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL.” 

Bond Counsel’s engagement with respect to the Bonds ends with the issuance of the Bonds, and, 

unless separately engaged, Bond Counsel is not obligated to defend the District or the Beneficial Owners 

regarding the tax-exempt status of the Bonds in the event of an audit examination by the Internal Revenue 

Service.  Under current procedures, parties other than the District and their respective appointed counsel, 

including the Beneficial Owners, would have little, if any, right to participate in the audit examination 

process.  Moreover, because achieving judicial review in connection with an audit examination of tax-

exempt bonds is difficult, obtaining an independent review of Internal Revenue Service positions with 

which the District legitimately disagrees may not be practicable.  Any action of the Internal Revenue 

Service, including but not limited to selection of the Bonds for audit, or the course or result of such audit, 

or an audit of Bonds presenting similar tax issues may affect the market price for, or the marketability of, 

the Bonds, and may cause the District or the Beneficial Owners to incur significant expense. 



 

76 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Original Issue Discount; Premium Bonds.  To the extent the issue price of any maturity of the 

Bonds is less than the amount to be paid at maturity of such Bonds (excluding amounts stated to be 

interest and payable at least annually over the term of such Bonds), the difference constitutes “original 

issue discount,” the accrual of which, to the extent properly allocable to each Owner thereof, is treated as 

interest on the Bonds which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and State 

personal income taxes.  For this purpose, the issue price of a particular maturity of the Bonds is the first 

price at which a substantial amount of such maturity of the Bonds is sold to the public (excluding bond 

houses, brokers, or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement 

agents or wholesalers).  The original issue discount with respect to any maturity of the Bonds accrues 

daily over the term to maturity of such Bonds on the basis of a constant interest rate compounded semi-

annually (with straight-line interpolations between compounding dates).  The accruing original issue 

discount is added to the adjusted basis of such Bonds to determine taxable gain or loss upon disposition 

(including sale, redemption, or payment on maturity) of such Bonds.  Owners of the Bonds should consult 

their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of ownership of the Bonds with original issue 

discount, including the treatment of purchasers who do not purchase such Bonds in the original offering 

to the public at the first price at which a substantial amount of such Bonds is sold to the public. 

The Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherwise, for an amount greater than their 

principal amount payable at maturity (or, in some cases, at their earlier call date) (“Premium Bonds”) will 

be treated as having amortizable bond premium.  No deduction is allowable for the amortizable bond 

premium in the case of bonds, like the Premium Bonds, the interest on which is excluded from gross 

income for federal income tax purposes.  However, a purchaser’s basis in a Premium Bond, and under 

Treasury Regulations the amount of tax-exempt interest received, will be reduced by the amount of 

amortizable bond premium properly allocable to such purchaser.  Owners of Premium Bonds should 

consult their own tax advisors with respect to the proper treatment of amortizable bond premium in their 

particular circumstances. 

Impact of Legislative Proposals, Clarifications of the Code and Court Decisions on Tax 

Exemption.  Future legislative proposals, if enacted into law, clarification of the Code or court decisions 

may cause interest on the Bonds to be subject, directly or indirectly, to federal income taxation or to be 

subject to or exempted from state income taxation, or otherwise prevent Owners of the Bonds from 

realizing the full current benefit of the tax status of such interest. 

The introduction or enactment of any such or future legislative proposals, clarification of the 

Code or court decisions may also affect the market price for, liquidity of, or marketability of, the Bonds.  

Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding any pending or 

proposed federal or state tax legislation, regulations or litigation. 

As discussed herein, interest on the Bonds could become includable in gross income for purposes 

of federal income taxation retroactive to the date the Bonds were issued as a result of future acts or 

omissions of the District in violation of its covenants in the Series B Resolution.  Should such an event of 

taxability occur, the Bonds are not subject to special redemption or acceleration and will remain 

outstanding until maturity or until redeemed under one of the other redemption provisions contained in 

the Series B Resolution. 

Backup Withholding.  Interest paid with respect to tax-exempt obligations such as the Bonds is 

subject to information reporting to the Internal Revenue Service in a manner similar to interest paid on 

taxable obligations.  In addition, interest with respect to the Bonds may be subject to backup withholding 

if such interest is paid to a registered owner that (a) fails to provide certain identifying information (such 

as the registered owner’s taxpayer identification number) in the manner required by the Internal Revenue 

Service or (b) has been identified by the Internal Revenue Service as being subject to backup withholding. 



 

77 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

LEGAL MATTERS 

Continuing Disclosure 

The District has covenanted for the benefit of holders and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds to 

provide certain financial information and operating data relating to the District (the “Annual Report”) by 

April 1 following the end of the District’s fiscal year (the District’s fiscal year ends on June 30), 

commencing with the report for the 2022-23 fiscal year (which is due not later than April 1, 2024), and to 

provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated events.  The Annual Report and the notices of 

events will be filed in accordance with the requirements of S.E.C. Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) (the “Rule”).  The 

specific nature of the information to be made available and to be contained in the notices of enumerated 

events is described in the form of Continuing Disclosure Certificate attached hereto as Appendix C.  

These covenants have been made in order to assist the Underwriter in complying with the Rule.   

[To be updated.]  Within the past five years, the District failed to timely file a notice of a listed 

event (change of rating related to the downgraded rating of a bond insurer), as required by its continuing 

disclosure undertaking with respect to its outstanding 1997 Election, Bonds.  The District has retained 

Isom Advisors, a Division of Urban Futures, Inc., as the District’s dissemination agent (“Dissemination 

Agent”) to assist the District with compliance with its continuing disclosure obligations, including with 

respect to the Bonds.  The Dissemination Agent has assisted the District in filing certain information with 

respect to its prior obligations under the Rule and continues to work with the District in establishing and 

maintaining the necessary safeguards to assist in the timely filing of required information going forward.  

Legality for Investment in California 

Under provisions of the California Financial Code, the Bonds are legal investments for 

commercial banks in California to the extent that the Bonds, in the informed opinion of the bank, are 

prudent for the investment of funds of depositors, and under provisions of the California Government 

Code, are eligible for security for deposits of public moneys in the State.   

Bank Qualified 

The District will designate the Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt obligations,” thereby allowing 

certain financial institutions that are holders of such qualified tax-exempt obligations to deduct a portion 

of such institution’s interest expense allocable to such qualified tax-exempt obligations, all as determined 

in accordance with Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. 

Absence of Material Litigation 

[No litigation is pending or threatened concerning the validity of the Bonds, and a certificate to 

that effect will be furnished to the Underwriter at the time of the original delivery of the Bonds.  The 

District is not aware of any litigation pending or threatened questioning the political existence of the 

District or contesting the levy or collection of ad valorem taxes to pay the principal of and interest on the 

Bonds, or the ability of the District to collect other revenues or contesting the District’s ability to issue 

and retire the Bonds. 

The District is occasionally subject to lawsuits and claims in the ordinary course of its operations.  

In the opinion of the District, the aggregate amount of the uninsured liabilities of the District under these 

lawsuits and claims will not materially affect the finances of the District.  ] 



 

78 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Legal Opinion 

The validity of the Bonds and certain other legal matters are subject to the approving opinion of 

Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo, a Professional Law Corporation, Irvine, California, as Bond 

Counsel.  A copy of the proposed form of such legal opinion is attached to this Official Statement as 

Appendix B. 

Financial Statements 

The financial statements with supplemental information for the year ended June 30, 2018, the 

independent auditor’s report of the District, and the related statements of activities and of cash flows for 

the year then ended, and the report dated December 2, 2022, of Nigro & Nigro, PC (the “Auditor”), are 

included in this Official Statement as Appendix A.  In connection with the inclusion of the financial 

statements and the reports of the Auditor thereon in Appendix A to this Official Statement, the District 

did not request the Auditor to, and the Auditor has not undertaken to, update its report or to take any 

action intended or likely to elicit information concerning the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the 

statements made in this Official Statement, and no opinion is expressed by the Auditor with respect to any 

event subsequent to the date of its reports.   

RATING 

S&P Global Ratings, a business unit of Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC (“S&P”), has 

assigned a rating of “___” to the Bonds.   

Such rating reflects only the views of the rating organization and any desired explanation of the 

significance of such rating should be obtained from the rating agency furnishing the same, at the 

following address:  Standard & Poor’s, 55 Water Street, New York, New York 10041.  Generally, a rating 

agency bases its ratings on the information and materials furnished to it and on investigations, studies and 

assumptions of its own.  There is no assurance such rating will continue for any given period of time or 

that any such rating will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by the rating agency, if in the 

judgment of such rating agency, circumstances so warrant.  Any such downward revision or withdrawal 

of such rating may have an adverse effect on the market price for the Bonds. 

The District has covenanted in a Continuing Disclosure Certificate to file notices of any ratings 

changes on the Bonds.  See the caption “LEGAL MATTERS – Continuing Disclosure” above and 

“APPENDIX C – FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE.”  Notwithstanding such 

covenant, information relating to ratings changes on the Bonds may be publicly available from S&P prior 

to such information being provided to the District and prior to the date the District is obligated to file a 

notice of rating change pursuant to the Rule.  Purchasers of the Bonds are directed to S&P, its website and 

official media outlets for the most current ratings changes with respect to the Bonds after the initial 

issuance thereof. 

UNDERWRITING 

The Bonds are being purchased by Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated (the 

“Underwriter”).  The Underwriter has agreed to purchase the Bonds at a price of $____________, which 

is equal to the principal amount of the Bonds of $____________, [plus original issue premium/less 

original issue discount] of $____________, less the Underwriter’s discount of $____________ and less 

an amount of $____________ for certain costs of issuance.  The Bond Purchase Agreement for the Bonds 

provides that the Underwriter will purchase all of the Bonds if any are purchased, the obligation to make 



 

79 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

such purchase being subject to certain terms and conditions set forth in said agreement, the approval of 

certain legal matters by counsel and certain other conditions.   

The Underwriter may offer and sell Bonds to certain dealers and others at prices lower than the 

offering prices stated on the inside cover.  The offering prices may be changed from time to time by the 

Underwriter.  

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

Quotations from and summaries and explanations of the Bonds, the Resolution providing for 

issuance of the Bonds, and the constitutional provisions, statutes and other documents referenced herein, 

do not purport to be complete, and reference is made to said documents, constitutional provisions and 

statutes for full and complete statements of their provisions. 

Some of the data contained herein has been taken or constructed from the District records.  

Appropriate District officials, acting in their official capacities, have reviewed this Official Statement and 

have determined that, as of the date hereof, the information contained herein is, to the best of their 

knowledge and belief, true and correct in all material respects and does not contain an untrue statement of 

a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements made herein, in 

light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.  This Official Statement has been 

approved by the District’s Board of Trustees. 

 



 

S-1 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Any statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly 

so stated, are intended only as such and not as representations of fact.  This Official Statement is not to be 

construed as a contract or agreement between the District and the purchasers or Owners, beneficial or 

otherwise, of any of the Bonds. 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By    

Christine Walker, Ed.D. 

Superintendent 

 

 



 

A-1 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

APPENDIX A 

FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE DISTRICT 
 



 

B-1 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

APPENDIX B 

FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

Upon delivery of the Bonds, Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo, A Professional Law 

Corporation, Irvine, California, Bond Counsel to the Hueneme Elementary School District, proposes to 

render their final approving opinion with respect to the Bonds in substantially the following form:  

 

[Dated Date] 

 

 

Board of Education of the 

Hueneme Elementary School District 

205 North Ventura Road 

Port Hueneme, CA 93041-3065 

 

 Re:  $_______________ Hueneme Elementary School District General Obligation Bonds, 

2018 Election, Series C (Bank Qualified) 

Final Opinion  
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We have acted as Bond Counsel for the Hueneme Elementary School District (“District”) in 

connection with the proceedings for the issuance and sale by the District of $______________ principal 

amount of Hueneme Elementary School District General Obligation Bonds, 2018 Election, Series C 

(Bank Qualified) (“Bonds”).  The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Resolution of the Board of 

Education of the District, adopted on March 27, 2023 (Resolution No. ______________) (“Bond 

Resolution”) which Bond Resolution was adopted in accordance with the provisions of the California 

Constitution, the statutory authority set forth in Title 5, Division 2, Part 1, Chapter 3, Article 4.5 of the 

State of California Government Code, commencing with Section 53506 and, as applicable, the statutory 

authority set forth in California Education Code Sections 15264, 15266(b), and the provisions of Title 1, 

Division 1, Part 10, Chapters 1 and 2 of the California Education Code, commencing with Section 15100. 

 As Bond Counsel, we have examined copies certified to us as being true and complete copies of 

the proceedings in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.  In this connection, we have also examined 

such certificates of public officials and officers of the District, the County of Ventura (“County”) and the 

purchaser of the Bonds, including certificates as to factual matters, including, but not limited to the Tax 

Certificate, as we have deemed necessary to render this opinion. 

Attention is called to the fact that we have not been requested to examine, and have not 

examined, any documents or information relating to the District or the County, other than the record of 

proceedings hereinabove referred to, and no opinion is expressed as to any financial or other information, 

or the adequacy thereof, which has been, or may be supplied to any purchaser of the Bonds. 

We have not been engaged or undertaken to review the accuracy, completeness or sufficiency of 

the Official Statement or other offering material relating to the Bonds (except to the extent, if any, stated 

in the Official Statement) and we express no opinion relating thereto (excepting only matters set forth as 

our opinion in the Official Statement). 



 

B-2 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

 The opinions expressed herein are based on an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and 

court decisions and cover certain matters not directly addressed by such authorities.  Such opinions may 

be affected by actions taken or omitted or events occurring after the date hereof.  We have not undertaken 

to determine, or to inform any person, whether any such actions are taken or omitted or events do occur or 

any other matters come to our attention after the date hereof.  Accordingly, this opinion speaks only as of 

its date and is not intended to, and may not, be relied upon in connection with any such actions, events or 

matters.  Our engagement with respect to the Bonds has concluded with their execution and delivery, and 

we disclaim any obligation to update this letter.  As to questions of fact material to our opinions, we have 

relied upon the documents and matters referred to above, and we have not undertaken by independent 

investigation to verify the authenticity of signatures or the accuracy of the factual matters represented, 

warranted or certified therein.  Furthermore, we have assumed compliance with all covenants contained in 

the Bond Resolution, the Tax Certificate and in certain other documents, including, without limitation, 

covenants compliance with which is necessary to assure that future actions or events will not cause the 

interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the 

date of original issuance of the Bonds. 

 The Bond Resolution and other related documents refer to certain requirements and procedures 

which may be changed and certain actions which may be taken, in circumstances and subject to terms and 

conditions set forth in such documents, upon the advice or with an approving opinion of nationally 

recognized bond counsel.  No opinion is expressed herein as to the effect on any Bond or the interest 

thereon if any such change occurs or action is taken upon the advice or approval of counsel other than 

ourselves. 

 Based on the foregoing, we are of the following opinions: 

 1. The Bonds are valid and binding general obligations of the District. 

 2. All taxable property within the District is subject to ad valorem property taxation without 

limitation as to rate or amount (except as to certain classes of personal property which is 

taxable at limited rates) to pay the Bonds.  The County is required by law to include in its 

annual tax levy the principal and interest coming due on the Bonds to the extent 

necessary funds are not provided from other sources. 

3. Interest on the Bonds (including any original issue discount properly allocable to the 

owner thereof) is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under 

Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  Interest on the Bonds is 

not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax 

imposed on individuals.  Interest on the Bonds is taken into account in determining 

annual adjusted financial statement income for the purpose of computing the alternative 

minimum tax imposed on certain corporations for tax years beginning after December 31, 

2022.  In addition, interest on the Bonds is exempt from personal income taxation 

imposed by the State of California (“State”).  We express no opinion regarding other tax 

consequences related to the Bonds or to the accrual or receipt of the interest on the 

Bonds. 

We express no opinion(s) as to any matter other than as expressly set forth above.  We 

specifically express no opinion with regard to “Blue Sky” laws in connection with the Bonds. 

 It is understood that the rights of the holders of the Bonds and the enforceability thereof may be 

subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors’ 

rights and remedies, to the application of equitable principles heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent 



 

B-3 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

constitutionally applicable and that their enforcement may also be subject to exercise of judicial discretion 

in appropriate cases and to limitations on legal remedies against school districts in the State of California. 

Very truly yours, 

ATKINSON, ANDELSON, LOYA, RUUD & 

ROMO 

 



 

C-1 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

APPENDIX C 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the “Disclosure Certificate”) is executed and delivered by 

the Hueneme Elementary School District (the “District”) in connection with the issuance of $__________ 

of the District’s General Obligation Bonds, 2018 Election, Series C (Bank Qualified) (the “Bonds”).  The 

Bonds are being issued pursuant to a resolution of the District adopted on March 27, 2023 (the 

“Resolution”).  The District covenants and agrees as follows:   

SECTION 1.  Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate.  This Disclosure Certificate is being executed 

and delivered by the District for the benefit of the Holders and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds and in 

order to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with S.E.C. Rule 15c2-12(b)(5).  

SECTION 2.  Definitions.  In addition to the definitions set forth in the Resolution, which apply 

to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this Section, the 

following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:  

“Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the District pursuant to, and as 

described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.  

“Beneficial Owner” shall mean any person which (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote 

or consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons holding Bonds 

through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the owner of any Bonds for 

federal income tax purposes.  

“Dissemination Agent” shall mean initially Isom Advisors, a Division of Urban Futures, Inc., or 

any successor Dissemination Agent designated in writing by the District (which may be the District) and 

which has filed with the District a written acceptance of such designation.  

“Financial Obligation” means: (a) a debt obligation; (b) a derivative instrument entered into in 

connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation; 

or (c) guarantee of (a) or (b).  The term “Financial Obligation” does not include municipal securities as to 

which a final official statement has been provided to the Repository consistent with the Rule.  

“Holders” shall mean registered owners of the Bonds.  

“Listed Events” shall mean any of the events listed in Sections 5(a) and (b) of this Disclosure 

Certificate.  

“Participating Underwriter” shall mean Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated, or any of the 

original underwriters of the Bonds required to comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the 

Bonds.   

“Repository” shall mean the Electronic Municipal Market Access system of the Municipal 

Securities Rulemaking Board, which can be found at http://emma.msrb.org/, or any other repository of 

disclosure information that may be designated by the Securities and Exchange Commission as such for 

purposes of the Rule in the future.  

“Rule” shall mean Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission 

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time. 



 

C-2 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

“State” shall mean the State of California.   

SECTION 3.  Provision of Annual Reports. 

(a) The District shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, April 1 after the end of the 

District’s fiscal year (presently ending June 30), commencing with the report for the 2022-23 Fiscal Year, 

provide to the Repository an Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this 

Disclosure Certificate.  The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate 

documents comprising a package, and may cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of 

this Disclosure Certificate; provided that the audited financial statements of the District may be submitted 

separately from the balance of the Annual Report and later than the date required above for the filing of 

the Annual Report if they are not available by that date.  If the District’s fiscal year changes, it shall give 

notice of such change in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c).  

(b) Not later than 30 days (nor more than 60 days) prior to said date the Dissemination Agent 

shall give notice to the District that the Annual Report shall be required to be filed in accordance with the 

terms of this Disclosure Certificate.  Not later than 15 Business Days prior to said date, the District shall 

provide the Annual Report in a format suitable for reporting to the Repository to the Dissemination Agent 

(if other than the District).   If the District is unable to provide to the Repository an Annual Report by the 

date required in subsection (a), the District shall send, in a timely manner, a notice to the Repository in 

substantially the form attached as Exhibit A with a copy to the Dissemination Agent.  The Dissemination 

Agent shall not be required to file a Notice to Repository of Failure to File an Annual Report. 

(c) The Dissemination Agent shall file a report with the District stating it has filed the 

Annual Report in accordance with its obligations hereunder, stating the date it was provided. 

SECTION 4.  Content and Form of Annual Reports.   

(a) The District’s Annual Report shall contain or include by reference the following: 

(i) The audited financial statements of the District for the prior fiscal year, prepared 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated to apply to 

governmental entities from time to time by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  If 

the District’s audited financial statements are not available by the time the Annual Report is 

required to be filed pursuant to Section 3(a), the Annual Report shall contain unaudited financial 

statements in a format similar to the financial statements contained in the final Official Statement, 

and the audited financial statements shall be filed in the same manner as the Annual Report when 

they become available.  

(ii) The District’s approved annual budget for the then-current fiscal year. 

(iii) Financial information and operating data with respect to the District of the type 

included in the Official Statement in the following categories (to the extent not included in the 

District’s audited financial statements):  

(A) Assessed value of taxable property in the District as shown on the most recent 

equalized assessment roll; 

(B) If Ventura County no longer includes the tax levy for payment of the Bonds in its 

Teeter Plan, the property tax levies, collections, and delinquencies for the District 

for the most recently completed fiscal year. 



 

C-3 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

(C) Top 20 property owners in the District for the then-current fiscal year, as 

measured by secured assessed valuation, the amount of their respective taxable 

assessed value, and their percentage of total secured assessed value, if material.  

Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other documents, 

including official statements of debt issues of the District or related public entities, which have been 

submitted to the Repository or the Securities and Exchange Commission.  If the document included by 

reference is a final official statement, it must be available from the Municipal Securities Rulemaking 

Board.  The District shall clearly identify each such other document so included by reference. 

(b) The Annual Report shall be filed in an electronic format accompanied by identifying 

information prescribed by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

SECTION 5.  Reporting of Significant Events.  

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the District shall give, or cause to be given, 

notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds in a timely manner not 

in excess of 10 business days after the occurrence of the event:  

(i) principal and interest payment delinquencies. 

(ii) tender offers. 

(iii) defeasances. 

(iv) rating changes. 

(v) the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of adverse tax opinions or proposed 

or final determinations of taxability, or Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB). 

(vi) unscheduled draws on the debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties. 

(vii) unscheduled draws on credit enhancement reflecting financial difficulties. 

(viii) substitution of the credit or liquidity providers or their failure to perform. 

(ix) default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other 

similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the District, any of which reflect 

financial difficulties of the District.  

(x) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the District.  For the 

purposes of the event identified in this Section 5(a)(ix), the event is considered to occur when any 

of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the 

District in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or 

federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over 

substantially all of the assets or business of the District, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed 

by leaving the existing governmental body and officials or officers in possession but subject to 

the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order 

confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental 

authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the 

District. 



 

C-4 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

(b) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the District shall give, or cause to be 

given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if 

material: 

(i) non-payment related defaults. 

(ii) modifications to rights of Bondholders. 

(iii) optional, contingent or unscheduled bond calls. 

(iv) unless described under Section 5(a)(5) above, material notices or determinations 

with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status of the 

Bonds. 

(v) release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds. 

(vi) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the 

District or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the District, other than in the ordinary 

course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the 

termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms. 

(vii) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or paying agent with respect to 

the Bonds or the change of name of such a trustee or paying agent. 

(viii) Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the District, or agreement to covenants, 

events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a Financial Obligation of the 

District, any of which affect Bondowners. 

(c) Upon the occurrence of a Listed Event under Section 5(b) hereof, the District shall as 

soon as possible determine if such event would be material under applicable federal securities laws. 

(d) If the District determines that knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event under 

Section 5(b) hereof would be material under applicable federal securities laws, the District shall (i) file a 

notice of such occurrence with the Repository in a timely manner not in excess of 10 business days after 

the occurrence of the event or (ii) provide notice of such reportable event to the Dissemination Agent in 

format suitable for filing with the Repository in a timely manner not in excess of 10 business days after 

the occurrence of the event.  The Dissemination Agent shall have no duty to independently prepare or file 

any report of Listed Events.  The Dissemination Agent may conclusively rely on the District’s 

determination of materiality pursuant to Section 5(c).  

SECTION 6.  Termination of Reporting Obligation.  The District’s obligations under this 

Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all 

of the Bonds. If such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the District shall give 

notice of such termination in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(a) or Section 5(b), as 

applicable. 

SECTION 7.  Dissemination Agent.  The District may, from time to time, appoint or engage a 

Dissemination Agent (or substitute Dissemination Agent) to assist it in carrying out its obligations under 

this Disclosure Certificate, and may discharge any such Agent, with or without appointing a successor 

Dissemination Agent.  The Dissemination Agent may resign upon 15 days written notice to the District.  

Upon such resignation, the District shall act as its own Dissemination Agent until it appoints a successor.  



 

C-5 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

The Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in any manner for the content of any notice or report 

prepared by the District pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate and shall not be responsible to verify the 

accuracy, completeness or materiality of any continuing disclosure information provided by the District.  

The District shall compensate the Dissemination Agent for its fees and expenses hereunder as agreed by 

the parties.  Any entity succeeding to all or substantially all of the Dissemination Agent’s corporate trust 

business shall be the successor Dissemination Agent without the execution or filing of any paper or 

further act. 

SECTION 8.  Amendment; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure 

Certificate, the District may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this Disclosure 

Certificate may be waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied: 

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3(a), 4, 5(a) or 5(b), it 

may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal 

requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature or status of an obligated person with respect 

to the Bonds, or the type of business conducted; 

(b) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in the opinion of 

nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the 

original issuance of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as 

well as any change in circumstances; 

(c) The amendment or waiver does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, 

materially impair the interests of the Holders or Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; and 

(d) No duties of the Dissemination Agent hereunder shall be amended without its written 

consent thereto. 

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Certificate, the District shall 

describe such amendment in the next Annual Report, and shall include, as applicable, a narrative 

explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or in the case of a 

change of accounting principles, on the presentation) of financial information or operating data being 

presented by the District.  In addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be 

followed in preparing financial statements, (i) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as 

for a Listed Event under Section 5(b), and (ii) the Annual Report for the year in which the change is made 

should present a comparison (in narrative form and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) between the 

financial statements as prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the 

basis of the former accounting principles. 

SECTION 9.  Additional Information.  Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to 

prevent the District from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth 

in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other information in 

any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this 

Disclosure Certificate. If the District chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice 

of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure 

Certificate, the District shall have no obligation under this Certificate to update such information or 

include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. 

SECTION 10.  Default.  In the event of a failure of the District to comply with any provision of 

this Disclosure Certificate any Holder or Beneficial Owner of the Bonds may take such actions as may be 

necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the 



 

C-6 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

District to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate.  A default under this Disclosure 

Certificate shall not be deemed an event of default under either Resolution, and the sole remedy under this 

Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the District to comply with this Disclosure Certificate 

shall be an action to compel performance. 

SECTION 11.  Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of  Dissemination Agent.  The Dissemination 

Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Certificate.  The 

Dissemination Agent acts hereunder solely for the benefit of the District; this Disclosure Certificate shall 

confer no duties on the Dissemination Agent to the Participating Underwriters, the Holders and the 

Beneficial Owners.  The District agrees to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, 

directors, employees and agents, harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities which it may incur 

arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and 

expenses (including attorneys fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but excluding liabilities 

due to the Dissemination Agent’s negligence or willful misconduct.  The obligations of the District under 

this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent and payment of the Bonds.  

The Dissemination Agent shall have no liability for the failure to report any event or any financial 

information as to which the District has not provided an information report in format suitable for filing 

with the Repository.  The Dissemination Agent shall not be required to monitor or enforce the District’s 

duty to comply with its continuing disclosure requirements hereunder. 

SECTION 12.  Beneficiaries.  This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the 

District, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriters and Holders and Beneficial Owners 

from time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 

Dated:  May __, 2023 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By         



 

C-A-1 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

EXHIBIT A 

NOTICE TO REPOSITORY OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 

Name of District: HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT  

Name of Bond Issue: General Obligation Bonds, 2018 Election, Series C (Bank Qualified) 

Date of Issuance: May __, 2023 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the District has not provided an Annual Report with respect 

to the above-named Bonds as required by the Continuing Disclosure Certificate relating to the Bonds.  

The District anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed by _____________.   

Dated:_______________________ 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By   [form only; no signature required]  

 

 



 

D-1 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

APPENDIX D 

GENERAL ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION 
REGARDING THE DISTRICT 

The District encompasses portions of the cities of Port Hueneme and Oxnard, as well as 

unincorporated areas of the County.  The following economic data for Port Hueneme, Oxnard, and the 

County are presented for information purposes only, to describe the general economic health of the 

region.  However, the Bonds are not a debt of Port Hueneme, Oxnard, or the County.  

Introduction 

Ventura County.  Geographically, the County is situated on the southern California coast, 

approximately 60 miles northwest of Los Angeles, and is the twelfth most populous county in California.  

The County covers an area of approximately 1,843 square miles and ranks 26th in size among 

California’s 58 counties.  The County is bordered by the Pacific Ocean to the south and west, 

Santa Barbara County to the west, Kern County to the north, and Los Angeles County to the east.  The 

largest cities in the County are Ventura (the county seat), Oxnard, Thousand Oaks, and Simi Valley. 

The County’s economy is fairly diverse and centers around electronics, computer manufacturing, 

defense, oil and agriculture.  Most of the northern half of the County is part of the Los Padres National 

Forest.  Mountain ranges created fertile valleys and broad alluvial basins, primarily in the southern half of 

the County.  The high soil fertility and good drainage of the alluvial basins has helped the County become 

a leading agricultural producer. 

The County’s historic economic strength in agriculture, food processing and mineral production 

has been supplemented in the past decade by the increasing prominence of business services, small 

manufacturing businesses, the electronics industry, biotechnology, tourism and the military’s presence, as 

well as other diversified industries. 

City of Port Hueneme.  The City of Port Hueneme (“Port Hueneme”) is located in the south-

central portion of the County, on the Pacific Coast.  Port Hueneme’s active harbor is the only deep water 

port between Los Angeles and San Francisco.  The port is a major import/export center, is the site of the 

largest dockside refrigeration storage facility on the West Coast, and also serves as the headquarters for 

the U.S. Naval Construction Battalion Center, home of the “Pacific Seabees.”  

City of Oxnard.  The City of Oxnard (“Oxnard”) is located approximately 30 miles west of 

Los Angeles.  Oxnard was incorporated on June 30, 1903 and is a general law city and has a City 

Council/City Manager form of government.  The City Manager is appointed by the City Council.  The 

City Council is comprised of four councilmembers elected at large for four year overlapping terms, and 

the Mayor elected for a two year term.   



 

D-2 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Population 

The following table shows the historical population figures for the Cities, the County and the 

State for the last 10 years. 

POPULATION ESTIMATES 
2013 through 2022 

City of Port Hueneme, City of Oxnard, Ventura County and the State of California 

Year
(1)

 

City of 

Port Hueneme City of Oxnard Ventura County State of California 

2013 22,378 201,455 840,637 38,269,864 

2014 22,725 203,418 845,279 38,556,731 

2015 23,045 205,472 848,459 38,865,532 

2016 23,135 205,933 849,335 39,103,587 

2017 23,119 205,725 848,232 39,352,398 

2018 23,437 205,883 848,112 39,519,535 

2019 23,554 205,777 844,259 39,605,361 

2020
(2)

 22,196 201,649 843,843 39,538,223 

2021 22,188 200,480 840,093 39,303,157 

2022 21,599 200,050 833,652 39,185,605 

  
(1)  As of January 1. 
(2)  U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census, for April 1. 

Source:   California Department of Finance.   

Income 

The following table summarizes per capita personal income for the County, the State, and the 

United States for the years 2012 through 2021. 

PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME 

2012 through 2021 

Ventura County, the State of California and United States 

Year Ventura County State of California United States 

2012 $49,862 $48,121 $44,548 

2013 50,165 48,502 44,798 

2014 52,544 51,266 46,887 

2015 54,834 54,546 48,725 

2016 56,356 56,560 49,613 

2017 57,944 58,804 51,550 

2018 60,207 61,508 53,786 

2019 63,833 64,919 56,250 

2020 68,647 70,647 59,765 

2021 73,375 76,614 64,143 

  
Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis. 



 

D-3 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Employment 

The following table summarizes the labor force, employment and unemployment figures for the 

years 2017 through 2021 for the Cities, the County, the State of California and the United States. 

CIVILIAN LABOR FORCE, EMPLOYMENT AND UNEMPLOYMENT 
City of Port Hueneme, City of Oxnard, Ventura County and State of California 

2017 through 2021 

Year Area Labor Force Employment Unemployment 

Unemployment 

Rate (%) 

2017 City of Port Hueneme 10,500 10,000 400 4.0 

 City of Oxnard 100,800 95,100 5,700 5.7 

 Ventura County 423,700 404,500 19,200 4.5 

 State of California 19,185,400 18,258,100 927,300 4.8 

2018 City of Port Hueneme 10,100 9,700 400 3.8 

 City of Oxnard 100,800 95,900 4,900 4.9 

 Ventura County 423,000 406,800 16,300 3.9 

 State of California 19,289,500 18,468,100 821,400 4.3 

2019 City of Port Hueneme 10,000 9,700 400 3.6 

 City of Oxnard 100,600 96,000 4,700 4.6 

 Ventura County 422,100 406,600 15,500 3.7 

 State of California 19,409,400 18,612,600 796,800 4.1 

2020 City of Port Hueneme 10,200 9,000 1,200 11.7 

 City of Oxnard 97,600 88,200 9,400 9.6 

 Ventura County 409,400 373,300 36,100 8.8 

 State of California 18,931,100 16,996,700 1,934,500 10.2 

2021 City of Port Hueneme 10,000 9,200 800 8.2 

 City of Oxnard 97,000 89,800 7,300 7.5 

 Ventura County 404,900 380,000 24,900 6.2 

 State of California 18,923,200 17,541,900 1,381,200 7.3 

  
Source: U.S. Department of Labor – Bureau of Labor Statistics, California Employment Development Department.  March 2021 

Benchmark. 



 

D-4 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Industry 

The County is located in the Oxnard-Thousand Oaks-Ventura Metropolitan Statistical Area.  The 

distribution of employment is presented in the following table for the last five years.  These figures are 

multi county-wide statistics and may not necessarily accurately reflect employment trends in the County. 

INDUSTRY EMPLOYMENT & LABOR FORCE ANNUAL AVERAGES 
2017 through 2021 

Ventura County (Oxnard-Thousand Oaks-Ventura Metropolitan Statistical Area) 

 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Total Farm 23,800 24,300 24,700 25,000 23,400 

Mining, Logging and Construction 16,600 17,700 18,000 17,700 17,900 

Manufacturing 25,600 26,200 26,600 25,800 26,300 

Wholesale Trade 12,700 12,500 12,500 11,900 12,000 

Retail Trade 39,800 39,200 38,300 34,900 36,500 

Transportation, Warehousing and Utilities 6,100 6,300 6,300 6,100 6,600 

Information 5,300 5,400 5,200 4,000 3,900 

Financial Activities 16,900 16,400 15,900 15,700 15,500 

Professional and Business Services 42,200 42,900 44,400 42,600 43,500 

Education and Health Services 45,900 47,700 49,600 48,300 48,700 

Leisure and Hospitality 37,200 37,800 38,500 30,200 33,000 

Other Services 9,600 9,500 9,700 8,300 8,800 

Government   46,900   46,900   47,100   44,700   44,400 

Total All Industries 328,700 332,800 336,800 315,200 320,300 
  

Source: State of California, Employment Development Department, Labor Market Information Division, Annual Average Labor 

Force and Industry Employment, March 2021 Benchmark. 

Principal Employers 

The following tables list the largest employers in the Cities and the County. 

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 
City of Port Hueneme 

2021 

Employer Name 

Number of 

Employees 

United States Naval Base 10,800 

Hueneme Elementary School District
(1)

 703 

PAC Foundries 175 

Pacific Maritime Association 140 

City of Port Hueneme
 

119 
  
(1)  For updated information regarding the District’s employees, see “HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT – Labor 

Relations” in the front part of this Official Statement. 

Source:  City of Port Hueneme Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021.   



 

D-5 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 
City of Oxnard 

2021 

Employer Name 

Number of 

Employees 

Oxnard School District 3,870 

Reiter 2,447 

City of Oxnard 1,960 

Commonspirit Health 1,933 

The Procter & Gamble Company 1,898 

St. John’s Regional Medical Center 1,500 

HAAS Automation 1,390 

Oxnard Union High School 1,203 

Spatz Labortories 1,117 

Raypak 557 
  

Source:  County of Ventura Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021.   

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 
Ventura County 

2021 

Employer Name 

Number of 

Employees 

United States Naval Base 19,000 

County of Ventura  9,146 

Amgen, Inc. 5,400 

Bank of America 3,000 

Anthem, Inc. (previously Wellpoint, Inc.)
 

2,500 

Simi Valley Unified School District 2,500 

Conejo Valley Unified School District 2,100 

Community Memorial Hospital 2,000 

Ventura Community College District 1,777 

California Lutheran University 1,550 
  

Source:  County of Ventura Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021.   



 

D-6 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

 

Commercial Activity 

Summaries of annual taxable sales for the Cities and the County from 2017 through 2021 are 

shown in the following tables. 

TAXABLE SALES 
2017 through 2021 

City of Port Hueneme 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

Year Retail Permits 

Retail Stores 

Taxable 

Transactions Total Permits 

Total Outlets 

Taxable 

Transactions 

2017 254 $95,419 381 $102,898 

2018 262 110,067 399 118,660 

2019 254 136,849 398 148,834 

2020 274 155,581 434 173,616 

2021 272 170,350 431 186,155 
________________________ 

Source: “Taxable Sales in California,” California Department of Tax and Fee Administration. 

TAXABLE SALES 
2017 through 2021 

City of Oxnard 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

Year Retail Permits 

Retail Stores 

Taxable 

Transactions Total Permits 

Total Outlets 

Taxable 

Transactions 

2017 2,653 $2,200,854 4,287 $2,781,177 

2018 2,688 2,272,387 4,463 2,889,596 

2019 2,739 2,297,559 4,615 2,939,107 

2020 2,920 2,138,291 4,920 2,756,482 

2021 2,648 2,537,320 4,555 3,283,206 
________________________ 

Source: “Taxable Sales in California,” California Department of Tax and Fee Administration. 

TAXABLE SALES 
2017 through 2021 
Ventura County 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

Year Retail Permits 

Retail Stores 

Taxable 

Transactions Total Permits 

Total Outlets 

Taxable 

Transactions 

2017 15,751 $10,201,388 26,392 $14,000,695 

2018 15,632 10,486,735 26,954 14,323,432 

2019 15,822 10,696,199 27,755 14,800,284 

2020 16,502 10,628,642 29,143 14,538,294 

2021 14,810 12,602,347 26,596 17,323,045 
________________________ 

Source: “Taxable Sales in California,” California Department of Tax and Fee Administration. 



 

D-7 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

Construction Activity 

The annual building permit valuations and number of permits for new dwelling units issued from 

2017 through 2021 for the County and the Cities are shown in the following tables. 

BUILDING PERMIT VALUATIONS 
2017 through 2021 

City of Port Hueneme 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

 
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Valuation ($000’s)      

 Residential $3,437 $4,289 $4,970 $9,733 $1,824 

 Non-Residential 2,796 2,524 1,057   4,002 1,048 

 Total $6,233 $6,813 $6,027 $13,735 $2,872 

      

Units      

 Single Family 0 0 0 0 0 

 Multi-Family  0 0 0 0 0 

 Total 0 0 0 0 0 
________________________ 

Note: Columns may not sum to totals due to rounding. 

Source: Construction Industry Research Board. 

BUILDING PERMIT VALUATIONS 
2017 through 2021 

City of Oxnard 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

 
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Valuation ($000’s)      

 Residential $102,414 $38,516 $47,859 $86,970 $81,959 

 Non-Residential   40,580 41,241 48,539 144,326   72,509 

 Total $142,994 $79,757 $96,398 $231,296 $154,468 

      

Units      

 Single Family 198 40 65 27 59 

 Multi-Family  482 56   71 291 281 

 Total 680 96 136 318 340 
________________________ 

Note: Columns may not sum to totals due to rounding. 

Source: Construction Industry Research Board. 



 

D-8 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

BUILDING PERMIT VALUATIONS 
2017 through 2021 
County of Ventura 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Valuation ($000’s)      

 Residential $698,787 $648,051 $426,905 $306,051 $415,873 

 Non-Residential 226,873    357,979 205,912 253,801 210,423 

 Total $925,660 $1,006,030 $632,817 $559,852 $626,296 

      

Units      

 Single Family 851 637 731 425 689 

 Multi-Family  1,638    612    697 545 856 

 Total 2,489 1,249 1,428 970 1,545 
________________________ 

Note: Columns may not sum to totals due to rounding. 

Source: Construction Industry Research Board. 

Transportation 

Access to job opportunities in Los Angeles County and Santa Barbara County has been one of the 

major factors in the County’s employment and population growth.  Several major freeways and highways 

provide access between the County and all parts of Southern California.  U.S. Highway 101 extends 

through the southwestern portion of the County and links the major cities in the County to the 

Los Angeles metropolitan area and to Santa Barbara County.  Running easterly from U.S. 101, State 

Highway 126 passes through Santa Paula and Fillmore to connect with Interstate Highway 5 in 

Los Angeles County.  State Highway 118 extends between U.S. 101 and Interstate Highway 5 and 

provides access between Simi Valley and the San Fernando Valley.  The Pacific Coast Highway (State 

Highway 1) follows the coastline from Oxnard south towards Los Angeles. 

Currently, the County has two intercity bus lines which provide a transit alternative to the auto.  

South Coast Area Transit (“SCAT”), a regional public agency funded by participating cities and the 

County, provides service from Ventura to and from Oxnard, Ojai and Port Hueneme.  Another publicly-

funded service, Vista, operates along Highways 101, 118 and 126, with stops at major cities in between.  

The line is designed to tie into Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority bus service at 

Thousand Oaks which then transports passengers to Los Angeles County destinations. 

Regional bus service is provided by SCAT in participating cities including Oxnard, Ventura, Ojai 

and Port Hueneme.  Local bus service is provided by the cities of Thousand Oaks, Moorpark, Ojai, 

Simi Valley and Camarillo.  Additionally, private bus service is provided from Ventura to Los Angeles 

International Airport with stops at major cities in between. 

Passenger service is also provided by (i) AMTRAK, (ii) Metrolink, a commuter rail service 

linking portions of the County with downtown Los Angeles, and (iii) Greyhound Lines, which provides 

bus services.  Union Pacific Railroad handles most of the freight train movement in the County.  The 

Ventura County Railway Company is a local railroad, which provides services between the Union Pacific 

Line and the Port of Hueneme and intermediate industrial parks. 

The County seat in the City of Ventura is within a 90-minute drive of Santa Barbara Airport, the 

Hollywood/Burbank Airport and the Los Angeles International Airport (“LAX”). The County itself has 

three smaller airports.  The County operates two of these: Oxnard Airport, which provides air taxi service 



 

D-9 
4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

to LAX and other limited commuter lines and serves as a general aviation field, and Camarillo Airport 

which serves as a general aviation field.  The Santa Paula Airport is a privately-owned facility.  The Port 

of Hueneme (the “Port”) is designated as an official “port of entry” under the U.S. Department of 

Customs, a Foreign Trade Zone under the U.S. Department of Defense and Transportation and is the only 

commercial deep-draft harbor between Los Angeles and San Francisco.  The Port is owned and operated 

by the Oxnard Harbor District, an independent special district which was formed for the purpose of 

developing and operating the commercial terminal facilities at the Port.  Port operations are self-

sustaining and are supported by revenues derived from operations and tenant activities. 

The Port has five 600-foot deep-draft berths and a 36-foot entrance channel depth.  Expanded 

joint use with the Navy for Wharf 3 and a direct corridor connecting the Port and Highway 101 increase 

future capabilities and alleviate truck traffic on city streets.  The Port has good rail access and covered 

storage facilities adjacent to the berths.  A 137,000 square-foot dockside refrigerated transit shed has 

attracted several substantial customers, including Sunkist Growers, Del Monte and Pacific Fruit under 

contract with Cool Carriers.  More than 300,000 automobiles per year are processed through the Port 

annually.  More than $4 billion worth of cargo is moved through the Port annually.  Automobiles, 

bananas and fresh fruit continue to be the top commodities handled by the Port. 

Education 

Public school education is available through eleven elementary, two high school and seven 

unified school districts.  Enrollment figures for public schools reported for the 2021-22 school year were 

approximately 128,227 students.
(1)

  Additionally, there are approximately 90 private schools in the 

County. 

The Ventura County Community College District has three campuses, one in each of the cities of 

Oxnard, Ventura and Moorpark.  The latest enrollment count is approximately 30,000 (unduplicated) 

students.
(2) 

California Lutheran University, a privately-endowed, four year liberal arts college, is located in 

Thousand Oaks.  The latest enrollment was 2,513 full-time undergraduate students and 1,102 graduate 

students representing 40 states and 59 foreign countries.
(3)

  The University of California, Santa Barbara, 

Cal State University Northridge and Pepperdine University also offer courses in the County with some 

graduate programs.   

California State University Channel Islands (“CSUCI”) is the newest California State University 

campus; it opened for students in 2005.  Located on the 670-acre site of the former Camarillo State 

Hospital grounds, CSUCI expects to reach full capacity by 2025, with a student enrollment of 15,000 

students.  In addition to eight traditional major fields, CSUCI offers a teaching credential program, a 

California Mini-Corps program, and a Baccalaureate in Nursing program.   

  
(1) Source:  California Department of Education. 
(2) Source:  California Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office. 
(3) Source:  California Lutheran University. 

 

 



 

E-1 

4873-5248-3411v3/200346-0007 

APPENDIX E 

VENTURA COUNTY STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY 
AND REPORT OF INVESTMENTS 

The following information concerning the Ventura County Investment Pool (the “Investment 

Pool”) has been provided by the Treasurer and has not been confirmed or verified by the District or the 

Underwriter.  No representation is made by the District or Underwriter as to the accuracy or adequacy of 

such information, or as to the absence of material adverse changes in such information subsequent to the 

date hereof, or that any information contained or incorporated therein by reference is correct as of any 

time subsequent to its date.   

 







Item 9.1 

 HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING INITIAL (SUNSHINE) 

BARGAINING PROPOSAL FOR THE 2022-23 SUCCESSOR 

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT PRESENTED 

BY THE CALIFORNIA SCHOOL EMPLOYEES 

ASSOCIATION (CSEA) AND ITS HUENEME CHAPTER 

#273 TO THE HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

DISTRICT (DISTRICT) 

 

BOARD MEETING DATE: March 27, 2023 

 

FROM: Dr. Carlos Dominguez, Deputy Superintendent 

 Dr. Christine Walker, Superintendent     

 

 STAFF COMMENT 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 3547(a), the Governing Board of the Hueneme 

Elementary School District will hold this public hearing to receive input from the community 

regarding the 2022-23 Successor Collective Bargaining Initial (Sunshine) Proposal submitted 

by the California School Employees Association (CSEA) and its Hueneme Chapter #273 to 

the Hueneme Elementary School District. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

Government Code 3547(a) requires School Districts and labor unions to present their initial 

proposal to the public for community comment prior to initiating negotiations. This is 

commonly referred to as “sunshining” each party’s initial proposal. 

 

Pursuant to Government Code 3547, the Governing Board must conduct a public hearing to 

receive input from the community. A public hearing is scheduled at the March 27, 2023, 

meeting of the Governing Board. Following completion of the public hearing, the Governing 

Board may adjourn to closed session to discuss any public testimony regarding the District’s 

proposal. 

 

Attached is the written proposal from the California School Employees Association (CSEA) 

and its Hueneme Chapter #273 to the Hueneme Elementary School District. 

 



INITIAL PROPOSAL – CALIFORNIA SCHOOL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION AND 
ITS HUENEME CHAPTER 273 

The California School Employees Association (CSEA) and its Hueneme Chapter 273 with this 
initial proposal notifies the Hueneme Elementary School District of CSEA’s intent to modify or 
amend the contract and negotiate a number of articles within the collective bargaining 
agreement. 

ARTICLE 4 – EMPLOYEE RIGHTS 

CSEA proposes to make changes to the Section 2: Employee Safety Conditions -- 
Employment which may include additional or increased safety protocols for classified 
staff. 

ARTICLE 7 -- ORGANIZATIONAL RIGHTS 

CSEA proposes to make changes to Section 1: CSEA Rights which may include 
adjustments to the amount and utility of Association release time. 

ARTICLE 10 – HOURS AND OVERTIME 

CSEA proposes to make changes to Section 5: Rest Periods which may include additional 
restrictions on how classified employees’ schedules can be arranged. 

ARTICLE 11 -- PAY AND ALLOWANCES 

CSEA proposes to negotiate a fair salary increase for all classified employees. 

ARTICLE 12 -- PROFESSIONAL GROWTH AWARD PROGRAM 

CSEA proposes to make changes to the existing Section 6: Guidelines for Obtaining 
Increment Credit which may include expanding the eligibility for increment credits. 

ARTICLE 13 – EMPLOYEE EXPENSES 

CSEA proposes to change Section 2: Uniforms Allowance which may include additional 
specifications regarding uniforms for classified staff. 

ARTICLE 15 -- HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS 

CSEA proposes to make changes to Section 2: District Contribution which may include 
an increase to the District’s contribution for health and welfare benefits. 

ARTICLE 18 -- LEAVES 

CSEA proposes to make changes to Section 4: Personal Necessity Leave which may 
include increased flexibility in the use of Personal Necessity Leave. 

ARTICLE 21 – NEGOTIATIONS 

CSEA proposes to change Section 1: Negotiations to update the included dates for 
reopener negotiations. 



ARTICLE 24 -- DURATION 

CSEA proposes to update the dates to reflect the current contract cycle. 

APPENDIX F -- SALARY SCHEDULE 

CSEA proposes to update the included salary schedule to reflect salary increases 
provided since the previous successor negotiation cycle. 

APPENDIX G -- CLASSIFIED CALENDAR 

CSEA proposes to update the included calendar to reflect the correct dates in the 
upcoming academic year. 

 

CSEA reserves the right to open additional articles during the course of these successor 
negotiations, subject to the appropriate notice requirements under the law and CSEA policies. 

Should you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact us. Please proceed 
with any requirements for posting prior to negotiations. 

 



Item 9.2 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM:         ACCEPTANCE OF INITIAL (SUNSHINE) BARGAINING 

PROPOSAL FOR 2022-23 SUCCESSOR COLLECTIVE 

BARGAINING AGREEMENT PRESENTED BY THE 

CALIFORNIA SCHOOL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION 

(CSEA) AND ITS HUENEME CHAPTER #273 TO THE 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

BOARD MEETING DATE: March 27, 2023 

 

FROM: Dr. Carlos Dominguez, Deputy Superintendent  

 Dr. Christine Walker, Superintendent 

 

STAFF COMMENT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

It is recommended that the Governing Board accept the Initial Bargaining Proposal 

presented by the California School Employees Association (CSEA) and its Hueneme 

Chapter #273 to the Hueneme Elementary School District for the 2022-23 Successor 

Collective Bargaining Agreement. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

Government Code 3547(a) requires school districts and labor unions to present their initial 

proposal to the public for community comment prior to initiating negotiations.  This is 

commonly referred to as “sunshining” each party’s initial proposal.  Pursuant to 

Government Code 3547, the Governing Board shall, at a meeting which is open to the 

public, adopt its initial proposal. 

 

A copy of the initial “sunshine” proposal submitted by CSEA is attached. 

 

 

 

 



INITIAL PROPOSAL – CALIFORNIA SCHOOL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION AND 
ITS HUENEME CHAPTER 273 

The California School Employees Association (CSEA) and its Hueneme Chapter 273 with this 
initial proposal notifies the Hueneme Elementary School District of CSEA’s intent to modify or 
amend the contract and negotiate a number of articles within the collective bargaining 
agreement. 

ARTICLE 4 – EMPLOYEE RIGHTS 

CSEA proposes to make changes to the Section 2: Employee Safety Conditions -- 
Employment which may include additional or increased safety protocols for classified 
staff. 

ARTICLE 7 -- ORGANIZATIONAL RIGHTS 

CSEA proposes to make changes to Section 1: CSEA Rights which may include 
adjustments to the amount and utility of Association release time. 

ARTICLE 10 – HOURS AND OVERTIME 

CSEA proposes to make changes to Section 5: Rest Periods which may include additional 
restrictions on how classified employees’ schedules can be arranged. 

ARTICLE 11 -- PAY AND ALLOWANCES 

CSEA proposes to negotiate a fair salary increase for all classified employees. 

ARTICLE 12 -- PROFESSIONAL GROWTH AWARD PROGRAM 

CSEA proposes to make changes to the existing Section 6: Guidelines for Obtaining 
Increment Credit which may include expanding the eligibility for increment credits. 

ARTICLE 13 – EMPLOYEE EXPENSES 

CSEA proposes to change Section 2: Uniforms Allowance which may include additional 
specifications regarding uniforms for classified staff. 

ARTICLE 15 -- HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS 

CSEA proposes to make changes to Section 2: District Contribution which may include 
an increase to the District’s contribution for health and welfare benefits. 

ARTICLE 18 -- LEAVES 

CSEA proposes to make changes to Section 4: Personal Necessity Leave which may 
include increased flexibility in the use of Personal Necessity Leave. 

ARTICLE 21 – NEGOTIATIONS 

CSEA proposes to change Section 1: Negotiations to update the included dates for 
reopener negotiations. 



ARTICLE 24 -- DURATION 

CSEA proposes to update the dates to reflect the current contract cycle. 

APPENDIX F -- SALARY SCHEDULE 

CSEA proposes to update the included salary schedule to reflect salary increases 
provided since the previous successor negotiation cycle. 

APPENDIX G -- CLASSIFIED CALENDAR 

CSEA proposes to update the included calendar to reflect the correct dates in the 
upcoming academic year. 

 

CSEA reserves the right to open additional articles during the course of these successor 
negotiations, subject to the appropriate notice requirements under the law and CSEA policies. 

Should you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact us. Please proceed 
with any requirements for posting prior to negotiations. 

 



Item 9.3 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM:         APPROVAL OF 2022/2023 AND 2023/2024 

TRANSPORTATION PLAN FOR HOME-TO-SCHOOL 

(HTS) TRANSPORTATION REIMBURSEMENT 

 

BOARD MEETING DATE: March 27, 2023 

 

FROM: Dr. Carlos Dominguez, Deputy Superintendent  

 Dr. Christine Walker, Superintendent 

 

STAFF COMMENT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

It is recommended that the Governing Board approve the 2022/2023 Transportation Plan 

for Home-to-School (HTS) Transportation Reimbursement. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

Home-to-School (HTS) Transportation Reimbursement provides reimbursement funding 

for school districts and county offices of education (COEs) based on the prior year eligible 

transportation expenditures and prior year Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) 

transportation related add-on funding with the goal to assist school districts, transportation 

agencies, and school transportation operators in providing the safest and most efficient 

transportation services for their passengers and customers.  

 

Per Education Code (EC) Section 39800.1, as a condition of receiving Home-to-School 

(HTS) Transportation Reimbursement, a local educational agency shall develop a plan 

describing the transportation services.  The plan shall be presented and adopted by the 

governing board of the local educational agency on or before April 1, 2023. 

 

A copy of the 2022/23 and 2023/24 Transportation Plan for Home-to-School (HTS) is 

attached. 

 

 

 

 



1  | Pa g e 

  
HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Home To School Transportation Plan 
 
 

 

Introduction 
Per Education Code (EC) Section 39800.1, as a condition of receiving apportionments 
for Transportation Services (under EC Section 41850.1), a local educational agency 
shall develop a plan describing the transportation services.  The plan shall be presented 
and adopted by the governing board of the local educational agency on or before 
April 1, 2023.  The plan may provide for the local educational agency to partner with a 
municipally owned transit system to provide service pursuant to this section.  Nothing in 
a local educational agency’s plan shall preclude a local educational agency from 
providing no-cost transit passes to students. 
 
District Background 
The Hueneme Elementary School District (HESD) has an enrollment of approximately 
7,206 students in grades TK - 8. Our district boundaries include urban areas in south 
Oxnard, Port Hueneme, and the unincorporated communities of Silver Strand and 
Hollywood Beach. We have one military base and a commercial port. Our students 
attend nine elementary schools and two junior high schools. Student enrollment by 
ethnicity is (84.65%) Hispanic, (8.77%) white, (2.51%) Filipino, and (1.0%) African 
American. Forty four percent of our students are English learners (EL), (84%) are 
socioeconomically disadvantaged (SED), and (11%) are students with disabilities 
(SWD). Foster youth are less than (1%) and homeless youth are (6%) of the student 
population. Although many of our students’ parents work in agriculture, only (1.1%) 
of our students are enrolled in the migrant education program. 
 
HESD’s mission is “We will inspire our students to explore, dream big, and develop 
social and civic responsibility through a balanced learning program. They will thrive 
as we foster perseverance and resiliency in a safe, culturally responsive, and 
inclusive community. We will empower our students by teaching them critical 
thinking skills through a rigorous academic experience in a digitally- rich 
environment.” Our vision is “Inspiring and empowering every student to thrive every 
day.” 
 
Our district is committed to preparing ALL students to function in a diverse, inclusive, 
and multicultural society. To achieve this goal, we will provide our students with the 
highest quality education utilizing innovative and evidence- based programs that 
prepare them to reach their fullest potential and participate in a global economy. 
 
2022-2023 and 2023-2024 Transportation Services 
The District currently owns twelve (12) school buses: five (5) large buses (65 or more 
passengers), four (4) small buses (20 or less passengers) and three (3) small buses (24 
or less passengers). These vehicles traveled a total of 71,548 miles in the 2021-2022 
school year. This is inclusive of 2,975 miles during the summer programs. In addition,  
the District owns two (2) 9-passenger vans of which one can be converted to a 4 



2  | Pa g e 

wheelchair passenger vehicle. These vehicles traveled a total of 3,946 miles in the 
2021-2022 school year. 
 

The District provides two types of transportation services for students.  Station-to-station 
service is a pick-up and drop-off of students at various locations close to the students’ 
residence. Door-to-Door service is a pick-up and drop-off at the safest location closest 
to their home. 
 
The District currently operates a total of thirteen (13) routes to and from school:  three 
(3) station-to-school routes are for General Education students and ten (10) door-to-
door routes are for Special Education students serviced by a total of thirteen (13) 
school bus drivers. 
 

For 2022-23, the District is transporting 138 General Education students and 128 Special 
Education students. 
 

 Priority for TK-6 and Low Income Students 
Hueneme Elementary School District provides transportation services to students from TK 
through 8th grade.  Transportation services for TK-8th grade and low-income students 
consists of general education, station-to-station bus routes to Parkview Elementary 
School, Hollywood Beach Elementary School and E.O. Green Junior High based on their 
distance from home to school.  Eighty-four percent (84%) of the HESD student 
population is considered low-income.  All transportation services provided to all 
students are free of charge to students. 
 

Accessibility for Students With Disabilities and Homeless Youth 
Students with disabilities will continue to be provided transportation services when 
specified in their Individualized Education Plan (IEP). This process involves determining 
whether a student requires transportation either because of the severity of their 
disability or because they must attend a school other than their school of residence to 
receive the services they need.  The level of service will also be determined by the IEP 
team. 
 

Students designated as homeless are identified, monitored, and serviced by the 
Student Support Services department. Student Support Services will work with the family 
to ensure homeless students are transported to and from school. This can be 
accomplished by the District’s transportation department, providing a free bus pass for 
the students to use the public bus system, or by working with the local transportation 
vendors to provide transportation for homeless students. 
 

Free Transportation for Unduplicated Pupils 
Students receiving either General Education or Special Education transportation 
service, including Unduplicated Pupils (defined as students who are low socio-
economic, English learners, or foster youth) who utilize District transportation do so at no 
charge. 
 

Stakeholder Consultation 
In accordance with Education Code 39800.1, the District sought input from the following 
stakeholder groups 
 
 



3  | Pa g e 

Stakeholder Group Method Date(s) 
Classified Staff -Discussion at Local Control 

Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
Community Input Session 
-Discussion at Labor Management 
Meeting 
-On-Line Survey 

March 22, 2023 
 

 
March 29, 2023 

Certificated Staff -Discussion at Educational Partners    
 Input Session 
-Discussion at Labor Management  
 meeting 
-On-Line Survey 

March 22, 2023 
 

March 22, 2023 

School Administrators -Discussion at Principals Meeting 
-On-Line Survey 

March 15, 2023 

Regional Local Transit Authority -Email 
-On-line Survey 

Email submitted 
March 13, 2023  

    Local Air Pollution Control District Email Email submitted 
March 16, 2023 

Local Air Management District N/A N/A 

Parents -Discussion at Educational Partners    
 Input Session 

March 22, 2023 

Pupils On-Line Survey TBD 

 



Item 10.1 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM: SECOND READING AND APPROVAL OF REVISIONS 

TO THE DISTRICT POLICY MANUAL 

 

BOARD MEETING DATE:  March 27, 2023 

 

FROM:    Dr. Christine Walker, Superintendent 
 

STAFF COMMENT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

It is recommended that, after completing a second reading of proposed policy revisions, 

the Governing Board approve all revisions as submitted and authorize immediate 

dissemination and implementation. 

 

BACKGROUND 

  

Following policy revisions by the California School Boards Association (CSBA), the 

Superintendent reviewed samples of their revised policies to determine the revisions 

needed for district policies.  Policy documents showing revision mark-ups were presented 

to the Board for a first reading at the February 27, 2023 meeting.  As no further changes 

were suggested, the policies were subsequently finalized for a second and final reading.  It 

is now recommended that, unless further discussion and/or change is warranted, the 

following revised policy documents be approved and implemented: 

 
Series 0000: Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 

 BP 0430, Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education 

 BP 0450, Comprehensive Safety Plan 

 
Series 3000: Business and Noninstructional Operations 

 BP 3460, Financial Reports and Accountability 

 

Series 5000: Students 
 BP 5131.7, Weapons and Dangerous Instruments 

 



BP 0430 (a) 
MANDATED 

Philosophy-Goals-Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 

 
COMPREHENSIVE LOCAL PLAN FOR SPECIAL EDUCATION 
 

Policy                                                        HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Adopted: 02/03  Port Hueneme, California 

Revised: 09/03, 11/20, pending 2nd reading  

The Governing Board recognizes its obligation to provide a free appropriate public education to 

all individuals with disabilities, aged 3 to 21 years, who reside in the district.  

 

In order to meet the needs of individuals with disabilities, the district shall participate as a member 

of a Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) with other districts and the county office of 

education pursuant to Education Code 56195.1. 

 

The district shall enter into agreements with other members of the SELPA in accordance with 

Education Code 56195.1 and 56195.7.  Consistent with these agreements, the district shall adopt 

policies governing the programs and services it operates.  (Education Code 56195.8)  

 

The Superintendent or designee shall work with the other members of the SELPA to develop a 

local plan for the education of individuals with disabilities.  The plan shall be approved by the 

Board and the other members of the SELPA, and shall be submitted to the Superintendent of Public 

Instruction.  (Education Code 56195.1) 

 

Each year, the Superintendent or designee shall provide to the Board any data and/or information 

regarding the special education funding generated by the district as supplied by the SPI and the 

SELPA in accordance with Education Code 56836.148. 

 

The local plan shall be reviewed at least once every three years and updated as needed to ensure 

the information contained in the plan remains relevant and accurate.  The local plan shall be 

updated cooperatively by a committee of representatives of special and regular education teachers 

and administrators selected by the groups they represent and with participation by parent/guardian 

members of the community advisory committee, or parents/guardians selected by the community 

advisory committee, to ensure adequate and effective participation and communication.  

(Education Code 56195.9) 

 

Special education programs and services shall be reviewed on an ongoing basis.  The results of 

such evaluations shall be used to identify and correct any program deficiencies. 

 



BP 0450 (a) 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 
COMPREHENSIVE SAFETY PLAN 
 
 

The Governing Board recognizes that students and staff have the right to a safe and secure campus 

where they are free from physical and psychological harm. The Board is fully committed to 

maximizing school safety and to creating a positive learning environment that includes strategies 

for violence prevention and emphasizes high expectations for student conduct, responsible 

behavior and respect for others.  

 

The school site council or a designated school site safety committee at each district school shall 

develop a comprehensive school safety plan relevant to the needs and resources of that particular 

school. New school campuses shall develop a safety plan within one year of initiating operations.  

(Education Code 32281, 32286) 

 

The school safety plan shall take into account the school's staffing, available resources, and 

building design, as well as other factors unique to the site. 

 

The comprehensive safety plan(s) shall be reviewed and updated by March 1 of each year and 

forwarded to the Board for approval. (Education Code 32286, 32288) 

 

The Board shall review the comprehensive safety plan(s) in order to ensure compliance with state 

law, Board policy, and administrative regulation, and shall approve the plan(s) at a regularly 

scheduled meeting. 

 

By October 15 of each year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the California Department 

of Education of any schools that have not complied with the requirements of Education Code 

32281 (Education Code 32288) 

 

Tactical Response Plan 
 

Notwithstanding the process described above, any portion of a comprehensive safety plan that 

addresses tactical responses to criminal incidents that may result in death or serious bodily injury 

at the school site, including steps to safeguard students and staff, secure affected school premises, 

and apprehend criminal perpetrator(s), shall be developed by district administrators in accordance 

with Education Code 32281.  In developing such strategies, district administrators shall consult 

with law enforcement officials and with representative(s) of employee bargaining unit(s), if they 

choose to participate. 

 

When reviewing the tactical response plan, the Board may meet in closed session to confer with 

law enforcement officials and approve the tactical response plan, provided that any vote to approve 

the tactical response plan is announced in open session following the closed session. (Education 

Code 32281) 

 

 
 



BP 0450 (b) 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 
COMPREHENSIVE SAFETY PLAN 
 
 

Policy HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Adopted: 02/03 Port Hueneme, California 

Revised: 03/04, 12/05, 02/12, 10/16, 03/19, pending 2 reading 

Safety Plan(s) Access and Reporting 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that an updated file of all safety-related plans and 

materials is readily available for inspection by the public. (Education Code 32282) 

 

However, those portions of the comprehensive safety plan that include tactical responses to 

criminal incidents shall not be publicly disclosed. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall share the comprehensive safety plans and any updates to the 

plans with local law enforcement, the local fire department, and other first responder entities.  

(Education Code 32281) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall also provide data to CDE pertaining to lockdown or multi-

option response drills conducted at district schools in accordance with Education Code 32289.5. 

(Education Code 32289.5) 

 

 



BP 3460 (a) 
Business and Non-Instructional Operations 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 

 

The Governing Board is committed to ensuring public accountability and the fiscal health of the 

district. The Board shall adopt sound fiscal management policies and practices, oversee the 

district's financial condition, and continually evaluate whether the district’s budget and financial 

operations support the district's goals for student achievement. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that district financial reports are prepared in 

accordance with law and in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and financial 

reporting standards stipulated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and the 

California Department of Education (CDE).  The Superintendent or designee shall establish a 

system of ongoing internal controls to ensure the reliability of financial reporting.   

 

When required by law or the Board, the Superintendent or designee shall submit to the Board 

reports of the district’s financial status, including, but not limited to, any report specified in this 

Board policy or accompanying administrative regulation.  When submission of any such report to 

a local, state, and/or federal agency requires prior Board approval, the Superintendent or designee 

shall provide the report to the Board in sufficient time to enable the Board to carefully review the 

report without breaking any applicable submission deadline. 

 

The Board shall regularly assess the district’s financial position and communicate the results to 

the public, and shall use financial reports to determine the actions and budget amendments, if any, 

that are needed to ensure the district’s financial stability.  If district conditions predict fiscal distress 

or indicate that the district might not be able to meet its fiscal obligations, the Board and 

Superintendent or designee shall take action to resolve these conditions without delay.  The Board 

shall work cooperatively with the County Superintendent of Schools to improve the district’s fiscal 

health and may contract with an external individual or organization to provide the district with 

needed advice or fiscal management or training. 

 

Unaudited Actual Receipts and Expenditures 
 

On or before September 15, the Board shall approve and file with the County Superintendent a 

statement of the district’s unaudited actual receipts and expenditures for the preceding fiscal year. 

The Superintendent or designee shall prepare this statement using the state’s standardized account 

code structure (SACS) as prescribed by the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI). (Education 

Code 42100) 

 

Gann Appropriations Limit Resolution 
 

On or before September 15, the Board shall, at a regular or special meeting, adopt a resolution 

identifying, pursuant to Government Code 7900-7914, the district’s estimated appropriations limit 

for the current fiscal year and the actual appropriations limit for the preceding fiscal year.  

Documentation used to identify these limits shall be made available to the public on the day of the 

Board meeting. (Education Code 42132; Government Code 7910) 

 



BP 3460 (b) 
Business and Non-Instructional Operations 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 

 

Interim Reports/Certification of Ability to Meet Fiscal Obligations 
 

Each fiscal year, the Superintendent or designee shall submit two interim reports to the Board. The 

first report shall cover the district’s financial and budgetary status for the period ending October 

31 and the second report shall cover the period ending January 31. These reports and supporting 

data shall be made available by the district for public review. (Education Code 42130) 

 

Within 45 days after the close of the period reported, the Board shall approve the interim report 

and, on the basis of the interim report and any additional financial information known by the Board, 

shall certify in writing whether the district will be able to meet its fiscal obligations for the 

remainder of the fiscal year and, based on current forecasts, for the two subsequent fiscal years. 

The certification shall be classified as one of the following: (Education Code 42130, 42131) 

 

1. “Positive certification” indicating that the district will meet its financial obligations for the 

current fiscal year and two subsequent fiscal years 

 

2. “Qualified certification” indicating that the district may not meet its financial obligations 

for the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years 

 

3. “Negative certification” indicating that the district will be unable to meet its financial 

obligations for the remainder of the fiscal year or the subsequent fiscal year 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall submit a copy of each interim report and certification to the 

County Superintendent using the state’s SACS software, as prescribed by the SPI. (Education Code 

42130, 42131) 

 

If the district’s certification is subsequently changed by the County Superintendent from a positive 

to a qualified or negative certification, or from a qualified to a negative certification, the Board 

may appeal the decision to the SPI within five days of receiving the notice of change. (Education 

Code 42131) 

 

Whenever the district receives a qualified or negative certification from the Board or the County 

Superintendent, the Superintendent or designee shall cooperate in the implementation of any 

remedial actions taken or prescribed by the County Superintendent. (Education Code 42131) 

 

If the second interim report is accompanied by a qualified or negative certification, the Board shall, 

no later than June 1, provide to the County Superintendent, the State Controller, and the SPI a 

financial statement as of April 30 (“third interim report”) that projects the district’s fund and cash 

balances through June 30. (Education Code 42131) 

 

If at any time during the fiscal year, the County Superintendent concludes that the district’s budget 

does not comply with the standards and criteria for financial stability and conducts a 

comprehensive review of the district’s financial and budgetary conditions, the Board shall review 



BP 3460 (c) 
Business and Non-Instructional Operations 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 

 

any report of the County Superintendent’s findings and recommendations at a public Board 

meeting.  Within 15 days of receiving the report, the district shall notify the County Superintendent 

and the SPI of the Board’s proposed actions on the recommendation. (Education Code 42637) 

 

Audit Report 
 

By April 1 of each year, the Board shall provide for an annual audit of the district’s books and 

accounts. (Education Code 41020) 

 

To conduct the audit, the Board shall select a certified public accountant or public accountant 

licensed by the State Board of Accountancy from among those deemed qualified by the State 

Controller. (Education Code 41020, 41020.5) 

 

Except when, as determined by the Education Audits Appeal Panel, no otherwise eligible auditor 

is available, a public accounting firm whose lead or coordinating audit partner having primary 

responsibility for the audit or whose audit partner responsible for reviewing the audit has 

performed audit services for the district in each of the six previous fiscal years shall not be selected 

to perform a district audit. (Education Code 41020) 

 

No later than December 15, the report of the audit for the preceding fiscal year shall be filed with 

the County Superintendent, the CDE, and the State Controller. (Education Code 41020) 

 

Prior to December 15 whenever possible, but in no case later than January 31, the Board shall 

review, at an open meeting, the annual district audit for the prior year, any audit exceptions 

identified in that audit, the recommendations or findings of any management letter issued by the 

auditor, and any description of correction or plans to correct any exceptions or any issue raised in 

a management letter.  (Education Code 41020.3) 

 

The Board shall have an opportunity at the meeting to ask questions of the auditor and request 

further information about the audit findings. 

 

Audit Committee 
 

The Board may appoint an audit committee composed of staff knowledgeable about fiscal matters, 

other staff, and representatives of the community. 

 

The committee shall serve in an advisory capacity and may: 

 

1. Make recommendations regarding the selection of the external independent auditor in 

accordance with Education Code 41020 and 41020.5 

 

2. Review the plan for the audit process with the independent auditor to determine the 

adequacy of the nature, scope, and timetable of the audit  



BP 3460 (d) 
Business and Non-Instructional Operations 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 

 

Policy HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Adopted: 09/03 Port Hueneme, California 

Revised: pending 2nd reading 

3. Review the results of the audit and participate with the independent auditor and 

management in preparing final recommendations and responses 

 

4. Participate with the independent auditor in presenting the audit report to the Board 

 

5. Review Board policies sand administrative regulations to recommend any revisions needed 

to ensure effective financial reporting 

 

6. Provide input on the effectiveness of the independent auditor 

 

7. Periodically report to the Board regarding the status of previous audit recommendations 

for improving the accounting and internal control systems 

 

 

 



 BP 5131.7 (a) 
 MANDATED  
Students 
 
WEAPONS AND DANGEROUS INSTRUMENTS 

 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that students and staff have the right to a safe and secure campus 

free from physical and psychological harm and desires to protect them from the dangers presented 

by firearms and other weapons. 

 

Possession of Weapons 
 

The Board prohibits any student from possessing weapons, imitation firearms, or other dangerous 

instruments, as defined in law and administrative regulation, in school buildings, on school 

grounds, when using district provided transportation, at school-related or school-sponsored 

activities away from school, or while going to or coming from school. 

 

If a student is in possession of a prohibited weapon, imitation firearm, or dangerous instrument 

which creates a threat or perceived threat of a homicidal act, any employee or other school official 

who is alerted to or observes such threat shall immediately report the threat to law enforcement. 

 

Under the power granted to the Board to protect the safety of students, staff and others on district 

property, and to maintain order and discipline in the schools, any school employee is authorized 

to confiscate any prohibited weapon, imitation firearm, or dangerous instrument from any student 

on school grounds. 

 

The principal or designee shall notify law enforcement authorities when any student possesses a 

firearm, explosive, or other prohibited weapon or dangerous instrument without permission, sells 

or furnishes a firearm, or commits any act of assault with a firearm or other weapon. (Education 

Code 48902; Penal Code 245, 626.9, 626.10; 20 USC 7961) 

 

Unless a student has obtained prior written permission as specified below, a student possessing or 

threatening others with any weapon, dangerous instrument, or imitation firearm shall be subject to 

suspension and/or expulsion in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulations. 

 

All staff shall be made aware of their responsibilities regarding the reporting of potential homicidal 

acts to law enforcement, and receive training in the assessment and reporting of such threats. 

 

Possession of Pepper Spray 
 

To prevent potential misuse that may harm students or staff, students are prohibited from carrying 

tear gas or tear gas weapons such as pepper spray on campus or at school activities. 

 

Reporting of Dangerous Objects 
 

The Board encourages students to promptly report the presence of weapons, injurious objects, or 

other suspicious activity to school authorities. The identity of a student who reports such activity 

shall remain confidential to the extent permitted by law. 



 BP 5131.7 (b) 
 MANDATED  
Students 
 
WEAPONS AND DANGEROUS INSTRUMENTS 

 
 

Policy HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Adopted: 05/03                   Port Hueneme, California 

Revised: 11/04, 03/12, pending 2nd reading 

The Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies designed to facilitate student reporting of 

the presence of injurious objects on school grounds, such as tip hotlines, electronic transmissions, 

or other methods that preserve the student’s anonymity. Incident reports and records shall not 

identify the student who reported the possession. The Superintendent or designee also shall inform 

staff, students and parents/guardians that students who report the presence of injurious objects on 

school campuses are to be protected and their identity shielded. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 



Item 10.2 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM: ACCEPTANCE AND FIRST READING OF PROPOSED 

REVISIONS TO THE DISTRICT POLICY MANUAL 

 

BOARD MEETING DATE:  March 27, 2023 

 

FROM:    Dr. Christine Walker, Superintendent 
 

STAFF COMMENT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

It is recommended that the Governing Board and administrative staff: 

(1) accept for a first reading proposed revisions to various board policies; and 

(2) provide input for additional modifications that may be needed before a second reading 

and recommendation for approval at the next regular board meeting. 

 

BACKGROUND 

  

Policy revisions were recently recommended by the California School Boards Associations 

(CSBA) and California school districts were offered samples of the CSBA policies to 

reference for revising district policies.  The Superintendent and District Administrators 

reviewed the revised samples and determined that the district policies should also be revised. 

 

The following district Board Policies (BP) were revised as recommended by CSBA and, 

pursuant to the district’s Board Bylaw 9310, are presented to the Governing Board for a first 

reading.  After consideration of any further input from the board, staff or members of the 

community, additional revisions may be appropriate before they are presented for a second 

reading at the next regular meeting on April 24, 2023.  At that time, it will be appropriate for 

the Board to also approve the revisions, as recommended, if no further changes are needed. 

 

The following policy documents are submitted for consideration: 

Series 0000: Philosophy-Goals-Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 BP 0460, Local Control and Accountability Plan  

Series 3000: Business and Non-Instructional Operations 
 BP 3515, Campus Security 

Series 5000: Students 
 BP 5142, Safety 

 BP 5148.2, Before/After School Programs 

Series 9000: Board Bylaws 
 BB 9220, Governing Board Elections 

 BB 9223, Filling Vacancies 

 BB 9323, Meeting Conduct 



BP 0460 (a) 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
 
 
The Governing Board desires to ensure the most effective use of available funding to improve 

outcomes for all students. A comprehensive, data-driven planning process shall be used to identify 

annual goals and specific actions which are aligned with the district budget and facilitate 

continuous improvement of district practices. 

 

(cf. 0000 – Vision) 

(cf. 0200 – Goals for the School District) 

(cf. 0415 – Equity)  

 

The Board shall adopt a districtwide local control and accountability plan (LCAP), based on the 

template adopted by the State Board of Education (SBE), that addresses the state priorities in 

Education Code 52060 and any local priorities adopted by the Board. The LCAP shall be updated 

on or before July 1 of each year and, like the district budget, shall cover the next fiscal year and 

two subsequent fiscal years. (Education Code 52060, 52064; 5 CCR 15494-15497) 

 

(cf. 3100 – Budget) 

 

The LCAP shall focus on improving outcomes for all students, particularly those who are 

"unduplicated students" or are part of any numerically significant student subgroup that is at risk 

of or is underperforming.  

 

Unduplicated students include students who are eligible for free or reduced-price meals, English 

learners, and foster youth, as defined in Education Code 42238.01 for purposes of the local control 

funding formula (LCFF). (Education Code 42238.02) 

 

(cf. 3553 – Free and Reduced Price Meals) 

(cf. 6173.1 – Education for Foster Youth) 

(cf. 6174 – Education for English Language Learners) 

 

Numerically significant student subgroups include ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically 

disadvantaged students, English learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless 

students, when there are at least 30 students in the subgroup or at least 15 foster youth or homeless 

students.  (Education Code 52052) 

 

(cf. 6164.4 – Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 

(cf. 6173 – Education for Homeless Children) 

Beginning July 1, 2025, if the district is identified by the California Department of Education 

(CDE) as needing an improvement plan pursuant to 34 CFR 300.600-300.647, the Board shall 

adopt, and update on an annual basis, an Individual with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) 

Addendum, based on the template adopted by SBE.  However, if the district adopts an 

improvement plan after being identified, but before July 1, 2025, the IDEA Addendum shall be 

developed upon expiration of the adopted improvement plan, but no later than July 1, 2028, 

whichever occurs first.  The IDEA Addendum shall be developed, reviewed, and approved in 



BP 0460 (b) 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
 
 
conjunction with and in the same manner as the LCAP and the annual update to the LCAP, and 

shall be submitted to CDE within 15 days of adoption by the Board. (Education Code 52064.3) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall review the single plan for student achievement (SPSA) 

submitted by each district school pursuant to Education Code 64001 to ensure that the specific 

actions included in the LCAP are consistent with strategies included in the SPSA. (Education Code 

52062) 

 

(cf. 0420 – School Plans/Site Councils) 

The LCAP shall also be aligned with other district and school plans to the extent possible in order 

to minimize duplication of effort and provide clear direction for program implementation.  

 

(cf. 0400 – Comprehensive Plans) 

(cf. 0440 – District Technology Plan) 

(cf. 0450 – Comprehensive Safety Plan) 

(cf. 5030 – Student Wellness) 

(cf. 6171 – Title I Programs) 

(cf. 7110 – Facilities Master Plan) 

 

As part of the LCAP adoption and annual update to the LCAP, the Board shall separately adopt an 

LCFF budget overview for parents/guardians, based on the template developed by the SBE, which 

includes specified information relating to the district’s budget.  The budget overview shall be 

adopted, reviewed, and approved in the same manner as the LCAP and the annual update.  

(Education Code 52064.1) 

 

Any complaint that the district has not complied with legal requirements pertaining to the LCAP 

may be filed pursuant to AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. (Education Code 52075) 

 

(cf. 1312.3 – Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

 

Plan Development 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall gather data and information needed for effective and 

meaningful plan development and present it to the Board and community. Such data and 

information shall include, but not be limited to, data regarding the numbers of students in student 

subgroups, disaggregated data on student achievement levels, and information about current 

programs and expenditures.  

 

The Board shall consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, employee 

bargaining units, parents/guardians, and students in developing the LCAP. Consultation with 

students shall enable unduplicated students and other numerically significant student subgroups to 

review and comment on LCAP development and may include surveys of students, student forums, 



BP 0460 (c) 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
 
 
student advisory committees, and/or meetings with student government bodies or other groups 

representing students. (Education Code 52060; 5 CCR 15495) 

 

(cf. 1220 – Citizen Advisory Committees) 

(cf. 4140/4240/4340 – Bargaining Units) 

(cf. 6020 – Parent Involvement) 

 

Public Review and Input 
 

The Board shall establish a parent advisory committee to review and comment on the LCAP. The 

committee shall be composed of a majority of parents/guardians and shall include 

parents/guardians of unduplicated students as defined above and parents/guardians of students with 

disabilities. (Education Code 52063; 5 CCR 15495) 

 

Beginning July 1, 2024, unless a student advisory committee is established to provide advice to 

the Board and Superintendent, two students shall be included as full members of the parent 

advisory committee.  The students shall serve for a renewable term of one full school year. 

(Education Code 52063) 

 

Student members of the advisory committee or the student advisory committee shall represent the 

diversity of the district’s students, including geographical, socioeconomic, cultural, physical, and 

educational diversity, and particular effort shall be made to reach out to at-risk or disadvantaged 

students to serve as members of such committees. (Education Code 52063) 

 

Whenever district enrollment includes at least 15 percent English learners, with at least 50 students 

who are English learners, the Board shall establish an English learner parent advisory committee 

composed of a majority of parents/guardians of English learners to review and comment on the 

LCAP. (Education Code 52063; 5 CCR 15495) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall present the LCAP to the committee(s) before it is submitted 

to the Board for adoption, and shall respond in writing to comments received from the 

committee(s). (Education Code 52062) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall notify members of the public of the opportunity to submit 

written comments regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to be included in the 

LCAP. The notification shall be provided using the most efficient method of notification possible, 

which may not necessarily include producing printed notices or sending notices by mail. All 

written notifications related to the LCAP shall be provided in the primary language of 

parents/guardians when required by Education Code 48985. (Education Code 52062) 

 

(cf. 5145.6 – Parental Notifications) 

 



BP 0460 (d) 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
 
 
As part of the parent and community engagement process, the district shall solicit input on effective 

and appropriate instructional methods, including, but not limited to, establishing language 

acquisition programs to enable all students, including English learners and native English speakers, 

to have access to the core academic content standards and to become proficient in English. 

(Education Code 305-306) 

 

The Superintendent or designed shall consult with the administrator(s) of the special education 

local plan area of which the district is a member to ensure that specific actions for students with 

disabilities are included in the LCAP and are consistent with strategies included in the annual 

assurances support plan for the education of students with disabilities.  (Education Code 52062) 

 

(cf. 0430 – Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education) 

 

The Board shall hold at least one public hearing to solicit the recommendations and comments of 

members of the public regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to be included in 

the LCAP. The public hearing shall be held at the same meeting as the budget hearing required 

pursuant to Education Code 42127 and AR 3100 - Budget. (Education Code 42127, 52062)  

 

 (cf. 9320 – Meetings and Notices) 

 

Adoption of the Plan 
 

The Board shall adopt the LCAP prior to adopting the district budget, but at the same public 

meeting. This meeting shall be held after the public hearing described above, but not on the same 

day as the hearing.   (Education Code 52062) 

 

The Board may adopt revisions to the LCAP at any time during the period in which the plan is in 

effect, provided the Board follows the process to adopt the LCAP pursuant to Education Code 

52062 and the revisions are adopted in a public meeting. (Education Code 52062) 

 

Submission of Plan to County Superintendent of Schools 
 
Not later than five days after adoption of the LCAP, the district budget, and the budget overview 

for parents/guardians, the Board shall file the LCAP, the budget, and the budget overview with the 

County Superintendent of Schools. (Education Code 42127, 52064.1, 52070)  

 

If the County Superintendent sends, by August 15, a written request for clarification of the contents 

of the LCAP, the Board shall respond in writing within 15 days of the request. If the County 

Superintendent then submits recommendations for amendments to the LCAP within 15 days of 

receiving the Board's response, the Board shall consider those recommendations in a public 

meeting within 15 days of receiving the recommendations. (Education Code 52070) 

 



BP 0460 (e) 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
 
 
If the County Superintendent does not approve the district’s LCAP, the Board shall accept 

technical assistance from the County Superintendent focused on revising the plan so that it can be 

approved.  (Education Code 52071) 

 

Monitoring Progress 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board, at least annually in accordance with the  

timeline and indicators established by the Superintendent and the Board, regarding the district's 

progress toward attaining each goal identified in the LCAP.  Evaluation shall include, but not be 

limited to, an assessment of district and school performance reported on the California School 

Dashboard.  Evaluation data shall be used to recommend any necessary revisions to the LCAP. 

 

(cf. 0500 – Accountability) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall seek and/or accept technical assistance or other intervention 

that may be required pursuant to Education Code 52071 or 52072 or 20 USC 6311 when a school 

or a numerically significant student subgroup is not making sufficient progress toward the goals 

in the LCAP. 

 

(cf. 0520 – Intervention for Underperforming Schools) 

(cf. 0520.1 – Comprehensive and Targeted Support and Improvement) 

 

 

 

 

 

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

305-306 English language education 

17002 State School Building Lease-Purchase Law, including definition of good repair 

33430-33436 Learning Communities for School Success Program; grants for LCAP 

implementation 

41020 Audits 

41320-41322 Emergency apportionments 

42127 Public hearing on budget adoption  

42238.01-42238.07 Local control funding formula 

44258.9 County superintendent review of teacher assignment   

47604.33 Submission of reports by charter schools 

47606.5 Charter schools, local control and accountability plan 

48985 Parental notices in languages other than English 

51210 Course of study for grades 1-6 

51220 Course of study for grades 7-12 

52052 Academic Performance Index; numerically significant student subgroups 



BP 0460 (f) 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
 
 
52059.5 Statewide system of support 

52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan 

52302 Regional occupational centers and programs 

52372.5 Linked learning pilot program 

54692 Partnership academies 

60119 Sufficiency of textbooks and instructional materials; hearing and resolution 

60605.8 California Assessment of Academic Achievement; Academic Content Standards 

Commission 

64001 Single plan for student achievement 

99300-99301 Early Assessment Program 

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 

300 Dependent child of the court 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures 

15494-15497 Local control and accountability plan and spending requirements 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

6311 State plan 

6312 Local educational agency plan 

6826 Title III funds, local plans  



BP 0460 (g) 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
 
 

Policy HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Adopted: 01/14 Port Hueneme, California 

Revised: 06/15, 05/17, 02/18, 03/19, 02/20, pending 1st reading 

Management Resources:  

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

The California School Dashboard and Small Districts, October 2018 

Promising Practices for Developing and Implementing LCAPs, Governance Brief, November 

2016 

LCFF Rubrics, Issue 1: What Boards Need to Know About the New Rubrics, Governance Brief, 

rev. October 2016 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

California School Accounting Manual 

California School Dashboard 

LCFF Frequently Asked Questions 

Local Control and Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template 

Family Engagement Framework: A Tool for California School Districts, 2014   

California Career Technical Education Model Curriculum Standards, 2013 

California Common Core State Standards: English Language Arts and Literacy in History/Social 

Studies, Science, and Technical Subjects, rev. 2013 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

California Common Core State Standards: Mathematics, rev. 2013 

California English Language Development Standards, 2012 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org  

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov   

California School Dashboard: http://www.caschooldashboard.org  



Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3515 (a) 
 

CAMPUS SECURITY 
 
 

The Governing Board is committed to providing a school environment that promotes the safety of 

students, staff, and visitors to school grounds.  The Board also recognizes the importance of 

protecting district property, facilities, and equipment from vandalism and theft. 

 

(cf. 4158/4258/4358 – Employee Security) 

(cf. 5131.5 – Vandalism and Graffiti) 

(cf. 5142 – Student Safety) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall develop campus security procedures, which may be included 

in the district’s comprehensive safety plan and/or site-level safety plans.  Such procedures shall 

be regularly reviewed to reflect changed circumstances and to assess their effectiveness in 

achieving safe school objectives. 

 

(cf. 0450 – Comprehensive Safety Plan) 

 

Additionally, the Superintendent or designee shall regularly review current guidance regarding 

cybersecurity and digital media awareness and incorporate recommended practices into the 

district’s processes and procedures related to the protection of the district’s network infrastructure, 

and the monitoring and response to suspicious and/or threatening digital media content. 

 

Reporting Threats 
 

Any certificated or classified employee, or other school official, whose duties bring the employee 

or other school official in contact on a regular basis with students in any of grades 6-8, as part of 

a middle school, who are alerted to or observe any threat or perceived threat of a homicidal act, as 

defined, shall immediately report the threat or perceived threat to law enforcement in accordance 

with Education Code 49393. (Education Code 49390, 49393) 

 

Threat or perceived threat means any writing or action of a student that creates a reasonable 

suspicion that the student is preparing to commit a homicidal act related to school or a school 

activity.  This may include possession, use, or depictions of firearms, ammunition, shootings, or 

targets in association with infliction of physical harm, destruction, or death in a social media post, 

journal, class note, or other media associated with the student.  It may also include a warning by 

a parent, student, or other individual. 

 

Additionally, anyone who receives or learns of a health or safety threat related to school or a school 

activity is encouraged to report the threat to a school or district administrator. 

 

Surveillance Systems 
 

In consultation with the district’s school site council, safety planning committee, other relevant 

stakeholders, and staff, the The Superintendent or designee shall identify appropriate locations for 

the placement of surveillance cameras.  Cameras shall not be placed in areas where students, staff, 



Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3515 (b) 
 

CAMPUS SECURITY 
 
 

or community members have a reasonable expectation of privacy.  Any audio capability on the 

district’s surveillance equipment shall be disabled so that sounds are not recorded. 

 

(cf. 5131.1 – Bus Conduct) 

(cf. 5145.12 – Search and Seizure) 

 

Prior to the operation of the surveillance system, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that 

signs are posted at conspicuous and targeted locations around school buildings and grounds.  

These signs shall state that the facility uses video surveillance equipment for security purposes and 

that the equipment may or may not be actively monitored at any time.  The Superintendent or 

designee shall also provide prior written notice to students and parents/guardians about the 

district’s surveillance system, including the locations where surveillance may occur and that the 

recordings may be used in disciplinary proceedings and/or referred to local law enforcement, as 

appropriate. 

 

(cf. 5144 – Discipline) 

(cf. 5144.1 – Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 

 

To the extent that any images from the district’s surveillance system create a student or personnel 

record, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the images are accessed, retained, and 

disclosed in accordance with law, Board policy, administrative regulation, and any applicable 

collective bargaining agreements. 

 

(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 – Personnel Files) 

(cf. 5125 – Student Records) 

(cf. 5125.1 – Release of Directory Information) 

 

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

17070.10-17079.30 Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act, especially:



Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3515 (c) 
 

CAMPUS SECURITY 
 
 

Policy HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Adopted: 12/94 Port Hueneme, California 

Revised: 03/20, pending 1st reading 

17075.50 Classroom security locks, new construction projects 

17583 Classroom security locks, modernization projects 

32020 Access gates 

32211 Threatened disruption or interference with classes 

32280-32289 School safety plans 

35160 Authority of governing boards 

35160.1 Broad authority of school districts 

38000-38005 Security departments 

49050-49051 Searches by school employees 

49060-49079 Student records 

PENAL CODE 

469 Unauthorized making, duplicating or possession of key to public building 

626-626.11 Disruption of schools 

CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 24 

1010.1.9 Door operations 

1010.1.11 Lockable doors from the inside 

CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 

Article 1, Section 28(c) Right to Safe Schools 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 

99.3 Definition of education records 

COURT DECISIONS 

Brannum v. Overton County School Board (2008) 516 F. 3d 489 

New Jersey v. T.L.O. (1985) 469 U.S. 325 

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 

83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen 257 (2000) 

75 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen 155 (1992) 

 

Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

Safe Schools: A Planning Guide for Action, 2002 

NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS 

The Appropriate and Effective Use of Security Technologies in U.S. Schools: A Guide for 

Schools and Law Enforcement Agencies, rev. 2005 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

FAQs on Photos and Videos under FERPA 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org 

California Department of Education, Safe Schools Office: http://www.cde.ca/gov/ls/ss 

National Institute of Justice: http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/nij 

National School Safety Center: http://www.schoolsafety.us 

U.S. Department of Education, Protecting Student Privacy: http://studentprivacy.ed.gov 



  BP 5142 (a) 
Students 
 
SAFETY 
 
 

The Governing Board recognizes the importance of providing a safe school environment that is 

conducive to learning and promotes student safety and well-being. Appropriate measures shall be 

implemented to minimize the risk of harm to students, including, but not limited to, protocols for 

maintaining safe conditions on school grounds, promoting safe use of school facilities and 

equipment, and guiding student participation in educational programs and school-sponsored 

activities. 

 

(cf. 0450 – Comprehensive Safety Plan)   

(cf. 3320 – Claims and Actions Against the District)  

(cf. 3514 – Environmental Safety)  

(cf. 3514.1 – Hazardous Substances) 

(cf. 3514.2 – Integrated Pest Management)  

(cf. 3515 – Campus Security) 

(cf. 3515.21 – Unmanned Aircraft Systems (Drones)) 

(cf. 3516 – Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan)  

(cf. 3530 – Risk Management/Insurance)  

(cf. 3542 – School Bus Drivers)  

(cf. 3543 – Transportation Safety and Emergencies)  

(cf. 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42 – Exposure Control Plan for Bloodborne Pathogens)  

(cf. 4119.43/4219.43/4319.43 – Universal Precautions)  

(cf. 5131 – Conduct)  

(cf. 5131.1 – Bus Conduct)  

(cf. 5141 – Health Care and Emergencies)  

(cf. 5141.22 – Infectious Diseases) 

(cf. 5142.1 – Identification and Reporting of Missing Children)  

(cf. 5143 – Insurance)  

(cf. 6145.2 – Athletic Competition)  

(cf. 6163.2 – Animals at School) 

(cf. 7111 – Evaluating Existing Buildings)  

Additionally, the Superintendent or designee shall regularly review current guidance regarding 

cybersecurity and digital media awareness and incorporate recommended practices into the 

district’s processes and procedures related to the protection of the district’s network infrastructure, 

and the monitoring and response to suspicious and/or threatening digital media content. 

 

School staff shall be responsible for the proper supervision of students at all times when students 

are subject to district rules, including, but not limited to, during school hours, school-sponsored 

activities, before and after-school programs, morning drop-off and afternoon pick-up, and while 

students are using district transportation.  

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that students receive appropriate instruction on topics 

related to safety and emergency procedures, as well as injury and disease prevention.  

 

(cf. 5141.7 – Sun Safety) 



  BP 5142 (b) 
Students 
 
SAFETY 
 
 

(cf. 6142.8 – Comprehensive Health Education) 

 

Crossing Guards/Student Safety Patrol 
 

To assist students in safely crossing streets adjacent to or near school sites, the Board may employ 

crossing guards and/or establish a student safety patrol at any district school. The Superintendent 

or designee shall periodically examine traffic patterns within school attendance areas in order to 

identify locations where crossing assistance may be needed. 

 

(cf. 5142.2 – Safe Routes to School Program) 

 

Student Identification Cards and Safety Information 
 

Student identification cards of students in grades 7-8 shall have printed on them safety information, 

including the following: (Education Code 215.5, 217) 

 

1. The National Suicide Prevention Lifeline telephone number and, at the district’s discretion, 

the Crisis Text Line and/or a local suicide prevention hotline telephone number 

 

(cf. 5141.52 – Suicide Prevention) 

 

2. The National Domestic Violence Hotline 

 

(cf. 5141.4 – Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Legal Reference: 

See next page 



  BP 5142 (c) 
Students 
 
SAFETY 
 
 

Legal Reference:  

EDUCATION CODE 

8482-8484.6 After School Education and Safety Program  

17280-17317 Building approvals (Field Act)  

17365-17374 Fitness of school facilities for occupancy  

32001 Fire alarms and drills  

32020 School gates; entrances for emergency vehicles  

32030-32034 Eye safety  

32040 First aid equipment  

32225-32226 Two-way communication devices in classrooms  

32240-32245 Lead-free schools  

32250-32254 CDE school safety and security resources unit  

32280-32289 Safety plans  

44807 Duty of teachers concerning conduct of students  

44808 Exemption from liability when students are not on school property  

44808.5 Permission for students to leave school grounds; notice (high school)  

45450-45451 Crossing guards 

48900 Hazing 

49300-49307 School safety patrol  

49330-49335 Injurious objects  

49341 Hazardous materials in school science laboratories  

51202 Instruction in personal and public health and safety  

GOVERNMENT CODE 

810-996.6 California Tort Claims Act  

HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 

115725-115750 Playground safety  

115775-115800 Wooden playground equipment  

116046 Issuance of best practices guidelines for K-12 pool safety 

PENAL CODE 

245.6 Hazing 

PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE 

5411 Purchase of equipment usable by persons with disabilities VEHICLE CODE 

21100 Rules and regulations; crossing guards 

21201 Rules for operation of bicycle on roadway 

21212 Use of helmets 

42200 Fines and forfeitures, disposition by cities 

42201 Fines and forfeitures, disposition by counties 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

202 Exclusion of students with a contagious disease 

570-576 School safety patrols  

5531 Supervision of social activities  

5552 Playground supervision  

5570 When school shall be open and teachers present 



  BP 5142 (d) 
Students 
 
SAFETY 
 
 

Policy  HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Adopted: 05/03  Port Hueneme, California 

Revised: 11/07, 02/20, pending 1st reading 03/23 

14030 Standards for development of plans for the design and construction of school facilities 

14103 Bus driver; authority over pupils  

COURT DECISIONS 

J.H. v. Los Angeles Unified School District, (2010) 183 Cal.App.4th 123 

Lane v. City of Sacramento, (2010) 183 Cal.App.4th 1337 

Wiener v. Southcoast Childcare Centers, (2004) 32 Cal.4th 1138 

Kahn v. East Side Union High School District, (2003) 31 Cal.4th 990 

Knight v. Jewett, (1992) 3 Cal.4tt 296, 313 

Hoyem v.Manhattan Beach City School District, (1978) 22 Cal. 3d 508 

Dailey v. Los Angeles Unified School District, (1970) 2 Cal 3d 741 

Management Resources:  

AMERICAN SOCIETY FOR TESTING AND MATERIALS  

F 1487-05, Standard Consumer Safety Performance Specification for Playground Equipment for 

Public Use, 2017  

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

Science Safety Handbook for California Public Schools, 2014 

U.S. CONSUMER PRODUCT SAFETY COMMISSION PUBLICATIONS  

Public Playground Safety Handbook, 2010 

WEB SITES  

American Society for Testing and Materials: http://www.astm.org  

California Department of Education, Safe Schools Office: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss 

California Department of Public Health: http://www.cdph.ca.gov 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention: http://www.cdc.gov 

Environmental Protection Agency: http://www.epa.gov 

U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission: http://www.cpsc.gov 

U.S. Department of Education, Safe Schools: 

http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/osers/osep/gtss.html 

 



BP 5148.2 (a) 
Students 
 
BEFORE/AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMS 
 
 

 

The Governing Board desires to provide before-school and/or after-school enrichment 

programslearning opportunities for students beyond the regular school day that support the regular 

education program in a supervised environment. In order to increase academic achievement of 

participating students, the content of such programs shall be coordinated with the district's vision 

and goals for student learning, local control and accountability plan, curriculum, and academic 

standards. 

 

The district'sEach program offered by the district shall be planned through a collaborative process 

that includes parents/guardians, students, and representatives of participating schools, 

governmental agencies including city and county parks and recreation departments, local law 

enforcement, community organizations, and, if appropriate, the private sectoras required by law. 

(Education Code 8422, 8482.5, 46120)  

 

To the extent feasible, the district shall give priority to establishing before-school and/or after-

school programsexpanded learning opportunities beyond the regular school day in low-performing 

schools and/or programs that serve low-income and other at-risk students. 

 

Any expanded learning opportunities, including but not limited to After School Education and 

Safety Program (ASES), 21st Century Community Learning Center Program (21st CCLC), 21st 

Century High School After School Safety and Enrichment for Teens Program (ASSETs), 

Expanded Learning Opportunities Program (ELO) or any other program to be established pursuant 

to Education Code 8421, 8482.3 or 8484.75 shall be approved by the Board and the principal of 

each participating school.  

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all staff who directly supervise students in the 

district’s before-school and/or after-schooll expanded learning opportunity programs possess 

appropriate knowledge and experience. As needed, staff and volunteers shall receive ongoing 

training related to their job responsibilities.  

 

Each before-school, after-school, summer, vacation or intersessional expanded learning 

opportunity program shall include academic and enrichment elements in accordance with law and 

administrative regulation. In addition, each program may include support services that reinforce 

the educational component and promote student health and well-being  

 

No fee shall be charged for participation in the program. 

 

Eligible students who are 11 or 12 years of age shall be placed in an before-school or after-school 

program, if and when available, rather than subsidized child care and development services.  

During the time that the before-school or after-school program does not operate, such students may 

be provided the option of enrolling in child care and development services in accordance with the 

enrollment priorities established in AR 5148 – Child Care and Development. (Welfare and 

Institutions Code 10273) 



BP 5148.2 (b) 
Students 
 
BEFORE/AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMS 
 
 

Policy HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Adopted: 05/09 Port Hueneme, California 

Revised: 09/15, 05/17, 03/22, pending 1st reading 03/23 

The Board and the Superintendent or designee shall monitor student participation rates and shall 

identify multiple measures that shall be used to evaluate program effectiveness. Such measures 

may include, but are not limited to, student outcome data; program self-assessments; feedback 

from staff, participating students, and parents/guardians; and observations of program activities. 

 

Every three years, the Superintendent or designee shall review the after-school program plan, 

including, but not limited to, program goals, program content, and outcome measures.  

Documentation of the program plan shall be maintained for a minimum of five years. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



BB 9220 (a) 
Board Bylaws  
 
GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS 
 
 
Board Member Qualifications 
 

Any person is eligible to be a Governing Board member, without further qualifications, if he/shethe 

person is 18 years of age or older, a citizen of California, a resident of the school district, or if 

applicable, the trustee area, a registered voter, and not legally disqualified from holding civil office.  

Any person who has been convicted of a felony involving the giving, accepting, or offering of a 

bribe, embezzlement or theft of public funds, extortion, perjury, or conspiracy to commit any such 

crime, under California law or the law of another state, the United States of America, or another 

country, is not eligible to be a candidate for office or elected as a Board member except when 

he/she has been granted a pardon in accordance with law.  (Education Code 35107; Elections Code 

20) 

 

A district employee elected to the Board shall resign his/herfrom district employment before being 

sworn in or shall have his/herthe employment automatically terminated upon being sworn into 

office.  (Education Code 35107) 

 

(cf. 9224 – Oath of Affirmation) 

(cf. 9270 – Conflict of Interest) 

 

The Board encourages all candidates to become knowledgeable about the role of Board members.  

The Superintendent or designee may provide all candidates with information that will enable them 

to understand the responsibilities and expectations of being a Board member, including 

information regarding available workshops, seminars, and/or training.  The Superintendent or 

designee may provide all candidates with the county election official’s contact information and 

general information about school programs, district operations, and Board responsibilities. 

 

(cf. 9230 – Orientation) 

(cf. 9240 – Board Training) 

 

Recalling a Board Member 
 

A Board member may be recalled as permitted by Elections Code 11000.  Proponents of a recall 

are required to serve, file, and publish or post a notice of intention to circulate the recall petition 

and to comply with other applicable law and formalities and county elections official directives.  

The petition, pursuant to Elections Code 11041, is required to be in the format provided by the 

Secretary of State and to include an estimate of the cost of conducting the special election, as 

determined by the county elections official, in consultation with the district. 

 

Within 14 days after the meeting at which the Board receives a certificate of sufficiency of 

signatures on a recall petition from the county elections official, the Board shall order an election 

to be held to determine whether the Board member named in the petition shall be recalled.  The 

election shall be held not less than 88, nor more than 125, days after the date that the Board orders 

the election.  However, the election may be conducted within 180 days after the issuance of the 



BB 9220 (b) 
Board Bylaws  
 
GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS 
 
 
Board’s order to consolidate the election with a regularly scheduled election. 

 

Recall elections shall be conducted in accordance with Elections Code 11381-11386. 

 

Elections Process and Procedures 
 

The district is divided into trustee areas and each trustee area shall be represented by a Board 

member who resides in and is elected by voters residing within that trustee area.  Trustee areas 

shall be balanced by population as required by state and federal law. 

 

Prior to March 1 following the year in which the results of each decennial federal census are 

released, the Board shall adjust the boundaries of the district’s trustee areas based on population 

figures as validated by the Population Research Unit of the Department of Finance. (Education 

Code 5019.5) 

 

Board members may reside anywhere within the district’s boundaries and shall be elected by all 

voters in the district. 

 

To ensure ongoing compliance with the California Voting Rights Acts, the Board may review the 

district’s Board election method to determine whether any modification is necessary due to 

changes in the district’s population or any of its racial, color, or language minority group 

composition.  The review shall be based on the Superintendent or designee’s report to the Board 

after the release of each decennial federal census. 

 

If the Board determines that a change is necessaryWhen the district’s election method is to be 

changed, itthe Board shall hold public hearings in accordance with Elections Code 10100 before 

adopting a resolution at an open meeting specifying the change(s), and shall, in accordance with 

Education Code 5019, obtain approval from the county committee on school district organization 

having jurisdiction over the district. 

 

The election method or trustee-area boundaries in effect at the beginning of a Board member’s 

term shall be used when any vacancy that occurs during that term is to be filled, even if, during 

the term, the district has adopted “by-trustee area” election method or trustee area boundaries have 

been adjusted. 

 

Any petition for a special election ordered pursuant to Education Code 5091 shall contain the 

county election official’s estimate of the cost of conducting the special election, expressed on a 

per-student basis.  (Education Code 5091)



BB 9220 (c) 
Board Bylaws  
 
GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS 
 
 

 

(cf. 9320 – Meetings and Notices) 

 

Campaign Conduct 
 

All candidates, including current Board members running as incumbents, shall abide by local, 

county, state, and federal requirements regarding campaign donations, funding, and expenditures. 

 

In order to help protect the public’s trust in the electoral process as well as the public’s confidence 

in the Board and district, the Board encourages all candidates to sign and adhere to the principles 

in the Code of Fair Campaign Practices pursuant to Elections Code 20440. 

 

(cf. 0410 – Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

(cf.  9005 – Governance Standards) 

 

Statement of Qualifications 
 

On the 125th day prior to the day fixed for the general district election, the Board secretary or 

his/her designee shall deliver a notice, bearing the secretary’s signature and district seal, to the 

county elections official describing both of the following: (Elections Code 10509) 

 

1. The elective offices of the district to be filled at the general election and which offices, if 

any, are for the balance of an unexpired term 

 

2. Whether the district or the candidate is to pay for the publication of a statement of 

qualifications pursuant to Elections Code 13307 

 

(cf. 9223 – Filling Vacancies) 

 

Candidates for the Board may submit a candidate statement to the elections official for inclusion 

in the voter’s pamphlet.  Candidate statements shall be limited to no more than 200 words.  

(Election Code 13307) 

 

The district shall assume no part of the cost of printing, handling, translating, or mailing, or 

electronically distributing candidate statements filed pursuant to Elections Code 13307. As a 

condition of having candidate statements included in the hard copy and/or electronic voter’s 

pamphlet, the district may require candidates to pay their estimated pro rata share of these costs to 

the district in advance pursuant to Elections Code 13307.   

 

Tie Votes in Board Member Elections 
 

Whenever a tie makes it impossible to determine which of two or more candidates has been elected 

to the Board, the Board shall immediately notify the candidates who received the tie votes of the 

time and place where the candidates or their representatives should appear before the Board.  The 



BB 9220 (d) 
Board Bylaws  
 
GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS 
 
 

 

Board at that time shall determine the winner by lot.  (Education Code 5016) 

 

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

1006 Qualifications for holding office, county board of education 

5000-5033 Elections 

5220-5231 Elections 

5300-5304 General provisions (conduct of elections) 

5320-5329 Order and call of elections 

5340-5345 Consolidation of elections 

5360-5363 Election notice 

5380 Compensation (of election officer) 

5390 Qualifications of voters 

5420-5426 Cost of elections 

5440-5442 Miscellaneous provisions  

35107 Eligibility; school district employees 

35177 Campaign expenditures or contributions 

35239 Compensation of governing board member of districts with less than 70 ADA 

ELECTIONS CODE 

20 Public office eligibility 

1302 Local elections, school district election 

2201 Grounds for cancellation 

4000-4008 Elections conducted wholly by mail 

10010 District boundaries 

10400-10418 Consolidation of elections  

10509 Notice of election by secretary 

10600-10604 School district elections 

13307 Candidate's statement 

13308 Candidate’s statement contents 

13309 Candidate's statement, indigence 

14025-14032 California Voting Rights Act 

14050-14057 California Voter Participation Rights Act 

20440 Code of Fair Campaign Practices 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

1021 Conviction of crime 

1097 Illegal participation in public contract 

12940 Nondiscrimination, Fair Employment and Housing Act 

81000-91014 Political Reform Act 

PENAL CODE 

68 Bribes 

74 Acceptance of gratuity 

424 Embezzlement and falsification of accounts by public officers 

661 Removal for neglect or violation of official duty 



BB 9220 (e) 
Board Bylaws  
 
GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS 
 
 

Bylaw HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Adopted: 06/03 Port Hueneme, California 

Revised: 12/17, pending 1st reading 

CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 

Article 2, Section 2 Voters, qualifications  Article 7, Section 7 Conflicting offices 

Article 7, Section 8 Disqualification from office 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 52 

10301-10508 Voting Rights Act 

COURT DECISIONS 

Rey v. Madera Unified School District, (2012) 203 Cal. App. 4th 1223 

Randall v. Sorrell, (2006) 126 S.Ct. 2479 

Sanchez v. City of Modesto, (2006) 145 Cal. App. 4th 660 

Dusch v. Davis, (1967) 387 U.S. 112 

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 

85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 49 (2002) 

83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 181 (2000) 

81 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 98 (1998) 

69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 290 (1986) 

 

Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS 

Legal Alert on the Impact of Senate Bill No. 415 on School Board Elections, January 2017 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org 

California Secretary of State’s Office: http://www.sos.ca.gov 

Fair Political Practices Commission: http://www.fppc.ca.gov 

Institute for Local Self Government: http://www.ca-ilg.org 



BB 9223 (a) 
Bylaws of the Board 
 
FILLING VACANCIES 
 
 
Events Causing a Vacancy 
 

A vacancy on the Governing Board may occur for any of the following events: 

 

1. The death of an incumbent (Government Code 1770) 

 

2. The adjudication pursuant to a quo warranto proceeding declaring that an incumbent is 

physically or mentally incapacitated due to disease, illness, or accident and that there is reasonable 

cause to believe that the incumbent will not be able to perform the duties of his/herthe office for 

the remainder of his/herthe term  (Government Code 1770) 

 

3. A Board member's resignation (Government Code 1770) 

 

A vacancy resulting from resignation occurs when the written resignation is filed with the County 

Superintendent of Schools having jurisdiction over the district, except where a deferred effective 

date is specified in the resignation so filed, in which case the resignation shall become operative 

on that date.  A Board member may not defer the effective date of his/her resignation for more 

than 60 days after he/she files the date of resignation is filed with the County Superintendent. Upon 

being filed with the County Superintendent, a written resignation, whether specifying a deferred 

effective date or otherwise, shall be irrevocable. (Education Code 5090, 5091) 

 

4. A Board member's removal from office, including by recall (Elections Code 1138411000; 

Government Code 1770) 

 

5. A Board member's ceasing to be a resident of the district (Government Code 1770) 

 

6. A vacancy on the Board also occurs when a Board member ceases to inhabit the trustee 

area which he/she representsed on the Board. (58 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 888 (1975)) 

 

67. A Board member's absence from the state for more than 60 days, except in the following 

situations:  (Government Code 1064, 1770) 

 

a. Upon district business with the approval of the Board 

 

b. With the consent of the Board for an additional period not to exceed a total absence of 90 

days 

 

c. In the case of illness or other urgent necessity, and upon a proper showing thereof, the time 

limited for absence from the state may be extended by the Board. 

 

cd. For federal military deployment, not to exceed an absence of a total of six months, as a 

member of the armed forces of the United States or the California National Guard 

 



BB 9223 (b) 
Bylaws of the Board 
 
FILLING VACANCIES 
 
 
If the absence of the Board member for this purpose exceeds six months, the Board may approve 

an additional six-month absence upon a showing that there is a reasonable expectation that the 

member will return within the second six-month period, and the Board may appoint an interim 

member to serve in his/herduring the absence.  If two or more members of the Board are absent by 

reason of these circumstances, and those absences result in the inability to establish a quorum at a 

regular meeting, the Board may immediately appoint one or more interim members as necessary 

to enable the Board to conduct business and discharge its responsibilities.  The term of an interim 

member appointed in these circumstances shall not extend beyond the return of the absent Board 

member or beyond the next regularly scheduled election for that office, whichever occurs first. 

 

78. A Board member's ceasing to discharge the duties of his/herthe office for the period of 

three consecutive months, except when prevented by illness or when absent from the state with the 

permission required by law  (Government Code 1770) 

 

89. A Board member's conviction of a felony or any offense involving a violation of his/her 

official duties or conviction of a designated crime resulting in a forfeiture of office (Government 

Code 1770, 3000-3003) 

 

910. A Board member's refusal or neglect to file his/herthe required oath within the time 

prescribed (Government Code 1770) 

 

(cf. 9224 – Oath or Affirmation) 

 

1011. The decision of a competent tribunal declaring void a Board member's election or 

appointment (Government Code 1770) 

 

1112. A Board member's commitment to a hospital or sanitarium as a drug addict, dipsomaniac, 

inebriate, or stimulant addict by a court of competent jurisdiction, in which case the office shall 

not be deemed vacant until the order of commitment has become final (Government Code 1770) 

 

1213. A "failure to elect" in which no candidate or an insufficient number of candidates have 

filed to run for a Board seat(s) (Education Code 5090, 5326, 5328) 

 

Timelines for Filling a Vacancy 
 

When a vacancy occurs, the Board shall take the following action, as appropriate: 

 

1. 1. When a vacancy occurs within four months of the end of a Board member's term, 

the Board shall take no action.  (Education Code 5093) 

 

32. When a vacancy occurs from six months to 130 days before a regularly scheduled Board 

election at which the position is not scheduled to be filled, a special election to fill the position 

shall be consolidated with the regular election.  The person so elected shall take office at the first 



BB 9223 (c) 
Bylaws of the Board 
 
FILLING VACANCIES 
 
 
regularly scheduled Board meeting following the certification of the election and shall serve only 

until the end of the term of the position which he/shethe person was elected to fill.  (Education 

Code 5093) 

 

23. When a vacancy occurs outside of the statutory time windows identified in Items #1 and 

#2 above, longer than four months before the end of a Board member's term, the Board shall, 

within 60 days of the date of the vacancy or the filing of the member's deferred resignation, either 

order an election or make a provisional appointment, unless a special election is mandated as 

described in item #3 below. (Education Code 5091, 5093) 

 

3. When a vacancy occurs from six months to 130 days before a regularly scheduled Board 

election at which the position is not scheduled to be filled, a special election to fill the position 

shall be consolidated with the regular election.  The person so elected shall take office at the first 

regularly scheduled Board meeting following the certification of the election and shall serve only 

until the end of the term of the position which he/she was elected to fill.  (Education Code 5093) 

 

Eligibility 
 

In order to be appointed or elected to fill a vacancy on the Board, a person must meet the eligibility 

requirements specified in Education Code 35107, as described in BB 9220 – Governing Board 

Elections. 

 

(cf. 9220 – Governing Board Elections) 

 

Provisional Appointments 
 

When authorized by law to make a provisional appointment to fill a vacancy on the Board, the 

Board shall advertise in the local media to solicit candidate applications or nominations. A 

committee consisting of less than a quorum of the Board shall ensure that applicants are eligible 

for Board membership and announce the names of the eligible candidates.  The Board shall 

interview the candidates at a public meeting, accept oral or written public input, and select the 

provisional appointee by a majority vote. 

 

(cf. 9130 – Board Committees) 

(cf. 9323.2 – Actions by the Board) 

 

Within 10 days after the appointment is made, the Board shall post notices of the actual vacancy, 

or the filing of a deferred resignation, and the provisional appointment.  The notice shall be 

published in the local newspaper pursuant to Government Code 6061 and posted in at least three 

public places within the district.  (Education Code 5092) 

 

The notice shall contain:  (Education Code 5092) 

 



BB 9223 (d) 
Bylaws of the Board 
 
FILLING VACANCIES 
 
 
1. The date of the occurrence of the vacancy or the date of the filing of, and the effective date 

of, the resignation 

 

2. The full name of the appointee 

 

3. The date of appointment 

 

4. A statement notifying the voters that unless a petition calling for a special election pursuant 

to Education Code 5091 is filed in the office of the County Superintendent within 30 days of the 

provisional appointment, it shall become an effective appointment 

 

The person appointed shall hold office until the next regularly scheduled election for district Board 

members and shall be afforded all the powers and duties of a Board member upon appointment.  

(Education Code 5091) 

 

If within 30 days of the Board’s appointment, registered voters of the district or, where elections 

are by trustee areas, of the trustee area submit a petition for special elections which the County 

Superintendent determines to be legally sufficient, the provisional appointment is terminated, and 

a special election shall be held in accordance with Education Code 5091 to fill the vacancy. 

 

Appointment Due to Failure to Elect 
 

When a vacancy occurs because no candidate or an insufficient number of candidates have been 

nominated (i.e., a failure to elect) and a district election will not be held, the Board shall appoint a 

qualified person to the office.  This appointment shall be made at a meeting prior to the day fixed 

for the election and the appointee shall be seated at the organizational meeting as if elected at the 

district election.  (Education Code 5328) 

 

(cf. 9100 – Organization) 

 

When an appointment is being made because of a failure to elect, the district shall publish a notice 

once in a newspaper of general circulation published in the district, or if no such newspaper exists, 

in a newspaper having general circulation within the district.  This notice shall state that the Board 

intends to make an appointment and shall inform persons of the procedure available for applying 

for the appointment.  (Education Code 5328.5) 

 

The procedure for selecting and interviewing candidates shall be the same as the procedures for 

"Provisional Appointments," as specified above. 

 

 

 

Legal Reference: 

See next page 



BB 9223 (e) 
Bylaws of the Board 
 
FILLING VACANCIES 
 
 

Bylaw  HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Adopted: 06/03 Port Hueneme, California  

Revised: 09/15, pending 1st reading 

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

5000-5033 Elections 

5090-5095 Vacancies 

5200-5208 Districts governed by boards of education 

5300-5304 Elections 

5320-5329 Order and call of election 

5340-5345 Consolidation of elections 

5360-5363 Election notice 

5420-5426 Cost of elections 

5440-5442 Miscellaneous provisions, elections 

35107 Eligibility of board members 

35178 Resignation with deferred effective date 

ELECTIONS CODE 

10600-10604 School district elections 

11381-11386 Candidates for recall 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

1064 Absence from state 

1770 Vacancies: definition 

3000-3003 Forfeiture of office 

3060-3075 Removal other than by impeachment 

6061 One time notice 

54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act 

PENAL CODE 

88 Bribery, forfeiture from office 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 18 

704 Military medals or decorations 

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 

58 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 888 (1975) 

 

Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

Filling a Board Vacancy, rev. December 2010 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org  

California State Attorney General's Office, Quo Warranto Applications: 

http://ag.ca.gov/opinions/quo_warranto.php  

 



       BB 9323 (a) 
 

Bylaws of the Board 
 

MEETING CONDUCT 
 

 

MANDATED 

Meeting Procedures 
 

All Governing Board meetings shall begin on time and shall be guided by an agenda prepared in 

accordance with Board bylaws and posted and distributed in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown 

Act (open meeting requirements) and other applicable laws. 

 

(cf. 9322 – Agenda/Meeting Materials) 

 

The Board president shall conduct Board meetings in accordance with Board bylaws and 

procedures that enable the Board to efficiently consider issues and carry out the will of the 

majority. 

 

(cf. 9121 – President) 

 

The Board believes that late night meetings deter public participation, can affect the Board's 

decision-making ability, and can be a burden to staff. Regular Board meetings shall be adjourned 

at 10:30 p.m. unless extended to a specific time determined by a majority of the Board. The 

meeting shall be extended no more than once and subsequently may be adjourned to a later date. 

 

(cf. 9320 – Meetings and Notices) 

 

Quorum and Abstentions 
 

The Board shall act by majority vote of all of the membership constituting the Board. (Education 

Code 35164) 

 

(cf. 9323.2 – Actions by the Board) 

 

The Board believes that when no conflict of interest requires abstention, its members have a duty 

to vote on issues before them. When a member abstains, his/herthe abstention shall not be counted 

for purposes of determining whether a majority of the membership of the Board has taken action. 

 

(cf. 9270 – Conflict of Interest) 

 

Public Participation 
 

Members of the public are encouraged to attend Board meetings and to address the Board 

concerning any item on the agenda or within the Board's jurisdiction. So as not to inhibit public 

participation, persons attending Board meetings shall not be requested to sign in, complete a 

questionnaire, or otherwise provide their name or other information as a condition of attending the 

meeting, except that if the meeting is conducted using remote public participation or with a Board 

member attending remotely pursuant to Government Code 54953, a member of the public desiring 



       BB 9323 (b) 
 

Bylaws of the Board 
 

MEETING CONDUCT 
 

 

MANDATED 

to provide comment through the use of a third party internet website or online platform may be 

required to register as required by the third party provider.  

 

In order to conduct district business in an orderly and efficient manner, the Board requires that 

public presentations to the Board comply with the following procedures:  

 

1. The Board shall give members of the public an opportunity to address the Board on any 

item of interest to the public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board, either before 

or during the Board’s consideration of the item. (Education Code 35145.5, Government Code 

54954.3) 

 

2. At a time so designated on the agenda at a regular meeting, members of the public may 

bring before the Board matters that are not listed on the agenda. The Board shall take no action or 

discussion on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except as authorized by law. 

(Education Code 35145.5, Government Code 54954.2) 

 

3. Without taking action, Board members or district staff members may briefly respond to 

statements made or questions posed by the public about items not appearing on the agenda. 

Additionally, on their own initiative or in response to questions posed by the public, Board 

members or staff members may ask a question for clarification, make a brief announcement, or 

make a brief report on their own activities. (Government Code 54954.2) 

 

Furthermore, the Board or a Board member may provide a reference to staff or other resources for 

factual information, ask staff to report back to the Board at a subsequent meeting concerning any 

matter, or take action directing staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. (Government 

Code 54954.2) 

 

4. The Board need not allow the public to speak on any item that has already been considered 

by a committee composed exclusively of Board members at a public meeting where the public had 

the opportunity to address the committee on that item. However, if the Board determines that the 

item has been substantially changed since the committee heard the item, the Board shall provide 

an opportunity for the public to speak. (Government Code 54954.3) 

 

(cf. 9130 – Board Committees) 

 

5. A person wishing to be heard by the Board shall first be recognized by the president and 

shall then proceed to comment as briefly as the subject permits. 

 

In general, individual speakers will be allowed three minutes to address the Board on each agenda 

or nonagenda item, and the Board will limit the total time for public input on each item to 20 

minutes. However, in exceptional circumstances when necessary to ensure full opportunity for 

public input, the Board president may, with Board consent, adjust the amount of time allowed for 



       BB 9323 (c) 
 

Bylaws of the Board 
 

MEETING CONDUCT 
 

 

MANDATED 

public input and/or the time allotted for each speaker. Any such adjustment shall be done equitably 

so as to allow a diversity of viewpoints.  The president may also ask members of the public with 

the same viewpoint to select a few individuals to address the Board on behalf of that viewpoint. 

 

In order to ensure that non-English speakers receive the same opportunity to directly address the 

Board, any member of the public who utilizes a translator shall be provided at least twice the 

allotted time to address the Board, unless simultaneous translation equipment is used to allow the 

Board to hear the translated public testimony simultaneously.  (Government Code 54954.3) 

 

6. The Board president may rule on the appropriateness of a topic, subject to the following 

conditions:  

 

a. If a topic would be suitably addressed at a later time, the Board president may indicate the 

time and place when it should be presented.  

 

b. The Board shall not prohibit public criticism of its policies, procedures, programs, services, 

acts or omissions. (Government Code 54954.3)   

 

c. The Board shall not prohibit public criticism of district employees.  However, whenever a 

member of the public initiates specific complaints or charges against an individual employee, the 

Board president shall inform the complainant of the appropriate complaint procedure. 

 

(cf. 1312.1 – Complaints Concerning District Employees) 

(cf. 9321 – Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 

 

7. The Board president shall not permit any disturbance or willful interruptionactual 

disruption of Board meetings. Persistent Actual disruption by an individual or group or any 

conduct or statements that threaten the safety of any person(s) at the meeting shall be grounds for 

the president to terminate the privilege of addressing the Board and remove the individual from 

the meeting.  

 

The Board President or designee may remove disruptive an individuals for actually disrupting the 

meeting.  Prior to removal, the individual shall be warned that their behavior is disrupting the 

meeting and that failure to cease the disruptive behavior may result in removal.  If, after being 

warned, the individual does not promptly cease the disruptive behavior, the Board president, or 

designee, may then remove the individual from the meeting and order the room cleared if 

necessary. In this case, members of the media not participating in the disturbance shall be allowed 

to remain, and individuals not participating in such disturbances may be allowed to remain at the 

discretion of the Board. When the room is ordered cleared due to a disturbance, further Board 

proceedings shall concern only matters appearing on the agenda. (Government Code 54957.9) 

 



       BB 9323 (d) 
 

Bylaws of the Board 
 

MEETING CONDUCT 
 

 

MANDATED 

When an individual’s behavior constitutes the use of force or a true threat of force, the individual 

shall be removed from a Board meeting without a warning. (Government Code 54957.95) 

 

Disrupting means engaging in behavior during a Board meeting that actually disrupts, disturbs, 

impedes, or renders infeasible the orderly conduct of the meeting and includes, but is not limited 

to, a failure to comply with reasonable and lawful regulations adopted by a legislative body 

pursuant to Section 54954.3 or any other law, or engaging in behavior that constitutes use of force 

or a true threat of force. (Government Code 54957.95) 

 

True threat of force means a threat that has sufficient indicia of intent and seriousness, that a 

reasonable observer would perceive it to be an actual threat to use force by the person making the 

threat. (Government Code 54957.95) 

 

Additionally, the Board may order the room cleared if necessary.  In this case, members of the 

media not participating in the disturbance shall be allowed to remain, and individuals not 

participating in such disturbances may be allowed to remain at the discretion of the Board.  When 

the room is ordered clear due to a disturbance, further Board proceedings shall concern only 

matters appearing on the agenda. (Government Code 54957.9) 

 

When such disruptive conduct occurs, the Board may decide to recess the meeting to help restore 

order, or if removing the disruptive individual (s) or clearing the room is infeasible, move the 

meeting to another location.  The Board may direct the Superintendent or designee shall to contact 

local law enforcement as necessary. 

 

Recording by the Public 
 

Members of the public may record an open Board meeting using an audio or video recorder, still 

or motion picture camera, cell phone, or other device, provided that the noise, illumination, or 

obstruction of view does not persistently disrupt the meeting.  The Superintendent or designee may 

designate locations from which members of the public may make such recordings without causing 

a distraction. 

(cf. 9324 – Board Minutes and Recordings)   

 

If the Board finds that noise, illumination or obstruction of view related to these activities would 

persistently disrupt the proceedings, these activities shall be discontinued or restricted as 

determined by the Board. (Government Code 54953.5, 54953.6) 

 

 

 

 

 

 



       BB 9323 (e) 
 

Bylaws of the Board 
 

MEETING CONDUCT 
 

 

MANDATED 

 

 

 

 

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

5095 Powers of remaining board members and new appointees 

32210 Willful disturbance of public school or meeting a misdemeanor 

35010 Prescription and enforcement of rules 

35145.5 Agenda; public participation; regulations 

35163 Official actions, minutes and journal 

35164 Vote requirements  

35165 Effect of vacancies upon majority and unanimous votes by seven member board 

CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 

527.8 Workplace Violence Safety Act 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

54953.3 Prohibition against conditions for attending a board meeting 

54953.5 Audio or video recording of proceedings 

54953.6 Broadcasting of proceedings 

54954.2 Agenda; posting; action on other matters 

54954.3 Opportunity for public to address legislative body; regulations 

54957 Closed sessions 

54957.9 Disorderly conduct of general public during meeting; clearing of room 

PENAL CODE 

403 Disruption of assembly or meeting 

COURT DECISIONS 

City of San Jose v. Garbett, (2010) 190 Cal.App.4th 526 

Norse v. City of Santa Cruz, (9th Cir. 2010) 629 F3d 966 

McMahon v. Albany Unified School District, (2002) 104 Cal.App.4th 1275 

Rubin v. City of Burbank, (2002) 101 Cal.App.4th 1194 

Baca v. Moreno Valley Unified School District, (1996) 936 F. Supp. 719



       BB 9323 (f) 
 

Bylaws of the Board 
 

MEETING CONDUCT 
 

 

Bylaw  HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Adopted: 06/03 Port Hueneme, California 

Revised: 08/13, 02/17, 02/20, pending 1st reading 

MANDATED 

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 

90 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 47 (2007) 

76 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 281 (1993) 

66 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 336, 337 (1983) 

63 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 215 (1980) 

61 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 243, 253 (1978) 

59 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 532 (1976) 

55 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 26 (1972) 

 

Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

Call to Order: A Blueprint for Great Board Meetings, 2015 

The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2014 

ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 

The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Legislative Bodies, 2003 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org  

California Attorney General’s Office: https://oag.ca.gov 

 

 

 

 



Item 11.1 

 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM: DISTRICT ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE  

 

BOARD MEETING DATE: March 27, 2023 

 

FROM: Dr. Christine Walker, Superintendent 

         

                                                          STAFF COMMENT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

For information only. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The Superintendent will give a brief overview of the organizational structure of the district 

and the various programs offered at schools. 

                                                                      

                                                                       

                                                            



Item 14.1 

 

HUENEME ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM: RATIFICATION OF A CONFIDENTIAL COMPROMISE AND 

RELEASE AGREEMENT 

 

BOARD MEETING DATE: March 27, 2023 

 

FROM: Stephanie Barnes, Senior Director, Pupil Support Services 

 Helen Cosgrove, Associate Superintendent, Educational Services 

Dr. Christine Walker, Superintendent 

         

                                                          STAFF COMMENT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

 It is recommended that the Governing Board ratify the confidential Compromise and 

Release Agreement for Case No. 2022120705 that was fully executed on March 9, 2023. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

Pursuant to California Education Code 56505(e) (6) a request for special education due 

process was filed by the parent of a Hueneme Elementary School District student, against 

Hueneme Elementary School District on December 23, 2022.  Following that, the parties 

participated in correspondence and communication through their mutual representatives, 

and participated in a Resolution Session in an attempt to amicably resolve the dispute. The 

parties were successful in resolving all issues through a Compromise Agreement and a 

fully executed Compromise and Release Agreement was submitted on March 9, 2023. 

                                                                      

                                                                       

                                                            


	Agenda of the March 27, 2023 Regular Board Meeting
	6.1, Proposed Minutes of the February 27, 2023, Regular Board Meeting
	7.1, Approval of Personnel Report, Feb2023
	Personnel Report, Feb2023
	Job Description, Educational Services Tech

	7.2(1), Ratification of Expenditure Reports for January 2023
	Commercial Register, Jan2023
	Payroll Summary, Jan2023

	7.2(2), Ratification of POs and Checks for January 2023
	Personnel Report, Jan2023
	Checks, Jan2023

	7.2(3), Report of Miscellaneous Income for January 2023
	Receipt Detail, Jan2023


	7.1, Approval of Personnel Report, March2023
	Personnel Report, Mar2023
	Job Description - Program Specialist for Special Education

	7.2(1), Ratification of Expenditure Reports for February 2023
	Commercial Register, Feb2023
	Payroll Summary, Feb2023

	7.2(2), Ratification of POs and Checks for February 2023
	Purchase Orders, Feb2023
	Checks, Feb2023

	7.2(3), Report of Miscellaneous Income for February 2023
	Receipt detail, Feb2023

	7.3, Acceptance of Gifts to the District
	7.4, Ratify a 5-Year Contract w/Crown Castle for Fiber Optice, WAN Service 
	Crown Castle Ethernet Supplement
	Crown Castle Master Telecommunications License Agmt.
	Crown Castle Order Form

	7.5, Ratify a 3-Year Contract with Spectrum for Fiber Optic Service to VCOE
	Spectrum Service Order

	8.1, Issuance & Sale of HESD General Obligation Bonds, 2018 Election, Series C 
	Resolution B22-23-14
	Preliminary Official Statement
	Engagement Letter

	9.1, Public Hearing Regarding Initial Bargaining Proposal Presented by CSEA to HESD
	Initial Proposal - CSEA

	9.2, Acceptance of Initial Bargaining Proposal Presented by CSEA to HESD
	Initial Proposal - CSEA

	9.3, Approval of 2022/23 and 2023/24 Transportation Plan for Home-to-School Transportation Reimbursement
	HESD Home-to-School Transportation Plan

	10.1, Second Reading of Proposed Policy Revisions
	BP 0430, Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education
	BP 0450, Comprehensive Safety Plan
	BP 3460, Financial Reports & Accountability
	BP 5131.7, Weapons & Dangerous Instruments

	10.2, Acceptance & First Reading of Proposed Policy Revisions
	BP 0460, Local Control & Accountability Plan
	BP 3515, Campus Security
	BP 5142, Safety
	BP 5148.2, Before/After School Programs
	BB 9220, Governing Board Elections
	BB 9223, Filling Vacancies
	BB 9323, Meeting Conduct

	11.1, District Organizational Structure
	14.1, Ratification of Confidential Compromise & Release Agreement



